Human Services Department Representative: Oscar Chavez, Tenant Representatives: Judith Morgan, Vacant
1st District: Betzy Chavez (Vice Chair) | 2" District: Jake Mackenzie | 3" District: Susan Adams (Chair) | 4t District: Vacant
5th District: Linda Garcia | Interim Executive Director: Dave Kiff

Sonoma County Community Development Committee
Regular Meeting and Concurrent Public Hearing

March 16, 2022
10:00 am —12:00 pm
This meeting will be held virtually to comply with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20
Please see Page 2 for instructions on making public comments

MEMBERS MAY NOT ATTEND THIS MEETING IN PERSON

General public meeting access**:
https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/94720026846?
pwd=RXZVbXhFMk1ia3NsZzFrMGRjVk1Pdz09
Webinar ID: 947 2002 6846 #

Passcode: 689958 #

Phone: 669 900 9128
Closed captioning is available (see instructions on Page 2)

*¥CD Committee members and presenters will receive unique Zoom links
the day before the meeting to participate.

AGENDA
Call to Order and Roll Call (5 minutes)

Public Comment on Items Not on the Agenda (5 minutes)

Approve Meeting Minutes of February 16, 2022 (5 minutes)
The Committee will review, discuss, and may take action to approve the meeting minutes or
may recommend changes.
e Committee Questions/Discussion
Public Comments
Motion
Roll Call Vote

Recommended Action: Approve minutes
Interim Director’s Report (5 minutes) - Dave Kiff

Information only - No Action Item

1 0f 395


https://sonomacounty.zoom.us/j/97524347081?pwd=amVXVEpPbWlrZFF0cVZiTG90bitTZz09

Page 2

5. Workshop — Concurrently with the Cities & Towns Advisory Committee: Review, take
testimony, and provide feedback on fiscal year 2022-2023 Community Development Block
Grant (CDBG), HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME) and CDBG - Cares Act
(CDBG-CV) funding applications (60 Minutes)

Staff (Rhonda Coffman, Community Development Assistant Manager)
e Staff Presentation
e Committee Questions
e Public Comment
e Committee Discussion
e Motion
e Roll Call Vote

Recommended Action: Make initial funding recommendations
6. Items Board Members Would Like Placed on a Future Agenda

CTAC adjournment

7. Public Hearing — Review and recommend approval of Public Housing Authority’s Annual
Plan Update (10 minutes)
Staff (Martha Cheever, Housing Authority Manager)
e Staff Presentation
e Committee Questions
e Open Public Hearing
e Close Public Hearing
e Committee Discussion
e Motion
e Roll Call Vote

Recommended Action: Receive, review and recommend approval to the Board of
Commissioners

Next Regular Meeting and Public Hearing:
April 20, 2022 | 10:00 am — 12:00 pm (Virtual)

TO ENABLE CLOSED CAPTIONING: At the bottom of your screen, click on the words Live
Transcript then click on Show subtitles.

PUBLIC COMMENT PRIOR TO THE COMMITTEE MEETING: May be submitted via email to
Veronica.Ortiz-DeAnda@sonoma-county.org.

PUBLIC COMMENT DURING THE BOARD MEETING: Members of the public who join the Zoom
meeting, either through their web browser online or by calling in, will be able to provide live
public comment at specific points throughout the meeting.

2 of 395


mailto:Veronica.Ortiz-DeAnda@sonoma-county.org

Page 3

Any writings or documents presented to a majority of the Community Development Committee
regarding any item on this agenda may be requested by email.

DISABLED ACCOMMAODATION: If you have a disability that requires an accommodation, an
alternative format, or requires another person to assist you while attending this meeting,
please contact the Section 504 Coordinator at (707) 565-7520 as soon as possible to ensure
arrangements for accommodation.

Language Services are available upon request if made at least 48 hours in advance of the
meeting to help ensure availability. For more information or to request services, please contact
the Section 504 Coordinator at (707) 565-7520.

Servicios de idiomas se pueden proveer para esta junta. Para mas informaci o para solicitar

servicios de traduccién llame al (707) 565-7520 por lo menos 48 horas (2 dias) antes de la fecha
de la junta.

3 of 395



Human Services Department Representative: Oscar Chavez, Tenant Representatives: Judith Morgan, Vacant
1st District: Betzy Chavez (Vice Chair) | 2" District: Jake Mackenzie | 3" District: Susan Adams (Chair) | 4th District: Vacant
5th District: Linda Garcia | Interim Executive Director: Dave Kiff

Sonoma County Community Development Committee
Regular Meeting & Concurrent Public Hearing
DRAFT Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, February 16, 2022
10:00 am - 12:00 pm
Meeting Recording:
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3XHvPy7GAOE

1. Call to Order and Roll Call
The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by Chair Hollingsworth Adams.
Community Development Commission (CDC) staff initiated roll call.

Community Development Committee Members Present
Betzy Chavez, 1 District
Jake Mackenzie, 2" District
Susan Hollingsworth Adams, 3™ District
Linda Garcia, 5t District
Judith Morgan, Tenant Representative
Oscar Chavez, Human Services Department (arrived at 10:30 a.m.)

Vacant Seat:
4t District

CDC Staff Present
Dave Kiff, Interim Executive Director
Kathleen Kane, Interim Assistant Executive Director
Martha Cheever, Housing Authority Manager
Rhonda Coffman, Community Development Assistant Manager
Marc Chandler, Acting Community Development Manager
Veronica Ortiz-De Anda, Community Development Associate
Valerie Johnson, Community Development Associate
Matthew Burns, Administrative Aide
Susan Vahlstrom, Executive Secretary

Guests
Rich Wallach with Burbank Housing
Dominic Roydell with PEP Housing

4 of 395


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3XHvPy7GA0E

Page 2

Walter Zisette with Providence Rohnert Park House

Public Comments for Items Not on the Agenda
There were no public comments.

. Approval of November 17, 2021, Meeting Minutes

Committee Member Jake Mackenzie moved to approve the minutes; Committee
Member Judith Morgan seconded the motion. There was no discussion or correction to
the minutes.

Ayes
Betzy Chavez, 1%t District

Jake Mackenzie, 2" District

Susan Hollingsworth Adams, 3™ District
Linda Garcia, 5t District

Judith Morgan, Tenant Representative

Absent:
Oscar Chavez, Human Services Department

CDC Staff Martha Cheever reported that the Zoom link for public access to the meeting was not
working. A recess was called by the Chair until the issue was resolved. The meeting resumed at
10:20 a.m.

4.

Interim Director’s Report

Director Kiff reported that the Emergency Rental Assistant Program (ERAP) has received
numerous applications. Approximately 2,100 have been processed, and there are about
4,000 that are awaiting processing. After meeting with CDC's Community Based
Organization partners, it was decided to pause accepting new applications because the
remaining 4,000 applications will most likely use the funds remaining in the County’s
allocation account. CDC staff will be asking for reallocation from other jurisdictions that
were not able to use their funds and staff should know more by April. If successful in
receiving additional funds, new applications will once again be accepted.

Chair Adams asked for public comment on the Interim Director’s Report. There was
none.

FY 2021-22 Action Plan Substantial Amendment

Rhonda Coffman, Community Development Assistant Manager, presented the draft
Substantial Amendment to the FY 2021-22 Action Plan. The Board of Supervisors
approved the FY 2018-19 Action Plan in July of 2018 that included a commitment of
$444,500 to Habitat for Humanity of Sonoma County to assist in their planned Duncan
Village Home Ownership Project located in Windsor. The project encountered

Telephone (707) 565-7500

FAX (707) 565-7583 @ TDD (707) 565-7555
5 of 395



Page 3

significant delays, and Habitat for Humanity is not able to use the funding by the
expenditure deadlines imposed by both HUD and the Sonoma County funding policies.
CDC has rescinded the funding commitment, and the funds are now available to be
reprogrammed for use on another project. Per HUD regulations, all funds must be spent
within the next 5 to 17 months. Staff recommended that these funds be reprogrammed
to the Sonoma County Housing Authority’s Tenant-Based Rental Assistance Program so
that they can be used immediately after final approval of the substantial amendment by
HUD.

An Action Plan Substantial Amendment is required when there is a change in use of
funds from one program or activity to another. It requires a 30-day comment period
and a public hearing, which is being held today. Staff recommended approval of the
proposed Action Plan Substantial Amendment to reprogram these funds. The
recommendations from the CD Committee and CTAC are scheduled to move to the
Board of Supervisors on March 15, 2022.

Committee members asked questions to staff and Ms. Coffman, Ms. Kane, and Ms.
Cheever responded accordingly.

Chair Adams asked if there was anyone in attendance who wished to speak on this item.
There were no public comments.

Committee Member Jake Mackenzie moved to approve the request and the motion was
seconded by Committee Member Linda Garcia.

Ayes
Betzy Chavez, 1° District

Jake Mackenzie, 2" District

Susan Hollingsworth Adams, 3" District
Linda Garcia, 5t District

Judith Morgan, Tenant Representative
Oscar Chavez, Human Services Department

Summary of CDBG-HOME Applications Received (5 Minutes)

Staff (Rhonda Coffman, Community Development Assistant Manager) reported that a
Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) was published on December 8, 2021, requesting
applications for eligible projects including capital projects, affordable housing projects,
supportive services, fair housing, non-congregate shelters, and economic development
activities.

CDC staff held a virtual technical assistance workshop on January 12, 2022, to provide
assistance to prospective applicants. Approximately 50 people attended the meeting,
which included a presentation of the application requirements, eligible activities,

Telephone (707) 565-7500

FAX (707) 565-7583 @ TDD (707) 565-7555
6 of 395



Page 4

available fund sources, and concluded with an opportunity for attendees to have staff
answer questions. One-on-one technical assistance was also provided to many
prospective applicants.

Applications were due on January 21, 2022, and 17 competitive applications were
received totaling approximately $6.1 million in funding requests. The estimated amount
available is $4.46 million available, which is based on prior year funding of CDBG and
HOME.

There were no additional questions by Committee members.
Items Board Members Would Like Placed on a Future Agenda

Chair Hollingsworth Adams asked if there any plans to go back to in person-meetings or
a hybrid type of meeting where some people can attend in person and others virtually.

Committee Member Oscar Chavez asked for staff to bring to the committee the map
and/or chart showing various demographic data of the Urban County and past project
awards in conjunction with the CDBG-HOME workshop item being presented in the next
meeting. He expressed that this information is helpful in assisting the committee in
seeing where past funds have been awarded to and where the greatest need is.
Committee member Mackenzie agreed with this request. CDC staff explained that staff
is currently updating the spreadsheet that came to the committee in the past showing
past fund distributions and statistical census data for the purpose requested.

. Award of Project-Based Vouchers (15 minutes)

Staff (Martha Cheever, Housing Authority Manager) presented the Housing Authority’s
project-based voucher award recommendations. A Request for Proposals (RFP) was
released on January 4, 2022, for distribution of 200 project-based vouchers. Proposals
were due on February 1, 2022. A total of 17 applications requesting a total of 372
project-based vouchers were received, reviewed, and carefully ranked by staff from the
Community Development Commission and the City of Santa Rosa. A total of 8 projects
are being recommended for award, however, the recommendation [shown in the
following table] is slightly different than what was presented in the written staff report
included in the Committee’s meeting packet.

Telephone (707) 565-7500
FAX (707) 565-7583 @ TDD (707) 565-7555
7 of 395



Recommended Projects

Page 5

Number of
Project Developer | Project Type PBVs Location Construction Type
575 Vallejo Street PEP Senior 2 | Petaluma Preservation
579 Vallejo Street PEP Senior 3 | Petaluma Preservation
Fisher | FEP Senior 5 | Petaluma Preservation
Fisher II PEP Senior 6 | Petaluma Preservation
George's Hideaway CDC PSH 21 | Guerneville | Sub. Rehab/New
The Studios at Montero Burbank PSH 60 | Petaluma Rehab
Providence RP House Providence | PSH 69 | Rohnert Park | New Construction
Redwood Inn CcDC PSH 34 | Santa Rosa Sub. Rehab/New

Committee members asked questions to staff and staff responded accordingly. The
committee asked to see the complete proposals. Ms. Cheever said she will provide the

committee a shared link and will provide proposals in the future.

Chair Adams opened public discussion. Dominic Roydell with PEP Housing thanked the
CDC staff for a well-handled RFP. Walter Zisette with Providence Rohnert Park House
expressed his gratitude for being considered for the project-based vouchers. Rich
Wallace, Senior Director of Business Development Housing Finance with Burbank

Housing spoke on behalf of The Studios at Montero.

Committee Member Linda Garcia moved to approve this agenda item; motion was

seconded by Committee Member Jake Mackenzie.

Ayes

Betzy Chavez, 1% District
Jake Mackenzie, 2" District
Susan Hollingsworth Adams, 3" District
Linda Garcia, 5t District
Judith Morgan, Tenant Representative
Oscar Chavez, Human Services Department

Chair Adams adjourned the meeting at 11:14 am.

Telephone (707) 565-7500
FAX (707) 565-7583 @ TDD (707) 565-7555

8 of 395




] - S . ” Members of the

Sonoma County Community Development Commission Commission
Sonoma County Housing Authority James Gore
1440 Guerneville Road, Santa Rosa, CA 95403-4107 Chair

Chris Coursey
Vice Chair

MEMORANDUM

Susan Gorin
Lynda Hopkins
David Rabbitt

Date: March 16, 2022 Dave Kiff
Interim Executive
Director

To: Community Development Committee (CD Committee)

Cities and Towns Advisory Committee (CTAC)
From: Rhonda Coffman, Community Development Assistant Manager

Subject:  Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-2023 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG), HOME Investment
Partnerships Program (HOME)and FY 2021-2022 HOME and CDBG Cares Act (CDBG-CV)
Staff Reports

Summary of FY 2022-2023 and FY 2021-2022 Funding Recommendations

The Community Development Commission (CDC) received seventeen proposals in response to the
CDBG, HOME, and CDBG-CV Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), issued in December 2021. Staff
conducted a review and evaluation of each application received to determine eligibility for the funding
requested and conformance with the Funding Policies and Consolidated Plan goals. Staff prepared a
written report for each application deemed eligible and complete and made initial recommendations for

funding, shown below.

The following set capitalinvestment, fair housing, and public services awards would: 1) support
furthering the priorities approved in the FY 2022-2023 Funding Policies (Funding Policies) approved by
the CD Committee and CTAC on November 17, 2021 for the FY 2022-2023 funding cycle; 2) meet the
five-year Consolidated Plan goals; and 3) reflect projects that will be able to comply with all regulatory
requirements, especially meeting defined objectives and eligibility criteria of each funding source, and
timely expenditure of funds awarded.

Staff Funding

Applicant Project R t
pplican rojec > Reques 1 Recommendation
CDBG
Non-Housing Capital Projects
City of Sebastopol Luther Burbank Farm ADA Restroom $146,000 $146,000

‘ Facility
Sweetwater Springs Water Wright Drive Water Main, Natoma $169,472 $169,472
District Tank, and Edgehill Booster

Replacement

@ Telephone (707)565-7500
FAX (707) 565-7583 & TDP4#07) 565-7555 o




Applicant

Project

S Request

Staff Funding

Housing Capital Projects

Recommendation

Burbank Housing Dry Creek Commons $900,000 $866,476*
Disability Services & Legal | Housing Accessibility Modification $45 000 $45 000
Center ’ ’
Sonoma County Countywide Housing Rehabilitation
Community Development | Programs $500,000 $500,000
Commission
Total CDBG Capital Projects amount requested $1,760,472 $1,726,948
Total CDBG estimated amount available (FY 2022-2023 and Prior Year Funds) $1,726,948
CDBG - Public Services Set Aside (Fair housing activities) :
Fair Housing Advocates of | Fair Housing Education and $85,000 $84,526*
Northern California Enforcement ’ ’
Legal Aid of Sonoma HOME - Housing Justice Project $195,000 $194 000*
County ’ ’
Total CDBG Public Services amount requested $280,000 $278,526
Total estimated amountavailable (FY 2022-2023) $278,526
HOME Housing Projects n . | | :
Burbank Housing Dry Creek Commons (Healdsburg) $400,000 $ 400,000
Sonoma County Housing Tenant Based Rental Assistance $500,000 $ 500,000
Authority ’ ’
TotalHOME amount requested $900,000 $ 900,000
Total estimated amount available (FY 2022-2023 and FY 2021-2022) $1,188,806
CDBG -CV :
Fair Housing Advocates of | Fair Housing Education and
25,000 25,
Northern California Enforcement ? 225,000
Housing and Economic Financial Stability Legal Services $25,650 $25 650
Rights Advocates ’ !
Community Action HCA Family Fund
Partnership 333,000 233,000
Communit.y Action Sloan House Woman’s Shelter $57,367.87 457367
Partnership
Homes 4 the Homeless Vocational Training (for construction .
of showers for the homeless) »994,000 No recommendation
Homes 4 the Homeless Case Management Program $682,000 $25,000
Totalestimated amount available (FY 2021-2022 and FY 2020-2021) $1,536,871

10 of 395



https://1,817,017.87

*Staff recommends funding up to the full amount requested if the actual CDBG grant from HUD is
greater than the estimated amount, or if sufficient program income or reprogrammed funds become
available.

CDBG Funds

The amount of FY 2022-2023 CDBG funds is estimated for the purposes of making funding
recommendations, with actualamounts to be known once a federal budget is passed and HUD publishes
allocations. Also included in the CDBG amount is $520,000 from the FY 2018-19 Hewitt Street property
acquisition project, which is available for reprogramming after that project was cancelled because Urban
County CDBG funds cannot be used to acquire property for housing in the City of Santa Rosa. This
amount is included in the totalamount available in the table above.

CDBG - Fair Housing Set Aside

CDBG regulations allow a maximum of 15% of the annual CDBG grant award from HUD to be set aside
for Public Services activities. The CDBG and HOME Funding Policies, as approved by the Committees,
designate this set aside for Fair Housing Services and Housing Justice Programs. For the past few years
these funds have been allocated by the Continuum of Care through their funding allocation process and
administered by the Ending Homelessness Division of the Sonoma County Community Development
Commission. However, as these funds arerelatedto the Annual Action Plan, this year they are returning
to the Community Development Compliance Division for administration and monitoring, with funding
recommendations made by the Committees.

HOME Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) Set Aside

The HOME program requires 15% of the HOME annual grant award from HUD to be set aside for use by
a CHDO. The totalamount available from FY 2021-22 is $123, 811 and the estimated amount for FY
2022-2023 is estimated to be $130,441 for a combined estimated total of $254,252. No applications
were received from a CHDO for FY 2021-2022 or FY 2022-2023 and therefor CHDO funds are not shown
in the table above.

CDBG-CV Funds
Six funding requests were received for CDBG-CV funds. Staff's recommendations for funding would

leave a balance of over $1.5 million available for eligible activities, which are subject to the CDBG
statutoryregulations with an additional requirement that they be used for activities that will prevent,
prepare for, or respond to Coronavirus.

Balance of Funds

The totalfunding requests and recommendations for HOME and CDBG-CV were less than the amount of
funds available this year. This is unusual as funds are generally oversubscribed, with more requests than
funds available. The FY 2022-23 Action Plan process must move forward per HUD Consolidated Plan
statutory timeline requirements. Therefore, staff recommends that the Committees now consider the
current eligible proposals and make recommendations for the Board’sapproval of funding awards. The
staff further recommends that the remaining balance of funds be made available through a future “off
cycle” NOFA, which would solicit proposals to be considered for inclusion in a substantial amendment to
the FY 2022-2023 Action Plan.

Ineligible / Incomplete Applications

11 of 395



All applications for funding must be for activitiesthat meeta HUD National Objective and be a CDBG,
HOME or CDBG-CV eligible activity. Applications are also required to include all required information
and attachmentsto be deemed complete. As stipulated in the Funding Policies, incomplete or ineligible
applications will not be considered for funding. Applicants are made aware of this though the NOFA, the
public technicalassistance workshop, and individual technicalassistance meetings. One applicant,
Homes 4 the Homeless, requested $682,130in a combination of CDBG and HOME funding for
construction of new housing in Fulton. Their application was incomplete, lacking responses to all
questions and omitting one or more required attachments. Inaddition, they are not eligible to use
CDBG funds for new housing construction because they are not a qualifying Community Based
Development Organization (CBDO). This applicant has been notified of their disqualification for this
proposal.

Brown Act

All Commission and Board members are subject to the Brown Act and must publicly disclose
communications related to the business of the Committees or Board, which includes any
communications with applicants or applicant sponsors. All applicants should be advised and reminded of
this disclosure, which will occur at the public meetings.

CD Committee and CTAC Workshop

The staff reports, applications and supplemental materialsare attachedto this report for the CD
Committee and CTAC review in advance of the workshop. At the workshop the committees will review
staff analyses of proposals submitted under the competitive funding categories, take testimony from
applicants, and provide feedback tostaff that will be integratedinto the draft FY 2022-2023 Action Plan
and FY 2021-2022 Action Plan Substantial Amendment funding recommendations. All applicants must
be present at the public workshop to be considered for funding.

12 of 395



Staff Reports
Table of Contents

1) Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)

2)

3)

a)

Non-Housing Capital Projects

i) City of Sebastopol — Luther Burbank Farm ADA Restroom Facility

i) Sweetwater Springs Water District — Wright Drive Water Main, Natoma Tank, & Edgehill
Booster in Guerneville

Capital Housing Projects

i} Disability Services and Legal Center — Housing Access Modification Program

ii) Sonoma County Community Development Commission Fund Request — Countywide Housing
Rehabilitation Program

iii) Burbank Housing Development Corporation — Dry Creek Commons in Healdsburg

Public Services/Fair Housing

i) Fair Housing Advocates of Northern California — Fair Housing Education and Enforcement in
Urban County

ii) Legal Aid of Sonoma County — HOME — Housing Justice Project in Urban County

HOME Investment Partnerships Program (HOME)

a)
b)

Burbank Housing Development Corporation —Dry Creek Commons in Healdsburg
Sonoma County Housing Authority Fund Request — Tenant Based Rental Assistance (TBRA)

Community Development Block Grant Coronavirus (CDBG-CV) Applications

a)

Housing and Economic Rights Activists — Public Services — Financial Stability Legal Services in
Urban County

Fair Housing Advocates of Northern California — Fair Housing — Fair Housing Education and
Enforcement in Urban County

Community Action Partnership of Sonoma County — Public Services — Sloan House Project
Community Action Partnership of Sonoma County — Public Services — HCA Family Fund
Homes 4 the Homeless — Public Services — Case Management

Homes 4 the Homeless — Public Services — Showers and Vocational Training

13 of 395



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) — CAPITAL PROJECTS

Estimated FundingAvailable:

CDBG Estimated Funding Available:

FY 2022 — 23:

$1,206,948

FY 2022 - 23: $1,206,948

CDBG Reprogrammed Funds Available: Prior Year:  $520,000
CDBG Applications
. . Amount CDC Staff
Applicant Project Name Requested Recommendation
Burbank Housing Development
Corporation Dry Creek Commons $900,000 $866,476*
. Luther Burbank Farm
City of Sebastopol ADA Restroom Facility $146,000 $146,000
Disability Service & Legal Housing Access
Center Modification Program »45,000 $45,000
Commenity Dovelopment | Countywide Housing
Commission (fund request, not Rehabilitation »500,000 $500,000
. Programs
applicant)
Wright Drive Water
SweetwaterSprings Water Main, Natoma Tank,
District and Edgehill Booster »169,472 $169,472
Replacement
Total Requested | $1,760,472
Total Estimated
1,726,948
Available ? $1,726,948

*Staff recommends funding up to the fullamountrequested if the actual CDBG grant from HUD
is greater than the estimated amount.

14 of 395




APPLICANT NAME: City of Sebastopol
PROJECT NAME: Luther Burbank Farm ADA Restroom Facility
AMOUNT REQUESTED: $146,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

The project consists of construction of a new ADA-compliant publicrestroom facility at the
Luther Burbank Experiment Farm, ADA parkingstall and access to the new bathroom from the
existingparkinglot. The work alsoincludesinstallation of sewer, water and electrical service to
support the restroom facility.

PROJECT TYPE: Publicimprovements

FOR HOUSING PROJECTS, THE NUMBER AND SIZE OF UNITS, INCOME LEVELS TO BE SERVED:
N/A

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS: Project management, design, construction and inspection

FUNDING POLICIES (Funding Goals and Objectives)

Does the project address one of the highest priorities of: 1) creating or preserving affordable
housing, 2) building infrastructure or public facilities that support creation or preservation of
affordable housing, or 3) building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income
communities?

This project addresses buildinginfrastructure or public facilities that support low income
communities.

If the application is for housing acquisition and/or preservation, are the units at risk of
becoming market rate housing?

N/A

If the application is for a housing project, does the project set aside homes for persons or
households experiencing homelessness or who are at imminent risk of becoming homeless?

N/A

15 of 395



If the application is for a housing project, will the project provide units for special needs
populations?
N/A

THRESHOLD CRITERIA

Does the project meet at least one National Objective as required under CDBG regulations (24
CFR 570.208)?

The proposed project includes the construction of a new ADA compliant publicrestroom facility
at asmall local park. HUD regulations consider people with disabilities to be a “presumed
benefit” category that qualifies as meetinga Low/Mod Income Limited Clientele National
Objective, becauseithas been determinedthatat least 51% of people with disabilities have
incomes at or below 80% AMI. However,the HUD regulations allowing use of the presumed
benefitrule state that CDBG fundingcan be usedto pay for ADA improvementsonly;
specifically, the removal of pre-existing architectural barriers. CDBG funds qualifyingunderthis
category may not be used for construction of new ADA-compliant facilities.

HUD regulations do allow the construction of a new public facility orimprovement providing
ADA access if it qualifies underthe National Objective as a Low-Moderate (L/M) Income Area
Benefit. The publicfacility or improvement must be used for a purpose the benefits of which
are available to all the residentsina particular area that is primarily residential, and at least
51% of those residents are L/M income persons.

The census data currently available does not qualify the service area of this public facility
improvement underthe L/M Area Benefit. However, the census data is now out of date and
does not accurately reflectthe currentincome of the residentsinthe area. In such cases, HUD
allowsincome surveys as an alternate method of determining sufficient Low/Mod Area benefit
neededto document that a proposed eligible activity will meetthe national objective of
Low/Mod area benefit with prior approval. A HUD-approved income survey is proposed to be
usedto qualify thisproject under the L/M area benefit.

Does the proposed project or activity meet the eligibility requirements of the CDBG and
HOME Funding Policies (If no, provide the specificreason)?

The project could be determined eligible if 51% or more of the surrounding area residentsand
actual park users are at or below 80% of the area median income (AMI).

Is the project consistent with the General Plan of the jurisdiction in which it is located?

Yes, ina letter dated January 20, 2022 from the City of Sebastopol Planning Department, the
project is confirmed as consistent with two goals in the General Plan.

Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing (AFFH)?

16 of 395



AFFH is not applicable to non-housing Public Facilities and Improvements

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliver the proposed project?

The City of Sebastopol has a history of successful managementof similar projects usingfederal,
state and local funds. The City of Sebastopol has been an incorporated governmententity for
over a hundred years, duringwhich time-frame the City has managed all manner of grant funds
from multiple sources. As a small City, grants are essential tothe City's ability to continue to
address the needs of its citizens. The City has staff well-experienced in handlinggrant funds of
all sorts

SELECTION CRITERIA

Will the requested funds for the project be leveraged against total developmentcosts at least
7:1?

This is a non-housing capital projectthat is not subjectto the 7:1 leverage requirement and
onlyincludes construction costs and no permanent take-out financing. If applicantreceivesall
of the requested local funding, each $1.00 of CDBG fundswould leverage $3.56 from other
sources.

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status
CDBG Grant $146,000 Not committed
Measure M-Parks Grant $17,000 Committed
Pro-bono (donation) $18,000 Committed

City staffIn Kind $6,000 Committed

TOTAL $187,000

Does the applicant demonstrate consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and / or
other federal and state funding to develop housing within the last sevenyears?

N/A

Does the project demonstrate existing support from the jurisdiction in which it is located via
letters of support, funding commitments, etc.?

Yes, the City of Sebastopol owns the property and the Planning Department submitted a letter
stating that the project is consistent with their adopted General Plan.

17 of 395



Does the project demonstrate advanced readiness via (a) entitlements; (b) financing
commitments; {c) building permits, (d) environmental review?

The CEQA environmental review is anticipated to be completed by December 2022. Design
work is expectedto be completed by January 2023 with a project completion of February 2024.

Does the applicant have adequate provisions for long-range maintenance and operations?

The City conducts regular maintenance of its parks and facilities.

For non-housing projects, is there a documented and verifiable need for the project above
and beyond existing facilities?

This project has been identified to supportthe City's parks systems and is included in the City's
adopted Capital Improvement Program and their 2013 ADA Transition Plan. There is an existing
non-ADA compliant bathroom located at the site in the historical Cottage building. The Cottage
isonly open once aweekwhenthere is volunteer staffingby the West Sonoma County
Historical Society. When the Cottage is open, the bathroom cannot be accessed by park visitors
(orvolunteers) who have physical disabilities. Due to the historic nature of the Cottage, itis not
feasible to make the existingbathroom ADA-compliantand therefore it was determinedthat a
separate bathroom building on the property site would be more feasible and would havethe
added benefitof beingopento the publicwhenthe City park is opento the public, sevendays a
week.

For non-housing projects, can the project be expected to have a significant impact on the
identified problem and result in one or more measurable indicator?

Yes, the project will benefitresidents withincomes at or below 80% AMI.

For housing projects, does project’s proposed number of units exceed the minimum CDBG
requirements?

N/A

For housing projects, are the proposed rents below the maximum rents allowed by the CDBG
requirements?

N/A

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

18 of 395



The project is located adjacent to an affordable housing developmentbut based on 2015
Census data the censustract has only 43% low income residents. However, based on a field visit
to the siteit appears the residential housingthat is adjacent to the park / publicfacility
improvementis older rental housing, which istypically occupied by lowerincome households.
An income survey isneeded to determine if the project can be determined as eligible underthe
L/M Area Benefit.

CONSEQUENCES OF NO FUNDING:

The project cannot be phased since it proposes the construction of a single ADA bathroom
facility. If partial fundingis granted (depending onthe amount), the City of Sebastopol City
Council may needto be consulted to request additional funding for the project. Once the City is
informed as to how much grant money can be made available, staff can quickly request
additional fundingfor the project.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends fully funding the project contingent upon the results of a HUD approved
income survey that determinesiteligible underthe L/M Area Benefit

Preliminary Condition(s) of Approval

Allocated fundingwill be a grant [X] aloan[]

CDBG funds will be used to reimburse allowable Environmental and Design costs
only.

CDBG fundingcan be usedto pay for ADA improvementsonly; specifically, the
removal of pre-existing architectural barriers. CDBG funds may not be used for
construction of new ADA-compliantfacilities unless aHUD-approved income
survey documents that at least51% of park visitors have are lower-income.

The use of CDBG funds will require the entire construction contract to comply with
federal requirements for contract documents, contracting and labor standards.
The general contractor and subcontractors performingthe work must pay federal
Davis Bacon prevailingwages for all contract activities.

Funds for all public facilities and improvements projects must be expended within
18 months of the date on which the Funding Agreementis offered for execution.

19 of 395



SONOMA COUNTY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION

FUNDING APPLICATION: AFFORDABLE
HOUSING AND CAPITAL PROJECTS

Please review the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), Application
Guidelines, and the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies

before submitting your application. All applications must meet the eligibility
criteria found in the Funding Policies and the requirements set forth in the

NOFA.

This space reserved for CDC date and time stamp

Part 1: Applicant Information
Legal name of organization: City of Sebastopol
Organization’s DUNS number: 004952883

Contact Information

Authorized Representative Name, title: Larry McLaughlin, City Manager
(Qity/Town Manager, Executive  py e (707) 823-1153
Director, or other): )
Email: Imclaughlin@cityofsebastopol.org
Primary point of contact: Name, title: Toni Bertolero, Engineering Consultant, GHD Inc.
Phone: (707) 921-7647
Email: toni.bertolero@ghd.com
Organization is a: ONon-profit organization ~ [JFor-profit organization = Local government

OCommunity Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
COCommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)
Organization mailing address: 7120 Bodega Avenue, PO Box 1776, Sebastopol, CA 95472
Organization website: www.cityofsebastopol.org
Organizational Capacity and Experience

Describe applicant’s record of administrative and programmatic capacity using federal, state, local, and/or private grant
funds, explaining any past issues or challenges administering grant funds.

The City of Sebastopol has been an incorporated government entity for over a hundred years,
during which time-frame the City has managed all manner of grant funds from multiple sources. As a
small City, grants are essential to the City's ability to continue to address the needs of its citizens.
The City has staff well-experienced in handling grant funds of all sorts.

20 of 395



Affordable He

Part 2: Project Description
Brief Description of Project or Program

ben ITacpa it S g g bl en bl
5 PUNGING ApDHCaTCH

The description provided here will be incorporated into the staff reports provided to the Community Development
Committee, Cities and Towns Advisory Committee, and/or the Board of Supervisors. Descriptions MUST BE 125 words
or less. It will not be edited and will be truncated at 125 words. For housing related applications, please include
information on the number of affordable units in the project, accessible units (types, number of units, and accessibility

type). A longer project description may be attached (see Part 6, Attachments). If you are requesting CDBG-CV funds,
please include how the proposed activity will prevent, prepare for or respond to Coronavirus (activities must demonstrate

they respond to one or more).

The project consists of construction of a new ADA-compliant public restroom facility at the Luther
Burbank Experiment Farm, ADA parking stall and access to the new bathroom from the existing
parking lot. The work also includes installation of sewer, water and electrical service to support the

restroom facility.

Part 3: Project Information
Project Name

Project Type

Luther Burbank Farm ADA Restroom Facility

Using Appendix A of the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies, fill in the field below.

CDBG or HOME eligible activity:

Funding Request

Estimated project budget:

Amount of funding request:

Funding source:

Property Information (as applicable)

Project location (physical address or cross streets):
Assessor’'s Parcel Number(s):

Census tract(s):

Total acreage:

Current use of site:

Is project located in a 100-year flood plain?

FEMA FIRM panel number:

Is the project, or any part of it, located within the limits
of any city/town?

Which jurisdiction(s) must approve the project?

What local approvals and entitlements will be required
to develop the proposed project?

Date entitiements and permits expected to be
approved:

21 of 395

CDBG

$187,000
$146,000
mCDBG [HOME JHOME-CHDO CICDBG-CV

7777 Bodega Avenue, Sebastopol, CA 95472
060-222-029
City of Sebastopol
3.22
Park, recreation
Yes @No
06097C0715E

Sebastopol

City of Sebastopol

mYes [INo
If yes, which city/town?

Building permit and encroachment permit from the City.

Project approved by Council in CIP in July 2021. Building and encroachment permits estimated to be approved June 2022.

Updated 12/10/2021



- PR LI A H 63
s Funding Application

Status of Site Control

Identify the form of site control: m Ownership (attach copy of grant deed or deed of trust)
[JLease (attach copy of lease)
[JOption agreement (attach copy of agreement)
OJPurchase agreement (attach copy of agreement)

[JOther; explain:

Note: If funding application is for acquisition, also attach copy
of current appraisal if available.

Status of Environmental or Other Approvals

Applicant must obtain certification of project’s consistency with the applicable general plan, signed by an authorized
representative of the jurisdiction in which the project is located (housing rehabilitation projects excluded).

Status of environmental review: Historical Society has approved. CEQA will commence.
Status of land use, building permits, or other L . . . .
approvals: Building permit application will commence 2022

Explain any land use (zoning, lot split, set back, or
environmental) constraints that must be resolved prior
to proceeding with the project:

No constraints

Status of Relocation Activities

in order to receive funding, projects must comply with the Sonoma County Residential Anti-Displacement and
Relocation Assistance Plan.

Will the project involve demolition of any structure or (JYes mNo

relocation of any persons or businesses?

Explain the status of any demolition or relocation

activities: N one
Existing Improvements

EXISTING COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

Number of structures 2 (cottage and barn)
Year built First built in the 1800's and last remodeled in the 1990s
Number of vacant structures 0

Number of occupied structures 0
Number of structures to be demolished 0
Estimated cost of relocation 0
EXISTING RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENTS

SRO Studio 1-BR 2-BR 3-BR 4-BR
Number of existing units 0
Number of occupied units 0
Number of vacant units 0
Number of substandard units 0
Number of units to be demolished 0
Estimated cost of relocation N/A

L

Page 3 of 24 22 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Phasing

Can project proceed if phased or if given partial funding? Explain the effect of phasing or partial funding on the project's
ability to move forward.

Project cannot be phased since it is a single bathroom facility. If partial funding is granted
(depending on the amount), Council may need to be consulted to request additional funding for the
project. Once the City is informed how much grant money can be made available, staff can quickly
request additional funding for the project.

Demonstration of Need

Describe the need for the project or program and include evidence of need (e.g., cite waiting lists for services, census
data, documentation of deteriorated conditions, or other evidence).

This project has been identified to support the City's parks systems and is included in the City's adopted Capital
Improvement Program and the 2013 ADA Transition Plan (see Attachment 6). There is an existing non-ADA
compliant bathroom located at the site in the historical Cottage building. The Cottage is only open once a week
when there is volunteer staffing by the West Sonoma County Historical Society. When the Cottage is open, the
bathroom cannot be accessed by disabled visitors to the park. Due to the historic nature of the Cottage, it is not
feasible to make the existing bathroom ADA-compliant and therefore it was determined that a separate bathroom
building on the property site would be more feasible and would have the added benefit of being open to the public
when the City park is open to the public, seven days a week.

Outcomes
Describe the outcomes expected to result from the project or program.

The City of Sebastopol is committed to ensuring persons with disabilities can enjoy and frequent all
City parks. Essential to park use and visits is the ability to identify barriers that may prevent or
eliminate community inclusion. The proposed project is beneficial to both residents and the
community and Sonoma County regiona, as well as national and international visitors. The City has
a goal to provide ADA access to City parks and facilities in accordance with the City's 2013 ADA
Transition Plan (see Attachment 6).

Part 4: Timeline

Target Dates
List anticipated target date for each of the major milestones below. (Housing projects use timeline in supplemental
application instead.)

Major Milestone Target Completion Date Funds Expended
Environmental Review Dec. 2022 10%
Site Control Dec. 2022 0
Design Completion Jan. 2023 30%
Bid Period Closes Mar. 2023 0
Construction Begins May 2023 0
Construction Complete Dec. 2023 0
Notice of Completion Feb. 2024 0

jo}
[fe]
B
BN
2
=
[
et



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBGHOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 5: Sources and Uses
Housing projects use budget in supplemental application instead.

Sources
Source of Funds Donations Loans Grants
CDBG grant 146,000.
Measure M-Parks 17,000.
Pro-bono (donation) 18,000.
City staff
Total 35,000. 146,000.
Uses
Projected Uses Donations Loans Grants
Land Acquisition
Environmental Review 6,000. (1)
Architect (prelim) 15,000. (3)
Engineering (prefim) 3,000. (4)
Project Fees
Site Improvements 140,000 (5)
Other: Final A&E 17,000. (7)
Other:
Total 18,000. 163,000.

Notes shown in parentheses ()

(1) Estimated cost of NEPA review by CDC staff.

2) In-house cost for CEQA review by in-house City staff.

3) Estimated value of preliminary architectural plans (pro-bono work).

4) Estimated value of preliminary civil plan for site utilities (pro-bono work).
5) Estimated cost for construction and construction management of project.
6) Estimated cost for construction inspection by City staff.

plans and specs.

T,
fend
fod
Y
o
L&)
N
[A]

24 of 395

In Kind

6,000.

6,000.

In Kind

1,000. (2)

5,000. (6)

6,000.

7) Set-aside funds from Measure M-Parks funds (a local fund) for final architectural/engineering

Total
146,000.
17,000.
18,000.
6,000.

$187,000.

Total

7,000.
15,000.
3,000.

145,000.
17,000.

$187,000.

P

Updated 12/10/20

34

-y



Sonoma Counly Community Development Commission

i)
ot

Part 6: Attachments Required

Project sponsors must submit the following documents, as applicable, with their funding application:

Project Description: Provide a description of the project that includes specific location information and geographic
boundaries. It should identify the maximum anticipated scope of the entire project, and delineate the specific
activities for which the applicant is requesting funding at this time. Applications for housing-related projects should
instead include a Housing Project Description, described in Supplemental Application below.

Project Location Map: Attach an 8 1/2°x 11” map showing the project location, clearly showing the project area in
relation to surrounding communities.

Authorizing Resolution: For non-profit organizations, attach a resolution from the Board of Directors authorizing
the submittal of the application.

City/Town Authorizing Resolution: Attach a city/town council resolution endorsing the project for those located
within the seven incorporated jurisdictions or for those sponsored by one of the seven incorporated jurisdictions.

General Plan Consistency: Attach a certification of consistency with the applicable jurisdiction’s General Plan.

IRS Letter of Determination: Non-profit organizations only must submit an IRS Letter of Determination. Non-profit
organizations are not eligible for consideration unless non-profit status has been verified.

Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) verification: For CHDO'’s applying for HOME CHDO
funds, submit a Sonoma County CHDO letter or plan to become an independent, fully functioning CHDO entity.

Letters of Commitment: Submit letters of commitment from all other funding sources.
Financial Documentation:
00 Non-profit organizations must attach the following:
= Current operating budget
= Most recent completed final audit report
= |RS Form 990 for the most current tax year

= |f organization is not audited, attach a copy of the most recent internal financial statement that
has been approved by Board of Directors.

*Additional financial information may be requested by CDC staff as deemed appropriate.

B Sonoma County departments or agencies, the cities of Cotati, Cloverdale, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park,
Sebastopol, Sonoma, and the Town of Windsor are exempt from this requirement.

O Organizations are required to have written policies and procedures. The applicant must submit certification that

Page 8 of 21
Page B ofZ 25 of 395

they have the following policies and procedures. (Please complete the forms found in Part 7 — Certifications)
=  Accounting
= Conflict of Interest
»  Procurement
= Record Retention

Updated 12/10/2021



=

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
COBGMOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Supplemental Application:
Public Facilities or Other Infrastructure Projects

Define project service area

List all census block groups in service Citv of Sebastopol
area: " y " P
West County

For sidewalk / curb cut projects
Location of sidewalks (cross streets): N/A

Define the service area; list all Census N/A

block groups in service area:

Number of curb cuts (anticipated): N/A

Page 7 of 21 26 of 395



Sounty Community D

=

lopment Commission
DME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Supplemental Application:

Housing-Related Projects

Fill out this supplemental application if the project will result in the construction of new housing units, preservation of
existing housing units, or the acquisition of land for new housing units.

Project Information

Project type:

CINew construction

Total number of units to be constructed

or rehabilitated:

Total number of affordable units (new

construction or acquisition):

For HOME funding requests, total
number of HOME-assisted units:

Total development costs:

Contact Information of All Parties

Page 8 of 21

APPLICANT INFORMATION

ARCHITECT

PARTNER OR RELATED ENTITIES

Name:
Address:

City, State, Zip:
Contact person:
Telephone:
Email:

Organization is a:

Name:
Address:

City, State, Zip:
Contact person:
Telephone:
Emaitl:

Organization is a:

Name:
Address:

City, State, Zip:
Contact person:
Telephone:
Email:

27 of 395

URehabilitation  TAcquisition

N/A

UNon-profit organization LI For-profit organization
Olocal government

O Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
O Community Based Development Organization (CBDO)

CINon-profit organization  CJFor-profit organization
ULocal government

LJCommunity Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
LCommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

Updated 12/10/2021


https://Deveioprm�.mt

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBGMHOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects F

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

PROPERTY MANAGER

Status of Entitlements and/or Services

If site is located in an unincorporated
area of the County, have you or will you
submit an application to Sonoma
County Planning & Resource
Management Department for:

Status of planned water and sewer
service:

If not yet provided, explain how water
and sewer service will be provided.

Does the project have Article 34
authority from the jurisdiction in which it
is located?

Proposed Tenancy

Household types:

Number of each type of unit
Average square feet per unit
Total number of units:

How many of the total units will be
reserved for the following:

Homeless persons

Elderly persons

Disabled persons (see note)
Special needs populations
Resident manager

Other; specify:

Unrestricted

Page 9 of 21

unding Application

Name:
Address:

City, State, Zip:
Contact person:
Telephone:
Email:

License no.:
Name:
Address:

City, State, Zip:
Contact person:
Telephone:
Email:

[JState Density Bonus Program

[JCounty of Sonoma Supplemental Density Bonus Program
OHousing Element Type A Rental Housing Opportunity Program
Housing Element Type C Ownership Housing Opportunity Program

Date of application:

If answering yes to any of the above, contact Commission staff to discuss
schedule for preparation and Board approval of Affordable Housing Agreement.

1 Yes. If yes, attach a copy of the allocation letter.

0 No. If no, attach written legal opinion describing why Article 34 referendum
authority is not required.

SRO Studio 1BR 2BR 3BR 4BR

28 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



'

= ah e b
apifal

ng and ©

Note: In new construction and substantial rehabilitation rental projects assisted with HOME or CDBG funds, at least five percent of units
(not less than one unit) must be accessible to persons with mobility impairments, and an additional two percent of units (not less than 1
unit) must be accessible to persons with sensory impairments. Projects assisted with other funds must satisfy applicable federal, state,
and local regulations regarding the provision of accessibie housing. Ownership housing projects assisted with funds from these
programs must comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding the provision of accessible units.

Estimated Monthly Rent Levels (before deduction of utility allowances)

Household types: SRO Studio 1BR 2BR 3 BR 4BR
Units Rent Units Rent Units Rent Units Rent Units Rent Units Rent

Extremely Low-Income (30% of AMI)
Very Low-Income (50% of AMI)
60% of AMI
Low-Income (80% of AMI)
Market Rate (>80% of AMI)
Resident Manager's Unit
Estimated Utility Allowance*
*Please provide list of tenant-paid utilities, the utility profile for all appliances, and the Utility Allowance for each unit type.
Estimated Affordable Sales Prices (ASP)
Household types: SRO Studio 1BR 2BR 3BR 4BR
Units ASP Units ASP Units ASP Units ASP Units ASP Units ASP
Extremely Low-Income (30% of AMI)
Very Low-Income (50% of AMI)
60% of AMI
Low-Income (80% of AMI)
100% of AMI
120% of AMI
LENGTH OF AFFORDABILITY PERIOD

What is the proposed length of
affordability for the affordable units?

See Funding Policies

Project Schedule

Include all major milestones such as land acquisition, general plan amendment and rezoning, density bonus / housing
element housing opportunity area approval, design review approval, schematic design, design development, construction
documents, construction phase, initial occupancy, and, if applicable, assignment of the project to a limited partnership or
other entity. Specify tentative dates for closing the proposed loan and first request for funds, as well as when construction
financing and permanent financing will close. Please provide realistic dates for completion of activities and
expenditure of funds. These dates will be included in the applicable funding agreement.

Major Milestone Target Completion Date Funds Expended

Page 10 of 21 29 Of 395 U@‘j@f@d 12110/2021



y Development Commission

Sonoma County Community
{ousing and Capital Projects Funding Application

CDBG/MHOME Affordable F

Development Budget
ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Lender Amount Interest Rate / Usef(s)
Term

Total

ESTIMATED PERMANENT FINANCING

Lender Amount Interest Rate / Use(s)
Term

Total

Summary of First-Year Operating Budget
Rental projects only
Total
Gross potential rental income
Plus other income (e.g., laundry)
Less 5% vacancy / rent loss
Effective Gross Income
Less total operating expenses*

Less payment to replacement
reserves

Less payment to other reserves

Net operating income

Less debt service payments

Net cash flow

Debt service coverage ratio

*Include $75 per unit, per year monitoring fee in the operating budget

Page 11 of 21 30 of 395

Commitment
Status

Commitment
Status

Per unit

HOME match
qualifying?

HOME match
qualifying?

Updated 12/10/2021


https://Updc1t.ed

sots Funding Application

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing

In planning for the use of CDBG and HOME, the County of Sonoma must adhere to the mandate in the Fair Housing Act to
Affirmatively Further Fair Housing. This means that not only must all HUD funded programs and activities combat
discrimination, but they must also overcome patterns of segregation and the denial of access to opportunity that are part of
national and local history. The ways in which a project or program can do this meaningfully are listed below, and to be
considered for funding, all applicant projects must overcome patterns of segregation in one or more of the ways listed.

In which of the following ways does the proposed project overcome patterns of segregation and the denial of
access to opportunity (check all that apply)? Please provide an explanation of how the project accomplishes the
item (s) checked.

1 It makes an investment in a segregated and high poverty neighborhood to improve conditions and eliminate disparities in

access to opportunity between residents of this neighborhood and the rest of the jurisdiction and region.
Explain:

C1 It maintains and preserves existing affordable rental housing stock to reduce disproportionate housing needs.
Explain:

1 It provides affordable housing in an area(s) of opportunity to combat segregation and promote integration.
Explain:

1 It provides mixed income housing designed to integrate racially and ethnically concentrated areas of poverty.
Explain:

I It increases access for individuals with protected characteristics to existing affordable housing in higher opportunity
areas.

Explain:

Pimelmboed 4730913 4
Updatad 12/10/2021

Page 12 of 21 31 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commissi
CDBGMHOME Affordable Housing and Capital Proje -unding Application

Homelessnhess-Related Questions

If project is a permanent supportive
housing project, identify service
provider:

Describe approach to lowering barriers to potential tenants to entering permanent housing (i.e., accepting referrals from
Coordinated Intake:

Page 13 of 21 32 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Additional Attachments Required

In addition to the attachments required in Part 6 of the funding application, housing-related project sponsors must submit
the following as attachments to their applications:

O Housing project description: Provide a written narrative to describe your project. At a minimum, the narrative
should include the following:

e Description of the type of housing proposed
e Target population(s)
¢ Planned services for residents

* Proposed use(s) of the requested funding and anticipated environmental issues (i.e., vernal pools,
heritage trees, riparian corridor, contamination, flood plain, endangered species, historical and
archeological impacts)

« Authorized entity that will execute the funding agreement and loan documents if applicable for the funds
requested in this application

o |f the project will use a tax credit limited partnership to finance the project, please describe the
organizational structure of the partnership and the roles of various partners or other related organizations

O Current preliminary title report

O Evidence of site control

O Current appraisal, if available. Appraised value of property must fully secure the Commission’s loan(s). In
addition, the total purchase price may not exceed the “reasonable cost” for the property

O Environmental clearances/reports

O Site plan and elevations or schematic drawing

O Project Location Map: Attach an 8 1/2"’x 11" map showing the project location, clearly showing the project area in
relation to surrounding communities

O Contractor’s cost breakdown

O Using the Sonoma County Community Development Commission Utility Allowance Schedule,
hitp:/lsonomacounty.ca.gov/CDC/Housing-Authority/Property-Owners/Utility-Allowances/, list the tenant-paid
utilities and utility allowance for your project

O itemized development budget, including a sources and uses table, identifying distributions to the owner,

developer, partners or other entities during the development phase

O Narrative description of the development’s financial plan, indicating expected dates for obtaining approvals for any
uncommitted financing

O Rental projects: A 30-year operating budget and cash flow projection that shows estimated project income,
operating expenses, reserves, debt service, and distributions. Please include a “totals” column after year 30

O Article 34 Authority: Attach allocation letter or legal opinion that allocation is not required.

Updated 12/10/2021

33 of 395


http://sonomacount

County Community Development Commission

onoma
DBGHOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projests Funding Application

S
CDBG
Part 7: Certifications

= Grant Certification Form — 1 (Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority)

= Grant Certification Form — 2 (Federal Regulations)

= Grant Certification Form — 3 (Conflict of Interest)

= Grant Certification Form — 4 (Policies and Procedures)

Page 15 of 21 34 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021

[



ity Community Development Commi
Affordable Housing and Capital Proj

Grant Certification Form -1
Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority

I hereby certify that City of Sebastopol (insert name of organization requesting funds) has
complied with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to the application and is an eligible applicant for the
requested funding.

The organization proposes to provide the program services or complete the project identified in this application. If
this application is approved and this organization receives the requested funding this organization agrees to adhere
to all relevant Federal, State, and local regulations and other assurances as required by the Commission.

in addition, the content of the application shall be incorporated as part of the written agreement and, as such, will be
used to monitor performance. Activities, commitments, and representations described in the written agreement that
are not subsequently made a part of the program/project as funded shall be considered a material contract failure
and may result in a repayment of all awarded funds and/or suspension from participation in future funding rounds.

| hereby certify that the organization is fully capable of fulfilling its obligation under this application, as stated herein.
| further certify that the information provided in this Funding Application is correct, accurate, and complete.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name: Larry McLaughlin

Title:__City Manager

Date:_January 21, 2022

Page 16 of 21

35 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Cormmunity Development Com
CDBGHOME Affordable Housing and Capit

Grant Certification Form — 2
Federal Regulations —- CDBG

Requirements

Federal Labor Standards

- Davis-Bacon

- Copeland Act (Anti-kickback)

- Contract Work Hours and Safety
Standards

mission

al Projects Funding Application

Federal Regulations

24 CFR 92.354
29CFR Parts 1, 3,and 5

Other References
40 U.S.C. 3141; 40 U.S.C. 3701

Section 3

24 CFR 135

Section 3 of the HUD Act of
1968, as amended (12 U.S.C.
1701u); 2 CFR 200.321

Minority and Women Business
Enterprise Participation
(MBE/WBE)

Small Business Act,
Section 3(a)
15 U.S.C. 632

12 U.S.C. 1701

Civil Rights and Non-
Discrimination

Title VI of Civil Rights Act

of 1964

Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968

Section 104(b) and 109 of
Title I of the Housing and
Community Development Act
of 1974

Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Act of 1973

Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990

Age Discrimination Act of

1975

Executive Orders 11063,
11246, 11375, 11478, 12107,
12086, and 13279

Equal Employment Opportunity

24 CFR 570.601-602;
570.607
41 CFR 80

Executive Orders 112486;
12086
12 USC 1701u

Fair Housing

Fair Housing Act (42

U.S.C. 3601-3620)

Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, as amended
(42 U.S.C. 2000d)

Equal Opportunity in
Housing

Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Americans w/Disabilities Act
of 1990

24 CFR Parts 8, 107, and 146
42 U.S.C. 200(d)

Executive Orders 11063, as
amended by Executive Order
12259

Age Discrimination Act of 1975,
as amended (42 U.S.C.

6101)

Debarred or Ineligible
Contractors

24 CFR 570.609; 24 CFR
24

Executive Orders 12549 and
12689

P

Reasonable Accommodation 24 CFR Part 8; Section 504 of Rehabilitation
24 CFR 570.601- Act of 1973
602 Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990
age 17 of 21 36 of 395

40
(R

P
i{f{«:’&z i



- r

Senoma County Community Development Commission
COBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Fire Safety Codes

Local ordinances

Building, Housing, and Zoning
Codes
Housing Quality Standards

24 CFR 570.208(b)(1)(iv);
208(b)(2)

Local ordinances

Lead-Based Paint

24 CFR 570.608; 24 CFR
Part 35

42 U.S.C 4821 et seq.

Anti-Lobbying

Appendix II to Part 200 J;
31U.8.C. 1352

Environmental, Historic
Preservation, National

24 CFR 570.503(b)(5)(i);
570.604; 570.605;

Section 104(g), HCDA
42 U.S.C 4001 et seq.

Environmental Policy Act, Flood 570.202:

Insurance Requirements 24 CFR 58

- Sitting near airports and References at:

coastal barrier 24 CFR 58.6:

- Fish and wildlife protection 58 5570.605

- Flood plain/flood insurance

- National Historic Preservation

- Noise abatement and control

- Wetlands/Coastal zones

- Air quality

- Endangered species

- Thermal/Explosive hazards

Relocation, Real Property 24 CFR 570.201(i); Sections 104(d); 105(a)(11),
Acquisitions, and One-for-One 570.606(b), (c), (d) HCDA

Housing Replacement 49 CFR 24 www.hud.gov/relocation

- Uniform Relocation Act
- Residential anti-displacement
and relocation assistance

42 USC 4601 et seq

Competitive Procurement 2 CFR 200.319
Insurance and Bonding 2 CFR 200.310 and
200.325

Administrative and Accounting
Standards

2 CFR Part 200

Cost Considerations

2 CFR 200.402, 403, 404,
405, 406 and 407

Documentation and
Recordkeeping

24 CFR 570.506
24 CFR 570.502

Conflict of interest

2 CFR 200.112 and
24 CFR 570.611

Section 108 Loan Guarantees

24 CFR 570.700-570.709

Section 108, HCDA

e

0

(o]

fﬁ
PN
o
9,
2
"N

37 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021


www.hud.gov/relocation

Sonoma County Commiunity Develr

CDBGHOME Affordable Housing ¢

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that all data contained in this application and all supportive
documentation is true, correct and will incorporate the above requirements. This submission has been duly
authorized by the governing body of City of Sebastopol

Funding Applic

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name: Larry MCLaugh"n

Title: __City Manager

Date: _January 21, 2022

OO0
U2

Page 19 of 21 38 of 395 Updated 12/10/20



ent Commission
d Capital Projects Funding Application

Community Dey
ffordable Housing

Grant Certification Form - 3
Conflict of Interest - CDBG

The standards in 2 CFR 200.318 provide that no employee, officer, or agent shall participate in the selection, award,
or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved.
Such a conflict would arise when an employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or
her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a
financial or other interest in the firm selected for an award.

The CDBG regulations at 24 CFR 570.611 provide that no person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or
elected official or appointed official of the recipient or subrecipient that are receiving CDBG funds and (1) who
exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted with CDBG funds; or (2)
who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to these
activities, may obtain a financial interest from a CDBG-assisted activity, or have any interest in any contract,
subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with
whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one (1) year thereafter.

A. Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to participate in the decision making process for approval
of this application?

UYes MNo

B. Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to gain inside information with regard to approval of this
application?
OYes =mNo

C. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds obtain a financial interest or substantial benefit fronfithis activity? [
Yes ENo

D. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the

organization requesting funds have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect to funding this application, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or

business ties during the program year and one year thereafter? OYes BNo

If you answered YES to any of the above questions, a letter must be submitted with the application that
includes the following information:

1) A disclosure of the nature and extent of the conflict
2) A description of how public disclosure will be made
3) A qualified attorney's opinion that the conflict of interest does not violate federal, state, or local law

Note: If you are approved for funding, the Commission must issue a public notice of the disclosure with a 15-day
public comment period, and then submit to HUD for approval prior to execution of a grant agreement or release
of funds.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Larry McLaughlin

Printed Name:

Tite:—City Manager Date. 01/21/2022

Fage 20 of 21 39 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 4

Policies & Procedures

The undersigned does hereby certify that the applicant organization has the following policies and/or procedures
and can produce them if requested by the Commission:

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Accounting policy/procedure

Procurement policy/procedure

Conflict of interest policy/procedure

Record Retention policy/procedure

Language Access Plan & Limited English Proficiency Policy

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name:——rl——————gl-ar McLaughlin

Title: — City Manager

Date: _January 21, 2022

Page 21 of 21 40 of 395 Updated 12110/



FY 2022-23 CDBG Application
City of Sebastopol
Luther Burbank Farm ADA Restroom Facility Project

Project Description:

The project consists of construction of a new ADA-compliant public restroom facility at the Luther Burbank
Experiment Farm, ADA parking stall and access to the new bathroom from the existing parking lot. The
work also includes installation of sewer, water and electrical service to support the restroom facility.

41 of 395



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) — CAPITAL PROJECTS

CDBG Estimated Funding Available:

FY 2022 - 23: $1,206,948

CDBG Reprogrammed Funds Available: Prior Year:  $520,000
CDBG Applications
. . Amount CDC sStaff
Applicant Project Name Requested Recommendation

Burbank Housing Development

Corporation Dry Creek Commons $900,000 $866,476*
. Luther Burbank Farm
City of Sebastopol ADA Restroom Facility $146,000 $146,000
Disability Service & Legal Housing Access
Center Modification Program >45,000 $45,000
Commnity Dovelopment | CouMtYwide Housing
Commission (fund request, not Rehabilitation 2500,000 $500,000
. Programs
applicant)
Wright Drive Water
SweetwaterSprings Water Main, Natoma Tank,
District and Edgehill Booster >169,472 $169,472
Replacement
Total Requested | $1,760,472
Total Estimated
Available 31,726,948 $1,726,948

*Staff recommends funding up to the full amountrequested if the actual CDBG grant from HUD
is greater than the estimated amount.

42 of 395




APPLICANT NAME: SweetwaterSprings Water District

PROJECT NAME: Wright Drive Water Main, Natoma Tank, and Edgehill Booster Replacement
CDBG AMOUNT REQUESTED: $169,472

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

“The project replaces old water mains with new, improved water mains sufficient to provide
domesticand fire flows and reduce repairs. The project will replace approximately 6,400 feet of
water main serving approximately 65 low-income households. The existing Natoma Tank is a
10,000 gallonredwood tank and will be replaced with a 30,000 gallon steel tank. The Edgenhill
Booster Station will also be replaced. CDBG fundingis sought for two phases. Phase | is
engineeringdesign and planning/ environmental. Phase Il is for construction, project
management, inspection and oversight. Estimated cost for Phase 1 is $211,840 and Phase Il is
$2,875,253. Design is anticipated to start as soon as fundingbecomes available with
construction anticipated to startin July 2023 and completed by February 2024.”

PROJECT TYPE: Water Supply Improvements

FOR HOUSING PROJECTS, THE NUMBER AND SIZE OF UNITS, INCOME LEVELS TO BE SERVED:
N/A

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS: Environmental review and design

FUNDING POLICIES (Funding Goals and Objectives)

Does the project address one of the highest priorities of: 1) creating or preserving affordable
housing, 2) building infrastructure or public facilities that support creation or preservation of
affordable housing, or 3) building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income
communities?

Yes, the project will benefit low- and moderate-income individuals because the service area for
the improvements encompasses census tract 1537.04 in which more than 51% of residents
have incomes at or below 80% AMI.

Using to the 2011-2015 Low and Moderate Income Survey Data provided by HUD the census
tract block groups in the service area are as follows:

060971537041 LMI population of 64.08%
060971537042 LMI population of 51.54%
060971537043 LMI population of 52.89%

43 of 395



060971537044 LMI population of 56.16%

The census tract block groups in the service area have a combined population of 3,545 and
1,930 (54%) residents are low to moderate income.

If the application is for housing acquisition and/or preservation, are the units at risk of
becoming market rate housing?

N/A

If the application is for a housing project, does the project set aside homes for persons or
households experiencing homelessness or who are at imminent risk of becoming homeless?

N/A

If the application is for a housing project, will the project provide units for special needs
populations?
N/A

THRESHOLD CRITERIA

Does the project meet at least one National Objective as required under CDBG regulations (24
CFR 570.208)?

Yes, the project will benefitlow- and moderate-income individuals because the service area for
the improvements encompasses census tract 1537.04 in which more than 51% of residents
have incomes at or below 80% AMI. It therefore meetsthe Low/Mod Income Area Benefit
National Objective.

Does the proposed project or activity meet the eligibility requirements of the CDBG and
HOME Funding Policies (If no, provide the specificreason)?

Yes, this project improvesthe infrastructure of the area with the replacement of aged and
undersized waterlines

Is the project consistent with the General Plan of the jurisdiction in which it is located?

Yes. This project isreplacing existinginfrastructure, andis in conformance withthe Sonoma
County General Plan. The project isconsistent with the Sweetwater Springs Water District
board-approved 2020-2025 Capital ImprovementProgram.

44 of 395



Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

Thisis an infrastructure/publicfacility project supporting low- or moderate-income
populations. The project has the contributory potential to preserve affordable housingby virtue
of improvingfire protection resources in the LMI community protectingthe housing stock from
destruction by a fire.

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliverthe proposed project?

SweetwaterSprings Water District has beenin operation for 25 years and provides water
treatment and distribution for 7,500 people in West Sonoma County from Rio Nido to Monte
Rio. The District has had clean audits for many years, has an annual operatingbudget of
approximately $2.1 million and $2.4 millioninreserves. The District has experience with
administeringotherfederal fundsincluding USDA General Obligation bonds and has undertaken
large capital projects previously.

SELECTION CRITERIA

Will the requested funds for the project be leveraged against total development costs at least
7:1?

This is a non-housing capital projectthat is not subjectto the 7:1 leverage requirementand
onlyincludes construction costs and no permanenttake-out financing. The figuresbelow
represent the Phase | planningcosts of the project.

If applicantreceivesall of the requested local funding, each $1 of CDBG fundswould leverage
$00.25 from other sources.

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status
Donations 542,368 Committed

CDBG Funding $169,472 Not committed
TOTAL $211,840

Does the applicant demonstrate consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and / or
other federal and state funding to develop housing within the last sevenyears?

N/A

Does the project demonstrate existing support from the jurisdiction in which it is located via
letters of support, funding commitments, etc.?

The project is located in the jurisdiction of Sonoma County and will be coordinated withthe
Sonoma County PublicWorks Department and the California Department of Transportation.

45 of 395



The SweetwaterSprings Water District is fully supportive of this project and must obtain
encroachment permits from Permit Sonoma.

Does the project demonstrate advanced readiness via (a) entitlements; (b) financing
commitments; (c) building permits, (d) environmental review?

CDBG fundingis sought for two phases. Phase | is engineering design and planning/
environmental. Phase Il is for construction, project management, inspection and oversight. This
fundingrequestedisfor Phase | with Phase Il fundsto be requested at a later date.

Does the applicant have adequate provisions for long-range maintenance and operations?

Water linerepairneedsin the area have increased greatly over recent years due to aged
infrastructure that is in poor condition. Completion of the planned improvements will enable
SSWD to maintain and operate their water delivery systemin an effective mannerin future
years. The material of the existing 2-inch and 6-inch water lines (galvanizediron) provides
inadequate pressures, inability to provide sufficientdomesticflows, inability to provide
adequate flows for fire protection and reliability. Fire flowsin the area should be approximately
1,000 gallonsper minute (gpm). There are an inadequate number of fire hydrants in the overall
area and based on line sizing and pipe conditions, fire flows are either non-existent (haveto use
water tenderfire trucks that bringin their own water) or are extremely low (200 gpm).

For non-housing projects, is there a documented and verifiable need for the project above
and beyond existing facilities?

This project will assistin replacingand improvinginfrastructure systemsthat meetthe needs of
lower-income households that are now beingserved by the system which is insufficient to
provide adequate and effective levels of domesticwatersupply and fire protection. The Area
Benefit of this project isthat it isavailable to all personsin the service area regardless of
income. The area where the projectis located qualifies as primarily residential and at least 51%
of the residents are Lower income individuals.

For non-housing projects, can the project be expected to have a significant impact on the
identified problem and result in one or more measurable indicator?

Improved water pressure, flows, and reliability will be provided as the outcome of the project
and will serve a disadvantaged community that is LMI qualified. With additional fire hydrants
and new/upsized lines, fire flows are anticipated to meet minimum standards of 1,000 gpm
upon completion of the project. Substandard galvanized and other material lines will be
replaced with High Density Polyethylene water mains forimproved reliability, pressures, flows.

For housing projects, does project’s proposed number of units exceeds the minimum CDBG
requirements?

46 of 395



N/A

For housing projects, are the proposed rents below the maximum rents allowed by the CDBG

requirements?

N/A

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

None

CONSEQUENCES OF NO FUNDING:

If fundingis not obtained, the project will take longer to complete which will resultin continued
use of undersized water mains and inadequate fire protection.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends full funding of $169,472

PRELIMINARY CONDITION(S) OF APPROVAL

Allocated funding will be a grant& a Ioang

All grants for publicimprovements are subjectto the provisions of the FY 2022-23
FundingPoliciesand the CDBG Regulations.

CDBG funds will be used to reimburse allowable engineering, design, planning &
environmental costsonly.

The use of CDBG funds for Phase Il of the project will require the entire
construction contract to comply with federal requirements for contract documents,
contracting and labor standards. The general contractor and subcontractors
performingthe work must pay federal Davis Bacon prevailing wages for all contract
activities

Funds for all publicimprovements projects must be expended within 18 months of
the date on which the Funding Agreementis offered for execution.

47 of 395



SONOMA COUNTY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION

FUNDING APPLICATION: AFFORDABLE
HOUSING AND CAPITAL PROJECTS

Please review the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), Application
Guidelines, and the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies
before submitting your application. All applications must meet the eligibility

This space reserved for CDC date and fime stamp

criteria found in the Funding Policies and the requirements set forth in the

NOFA.

Part 1: Applicant Information

Legal name of organization:

Sweetwater Springs Water District

Organization’s DUNS number: | 20599481
Contact Information
Authorized Representative Name, title: Ed Fortner, General Manager
(City/Town Manager, Executive | pp . 207-869-4000
Director, or other): —
Email: efortner@sweetwatersprings.com
Primary point of contact: Name, title: Jack Bushgen, Field Manager
Phone: 707-86-4000
Email: joushgen@sweetwatersprings.com

Organization is a:

CONon-profit organization ~ CFor-profit organization  mLocal government
CO0Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
CJCommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

Organization mailing address:

P.O. Box 48, Guerneville, CA 95446

Organization website:

sweetwatersprings.com

Organizational Capacity and Experience
Describe applicant’s record of administrative and programmatic capacity using federal, state, local, and/or private grant
funds, explaining any past issues or challenges administering grant funds.

past negative issues.

Sweetwater Springs Water District has been in existence since 1988. The District has been granted
and has administered many grants including FEMA, CDBG, Redevelopment, and SRF. The District
has always successfully complied with all elements of each grant using administrative and
programmatic capacity. The District has always had clean audits and has the managerial
administrative capacity to administer successfully all funding including grants. There have been no

48 of 395


https://sweetwatersprings.com

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 2: Project Description

Brief Description of Project or Program

The description provided here will be incorporated into the staff reports provided to the Community Development
Committee, Cities and Towns Advisory Committee, and/or the Board of Supervisors. Descriptions MUST BE 125 words
or less. It will not be edited and will be truncated at 125 words. For housing related applications, please include
information on the number of affordable units in the project, accessible units (types, number of units, and accessibility
type). A longer project description may be attached (see Part 6, Attachments).

The project replaces old water mains with new, improved water mains sufficient to provide domestic and fire
flows and reduce repairs. The project will replace approximately 6,400 feet of water main serving approximately
65 low-income households. The existing Natoma Tank is a 10,000 gallon redwood tank and will be replaced
with a 30,000 gallon steel tank. The Edgehill Booster Station will also be replaced. CDBG funding is sought for
two phases. Phase | is engineering design and planning/ environmental. Phase Il is for construction, project
management, inspection and oversight. Estimated cost for Phase | is $211,840 and Phase Il is $2,875,253.
Design is anticipated to start as soon as funding becomes available with construction anticipated to start in July
2023 and completed by February 2024.

Part 3: Project Information

Project Name Wright Drive Water Main, Natoma Tank, and Edgehill Booster Replacement
Project Type
Using Appendix A of the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies, fill in the field below.
CDBG or HOME eligible activity: VA A— L ——————
Funding Request $169,472
Estimated project budget: $3,087,093
Amount of funding request: $169,472
' Funding source: “ WCDBG [JHOME [JHOME-CHDO [JCDBG-CV
Property Information (as applicable)
Projéit‘;&fkl‘ocation (physical address or crdéé“streets): Wright Drive x Wright Lane
. Assessor’s Parcel Number(s):
Census tract(s): 1537.04
| Total acreage: |
Current use of site: Residential
Is project located in a 100-year flood plain? mYes [INo
FEMA FIRM panel number: 06097C0538E
Is the project, or any part of it, Ibcated within the limits | [OYes mNo
of any city/town? If yes, which city/town?
Which jurisdiction(s) must approve the project? Sweetwater Springs Water District

What local approvals and entitlements will be required
to develop the proposed project?

Dat titl ts and it tedto b
a:p?oir;é:emensan permits expected 1o be g 01/01/2023

An encroachment permit from Sonoma County for work wihin the roadways will be needed.

Page 2 of 21 49 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission

CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Status of Site Control

Identify the form of site control:

OOwnership (attach copy of grant deed or deed of trust)
CLease (attach copy of lease)

CJOption agreement (attach copy of agreement)
OPurchase agreement (attach copy of agreement)
®mOther; explain: Public Right-of-way

Note: If funding application is for acquisition, also attach copy
of current appraisal if available.

Status of Environmental or Other Approvals

Applicant must obtain certification of project’s consistency with the applicable general plan, signed by an authorized
representative of the jurisdiction in which the project is located (housing rehabilitation projects excluded).

Status of environmental review:

This application is for design and completion of both CEQA and NEPA environmental documents

Status of land use, building permits, or other
~approvals:

None required, all work associated with project is in the public right of way.

Explain any land use (zoning, lot split, set back, or
environmental) constraints that must be resolved prior
to proceeding with the project:

None

Status of Relocation Activities

Relocation Assistance Plan.

In order to receive funding, projects must comply with the Sonoma County Residential Anti-Displacement and

Will the project involve demolition of any structure or
relocation of any persons or businesses?

OYes =No

Explain the status of any demolition or relocation
activities:

Existing Improvements

EXISTING COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

Number of structures

Year built

n/a

Number of vacant structures

Number of occupied structures

Number of structures to be demolished

Estimated cost of relocation

o O o o

EXISTING RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENTS

SRO Studio 1-BR 2-BR 3-BR 4-BR

Number of existing units

0

Number of occupied units

Number of vacant units

Number of substandard units

Estimated cost of relocation

o O o 0 O o

o O o O o
O O . O O oo
O 0O O O o o
(=1 Ne i Nl el N
O O 0 0 :0 o

Page 3 of 21

50 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Phasing
Can project proceed if phased or if given partial funding? Explain the effect of phasing or partial funding on the project’s
ability to move forward.

Yes, this application is Phase | of the project, design and planning. Phase Il will be construction. If
funding is not obtained for both phases, the project will take longer to complete which will result in
continued use of undersized water mains and inadequate fire protection.

Demonstration of Need

Describe the need for the project or program and include evidence of need (e.g., cite waiting lists for services, census
data, documentation of deteriorated conditions, or other evidence).

This project will assist in creating and/or replacing infrastructure systems and public facilities that meet the needs of lower-income people, people
with disabilities, and other special needs subpopulations county-wide. The Area Benefit of this project is that it is available to all persons in the
neighborhood or community regardless of income. The area where the project is located qualifies as primarily residential and at least 51% of the
residents are L/M income individuals. It maintains and preserves existing affordable rental housing stock to reduce disproportionate housing
needs. 2020 Census data shows MHI at $64,345 for Guemneville based on Census Tract 1537.04. Census data shows that the population served
within the limits of the proposed project qualify for LMI. Water line repairs in the area have increased greatly over recent years due to aged
infrastructure that is in poor condition. The material of the existing 2-inch and 6-inch water lines (galvanized iron) provides inadequate pressures,
inability to provide sufficient domestic flows, inability to provide adequate flows for fire protection and reliability. Fire flows in the area should be
approximately 1,000 gallons/minute. There are an inadequate number of fire hydrants in the overall area and based on line sizing and pipe
conditions, fire flows are either non-existant (have to use water tender fire trucks that bring in their own water) or are extremely low (200 gpm).

Outcomes
Describe the outcomes expected to result from the project or program.

Improved water pressure, flows, and reliability will be provided as the outcome of the project and will
serve a disadvantaged community that are LMI qualified. With additional fire hydrants and
new/upsized lines, fire flows are anticipated to meet minimum standards of 1,000 gallons per minute
upon completion of the project. Substandard galvanized and other material lines will be replaced
with HDPE water mains for improved reliability, pressures, flows.

Part 4: Timeline

Target Dates
List anticipated target date for each of the major milestones below. (Housing projects use timeline in supplemental
application instead.)

Major Milestone Target Completion Date Funds Expended

Environmental Review 4/7/23 $32,327

Site Control n/a n/a

Design Completion 5/5/23 $172,643

Bid Period Closes 6/2/23 $179,513

Construction Begins ‘ 7/10/23 $179,513

Construction Complete 2/16/24 $3,087,093

Notice of Completion 2/23/24 $3,087,093
Page 4 of 21 51 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 5: Sources and Uses
Housing projects use budget in supplemental application instead.

Sources
Source of Funds Donations Loans Grants In Kind Total
Sweetwater Springs Water District (Phase 1) $42,368
CDBG Funding (Phase 1) $169,472
Sweetwater Springs Water District (Phase 2) $1,437,626
CDBG Funding (Phase 2) $1,437,626
Total $1,479,994 $1,607,098
Uses
Projected Uses Donations Loans Grants In Kind Total
Land Acquisition 0 0 0 0 0
Environmental Review $6,465 0 $25,862 0 $32,327
Architect 0 0 0 0 0
Engineering $35,903 0 $143,610 0 $179,513
Project Fees 0 0 0 0 0
Site Improvements 0 0 0 0 0
Other: Construction $1,437,626 0 $1,437,626 0 $2,875,253
Other:
Total $1,479,994 $1,607,098 $3,087,093
Page 5 of 21 52 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 6: Attachments Required

Project sponsors must submit the following documents, as applicable, with their funding application:

Attach. 1 M Project Description: Provide a description of the project that includes specific location information and geographic
boundaries. It should identify the maximum anticipated scope of the entire project, and delineate the specific
activities for which the applicant is requesting funding at this time. Applications for housing-related projects should
instead include a Housing Project Description, described in Supplemental Application below.

Attach. 2 m  Project Location Map: Attach an 8 1/2"x 11” map showing the project location, clearly showing the project area in
relation to surrounding communities.

Attach 3 M Authorizing Resolution: For non-profit organizations, attach a resolution from the Board of Directors authorizing
the submittal of the application.

N/A [0 City/Town Authorizing Resolution: Attach a city/town council resolution endorsing the project for those located
within the seven incorporated jurisdictions or for those sponsored by one of the seven incorporated jurisdictions.

N/A 0 General Plan Consistency: Attach a certification of consistency with the applicable jurisdiction’s General Plan.

N/A O IRS Letter of Determination: Non-profit organizations only must submit an IRS Letter of Determination. Non-profit
organizations are not eligible for consideration unless non-profit status has been verified.

NA'Ql Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) verification: For CHDO's applying for HOME CHDO
funds, submit a Sonoma County CHDO letter or plan to become an independent, fully functioning CHDO entity.

Atach- 4w | etters of Commitment: Submit letters of commitment from all other funding sources.
Altach 5  Financial Documentation:
O Non-profit organizations must attach the following:
= Current operating budget
= Most recent completed final audit report
» IRS Form 990 for the most current tax year

= |f organization is not audited, attach a copy of the most recent internal financial statement that
has been approved by Board of Directors.

*Additional financial information may be requested by CDC staff as deemed appropriate.

O Sonoma County departments or agencies, the cities of Cotati, Cloverdale, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park,
Sebastopol, Sonoma, and the Town of Windsor are exempt from this requirement.

See Part W Qrganizations are required to have written policies and procedures. The applicant must submit certification that

7 Attach. they have the following policies and procedures. (Please complete the forms found in Part 7 — Certifications)
=  Accounting
=  Conflict of Interest
* Procurement
» Record Retention
Page 6 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021

53 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Supplemental Application:

Public Facilities or Other Infrastructure Projects

Define project service area

List all census block groups in service
area:

15637.04

For sidewalk / curb cut projects

Loca'tion“ of sidewalks (cross streets):

N/A. There are no sidewalks within project area.

Define the service area; list all Census
block groups in service area:

N/A

Number of curb cuts (anticipated):

N/A

Page 7 of 21

54 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Supplemental Application:
Housing-Related Projects

Fill out this supplemental application if the project will result in the construction of new housing units, preservation of
existing housing units, or the acquisition of land for new housing units.

Project Information

Project type:

[CONew construction

URehabilitation  [JAcquisition

Total number of ‘L:nits to be constructed
or rehabilitatgd:

Total number bf affordable units (new
construction or acquisition):

For HOME funding requests, total
number of HOME-assisted units:

Total development costs: $

Contact Information of All Parties

APPLICANT INFORMATION Name:
Address:

City, State, Zip:

Contact person:

Telephone:

Email:

Organization is a:

LINon-profit organization
[JLocal government
JCommunity Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
O Community Based Development Organization (CBDO)

U For-profit organization

PARTNER OR RELATED ENTITIES

Name:

Address:

City, State, Zip:

Contact person:

Telephone:

Email:

Organization is a:

UNon-profit organization
[ILocal government
OJCommunity Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
CJCommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

I For-profit organization

ARCHITECT

Name:

Address:

City, State, Zip:

Contact person:

Telephone:

Email:

Page 8 of 21

55 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

Name:

Addresé& BT

City, State, Zip:

Contact person:

Telephone:

Email:

License no.:

PROPERTY MANAGER

Name:

Address;

City, State, Zip:

Contact person:

Telephone:

Email:

Status of Entitlements and/or Services

If site is located in an unincorporated
area of the County, have you or will you
submit an application to Sonoma
County Planning & Resource
Management Department for:

[JState Density Bonus Program

[JCounty of Sonoma Supplemental Density Bonus Program
JHousing Element Type A Rental Housing Opportunity Program
OHousing Element Type C Ownership Housing Opportunity Program

Date of application:

If answering yes to any of the above, contact Commission staff to discuss
schedule for preparation and Board approval of Affordable Housing Agreement.

Status of planned water and sewer
service:

If not yet provided, explain how water
and sewer service will be provided.

Does the project have Article 34
authority from the jurisdiction in which it
is located?

[ Yes. If yes, attach a copy of the allocation letter.

I No. If no, attach written legal opinion describing why Article 34 referendum
authority is not required.

Proposed Tenancy

Household types:

SRO Studio 1BR 2BR 3BR 4BR

Number of each type of unit

Average square feet per unit

Total number of units:

How many of the total units will be
reserved for the following:

Homeless persons

Elderly persons

Disabled persons (see note)

Special needs populations

Resident manager

Other; specify:

Unrestricted

Page 9 of 21

56 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Note: In new construction and substantial rehabilitation rental projects assisted with HOME or CDBG funds, at least five percent of units
(not less than one unit) must be accessible to persons with mobility impairments, and an additional two percent of units (not less than 1
unit) must be accessible to persons with sensory impairments. Projects assisted with other funds must satisfy applicable federal, state,
and local regulations regarding the provision of accessible housing. Ownership housing projects assisted with funds from these
programs must comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding the provision of accessible units.

Estimated Monthly Rent Levels (before deduction of utility allowances)

Household types: = SRO Studio 1BR 2BR 3BR 4BR

Units | Rent  Units = Rent - Units  Rent @ Units | Rent | Units  Rent @ Units @ Rent

Extremiely Low-Income (30% of AMI)

Very Low-Income (50% of AMI)

60% of AMI

Low-Income (80% of AMI)

Market Rate (>80% of AMI)

Resident Manager’s Unit

Estimated Utility Allowance*

*Please provide list of tenant-paid utilities, the utility profile for all appliances, and the Utility Allowance for each unit type.

Estimated Affordable Sales Prices (ASP)

Househo/d ‘t);pes:

SRO

Studio

1BR

2BR

3BR

4BR

Units

. ASP

Units

ASP

Units

ASP

Units

ASP

Units

ASP

Units

ASP

Extremely Low-Income (30% of AMI)

Very Low-Income (50% of AMI)

60% of AMI

Low-Income (80% of AMI)

100% of AMI

- 120% of AMI

LENGTH OF AFFORDABILITY PERIOD

What is the propoéed length of
affordability for the affordable units?

See Funding Policies

Project Schedule

Include all major milestones such as land acquisition, general plan amendment and rezoning, density bonus / housing
element housing opportunity area approval, design review approval, schematic design, design development, construction
documents, construction phase, initial occupancy, and, if applicable, assignment of the project to a limited partnership or
other entity. Specify tentative dates for closing the proposed loan and first request for funds, as well as when construction
financing and permanent financing will close. Please provide realistic dates for completion of activities and
expenditure of funds. These dates will be included in the applicable funding agreement.

Méjof Milestone Target Completion Date Funds Expended

Page 10 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021

57 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Development Budget

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Lender Amount Interest Rate / Use(s) Commitment HOME match
Term Status qualifying?
Total
ESTIMATED PERMANENT FINANCING
Lender Amount Interest Rate / Use(s) Commitment HOME match
Term Status qualifying?
Total
Summary of First-Year Operating Budget
Rental projects only -
Total Per unit

Gross potential rental income

Plus other income (e.g., laundry)

Less 5% vacancy / rent loss

Effective Gross Income

Less total operating expenses™

Less payment to replacement
reserves

Less payment to other reserves

Net operating income

Less debt service payments

Net cash flow

Debt service coverage ratio

*Include $75 per unit, per year monitoring fee in the operating budget

Page 11 of 21 58 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housingw

In planning for the use of CDBG and HOME, the County of Sonoma must adhere to the mandate in the Fair Housing Act to
Affirmatively Further Fair Housing. This means that not only must all HUD funded programs and activities combat
discrimination, but they must also overcome patterns of segregation and the denial of access to opportunity that are part of
national and local history. The ways in which a project or program can do this meaningfully are listed below, and to be
considered for funding, all applicant projects must overcome patterns of segregation in one or more of the ways listed.

In which of the following ways does the proposed project overcome patterns of segregation and the denial of

access to opportunity (check all that apply)? Please provide an explanation of how the project accomplishes the
item (s) checked.

U It makes an investment in a segregated and high poverty neighborhood to improve conditions and eliminate disparities in
access to opportunity between residents of this neighborhood and the rest of the jurisdiction and region.

Explain:

= |t maintains and preserves existing affordable rental housing stock to reduce disproportionate housing needs.
Explain:

This area is in unincorporated Guerneville, CA in West Sonoma County. By supplying reliable, high
quality potable water, the existing housing will remain viable and accessible by the low to moderate

income residents. By leveraging this grant funding, water rates can remain low while service is greatly
improved.

U It provides affordable housing in an area(s) of opportunity to combat segregation and promote integration.
Explain:

LI It provides mixed income housing designed to integrate racially and ethnically concentrated areas of poverty.
Explain:

U Itincreases access for individuals with protected characteristics to existing affordable housing in higher opportunity
areas.

Explain:

Page 12 of 21 59 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Homelessness-Related Questions

housing project, identify service 3
provider:

Describe approach to lowering barriers to potential tenants to entering permanent housing (i.e., accepting referrals from
Coordinated Intake:

Page 13 of 21 60 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Additional Attachments Required

In addition to the attachments required in Part 6 of the funding application, housing-related project sponsors must submit
the following as attachments to their applications:

O

oo ooo oOooao

O

Housing project description: Provide a written narrative to describe your project. At a minimum, the narrative
should include the following:

¢ Description of the type of housing proposed

e Target population(s)

¢ Planned services for residents

¢ Proposed use(s) of the requested funding and anticipated environmental issues (i.e., vernal pools,
heritage trees, riparian corridor, contamination, flood plain, endangered species, historical and
archeological impacts)
¢ Authorized entity that will execute the funding agreement and loan documents if applicable for the funds
requested in this application
+ If the project will use a tax credit limited partnership to finance the project, please describe the
organizational structure of the partnership and the roles of various partners or other related organizations
Current preliminary title report
Evidence of site control

Current appraisal, if available. Appraised value of property must fully secure the Commission’s loan(s). In
addition, the total purchase price may not exceed the “reasonable cost” for the property

Environmental clearances/reports

Site plan and elevations or schematic drawing

Project Location Map: Attach an 8 1/2°x 11" map showing the project location, clearly showing the project area in
relation to surrounding communities

Contractor’s cost breakdown

Using the Sonoma County Community Development Commission Utility Allowance Schedule,
hito://sonomacounty.ca.gov/iCDC/Housing-Authority/Property-Owners/Utilitv-Allowances/, list the tenant-paid
utilities and utility allowance for your project

Itemized development budget, including a sources and uses table, identifying distributions to the owner,
developer, partners or other entities during the development phase

Narrative description of the development’s financial plan, indicating expected dates for obtaining approvals for any
uncommitted financing

Rental projects: A 30-year operating budget and cash flow projection that shows estimated project income,
operating expenses, reserves, debt service, and distributions. Please include a “totals” column after year 30

Article 34 Authority: Attach allocation letter or legal opinion that allocation is not required.

Page 14 of 21 61 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021


http://sonomacounty.ca.gov/CDC/Housin::;i-Authorit:y/Pro

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 7: Certifications
= Grant Certification Form — 1 (Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority)
B Grant Certification Form — 2 (Federal Regulations)
® Grant Certification Form — 3 (Conflict of Interest)

= Grant Certification Form — 4 (Policies and Procedures)

Page 15 of 21 62 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonama County Community Development Comnussion
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capitat Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form -1
Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority

) Sweetwater Springs Water District
| hereby certify that (insert name of organization requesting funds) has

complied with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to the application and is an eligible applicant for the
requested funding.
The organization proposes to provide the program services or complete the project identified in this application. If

this application is approved and this organization receives the requested funding this organization agrees to adhere
to all relevant Federal, State, and local regulations and other assurances as required by the Commission.

In addition, the content of the application shall be incorporated as part of the written agreement and, as such, will be
used to monitor performance. Activities, commitments, and representations described in the written agreement that
are not subsequently made a part of the program/project as funded shall be considered a material contract failure
and may result in a repayment of all awarded funds and/or suspension from participation in future funding rounds.

| hereby certify that the organization is fully capable of fulfilling its obligation under this application, as stated herein.
| further certify that the information provided in this Funding Application is correct, accurate, and complete.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Ed Fortner

Printed Name:

.. ceneral Manager
oue 1 2/20/2021

Page 16 of 21 Updated 121002021

63 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Apphcation

Grant Certification Form — 2
Federal Regulations — CDBG

Requirements Federal Regulations Other References
Federal Labor Standards 24 CFR 92.354 40 U.S.C. 3141; 40 U.S.C. 3701
- Davis-Bacon 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5
- Copeland Act (Anti-kickback)
- Contract Work Hours and Safety
Standards
Section 3 24 CFR 135 Section 3 of the HUD Act of
1968, as amended (12 U.S.C.
1701u); 2 CFR 200.321
Minority and Women Business Small Business Act, 12 U.S.C. 1701
Enterprise Participation Section 3(a)
(MBEMWBE) 15 U.S.C. 632
Civil Rights and Non- Title VI of Civil Rights Act Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Discrimination of 1964 Act of 1973
Title VIl of the Civil Rights Americans w/Disabilities Act of
Act of 1968 1990
Section 104(b) and 109 of Age Discrimination Act of
Title | of the Housing and 1975
Community Development Act | Executive Orders 11063,
of 1974 11246, 11375, 11478, 12107,
12086, and 13279
24 CFR 570.601-602; Executive Orders 11246;
Equal Employment Opportunity 570.607 12086
41 CFR 60 12 USC 1701u
Fair Housing Fair Housing Act (42 24 CFR Parts 8, 107, and 146
U.S.C. 3601-3620) 42 U.8.C. 200(d)
Title VI of the Civil Rights | Executive Orders 11063, as
Act of 1964, as amended | amended by Executive Order
(42 U.S.C. 2000d) 12259
Equai Opportunity in Age Discrimination Act of 1975,
Housing as amended (42 U.S.C.
Section 504 of the 6101)
Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Americans w/Disabilities Act
of 1990
Debarred or Ineligible 24 CFR 570.609; 24 CFR Executive Orders 12549 and
Contractors 24 12689
Reasonable Accommodation 24 CFR Part 8; Section 504 of Rehabilitation
24 CFR 570.801- Act of 1973
602 Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990

Page 17 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021

64 of 395



Sonuma County Community Develcpment Comnussion
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Fire Safety Codes

Local ordinances

Building, Housing, and Zoning
Codes
Housing Quality Standards

24 CFR 570.208(b)(1)(iv);
208(b)(2)

Local ordinances

Lead-Based Paint

24 CFR 570.608; 24 CFR
Part 35

42 U.S.C 4821 et seq.

Anti-Lobbying

Appendix 1l to Part 200 J;
31U.8.C. 1352

Environmental, Historic
Preservation, National
Environmental Policy Act, Flood
Insurance Requirements

- Sitting near airports and
coastal barrier

- Fish and wildlife protection

- Flood plainfflood insurance

- National Historic Preservation
- Noise abatement and control
- Wetlands/Coastal zones

- Air quality

- Endangered species

- Thermal/Explosive hazards

24 CFR 570.503(b)(5)(i);
570.604; 570.605;
570.202;

24 CFR 58

References at:

24 CFR 58.6;
58.5570.605

Section 104(g), HCDA
42 U.S.C 4001 et seq.

Relocation, Real Property

Acquisitions, and One-for-One
Housing Replacement

- Uniform Relocation Act

- Residential anti-displacement
and relocation assistance

24 CFR 570.201());

570.608(b), (c), (d)
49 CFR 24
42 USC 4601 et seq

Sections 104(d); 105(a)(11),

HCDA
www.hud.gov/relocation

Competitive Procurement 2 CFR 200.319
Insurance and Bonding 2 CFR 200.310 and
200.325

Administrative and Accounting
Standards

2 CFR Part 200

Cost Considerations

2 CFR 200.402, 403, 404,
405, 406 and 407

Documentation and 24 CFR 570.506
Recordkeeping 24 CFR 570.502
Conflict of Interest 2 CFR 200.112 and
24 CFR 570.611
Section 108 Loan Guarantees 24 CFR 570.700-570.709 Section 108, HCDA

Fage 18 of 21

65 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021%


www.hud.gov/relocation

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that all data contained in this application and all supportive
documentation is true, correct and will incorporate the above requirements. This submission has been duly
authorized by the governing body of _2WSSLwalst opiiiys vidalsl t4

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Ed Fortner

Printed Name:

e General Manager
e 2/20/2021

Updated 12/10/20621

66 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Apphication

Grant Certification Form -3
Conflict of Interest —- CDBG

The standards in 2 CFR 200.318 provide that no employee, officer, or agent shall participate in the selection, award,
or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved.
Such a conflict would arise when an employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or
her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a
financial or other interest in the firm selected for an award.

The CDBG regulations at 24 CFR 570.611 provide that no person who is an employee, agent, consuitant, officer, or
elected official or appointed official of the recipient or subrecipient that are receiving CDBG funds and (1) who
exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted with CDBG funds; or (2)
who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to these
activities, may obtain a financial interest from a CDBG-assisted activity, or have any interest in any contract,
subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with
whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one (1) year thereafter.

A Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to participate in the decision making process for approval
of this application?

(OYes ®No

B. Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to gain inside information with regard to approval of this
application?
OYes WNo

C. Wil any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds obtain a financial interest or substantial benefit fronfithis activity?0
Yes ®No

D. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the

organization requesting funds have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect to funding this application, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or

business ties during the program year and one year thereafter? OYes ®No

If you answered YES to any of the above questions, a letter must be submitted with the application that
includes the following information:

1) A disclosure of the nature and extent of the conflict
2) A description of how public disclosure will be made
3) A qualified attorney's opinion that the conflict of interest does not violate federal, state, or local law

Note: If you are approved for funding, the Commission must issue a public notice of the disclosure with a 15-day
public comment period, and then submit to HUD for approval prior to execution of a grant agreement or release

of funds. i

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Ed Fortner
Printed Name:

General Manager 12/20/2021

Title: Date:

Updated 12/10/2021

<
]
[
m
]
3
-
(2]

67 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form -4
Policies & Procedures

The undersigned does hereby certify that the applicant organization has the following policies and/or procedures
and can produce them if requested by the Commission:

Accounting policy/procedure

Procurement policy/procedure

Conflict of interest policy/procedure

Record Retention policy/procedure

Language Access Plan & Limited English Proficiency Policy

AN =

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Ed Fortner

Printed Name:

.. Seneral Manager
e 12/20/2021

Fage 21 of 21 Updatea 12/10/2021

68 of 395



FY 22-23 FUNDING APPLICATION
CDBG FOR CAPITAL PROJECT
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
FY 22-23 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT
OLD RIVER ROAD AND WOODLAND ROAD WATER LINE REPLACEMENT
PART 6 — ATTACHMENT 1: PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Sweetwater Springs Water District (referred hereinafter as District) is applying for CDBG funding
for the District’s FY 22-23 Capital Improvement Project. This project includes replacement of;
aged and undersized waterlines in portions of Wright Drive, Wright Lane, Glenda Drive, Natoma
Drive, replacement of a booster pump, and replacement of 10,000 gallon redwood water storage
tank. Itisthe District’s intent to initially apply for partial funding of Phase 1 of this project. Phase
1 consists of completion of the engineering construction documents and the environmental
document. Upon completion of all work associated with Phase 1, the District intends to
immediately pursue funding for Phase 2. Phase 2 will include construction of the improvements
designed with Phase 1, construction management of the project and construction observation of
the project.

The project encompasses two pressure zones:

Wright Drive Upper Pressure Zone:

Replace approximately 5,000 ft of existing mainline and 47 associated services along
Wright Dr, Glenda Dr, Natoma Dr. In this area the existing two inch steel water main (85%)
had nine leaks in 2020 and the existing six inch asbestos cement water main (15%) had
eight leaks in 2020. New fire hydrants will also be installed approximately every 300 feet
within the project boundaries.

The existing Natoma Tank is a 10,000 gallon redwood tank that has deteriorated and
beyond repair. This tank will be replaced with a new 30,000 gallon bolted steel water tank.
The existing booster pump that serves this pressure zone will also be replaced in the same
location as existing.

Wright Drive Main Pressure Zone:

Replace approximately 1,400 ft of existing mainline and 18 associated services along
Wright Dr. and Wright Ln. In this area the existing two inch steel water main (30%) had
three leaks in 2020, the existing two inch PVC water main has been 40% replaced, and six
inch asbestos cement (30%). New fire hydrants will also be installed approximately every
300 feet within the project boundaries.

69 of 395



There are three existing cross country water mains that run through private property that
need to be replaced. These three sections of main will be rerouted and installed within
the existing roadway to allow better access for future maintenance for District staff.

The limits of work can be found on the Project Location Map attached to this application.

Installation of water mains will include either open cut trenches or directional bored. The
excavation of the trench will be approximately 2 feet wide and 4 feet deep. At the bottom of the
trench there will be 3-inches of pipe bedding material below the pipe, installation of the 6-inch
diameter water line, installation of additional pipe bedding material to approximately 12-inches
over the top of the pipe, followed by trench backfill material and paving per County of Sonoma
Department of Transportation and Public Works Standards 219 A and B (Pavement Cut Policy and
Trench Backfill and Paving Details). In areas where the water main will be directionally bored a
boring and receiving pit will be excavated to lower the boring equipment into. After completion
of the main the pits will be backfilled and paved to restore the original line and grade. All fire
hydrant services will be installed to the same standard as the water main. All water services will
be installed per District standards and vary in depth from a maximum of 3-1/2 feet where the
service connects to the water main, to approximately 18-inches deep as the service approaches
the water meter.

Phase 1 will include completion of all engineering and environmental work associated with
completing the construction documents and filing of the appropriate Notice of Intent and other
documents as may be required for obtaining environmental clearances. Tasks to be included in
the work include, but are not limited to:

e Meetings with District Representatives

e Collection of Background Information

e Coordination with Agencies (utility companies, Sonoma County, and other agencies that
may be involved in the project)

e Surveying

e Development of plans, specifications and estimates necessary to publicly bid the project
and construct the improvements.

e Environmental work for CEQA and NEPA clearances that will potentially include a cultural
resource report, preparation of either a Notice of Exemption (if the project meets
Categorical Exemption requirements) or preparation of an Initial Study/Mitigated
Negative Declaration if preliminary evaluations indicate this needs to be done.

e Obtain the necessary encroachment permit from Sonoma County.

e Bid the project in accordance with the Public Contract Code and District policies.

Phase 2 will include construction of the improvements, as well as oversight of all construction

activities associated with the project. Tasks to be include in Phase 2 will include, but not be
limited to:

70 of 395



Contract award to the successful contractor

Construction of all improvements

Hold a pre-construction meeting

Document existing site conditions prior to commencement of construction
Daily field inspections and documentation

Hold progress meetings with the contractor and District personnel

Review all submittals, requests for information and change orders

Cost and schedule management

Public relations during construction

71 of 395



72 of 395



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) — CAPITAL PROJECTS

CDBG Estimated Funding Available:

FY 2022 - 23: $1,206,948

CDBG Reprogrammed Funds Available: Prior Year:  $520,000
CDBG Applications
. . Amount CDC Staff
Applicant Project Name Requested Recommendation
Burbank Housing Development
Corporation Dry Creek Commons $900,000 $866,476*
. Luther Burbank Farm
City of Sebastopol ADA Restroom Facility $146,000 $146,000
Disability Service & Legal Housing Access
Center Modification Program >45,000 $45,000
Commission (fund request, not Rehabilitation »500,000 $500,000
. Programs
applicant)
Wright Drive Water
SweetwaterSprings Water Main, Natoma Tank,
District and Edgehill Booster 2169,472 $169,472
Replacement
Total Requested | $1,760,472
Total Estimated
Available 31,726,948 $1,726,948

*Staff recommends funding up to the full amount requested if the actual CDBG grant from HUD
is greater than the estimated amount.

73 of 395




APPLICANT NAME: Disability Services & Legal Center (DSLC)
PROJECT NAME: Housing Access Modification Program
AMOUNT REQUESTED: $45,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

“The Housing Access Modifications (HAM) Program, in collaboration with the Sonoma County
Community Development Commission, hasbeen ongoing since 1994. Our HAM Program
providesconsumers independence and quality of life and increases the available, accessible and
affordable unitsin Sonoma County. We receive consumer referrals from hospital discharge
planners, health professionalsand social workers associated with MSSP, Rebuilding Together
and other agencies. In these 28 years we have installed ramps, roll-in showers, grab bars, porch
lifts, flashing light alert systems, and have modified the homes of seniors and people with
disabilities for accessibility. These cost-effective modifications offerfreedom and independence
for our qualified consumerstoremain safely in their homes rather than risk homelessness,
institutionalization, or some form of assisted living.”

PROJECT TYPE:

Rehabilitation of existing low-income residential housing

FOR HOUSING PROJECTS, THE NUMBER AND SIZE OF UNITS, INCOME LEVELS TO BE SERVED:

One hundred percent of households served by DSLC’'s HAM program will be at or below 80
percent of area medianincome (AMI).

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS:

Funds will be used to provide housing access modifications to low income seniorsand special
needs households, the program works with both owner-occupied and rental units.

FUNDING POLICIES (Funding Goals and Objectives)

Does the project address one of the highest priorities of: 1) creating or preserving affordable
housing, 2) building infrastructure or public facilities that support creation or preservation of
affordable housing, or 3) building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income
communities?

The HAM program addresses the high priority of preservingaffordable housing by ensuringlow-
income households with disabilities maintain the ability toremain in their homes by adding
improvements that make homes accessible.

74 of 395



If the application is for housing acquisition and/or preservation, are the units at risk of
becoming market rate housing?

N/A

If the application is for a housing project, does the project set aside homes for persons or
households experiencing homelessness or who are at imminent risk of becoming homeless?

N/A

If the application is for a housing project, will the project provide units for special needs
populations?
N/A

THRESHOLD CRITERIA

Does the project meet at least one National Objective as required under CDBG regulations (24
CFR 570.208)?

Yes, The project benefits persons who have incomes at or below 80% AMI. Under the Low/Mod
(L/M) Limited Clientele National Objective, the project has income eligibility requirementsthat

limitthe activity exclusivelytoL/Mincome persons.

Does the proposed project or activity meet the eligibility requirements of the CDBG and
HOME Funding Policies (If no, provide the specificreason)?

Yes, The HAM program ensuresthat lower-income households with disabilities maintain the
abilityto remainin their homesby adding improvements that make homes accessible

Is the project consistent with the General Plan of the jurisdiction in which itis located?

The Sonoma County General Plan (GP) Housing Elementincludestwo specificpolicies to
address equal housing opportunities and special needs:

Policy 5.2: Support developmentand maintenance of affordable seniorrental and ownership
housingand supportive servicesto facilitate maximum independence and the ability of seniors
to remain in theirhomes or within the greater Sonoma community.

Policy 5.3: Continue to addressthe special needs of persons with disabilities, including
developmental disabilities, through provision of supportive housing, accessibility grants, zoning
for group housing, universal design, and procedures for reasonable accommodation.

The HAM program helps supports both of these GP goals.

75 of 395



Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

Yes. The projectincreases access for individuals with protected characteristics to existing
affordable housingthroughout the Urban County includinghigher opportunity areas, and
allows people with disabilities toremain in their homes, providingstability, affordability, and
continued participationin their community.

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliver the proposed project?

DSLC administers and oversees several grants to aid people with disabilitiesand olderadults in
Sonoma County. Internal mechanisms are in place that adequately safeguard grant funds. DSLC
has yearly audits by outside CPA firms. This program has operated successfully forover 25 years
with CDBG funding assistance from the SCCDC.

SELECTION CRITERIA

Will the requested funds for the project be leveraged against total development costs at least
7:1?

DSLC does not demonstrate leveraging of other funds. The applicant’s requestis 100% of the
total budget for this program. DSLC has obtained funds from the City of Santa Rosa and Marin
Fair Housing, but those funds are limited to operatingthe HAM program within each funding
sponsor’s jurisdiction. Therefore, because those funds cannot be used in unincorporated
Sonoma County or the seven participating municipalities (the “Urban County”), those funds are
not considered leverage. The full amount of CDBG funds requested would be $9,000 per CDBG-
assisted unit.

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status
CDC CDBG 45,000 Not committed
TOTAL $45,000

Does the applicant demonstrate consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and / or
other federal and state funding to develop housing within the last sevenyears?

N/A

Does the project demonstrate existing support from the jurisdiction in which it is located via
letters of support, funding commitments, etc.?

No letters of support were submitted with the application. The SCCDC has supported the
program with CDBG fundingfor over25 years, as approved by the Board of Supervisors

76 of 395



Does the project demonstrate advanced readiness via (a) entitlements; (b) financing
commitments; (c) building permits, (d) environmental review?

An environmental review is conducted by SCCDC staff for each projectas they are identified,
under the SCCDC tiered review process. Additionally, CDCstaff helped secure an exemption
from the California Office of Historic Preservation for effected projects.

Does the applicant have adequate provisions for long-range maintenance and operations?

The HAM program provides modifications to homes that can be removed when no longer
needed. All workis completed by contractors and under warranty.

For non-housing projects, is there a documented and verifiable need for the project above
and beyond existing facilities?

N/A, this is a housing project.

For non-housing projects, can the project be expected to have a significant impact on the
identified problem and result in one or more measurable indicator?

N/A

For housing projects, does project’s proposed number of units exceed the minimum CDBG
requirements?

The program meetsthe minimum CDBG requirementsthat occupants of the assisted units must
allbe at or below 80 percentof AMIL.

For housing projects, are the proposed rents below the maximum rents allowed by the CDBG
requirements?

N/A

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

The anticipated measurable outcome of full funding of this proposal is that 5 low income
special needs households will receive accessibility modifications at no cost to them, allowing
them to remain in their homes.

The average cost per home modification is estimated to be $9,000, whichincludesalllaborand
materials. This program provides access modificationsto homes, such as installingwheelchair
elevatorlifts, buildinginteriorand exteriorramps, installing grab bars, roll-in showers, and
other adaptable bathroom equipment, widening doorways, installing adaptable hardware on
sinksand doors, and installing flashinglight warning systems for the hearingimpaired. The HAM
program is available to both owner-occupied households and tenants of rental units, with
landlord approval.

77 of 395



Successful use of funds will resultin multiple projects being completed, each project granting
larger access to the community for a person with disabilitiesoran olderadultin Sonoma
County. This access will help combat isolation and other effects brought on by the pandemicas
well as enable individuals to move within, to, and from their home freely.

CONSEQUENCES OF NO FUNDING:

Without funding, the program would not be able to provide free home modifications forlow-
income individuals with disabilities livingin Sonoma County.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends fully funding the project.

PRELIMINARY CONDITION(S) OF APPROVAL
Allocated fundingwill be a grant& aloan[]

All grants are subject to the provisions of the Sonoma County Community
1. | Development Commission FY 2022-2023 FundingPolicies and the CDBG
Regulations.

CDBG funds will be used to reimburse allowable rehabilitation and environmental
costs only.

A NEPA environmental review mustbe completed before applicant can be offereda
Grant Agreement.

78 of 395



SONOMA COUNTY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
FUNDING APPLICATION: AFFORDABLE
HOUSING AND CAPITAL PROJECTS

Please review the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), Application
Guidelines, and the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies

before submitting your application. All applications must meet the eligibility This space reserved for CDC date and time stamp
criteria found in the Funding Policies and the requirements set forth in the

NOFA.

Part 1: Applicant Information

Legal name of organization:

Disability Service & Legal Center

Organization’s DUNS number: 1038845376
Contact Information
Authorized Representative Name, title: Adam S. Brown - Executive Director
(City/Town Manager, Executive Phone: 707-636-3060
Director, or other): —
Email: asbrown@mydsic.org
Primary point of contact: Name, title: Juan Orantes - Program Director
Phone: 707-636-3065
Email: jorantes@mydsic.org

Organization is a:

= Non-profit organization  [JFor-profit organization  [JLocal government
O Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
CJCommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

’6|ky'ganization mailing address:

521 Mendocino Ave., Santa Rosa, CA 95401

Organization website:

www.MyDslc.org

Organizational Capacity and Experience

Describe applicant’s record of administrative and programmatic capacity using federal, state, local, and/or private grant
funds, explaining any past issues or challenges administering grant funds.

DSLC administers and oversees several grants to aid people with disabilities and older adults in
Sonoma County. Internal mechanisms are in place that adequately safeguard grant funds. DSLC
has yearly audits by outside CPA firms, that are sent to all our funders. The major federal and state
funders do random audits quarterly. Attached DSLC Acctng & Fin. Policies & Procd Manual.

79 of 395



www.MyDslc.org
mailto:jorantes@mydslc.org

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 2: Project Description

Brief Description of Project or Program
The description provided here will be incorporated into the staff reports provided to the Community Development
Committee, Cities and Towns Advisory Committee, and/or the Board of Supervisors. Descriptions MUST BE 125 words

- or less. It will not be edited and will be truncated at 125 words. For housing related applications, please include
information on the number of affordable units in the project, accessible units (types, number of units, and accessibility
type). A longer project description may be attached (see Part 6, Attachments). If you are requesting CDBG-CV funds,
please include how the proposed activity will prevent, prepare for or respond to Coronavirus (activities must demonstrate
they respond to one or more).

The Housing Access Modifications (HAM) Program, in collaboration with the Sonoma County Community
Development Commission, has been ongoing since 1994. Our HAM Program provides consumers
independence and quality of life and increases the available, accessible and affordable units in Sonoma
County. We receive consumer referrals from hospital discharge planners, health professionals and social
workers associated with MSSP, Rebuilding Together and other agencies. In these 28 years we have
installed ramps, roll-in showers, grab bars, porch lifts, flashing light alert systems, and have modified the
homes of seniors and people with disabilities for accessibility. These cost-effective modifications offer
freedom and independence for our qualified consumers to remain safely in their homes rather than risk
homelessness, institutionalization, or some form of assisted living.

Part 3: Project Information

Project Name Housing Access Modification

Project Type

Using Appendix A of the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies, fill in the field below.
CDBG or HOME eligible activity: CDBG

Funding Request $45 000

Estimated project bvudgeff $ Please See Attached

“Amount of funding request: $Pleééé‘ "S’ee Attached

Funding source; wCDBG [OJHOME LJHOME-CHDO LICDBG-CV
Property Information (as applicable)

Project location (physical address or cross streets): Various

Assessor’'s Parcel Number(s): Various

Census tract(s):w Various

Total acreage: - N/A

Current use of site: N/A

Is projé‘d‘locatéd in a 100-year flood plain? OYes ENO

FEMA FIRM panel number: - N - NA
Is the project, or any part of it, located within the limits = mYes CINo H

of any%it://town? ' If yess, which city/town? Va rous
Which jurisdiction(s) must approve the project? N/A
What local approvals and en.titlements will be required N / A

to develop the proposed project?

g);;?o?’r;tét:!ements and permits expected to be N / A

Page 2 of 21 80 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission

CDBG/HOME Affordabie Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

V"Status of Site Control

Identify the form of site control:

[(JOwnership (attach copy of grant deed or deed of trust)
[ILease (attach copy of lease)

[(JOption agreement (attach copy of agreement)
[(JPurchase agreement (attach copy of agreement)
[JOther; explain:

Note: If funding application is for acquisition, also attach copy
of current appraisal if available.

Status of Environmental or Other Approvals

Applicant must obtain certification of project’s consistency with the applicable general plan, signed by an authorized
representative of the jurisdiction in which the project is located (housing rehabilitation projects excluded).

Status of environmental review: N/A
Status of land use, building permits, or other

approvals: N/A
Explain any land use (zoning, lot split, set back, or N/A
environmental) constraints that must be resolved prior

to proceeding with the project:

Status of Relocation Activities

In order to receive funding, projects must comply with the Sonoma County Residential Anti-Displacement and

Relocation Assistance Plan.

Will the project involve demolition of any structure or OYes [ONo
relocation of any persons or businesses?
E;(t?\llftlig st!'ne status of any demolition or relocation N / A
Existing improvements
EXISTING COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS
Number of structures N/A
Year built N/A
Number of vacant structures N/A
Number of occupied structures N/A
Number of structures to be demolished N/A
Estimated cost of relocation N/A
EXISTING RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENTS
SRO Studio 1-BR 2-BR 3-BR 4-BR
Number of existing units
Number of occupied units
Number of vacant units
Number of substandard units
Nummber of unitsv to be demolished
Estimated cost of relocation
Page 3 of 21 81 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Phasing
Can project proceed if phased or if given partial funding? Explain the effect of phasing or partial funding on the project's
ability to move forward.

N/A

Demonstration of Need

Describe the need for the project or program and include evidence of need (e.g., cite waiting lists for services, census
data, documentation of deteriorated conditions, or other evidence).

The existing Home Access Modification program funded in part through CDBG funds, currently has
‘a 2-year waiting list for qualifying projects. Census data shows that the population of older adults
-within Sonoma County continues to grow creating a need for accessible housing. American
Community Survey (ACS) data shows that people with disabilities make up a significant segment of
the population and this figure continues to grow. Further more, individuals with disabilities and older
~adults need reliable access to and from their home to fight side-effects brought on by the pandemic
such as isolation. For further information regarding this applications see attached.

Outcomes
Describe the outcomes expected to result from the project or program.

Individuals with disabilities and older adults need reliable and accessible access to and from their
homes. Successful use of funds will result in multiple projects being completed, each project
granting larger access to the community for a person with disabilities or an older adult in Sonoma
County. This access will help combat isolation and other effects brought on by the pandemic as well
as enable individuals to move to and from their home freely to make a more inclusive community
and give them ease of access to medical appointments. For further information regarding this
application see attached.

Part 4: Timeline

Target Dates

List anticipated target date for each of the major milestones below. (Housing projects use timeline in supplemental
application instead.)

Major Milestone Target Completion Date Funds Expended

Environmental Review
Site Control

Design Completion

Bid Period Closes
Construction Begins
"'C6nstruction Complete
Notice of Completion

Page 4 of 21 82 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commissicn
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 5: Sources and Uses
Housing projects use budget in supplemental application instead.

Sources

Source Qf Funds Donations Loans Grants In Kind Total
‘ Total ‘‘‘‘‘
Uses

Projected Uses Donations Loans Grants In Kind Total

Land Acquisition

Environmental Review

Architect

Engineering

Project Fees

Site Improvements

Other:

Other:

’ Total

Page 5 of 21 83 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 6: Attachments Required

Project sponsors must submit the following documents, as applicable, with their funding application:

Project Description: Provide a description of the project that includes specific location information and geographic
boundaries. It should identify the maximum anticipated scope of the entire project, and delineate the specific
activities for which the applicant is requesting funding at this time. Applications for housing-related projects should
instead include a Housing Project Description, described in Supplemental Application below.

Project Location Map: Attach an 8 1/2"x 11” map showing the project location, clearly showing the project area in
relation to surrounding communities.

Authorizing Resolution: For non-profit organizations, attach a resolution from the Board of Directors authorizing
the submittal of the application.

City/Town Authorizing Resolution: Attach a city/town council resolution endorsing the project for those located
within the seven incorporated jurisdictions or for those sponsored by one of the seven incorporated jurisdictions.

General Plan Consistency: Attach a certification of consistency with the applicable jurisdiction’s General Plan.

IRS Letter of Determination: Non-profit organizations only must submit an IRS Letter of Determination. Non-profit
organizations are not eligible for consideration unless non-profit status has been verified.

Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) verification: For CHDO’s applying for HOME CHDO
funds, submit a Sonoma County CHDO letter or plan to become an independent, fully functioning CHDO entity.

Letters of Commitment: Submit letters of commitment from all other funding sources.
Financial Documentation:
® Non-profit organizations must attach the following:
= Current operating budget
» Most recent completed final audit report
* |IRS Form 990 for the most current tax year

= |f organization is not audited, attach a copy of the most recent internal financial statement that
has been approved by Board of Directors.

*Additional financial information may be requested by CDC staff as deemed appropriate.

OO Sonoma County departments or agencies, the cities of Cotati, Cloverdale, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park,
Sebastopol, Sonoma, and the Town of Windsor are exempt from this requirement.

B Organizations are required to have written policies and procedures. The applicant must submit certification that

they have the following policies and procedures. (Please complete the forms found in Part 7 — Certifications)
= Accounting
= Conflict of Interest
*  Procurement
= Record Retention

Page 6 of 21 84 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission

CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Supplemental Application:

Public Facilities or Other Infrastructure Projects

Define project service area

List all census block groups in service

area: N/A.
For sidewalk / curb cut projects

Location of sidewalks (cross streets): N/A
Define the service area; listall Census  y/a
block groups in service area:

Number of curb cuts (anticipated): N/A

Page 7 of 21

85 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Supplemental Application:
Housing-Related Projects

Fill out this supplemental application if the project will result in the construction of new housing units, preservation of
existing housing units, or the acquisition of land for new housing units.

Project Information

Project type:

[ONew construction

= Rehabilitation  [JAcquisition

Total number of units to be eenstructed
or rehabilitated:;

N/A

Total number of affordable Units (new
construction or acquisition):

N/A

For HOME funding requests, total
number of HOME-assisted units:

NA

Total development costs: $45,000

Contact Information of All Parties

APPLICANT INFORMATION N ‘Name: Disability Services & Legal Center
”Address: 521 Mendocino Ave.

City, State, Zip:

Santa Rosa, CA 95401

Contact person:

Juan Orantes

Telephone:

707-636-3065

Email:

Jorantes@mydsic.org -

Organization is a:

= Non-profit organization ~ [JFor-profit organization
ULocal government

(JCommunity Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
LJCommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

_ PARTNER OR RELATED ENTITIES Name: N/A
- a Address: N/A

City, State, Zip: N/A

Contact person: MNV/A

Telephone: N/A

,,,,,, "E‘:ma/il: A

Organization is a:

] N‘on-proﬁ‘t organization [J For-proﬁt organization

ULocal government
LICommunity Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
LICommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

ARCHITECT Name; | N/A
Address: N/A
City, State, Zip: N/A
Contact person: N/A
Telephone: N/A
Email: - N/A
Page 8 of 21 86 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021


mailto:Jorantes@mydslc.org

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Varies

GENERAL CONTRACTOR Name:
Address:
City, State, Zip:
Contact person:
Telephone:
Email:
License n‘b‘.:

PROPERTY MANAGER Name: N/A

| Address: N/A

City, State, Zip: N/A
Contact person: N/A
'Telephone: N
Email: | 'N/A

Status of Entitlements and/or Services

If site is located in an unincorporated
area of the County, have you or will you
submit an application to Sonoma
County Planning & Resource
Management Department for:

[OOState Density Bonus Program
OCounty of Sonoma Supplemental Density Bonus Program

[Housing Element Type A Rental Housing Opportunity Program

OHousing Element Type C Ownership Housing Opportunity Program

Date of application:

If answering yes to any of the above, contact Commission staff to discuss
schedule for preparation and B”Q‘ard approyal of Affordable Housing A’greem‘ent.

Status of planned water and sewer
service:

If not yet provided, explain how water
and sewer service will be provided.

Does the project have Article 34
- authority from the jurisdiction in which it
is located?

I Yes. If yes, attach a copy of the allocation letter.‘.uy.m

[0 No. If no, attach written legal opinion describing why Article 34 referendum
authority is not required.

Proposed Tenancy

Household types:

SRO | Studio

1BR

2BR

3BR

4BR

Number of each type of unit

Average square feet per unit

Total number of units:

How many of the total units will be
reserved for the following:

Homeless persons

Elderly persons

Disabled persons (see note)

Special needs populations

Resident manager

Other; specify:

Unrestricted

Page 9 of 21

87 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Note: In new construction and substantial rehabilitation rental projects assisted with HOME or CDBG funds, at least five percent of units
(not less than one unit) must be accessible to persons with mobility impairments, and an additional two percent of units (not less than 1
unit) must be accessible to persons with sensory impairments. Projects assisted with other funds must satisfy applicable federal, state,
and local regulations regarding the provision of accessible housing. Ownership housing projects assisted with funds from these
programs must comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding the provision of accessible units.

- Estimated Monthly Rent Levels (before deduction of utility allowances)

Household types: | SRO Studio 1BR 2BR 3BR 4BR
Units | Rent | Units . Rent . Units - Rent | Units | Rent  Units - Rent Units | Rent

Extremely Low-Income (30% of AMI)

Very Low-Income (50% of AMI)

60% of AMI

Low-Income (80% of AMI)

Market Rate (>80% of AMI)
Resident Manager’s Unit
Estimated Utility Allowance*

*Please provide list of tenant-paid utilities, the utility profile for all appliances, and the Utility Allowance“‘fbfweach unit type.

Estimated Affordable Sales Prices (ASP)
{ Household types: = SRO Studio 1BR 2BR 3BR

~ Units | ASP | Units ASP  Units ASP  Units ASP Units = ASP

 Extremely Low-Income (30% of AMI)

' Very Low-Income (50% of AMI) ’

- 60% of AMI

 Low-Income (80% of AMI)
100% of AMI

120% of AMI

LENGTH OF AFFORDABILITY PERIOD

What is the proposed length of
affordability for the affordable units?

- See Funding Policies

Project Schedule

Include all major milestones such as land acquisition, general plan amendment and rezoning, density bonus / housing
element housing opportunity area approval, design review approval, schematic design, design development, construction
documents, construction phase, initial occupancy, and, if applicable, assignment of the project to a limited partnership or
other entity. Specify tentative dates for closing the proposed loan and first request for funds, as well as when construction
financing and permanent financing will close. Please provide realistic dates for completion of activities and
expenditure of funds. These dates will be included in the applicable funding agreement.

Major Milestone Target Completion Date Funds Expended

Page 10 of 21 88 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

i

i

Development Budget for Disability Services & Legal Centéf Housing Access Modification

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Lender

Amount

InterestRate/  Use(s)

Term

" HOME match
qualifying?

Commitment
Status

Total

ESTIMATED PERMANENT FINANCING

Lender

Ambunt

Interest Rate /
Term

Use(s)

HOME match
qualifying?

Commitment
Status

Total

Rental projects only

Summ;&»of First-Year Opefating Budget

Total

Per unit

Gross potential rental income

Plus other income (e.g., laundry)

Less 5% vacancy / rent loss

Effective Gross Income

Less total operating expenses*

Less payment to replacement
reserves

45,000

9,000

Less payment to other reserves

Net operating income

Less debt service payments

Net cash flow

Debt service coverage ratio

*Include $75 per unit, per year monitoring fee in the operatiné budget

Page 11 of 21

89 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Afﬁrfnatively Furthering Fair Housing

In planning for the use of CDBG and HOME, the County of Sonoma must adhere to the mandate in the Fair Housing Act to
Affirmatively Further Fair Housing. This means that not only must all HUD funded programs and activities combat
discrimination, but they must also overcome patterns of segregation and the denial of access to opportunity that are part of
national and local history. The ways in which a project or program can do this meaningfully are listed below, and to be
considered for funding, all applicant projects must overcome patterns of segregation in one or more of the ways listed.

in which of the following ways does the proposed project overcome patterns of segregation and the denial of
access to opportunity (check all that apply)? Please provide an explanation of how the project accomplishes the
item (s) checked.

O It makes an investment in a segregated and high pdvérty neighborhood to improve conditions and eliminate disparities in
access to opportunity between residents of this neighborhood and the rest of the jurisdiction and region.

Explain:

U It maintains and preserves existing affordable rental housing stock to reduce disproportionate housing needs.
Explain:

O It provides affordable housing in an area(s) of opportunity to combat segregation and promote integration.
Explain:

LI It provides mixed incorhe housing designed to integrate Wravcially and ethnically concentrated areas of poverty.
Explain:

D It increases access for individuals with protected characteristics to existing“affordable housing in higher opportunity
areas.

Explain:

Page 12 of 21 90 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Homelessness-Related Questions

If project is a permanent supportive
housing project, identify service
provider:

Describe approach to lowering barriers to potential tenants to entering permanent housing (i.e., accepting referrals from
Coordinated Intake:

Page 13 of 21 91 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Additional Attachments Required

In addition to the attachments required in Part 6 of the funding application, housing-related project sponsors must submit
the following as attachments to their applications:

O Housing project description: Provide a written narrative to describe your project. At a minimum, the narrative

o0 OooOoo Oooad

|

Page 14 of 21

should include the following:
o Description of the type of housing proposed
o Target population(s)
¢ Planned services for residents

e Proposed use(s) of the requested funding and anticipated environmental issues (i.e., vernal pools,
heritage trees, riparian corridor, contamination, flood plain, endangered species, historical and
archeological impacts)

¢ Authorized entity that will execute the funding agreement and loan documents if applicable for the funds
requested in this application
o If the project will use a tax credit limited partnership to finance the project, please describe the
organizational structure of the partnership and the roles of various partners or other related organizations
Current preliminary title report
Evidence of site control

Current appraisal, if available. Appraised value of property must fully secure the Commission’s loan(s). In
addition, the total purchase price may not exceed the “reasonable cost’ for the property

Environmental clearances/reports

Site plan and elevations or schematic drawing

Project Location Map: Attach an 8 1/2'x 11” map showing the project location, clearly showing the project area in
relation to surrounding communities

Contractor’s cost breakdown

Using the Sonoma County Community Development Commission Utility Allowance Schedule,
hitp://sonomecounty.ca.goviCDC/Housing-Authority/Property-Owners/Utility-Allowances/, list the tenant-paid
utilities and utility allowance for your project

ltemized development budget, including a sources and uses table, identifying distributions to the owner,
developer, partners or other entities during the development phase

Narrative description of the development'’s financial plan, indicating expected dates for obtaining approvals for any
uncommitted financing

Rental projects: A 30-year operating budget and cash flow projection that shows estimated project income,
operating expenses, reserves, debt service, and distributions. Please include a “totals” column after year 30

Article 34 Authority: Attach allocation letter or legal opinion that allocation is not required.

92 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021


http:i/sonomacounty

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordabie Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 7: Certifications
= Grant Certification Form — 1 (Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority)
= Grant Certification Form — 2 (Federal Regulations)
= Grant Certification Form — 3 (Conflict of Interest)

= Grant Certification Form — 4 {Policies and Procedures)

Page 15 of 21 93 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Deveiopment Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 1

Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority

| hereby certify that (insert name of organization requesting funds) has
complied with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to the application and is an eligible applicant for the
requested funding.

The organization proposes to provide the program services or complete the project identified in this application. If
this application is approved and this organization receives the requested funding this organization agrees to adhere
to all relevant Federal, State, and local regulations and other assurances as required by the Commission.

In addition, the content of the application shall be incorporated as part of the written agreement and, as such, will be
used to monitor performance. Activities, commitments, and representations described in the written agreement that
are not subsequently made a part of the program/project as funded shall be considered a material contract failure
and may result in a repayment of all awarded funds and/or suspension from participation in future funding rounds.

| hereby certify that the organization is fully capable of fulfilling its obligation under this application, as stated herein.
| further certify that the information provided in this Funding Application is correct, accurate, and complete.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Adam S. Brown

Printed Name:

.. Executive Director

Tit

_..January 20, 2022

D

Page 16 of 21 94 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 2
Federal Regulations - CDBG

Requirements Federal Regulations
Federal Labor Standards 24 CFR 92.354
- Davis-Bacon 29CFRParts 1, 3, and 5

- Copeland Act (Anti-kickback)
- Contract Work Hours and Safety

Other References
40 U.S.C. 3141; 40 U.S.C. 3701

Section 104(b) and 109 of
Title | of the Housing and
Community Development Act
of 1974

Standards
Section 3 24 CFR 135 Section 3 of the HUD Act of
1968, as amended (12 U.S.C.
1701u); 2 CFR 200.321
Minority and Women Business Small Business Act, 12 U.S.C. 1701
Enterprise Participation Section 3(a)
(MBE/WBE) 15 U.8.C. 632
Civil Rights and Non- Title VI of Civil Rights Act Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Discrimination of 1964 Act of 1973
Title Vill of the Civil Rights Americans w/Disabilities Act of
Act of 1968 1990

Age Discrimination Act of
1975

Executive Orders 11063,
11246, 11375, 11478, 12107,
12086, and 13279

24 CFR 570.601-602;
Equal Employment Opportunity 570.607

41 CFR 60

Executive Orders 11246;
12086
12 USC 1701u

Fair Housing Fair Housing Act (42

U.S.C. 3601-3620)

Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, as amended
(42 U.S.C. 2000d)

Equal Opportunity in
Housing

Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Americans w/Disabilities Act

24 CFR Parts 8, 107, and 146
42 U.S.C. 200(d)

Executive Orders 11063, as
amended by Executive Order
12259

Age Discrimination Act of 1975,
as amended (42 U.S.C.

6101)

of 1990
Debarred or Ineligible 24 CFR 570.609; 24 CFR Executive Orders 12549 and
Contractors 24 12689
Reasonable Accommodation 24 CFR Part 8; Section 504 of Rehabilitation
24 CFR 570.601- Act of 1973
602 Americans w/Disabilities Act of

1990

Page 17 of 21 95 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Fire Safety Codes

Local ordinances

Building, Housing, and Zoning
Codes
Housing Quality Standards

24 CFR 570.208(b)(1)(iv);
208(b)(2)

Local ordinances

Lead-Based Paint

24 CFR 570.608; 24 CFR
Part 35

42 U.S.C 4821 et seq.

Anti-Lobbying

Appendix II to Part 200 J;
31U.8.C. 1352

Environmental, Historic
Preservation, National
Environmental Policy Act, Flood
Insurance Requirements

- Sitting near airports and
coastal barrier

- Fish and wildlife protection

- Flood plain/flood insurance

- National Historic Preservation
- Noise abatement and control
- Wetlands/Coastal zones

- Air quality

- Endangered species

- Thermal/Explosive hazards

24 CFR 570.503(b)(5)(i);
570.604; 570.605;
570.202;

24 CFR 58

References at:

24 CFR 58.6;
58.5570.605

Section 104(g), HCDA
42 U.S.C 4001 et seq.

Relocation, Real Property

Acquisitions, and One-for-One
Housing Replacement

- Uniform Relocation Act

- Residential anti-displacement
and relocation assistance

24 CFR 570.201(i);

570.606(b), (c), (d)
49 CFR 24
42 USC 4601 et seq

Sections 104(d); 105(a)(11),

HCDA
www.hud.gov/relocation

Competitive Procurement 2 CFR 200.319
Insurance and Bonding 2 CFR 200.310 and
200.325

Administrative and Accounting
Standards

2 CFR Part 200

Cost Considerations

2 CFR 200.402, 403, 404,
405, 406 and 407

Documentation and
Recordkeeping

24 CFR 570.506
24 CFR 570.502

Conflict of Interest

2 CFR 200.112 and
24 CFR 570.611

Section 108 Loan Guarantees

24 CFR 570.700-570.709

Section 108, HCDA

Page 18 of 21

96 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that all data contained in this application and all supportive
documentation is true, correct and will incorporate the above requirements. This submission has been duly
authorized by the governing body of

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Adam S. Brown

Printed Name:

- Executive Director
. January 20,2022

Tit

Da

Page 19 of 21 97 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 3
Conflict of Interest - CDBG

The standards in 2 CFR 200.318 provide that no employee, officer, or agent shall participate in the selection, award,
or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved.
Such a conflict would arise when an employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or
her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a
financial or other interest in the firm selected for an award.

The CDBG regulations at 24 CFR 570.611 provide that no person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or
elected official or appointed official of the recipient or subrecipient that are receiving CDBG funds and (1) who
exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted with CDBG funds; or (2)
who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to these
activities, may obtain a financial interest from a CDBG-assisted activity, or have any interest in any contract,
subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with
whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one (1) year thereafter.

A Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to participate in the decision making process for approval
of this application?

UYes [ONo

B. Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to gain inside information with regard to approval of this
application?
OYes CJNo

C. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds obtain a financial interest or substantial benefit fronithis activity? (]
Yes ONo

D. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the

organization requesting funds have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect to funding this application, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or

business ties during the program year and one year thereafter? CYes CINo

If you answered YES to any of the above questions, a letter must be submitted with the application that
includes the following information:

1) A disclosure of the nature and extent of the conflict
2) A description of how public disclosure will be made
3) A qualified attorney's opinion that the conflict of interest does not violate federal, state, or local law

Note: If you are approved for funding, the Commission must issue a public notice of the disclosure with a 15-day
public comment period, and then submit to HUD for approval prior to execution of a grant agreement or release
of funds.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Adam S. Brown

Printed Name:

Executive Director .. 1120/2022

Title: Da

Page 20 of 21 98 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 4
Policies & Procedures

The undersigned does hereby certify that the applicant organization has the following policies and/or procedures
and can produce them if requested by the Commission:

Accounting policy/procedure

Procurement policy/procedure

Conflict of Interest policy/procedure

Record Retention policy/procedure

Language Access Plan & Limited English Proficiency Policy

oA wN

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

Page 21 of 21 99 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Housing Access Modifications (HAM) Program, in collaboration with the Sonoma County
Community Development Commission, has been ongoing since 1994. Our HAM Program provides
consumers independence and quality of life and increases the available, accessible and affordable
units in Sonoma County. We receive consumer referrals from hospital discharge planners, health
professionals and social workers associated with MSSP, Rebuilding Together and other agencies. In
these 28 years we have installed ramps, roll-in showers, grab bars, porch lifts, flashing light alert
systems, and have modified the homes of seniors and people with disabilities for accessibility.
These cost-effective modifications offer freedom and independence for our qualified consumers to
remain safely in their homes rather than risk homelessness, institutionalization, or some form of
assisted living.

100 of 395



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) — CAPITAL PROJECTS

CDBG Estimated Funding Available:

FY 2022 - 23: $1,206,948

CDBG Reprogrammed Funds Available: Prior Year:  $520,000
CDBG Applications
. . Amount CDC Staff
Applicant Project Name Requested Recommendation
Burbank Housing Development
Corporation Dry Creek Commons $900,000 $866,476*
. Luther Burbank Farm
City of Sebastopol ADA Restroom Facility $146,000 $146,000
Disability Service & Legal Housing Access
Center Modification Program >45,000 $45,000
zzr:nr:]an(i::yul;?\//elopment Countywide Housing
u -
Commission (fund request, not Rehabilitation »500,000 $500,000
. Programs
applicant)
Wright Drive Water
SweetwaterSprings Water Main, Natoma Tank,
District and Edgehill Booster »169,472 $169,472
Replacement
Total Requested | $1,760,472
Total Estimated
Available 31,726,948 $1,726,948

*Staff recommends funding up to the fullamount requested if the actual CDBG grant from HUD
is greater than the estimated amount.

101 of 395




APPLICANT NAME: Sonoma County Community Development Commission (SCCDC)

PROJECT NAME: Countywide Housing Rehabilitation Programs
AMOUNT REQUESTED: $ 500,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

CDBG funds will be utilized for low interestloans made through the Housing Rehabilitation Loan
Program (HRLP) forimprovementsto legally sited mobile homes, single family dwellings, and
multifamily residential propertieslocated inthe unincorporated County as well as withinthe
boundaries of the Cities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park, Sebastopol, Sonoma,
and the Town of Windsor (together defined as the “Urban County”), and the direct program
delivery expenses associated with the provision of the housingrehabilitation activitiesto CDBG-
eligible owner-occupants and owners of qualified rental housing. All owner-occupied
properties must be occupied by income-eligible households ator below 80% of the area median
income (AMI). Rental properties mustbe occupied by at least 51% of tenants at or below 80%
of the AMI to qualify for eligibility. Loans to owner-occupants will eitherbe deferred-payment
or amortized, depending onthe homeowner's ability to repay. Allloans to owners of rental
properties will be fully amortized and carry long-term affordability restrictions. The CDBG

funds may also be used to provide grants through the Earthquake Resistant Bracing System
Program (ERBS) to low-income owners of mobile homes for the installation of earthquake
resistantbracing systems.

PROJECT TYPE:

Housing rehabilitation to provide health, safety, and code related improvements.

FOR HOUSING PROJECTS, THE NUMBER AND SIZE OF UNITS, INCOME LEVELS TO BE SERVED:

The HRLP and ERBS Programs will serve households ator below 80% AMI with the requested
funding.

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS:

Loans or grants to provide housingrehabilitation and hazard mitigation construction, and
SCCDC direct program delivery costs.

FUNDING POLICIES (Funding Goals and Objectives)

Does the project address one of the highest priorities of: 1) creating or preserving affordable
housing, 2) building infrastructure or public facilities that support creation or preservation of
affordable housing, or 3) building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income
communities?

102 of 395



Yes, the project addressesthe preservation of affordable housing.

If the application is for housing acquisition and/or preservation, are the units at risk of
becoming market rate housing?

No, the units assisted are not necessarily affordable units upon application to the program.
While the units may be occupied by households that pay rent or mortgage costs that are
affordable to them, there are no deed restrictions or other mechanismsto ensure affordability.
However, once assisted with an HRLP loan or grant, affordability restrictions are placed on
rental units for a term of 55 years for substantial rehabilitation or 20 years for non-substantial
rehabilitation, restricting occupancy to low- and very low-income households. This program
requirementthereby preserves andincreases the affordable rental housingstock in the Urban
County, helpinglowerincome households maintain their existing affordable housing and
remain in place in a safe and habitable unit.

If the application is for a housing project, does the project set aside homes for persons or
households experiencing homelessness or who are at imminent risk of becoming homeless?

N/A

If the application is for a housing project, will the project provide units for special needs
populations?

The HRLP Program providesimprovementsto assist qualified homeowners and rental property
owners with modifications to assistwith access and mobility for the occupants within the
existinghomes. These improvementsinclude, butare not limited to, replacement of a bathtub-
showerwith a showerstallto provide easieraccess, grab bar installations, and replacement of
fixtures with new fixtures having handles that are easy to grip.

THRESHOLD CRITERIA

Is the project consistent with the General Plan of the jurisdiction in which itis located?

Yes, The HRLP and ERBS Programs are two of the “programs” that carry out the important work
mentionedinthe Sonoma County General Plan Housing Element (HE) adopted on 12-02-2014.
On page HE-23, Objective HE-1.3 states: “Continue existing Community Development
Commission efforts and programs, as specifiedinthe Sonoma County Consolidated Plan, to use
CDBG, dedicated redevelopment Reinvestment and Revitalization (R&R) Funds, and/or other
sources to provide comprehensive rehabilitation loans, to complete flood and earthquake
hazard mitigation measures, to eliminate health hazards by connecting propertiesto public
water and/or sewersystems, and to perform access modifications for units occupied by persons
with disabilities, when those units are owned and/or occupied by extremely-low, very low-and

103 of 395



low-income households. Funding may be provided for conventional single-and multifamily
housing, for mobile homes, and for special needs and/or accessible housingunits.”

Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

Yes, the HRLP and ERBS programs affirmatively furtherfair housing by including outreach via
flyers containing program information in Spanish. These flyers for HRLP have been distributed
by staff in mobile home parks with large Latino populationsin Roseland and the Boyes Hot
Springs communities. SCCDC is currently updating flyers and workingto update the website to
enhance and expandthe information available toresidents who are limitedin English
proficiency.

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliverthe proposed project?

Yes, the SCCDC has the capacity to complete approximately 18 HRLP projectsand 37 ERBS
projects per year. According to the Housing Elementreport, from 2007-2014, 191 HRLP projects
and 139 ERBS project were completed. For 2014 -2021, 70 HRLP projects and 385 ERBS projects
were completed. This gives a 14-year average of 18 HRLP projects and 37 ERBS projects
completed per year with a current anticipated average annual cost based on current pricing of
staff who regularly work implementing the programs. Staff conduct intake and process property
owners’ applications, prepare and process all loan/grant documents, conduct the competitive
biddingprocess, and assist the owner in the control, supervision and direction of the work to be
performed under the contract to ensure all required work is performed per plan/scope and that
work is complete prior to payment being made. The SCCDC has successfullyimplemented the
HRLP Program usinga variety of funding sources since 1978 and the ERBS Program since 1995,
assisting hundreds of households with repairs and mitigation projects necessary to maintain
safe, decent and affordable housing.

SELECTION CRITERIA

Will the requested funds for the project be leveraged against total development costs at least
7:1?

N/A. Housing rehabilitation programs administered by the SCCDC are not subject to leveraging
requirements. The programs do not include predevelopment or construction financing. Funds
are used to directly administerthe rehabilitation programs.

Does the applicant demonstrate consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and / or
other federal and state funding to develop housing within the last sevenyears?

N/A

Does the project demonstrate existing support from the jurisdiction in which it is located via
letters of support, funding commitments, etc.?

104 of 395



Yes, the HRLP and ERBS programs were established by the SCCDC. The five members of the
Sonoma County Board of Supervisors, acting in their capacity as Commissioners, form the
governingbody for the SCCDC. The Commissioners have adopted the HRLP and ERBS Program
Designs containing the policies that form the framework for the programs, and have provided
county R&R funds for both programs.

Does the project demonstrate advanced readiness via {(a) entitlements; (b) financing
commitments; (c) building permits, {d) environmental review?

Yes, the HRLP and ERBS programs are of a scattered site nature and the SCCDC providesloans
or grants to the property owners who apply to the programs. Building permits are obtained as
each project is approved. Environmental review isa multi-tiered review type and the first tier
has been completed and the required Authority to Use Grant Funds was received from the
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) by the SCCDC on January
28, 2022. Atier llsite-specificreview will be completed foreach individual property
rehabilitated priorto work commencement.

Does the applicant have adequate provisions for long-range maintenance and operations?

The terms of the loan agreements with each property owner require the property ownerto
provide fire, flood, and other insurance as required, and to keep said property in good
condition and repair for the term of the loan or in the case of a rental property the affordability
period (20-55 years).

For non-housing projects, is there a documented and verifiable need for the project above
and beyond existing facilities?

N/A

For non-housing projects, can the project be expected to have a significant impact on the
identified problem and result in one or more measurable indicator?

N/A

For housing projects, does project’s proposed number of units exceedsthe minimum CDBG
requirements?

Yes, owneroccupied units must be low income to qualify and at least 51% of unitsin rental
properties must be lowincome, at or below 80% of the AMI.

For housing projects, are the proposed rents below the maximum rents allowed by the CDBG
requirements?

105 of 395



For rental properties, an affordability covenantis recorded against the property restricting
continued occupancy of the propertyto low or very low-income households. The term of
affordability placed on the propertiesis based on whetherthe improvements are considered
substantial rehabilitation ornon-substantial rehabilitation, for substantial rehabilitation the
restrictionis 55 years, for non-substantial it is 20 years.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: N/A

CONSEQUENCES OF NO FUNDING:

The SCCDC would seek other fundingas available. However, if no other funding sources are
available, the program may not be able to assistany new applicants.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommendsfundingthe Countywide Rehabilitation Programsin the full amount.

106 of 395



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) — CAPITAL PROJECTS

CDBG Estimated Funding Available:

FY 2022 -23: $1,206,948

CDBG Reprogrammed Funds Available: Prior Year:  $520,000
CDBG Applications
. . Amount CDC Staff
Applicant Project Name Requested Recommendation
Burbank Housing Development
Corporation Dry Creek Commons $900,000 $866,476*
. Luther Burbank Farm
City of Sebastopol ADA Restroom Facility $146,000 $146,000
Disability Service & Legal Housing Access
Center Modification Program >45,000 $45,000
?Z?):nl:‘:nci:/ug?\//elopment Countywide Housing
Commission (fund request, not Rehabilitation >500,000 $500,000
. Programs
applicant)
Wright Drive Water
SweetwaterSprings Water Main, Natoma Tank,
District and Edgehill Booster >169,472 $169,472
Replacement
Total Requested | $1,760,472
Total Estimated
Available 31,726,948 $1,726,948

*Staff recommends funding up to the full amountrequested if the actual CDBG grant from HUD
is greater than the estimated amount.

107 of 395




APPLICANT NAME: Burbank Housing Development Corporation
PROJECT NAME: Dry Creek Commons

AMOUNT REQUESTED: $900,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

“A 100% affordable 58-unit affordable family rental housing project on a 3.52 acre City owned
property located at 155 Dry Creek Road, Healdsburg. The project consists of two, four story
apartment buildings of approximately 26,090 gross square feetand 47,486 gross square feet
connected by an above ground pedestrian bridge.

All of the units will be offered to extremely low, very low- and low-income households earning
between 30-60% area medianincome. To further meetthe City’s housing needs, Reach for
HOME (RFH) will have first priority to approximately 5 of these units, to help address the City’s
very low-income supportive housing needs. BHDC will partnerwith RFH to provide supportive
servicesto these residents. There will be ground floor accessible units.”

PROJECT TYPE:

Predevelopment for new construction of multifamily rental housing.

FOR HOUSING PROJECTS, THE NUMBER AND SIZE OF UNITS, INCOME LEVELS TO BE SERVED:

58 oneto three (1-3) bedroom units with 1 two-bedroom manager’s unit. 57 of the 58 units will
be restricted for occupancy by households withincomesbetween 30% and 60% ofthe area
medianincome (AMI) including:

6 units—30% AMI
7 units- 40% AMI
29 units—50% AMI
15 units—60% AMI

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS:

CDBG funds are requested for predevelopment expenses.

FUNDING POLICIES (Funding Goals and Objectives)

Does the project meet at least one National Objective as required under CDBG regulations (24

CFR 570.208)?

108 of 395



Yes, the proposed project will benefit low- and moderate-income persons at or below 80% of
the AMI CDBG national objective.

Does the proposed project or activity meet the eligibility requirements of the CDBG and
HOME Funding Policies (If no, provide the specificreason)?

The requested predevelopment funds are considered to be soft costs of new housing
construction. The applicant isa qualified Community Based Development Organization (CBDO)
for Sonoma County, which isthe only type of non-profit organization eligible to use CDBG funds
for new construction of affordable rental housing.

New construction of affordable housingis only permitted as a “special activity by CBDO” under
CDBG regulations. The applicant will need to submit documentation to enable the SCCDC to
determineifitqualifies as part of an eligible neighborhood revitalization project underthe
CDBG regulationsat 24 CFR 570.204 (a)(1): “Neighborhoodrevitalization projectincludes
activities of sufficient size and scope to have an impact on the decline of a geographic location
within the jurisdiction of a unit of general local government (but not the entire jurisdiction)
designatedin comprehensive plans, ordinances, or other local documents as a neighborhood,
village, orsimilar geographical designation...”.

Does the project address one of the highest priorities of: 1) creating or preserving affordable
housing, 2) building infrastructure or public facilities that support creation or preservation of
affordable housing, or 3) building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income

communities?

The proposed project is new construction of affordable rental housingand if itis determined
eligible, itwould meetthe “creating affordable housing” priority.

If the application is for housing acquisition and/or preservation, are the units at risk of
becoming market rate housing?

N/A

If the application is for a housing project, does the project set aside homes for persons or
households experiencing homelessness or who are at imminent risk of becoming homeless?

Yes, the applicantwould set aside approximately five units for households experiencing
homelessnessorwho are at risk of becoming homeless, specifically through referrals from the
Reach for Home program.

If the application is for a housing project, will the project provide units for special needs
populations?

109 of 395



Yes, the proposed project will set aside approximately 5 units for households experiencing
homelessness orwho are at risk of becoming homeless. All ground floor units in the proposed
project will be ADA compliant accessible units.

THRESHOLD CRITERIA

Is the project consistent with the General Plan of the jurisdiction in which it is located?

Yes, the projectis consistent with the Healdsburg General Plan. Per the City’s adopted Land Use
Plan, the property is designated Mixed Use with an allowed density of 10-16 units per acre,
accommodating the 58 units with State Density Bonus.

Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

Yes, the proposed project affirmatively furthers fair housing by providing affordable housingin
an area of opportunity to combat segregation and promote integration. The project’s location
provides easy access to services, amenities and employment opportunities.

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliverthe proposed project?

Yes, BHDC is alocal non-profit organization with over 40 years of successful affordable housing
developmentinthe region. They have demonstrated experience inthe developmentand long-
term management of affordable housing.

SELECTION CRITERIA

Will the requested funds for the project be leveraged against total development costs at least
7:1?

Yes, based on the proforma included with the application, if the applicant obtains all financing
as proposed, the requested $900,000 in CDBG funds will leverage against total development
costs at least 7 to 1. However, at the time of the application submittal, no financinghas been
committed. The primary source of project fundingis anticipated to be 9% Low Income Housing
Tax Credits (LIHTC) and the applicant statesthey anticipate submittal of an application for those
funds no laterthan July, 2022. If applicantreceives all of the requested CDBG funding, each $1
of CDBG funds would leverage approximately $29.00 from other sources. The full amount of
CDBG funds requested would be approximately $15,790 per CDBG assisted unit ($900,000/57
affordable units). As notedon thetable below, the applicantisalso requesting $400,000 in
HOME funds from the SCCDC.

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status

9% LIHTC $1,610,763 Not committed, applying
March/Jull 2022

110 of 395



City of HealdsburgLand
Loan

$4,000,000

Exclusive Negotiation
Rights Agreement

SCCDC CDBG $900,000 This request
SCCDC HOME $400,000 Requested
Deferred DeveloperFee $2,190,000 Pending
Construction Loan $17,994,709 Pending
Deferred Costs $372,160 Pending
TOTAL $27,467,632

ESTIMATED PERMANENT FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status

9% LIHTC $16,107,632 Not committed, applying
March/July 2022

PermanentLoan $5,560,000 Pending

City of HealdsburgLand $4,000,000 Pending

Loan

SCCDC CDBG $900,000 Pending

SCCDC HOME $400,000 Pending

Deferred DeveloperFee $500,000 Pending

TOTAL $27,467,632

Does the applicant demonstrate consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and / or
other federal and state funding to develop housing within the last sevenyears?

Yes, BHDC has demonstrated consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and other
federal, state and local fundingto develop housingduringthe last sevenyears.

Does the project demonstrate existing support from the jurisdiction in which it is located via
letters of support, funding commitments, etc.?

Yes, BHDC enteredinto an Exclusive Negotiating Rights Agreement with the City of Healdsburg
for property acquisition, contingent upon obtainingrequired entitlements, environmental
clearances and financingto successfully complete the construction of the project. The City
Council of City of Healdsburgalso provided a resolution supporting BHDC’s application for FY
2022-23 CDBG and HOME fundingfor this project.

Does the project demonstrate advanced readiness via (a) entitlements; (b) financing
commitments; (c) building permits, (d) environmental review?

The projectisinthe initial predevelopment stages, currently pending design review and not
ready to obtain building permits. A California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) environmental
review iscurrently in progress. There are no financial commitments and most of the permanent
financingis primarily dependent on a successful and highly competitive LIHTC application.

111 of 395



Additionally, a portion of the property is located on wetlands, which could potentially be
problematicor require mitigation work.

Does the applicant have adequate provisions for long-range maintenance and operations?

Yes, BHDC is a highly qualified affordable housing developerwith a long history of developing
and managing affordable housing projects in the region, is adequately staffed with dedicated
departments to provide development, compliance, accounting, and management and
maintenance services.

For non-housing projects, is there a documented and verifiable need for the project above
and beyond existing facilities?

N/A

For non-housing projects, can the project be expected to have a significant impact on the
identified problem and result in one or more measurable indicator?

N/A

For housing projects, does project’s proposed number of units exceeds the minimum CDBG
requirements?

Yes, the proposed project includes 57 affordable units out of a total of 58 units, exceedingthe
minimum of 51% of the total units affordable to low- and moderate-income households ator
below 80% of the area medianincome.

For housing projects, are the proposed rents below the maximum rents allowed by the CDBG
requirements?

Yes, the proposedrents are at or below the maximumrents allowed by the CDBG
requirements.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

The applicant states theyintendto apply for 9% LIHTC no later than the July round of 2022.
Awards are generally announced three months laterand construction must proceed within 180
days of an award. If successful, the start of construction is estimated to occur no laterthan
March / April of 2023. The City of Healdsburg will move from an ENRA to a Disposition and
Development Agreement (DDA) upon the successful completion of entitlementsand CEQA.

CONSEQUENCES OF NO FUNDING:

112 of 395



The applicant states “Fundinglessthan $1,000,000 would not be feasible because associated
construction costs resulting from this funding source would not offsetand the competitiveness
with TCAC would erode further.” They applied for $900,000 in CDBG funds and $400,000 of
HOME funds, for a total request of $1,300,000.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The projectisinthe initial phase of development with fundingcommitmentsyetto be
obtained, and is pendingenvironmental clearance and complete site acquisition negotiations.
There are a numberof processesstill to be done in order for the project to be shovel ready.
Therefore, staff recommends funding this project with the conditionsincludedin the table

below.

Preliminary Condition(s) of Approval

Allocated funding will be a grant [_] a Ioan&

Allloans for Affordable Housing Predevelopment are subjectto the provisions of
1. | the Sonoma County Community Development Commission (CDC) Loan Policies, the
FY 2022-2023 Funding Policies, and the CDBG Regulations.

Applicant must demonstrate site control at the time CDBG fundingis made
available to the County by HUD.

Applicant must submit sufficient documentation to enable the SCCDC to
3. | determineifthe proposed project meetsthe CDBG regulation’s definition of
eligible CBDO neighborhood revitalization project, (24 CFR 570.204(a)(1).

4. | CDBG funds will be used to reimburse allowable predevelopment costs only.

A NEPA environmental review mustbe completed before Developercan be offered
a Development Agreement. The budget for the requested funds must include the

5. |costs to prepare the NEPA environmental review orthe applicant must submit
evidence of sufficient funds forthis purpose are available from another source to
pay for this work.

In compliance with Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, applicant
must design and construct 5 percent of the dwellingunits, orat leastone unit,

6. |whicheverisgreater, to be accessible for persons with mobility disabilities. An
additional 2 percent of the dwellingunits, orat leastone unit, whicheveris greater,
must be accessible for persons with hearing or visual disabilities.

The CDC will make the CDBG loan to Burbank Housing. A subsequentassignmentto
a limited partnership must comply with federal regulations. Notwithstandingthis
requirement, applicantmay assign the loanto a limited partnership prior to project
completion and occupancy of the development.

113 of 395



Applicantwill be required to submit evidence that all required construction and
permanentfinancinghas been committed prior to beingoffered a Funding
Agreement.

Applicantwill be required to submit an acceptable site appraisal that demonstrates
that the “as is” value of the property will fully secure the loan prior to receivinga
fundingcommitment. The CDC will require the CDBG loanto record in a sufficiently
seniorlien position to ensure that the value of the completed developmentwill
fully secure the loan.

10.

Prior to final approval of the CDBG funds, applicant must demonstrate sufficient
Article 34 authority for the affordable unitsif they exceed forty-nine percent of the
total affordable units, or submit a written legal opinion describing why Article 34
authority is not required.

11.

Applicant must satisfy all regulatory requirements and all conditions of approval
that are set forth inthe SCCDC Loan Policies as prerequisite tothe CDC offeringthe
Funding Agreement for execution within 12 months of the start of the fiscalyear
associated with the award.

12.

Disbursement of funds for all affordable housing projects must be initiated within
18 months ofthe date on which the Funding Agreementis offered for execution. All
funds must be disbursed within 24 months of the date on which the Funding
Agreementis offered for execution. Fundingawards that do not meetthese
deadlines will be reprogrammed.

114 of 395




SONOMA COUNTY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION

FUNDING APPLICATION: AFFORDABLE
HOUSING AND CAPITAL PROJECTS

Please review the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), Application

Guidelines, and the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies '
before submitting your application. All applications must meet the eligibility This space reserved for CDC date and time stamp

criteria found in the Funding Policies and the requirements set forth in the
NOFA.

Part 1: Applicant Information

Legal name of organization: Burbank Housing Development Corporation

Organization’s DUNS number: 103427225

Contact Information

Authorized Representative Name, title: Efren Carrillo, Vlce President of Residential Developmgz_nt
(Qlty/T own Manager, Executive  pp e (707) 200-2349
Director, or other): :
Emaﬂ: ; ecarrillo@burbankhousing.org
Primary point of contact: ‘ Narpe},»ti_tle:w Karen Massey, "Sgnwior Project Mananger
Phone:  (707)490-8467
Email: kmassey@burbankhousing.org
Organization is a: m Non-profit organization  CIFor-profit organization  [JLocal government

OOCommunity Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
CJCommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

Organization mailing address: 1425 Corporate Center Parkway, Santa Rosa, CA 95407

Organization website: www.burbankhousing.org

Organizational Capacity and Experience

Describe applicant’s record of administrative and programmatic capacity using federal, state, local, and/or private grant
funds, explaining any past issues or challenges administering grant funds.

Burbank Housing is a 41 year-old non-profit affordable housing development corporation headquartered
in Santa Rosa and working in the North Bay. Burbank has completed more affordable housing projects
than any other developer, more than 70 affordable rental housing projects totaling more than 3,000 units,
predominantly in Sonoma County, and approximately 1,000 units of affordable ownership housing
completed or currently under construction. Burbank has successfully applied for local, state and federal
affordable housing funding hundreds of times in order to populate this portfolio. Seeking and
implementing private and public sector funding awards is Burbank's core business and we are staffed
accordingly with dedicated departments for development services, compliance, accounting, and resident
services. Burbank also self-manages through Burbank Housing Management Corporation.

115 of 395


mailto:krnassey@burbankhousing.org

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Apptlication

Part 2: Project Description

Brief Description of Project or Program

The description provided here will be incorporated into the staff reports provided to the Community Development
Committee, Cities and Towns Advisory Committee, and/or the Board of Supervisors. Descriptions MUST BE 125 words
or less. It will not be edited and will be truncated at 125 words. For housing related applications, please include
information on the number of affordable units in the project, accessible units (types, number of units, and accessibility
type). A longer project description may be attached (see Part 6, Attachments). If you are requesting CDBG-CV funds,
please include how the proposed activity will prevent, prepare for or respond to Coronavirus (activities must demonstrate
they respond to one or more).

A 100% affordable 58-unit affordable fa‘rn‘ikly“‘féﬁk"ta\i housing project on a 3.52 acre City owned kproperty located at 155
Dry Creek Road, Healdsburg. The project consists of two, four story apartment buildings of approximately 26,090 gross
square feet and 47,486 gross square feet connected by an above ground pedestrian bridge.

Al of the units will be offered to extremely low, very low and low income households earning between 30-60% area
‘median income. To further meet the City s housing needs, Reach for HOME (RFH) will have first priority to

approximately 5 of these units, to help address the City s very low income supportive housing needs. BHDC will
partner with RFH to provide supportive services to these residents. There will be ground floor accessible units.

Part 3: Project Information

Project Name Dry Creek Commons
Project Type
Using Appendix A of the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies, fill in the field below.
CDBG or HOME eligible act|V|ty ;CDBG (Pre-development) / HOME (New Constructlon) »
Fﬁ‘nding Request
WEstimated project budget: B $$27,500,000
Amount of funding request . 51,300,000 (890K CDBG / $400K HOMEj‘ e
Funding source: WCDBG WHOME [JHOME-CHDO [(ICDBG-CV
Property Information ‘(as applicable)
Pfoject location (phyéli'c':él address or cross streets): 155 Dry Creek Road, Healdsburg
Assessor’s Parcel Number(s):‘ - 089-071-002
Census tract(s): | 1539.05 -
Total acreage: 3.52
Current use of site: Vacant
Is project located in a 100-year flood plain? mYes =
FEMA FIRM panel number. B 06097CO363E, 06097CO344E
j ran rt of it, | ithi imits
losfterlw:ypcrictnitlet%t\,’vcrnl? y part of it, located within the limit l?;(eess Sh'?; tytoun? H e al d Sbur g
Which jurisdiction(s) must approve the project? City of Healdsburg
roct i Major Design Review
aD:;cio?/r;tclitzlements and permits expected to be JUIy / AU gU St 2 O 2 2
Page 2 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021

116 of 395




Sonoma County Community Development Commission

CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Status of Site Control

Identify the form of site control:

[JOwnership (attach copy of grant deed or deed of trust)
[JLease (attach copy of lease)
[OOption agreement (attach copy of agreement)

OPurchase agreement (attach copy of agreement)
®m Other; explain: Exclusive Negotiating Rights Agreement

Note: If funding application is for acquisition, also attach copy
of current appraisal if available.

Status of Environmental or Other Approvals

representative of the jurisdiction in which the project is

Applicant must obtain certification of project’s consistency with the applicable general plan, signed by an authorized

located (housing rehabilitation projects excluded).

Status of environmental review:

CEQA Underway

Status of land use, building permits, or other
approvais:

Pending Entitlements (Design Review)

Explain any land use (zoning, lot split, set back, or
environmental) constraints that must be resolved prior
to proceeding with the project:

Wetlands & Riparian Setback — The project site contains a total of 0.57 acres of seasonal wetlands and 0.14 acres of waters of the U.S. and state,
known as Foss Creek. The seasonal wetlands occur as two features: a 0.53 acre wetland that occurs in the south-ceniral portion of the project site
that drains from the northeast to southwest towards Foss Creek and a 0.04 acre wetland in the northeast portion of the project site that is fed by a
storm drain culvert under the raiiroad tracks that flows onto the property and towards Foss Creek in an east-west direction. Foss Creek and its
associated 35' riparian corridor sethack forms the western boundary of the project site; however, only a portion of Foss Creek falis within the
property boundary so that only 0.14 acres of waters of the U.S. and state occur within the project site.

Status of Relocation Activitiesw

Relocation Assistance Plan.

In order to receive funding, projects must comply with the Sonoma County Residential Anti-Displacement and

Will the project involve demolition of any structure or
relocation of any persons or businesses?

[OYes mNo

Explain the status of any demolition or relocation
activities:

NA

Existing Improvements

EXISTING COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS

Number of structures

NA

Year built

Number of vacant structures

Number of occupied structures

Number of structures to be demolished

Estimated cost of relocation

EXISTING RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENTS

SRO Studio 1-BR 2-BR 3-BR 4-BR

Number of existing"d‘ﬁ‘ibt;

NA

Number of occupied units

Number of vacant units

Number of substandard units

Number of units to be demolished

Estimated cost of relocation

Page 3 of 21

117 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

| Phasing
Can project proceed if phased or if given partial funding? Explain the effect of phasing or partial funding on the project’s
ability to move forward.

The project is not programmed to be phased because of the limited developable land area and
construction calls for just two connected buildings.

Funding less than $1,000,000 would not be feasible because associated construction costs resulting
from this funding source would not offset and the competitiveness with TCAC would erode further.

Demonstration of Need
Describe the need for the project or program and include evidence of need (e.g., cite waiting lists for services, census
data, documentation of deteriorated conditions, or other evidence). B

The project would provide 58 rental units including 1 managers unit) at rents ranging from 30% AMI
to 60% AMI. The waiting lists for nearby projects (e.g. 1201 Grove Street) are over 2 years with
enormous demand.

Outcomes
Describe the outcomes expected to result from the project or program.

Housing will be provided to families at an early date.

Part 4: Timeline
Target Dates
List anticipated target date for each of the major milestones below. (Housing projects use timeline in supplemental

application instead.)
Major Milestone Target Completion Date Funds Expgnded

Environmental Review
Site Control
Design Completion
Bid Period Closes
Construction Begins
Construction Complete
Notice of Completion

Page 4 of 21 118 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 5: Sources and Uses
Housing projects use budget in supplemental application instead.

Sources

Source of Funds

Donations

Loans

Grants

- In Kind

Total

Total

Uses

Projected Uses

Donations

Loans

Grants

In Kind

Totql

Land Acquisition

Environmental Review

Architect

Engineering

Project Fees

Site Improvements

Page 5 of 21

119 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 6: Attachments Required

Project sponsors must submit the following documents, as applicable, with their funding application:

|

Project Description: Provide a description of the project that includes specific location information and geographic
boundaries. It should identify the maximum anticipated scope of the entire project, and delineate the specific
activities for which the applicant is requesting funding at this time. Applications for housing-related projects should
instead include a Housing Project Description, described in Supplemental Application below.

Project Location Map: Attach an 8 1/2"x 11” map showing the project location, clearly showing the project area in
relation to surrounding communities.

Authorizing Resolution: For non-profit organizations, attach a resolution from the Board of Directors authorizing
the submittal of the application.

City/Town Authorizing Resolution: Attach a city/town council resolution endorsing the project for those located
within the seven incorporated jurisdictions or for those sponsored by one of the seven incorporated jurisdictions.

General Plan Consistency: Attach a certification of consistency with the applicable jurisdiction’s General Plan.

IRS Letter of Determination: Non-profit organizations only must submit an IRS Letter of Determination. Non-profit
organizations are not eligible for consideration unless non-profit status has been verified.

Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) verification: For CHDO'’s applying for HOME CHDO
funds, submit a Sonoma County CHDO letter or plan to become an independent, fully functioning CHDO entity.

Letters of Commitment: Submit letters of commitment from all other funding sources.
Financial Documentation:
B Non-profit organizations must attach the following:
= Current operating budget
» Most recent completed final audit report
= |IRS Form 990 for the most current tax year

= |f organization is not audited, attach a copy of the most recent internal financial statement that
has been approved by Board of Directors.

*Additional financial information may be requested by CDC staff as deemed appropriate.

B Sonoma County departments or agencies, the cities of Cotati, Cloverdale, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park,
Sebastopol, Sonoma, and the Town of Windsor are exempt from this requirement.

B Organizations are required to have written policies and procedures. The applicant must submit certification that

they have the following policies and procedures. (Please complete the forms found in Part 7 — Certifications)
=  Accounting
= Conflict of Interest
*  Procurement
= Record Retention

Page 6 of 21 120 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordabie Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Supplemental Application:
Public Facilities or Other Infrastructure Projects

Define project service area

List all census block groups in service
area;

For sidewalk / curb cut projects

Location of sidewalks (cross streets):

Define the service area; list all Census
block groups in service area:

Number of curb cuts (anticipéted):

Page 7 of 21 121 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Supplemental Application:

Housing-Related Projects

Fill out this supplemental application if the project will result in the construction of new housing units, preservation of
existing housing units, or the acquisition of land for new housing units.

Project Information

Project type:

= New construction

UJRehabilitation D Acquisition

or rehabilitated:

Total numbefof units to be construbted

58

construction or acquisition):

Total number of affordable units (new

o7

~ For HOME funding requests, total
number of HOME-assisted units:

5

Total developmeﬂh‘t‘ costs: $27,500,000

Contact Information of All Parties

APPLICANT INFORMATION Name: ﬁBurbank Housing Development Corporation’ o
Address: 1425 Corporate Center Parkway

City, State, Zip:

Santa Roksg,kCA 95407

,C‘oqtact person:

Efren Carillo

Telephone:

(707) 200-2349

Email:

ecarrillo@burbankhousing.com

Organization is a:

= Non-profit organization ~ [JFor-profit organization
ULocal government

LJCommunity Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
OCommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

Name:

Reach for Home

Address:

443 Hudson Street

City, State, Zip:

' Contact person:

Healdsburg, CA 95448
Margaret Sluyk

Telephone:

(951) 550-9359

Email:

margaret@reachforhome.ﬂorg

Organization is a:

= Non-profit organization ~ [JFor-profit organization
[JLocal government

JCommunity Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
OCommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

ARCHITECT Name: Van Meter Williams Pollack LLP
Address: 333 Bryant Street, Suite 300
City, State, Zip: San Francisco, CA 94107
Contact person: Rick Williams, Partner
Telephone: (415) 974-5352 x203
Email: rick@vmp.com
Page 8 of 21 122 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



mailto:rick@vmp.com
mailto:margaret@reachforhome.org

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

Name: TBD

Address:
City, State, Zip:

Contact person:

Telephone:

Email:

License no.:

PROPERTY MANAGER

Address:

Name: Burbank Housing Manage‘men’tk Corp’o’r’a’tion

1425 Corporate Center Parkway

City, State, Zip:  Santa Rosa, CA 95407

Contact person: Annie McNearny

Telephone: (707) 303-1026

Email: amcneany@burbankhousing.ofg

Status of Entitlements and/or Services

If site is located in an unincorporated
area of the County, have you or will you
submit an application to Sonoma
County Planning & Resource
Management Department for:

[IState Density Bonus Program

JCounty of Sonoma Supplemental Density Bonus Program
{JHousing Element Type A Rental Housing Opportunity Program
JHousing Element Type C Ownership Housing Opportunity Program

Date of application:
If answering yes to any of the above, contact Commission staff to discuss

schedule for preparation and Board approval of Affordable Housing Agreement.

Status of planned water and sewer
service:

If not yet provided, explain how water
and sewer service will be provided.

City of Healdsburg is the provider of both water and sewer. There
is adequate capacity.

Does the project have Article 34
authority from the jurisdiction in which it
is located?

[ Yes. If yes, attach a copy of the allocation letter.

= No. If no, attach written legal opinion describing why Article 34 referendum
authority is not required.

Proposed Tenancy

Household types:

SRO 1BR 2BR

Number of each type of unit

15

Average square feet per unit

453

705

Total number of units:

28

15

How many of the total units will be
reserved for the following:

Homeless persons

Elderly persons

Disabled persons (see note)

Special needs populations

Resident manager

Supportive Housing - Reach for Home

Unrestricted

Page 9 of 21

123 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Note: In new construction and substantial rehabilitation rental projects assisted with HOME or CDBG funds, at least five percent of units
(not fess than one unit) must be accessible to persons with mobility impairments, and an additional two percent of units (not less than 1
unit) must be accessible to persons with sensory impairments. Projects assisted with other funds must satisfy applicable federal, state,
and local regulations regarding the provision of accessible housing. Ownership housing projects assisted with funds from these
programs must comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding the provision of accessible units.

Estimated Monthly Rent Levels (before deduction of utility allowances)

Household types:  SRO Studio 1BR 2BR 3BR 4BR
"~ Units Rent Units Rent Units Rent Units Rent Units Rent Units Rent

Extremely Low-Income (30% of AMI) 2 654 2 784 5 907

Very Low-Income (50% of AMI) 15 1091 7 1308 7 1512

60% of AMI 7 1309 5 1569 3 1815

40% AMI 4 872 1 1046 2 1209

Market Rate (>80% of AMI) B Wi

Resident Manager’'s Unit

Estimated Utility Allowance*

*Please provide list of tenant-paid utilities, the utility profile for all appliances, and the Utility Allowance for‘:”éach unit type.

Estimated Affordable Sales Prices (ASP)

Household types:

SRO

1BR

2BR 3BR 4BR

Units

ASP

. Studio

Units | ASP

Units

ASP

Units  ASP  Units ASP | Units ASP

Extremely Low-Income (30% of AMI)

Very Low-Income (50% of AMI)

60% of AMI
~ Low-Income (80% of AMI)

100% of AMI

120% of AMI

LENGTH OF AFFORDABILITY PERIOD

What is the proposed length of
affordability for the affordable units?

See Funding Policies

55 Years

Project Schedule

Include all major milestones such as land acquisition, general plan amendment and rezoning, density bonus / housing
element housing opportunity area approval, design review approval, schematic design, design development, construction
documents, construction phase, initial occupancy, and, if applicable, assignment of the project to a limited partnership or
other entity. Specify tentative dates for closing the proposed loan and first request for funds, as well as when construction
financing and permanent financing will close. Please provide realistic dates for completion of activities and
expenditure of funds. These dates will be included in the applicable funding agreement.

Major Milestone Target Completion Date Funds Expended
Completion of Entitlements (Design Review) & Constitution Documents 3/15/2023 $900,000
Start of Construction 412023 $400,000
Initial Occupancy 6/1/2024
Perm Loan Conversion 9/1/2024

Page 10 of 21

124 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission

CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Development Budget

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

' Lender Amount Interest Rate / Use(s) Commitment HOME matbh -
Term Status qualifying?
9% LIHTC $1,610,763 Construction  Apply in March / July
City of Healdsburg Land Loan $4,000,000 3% Residual Construction ENRA
| County HOME / CDBG $1,300,000 Residual Pre&ev/ Construction Pending
Deferred Developer Fee $2,190,000 Construction Pending
Construction Loan $17,994,709 5% Construction Pending
Deferred Costs \$372,160 Constructioin Pending
Total "  $27,467,632
ESTIMATED PERMANENT FINANCING
Lender Amount Interest Rate / Use(s) Commitment HOME match
- Term Status ‘ qualifying?
9% LIHTC 16,107,632 Hard / Soft  Apply in March / July
Permanant Loan $5,560,000 ~ 4.4% Hard / Soft Pending
City of Healdsburg Land Loan $4,000,000 3% Residual Hard / Soft Pending
County HOME / CDBG $1,300,000 Residual Hard / Soft Pending
Deferred Developer Fee $500,000 Residual Hard / Soft Pending
Total $27,467,632
Summary of First-Year Operating Budget
Rental projects only
Total Per unit
Gross potential rental income 781,680 13,477
Plus other income (e.g., |aundry) 8,700 150
Less 5% vacancy / rent loss (39,519) (681)
Effective Gross Income 750,861 12,945
Less total operating expenses* 377,000 6,500
rLeesses r\?glsyment to replacement 2 500 O
Less payment to other reserves
Net operating income 373,861 6,446
Less debt service payments 311,551 5,371
Net cash flow 63,310 1,091
Debt service coverage ratio 1.20

*Include $75 per unit, per year ﬁvonitoring fee in the 'bbéyrating budget

Page 11 of 21

125 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing

In planning for the use of CDBG and HOME, the County of Sonoma must adhere to the mandate in the Fair Housing Act to
Affirmatively Further Fair Housing. This means that not only must all HUD funded programs and activities combat
discrimination, but they must also overcome patterns of segregation and the denial of access to opportunity that are part of
national and local history. The ways in which a project or program can do this meaningfully are listed below, and to be
considered for funding, all applicant projects must overcome patterns of segregation in one or more of the ways listed.

In which of the following ways does the proposed project overcome patterns of segregation and the denial of
access to opportunity (check all that apply)? Please provide an explanation of how the project accomplishes the
item (s) checked.

O It makes an investment in a segregated and high poverty neighborhood to improve conditions and eliminate disparities in
access to opportunity between residents of this neighborhood and the rest of the jurisdiction and region.

Explain:

U It maintains and preserves existing affordable rental housing stock to reduce disproportionate housing needs.
Explain:

m |t provides affordable housing in an area(s) of opportunity to combat segregation and promote integration.

Explain:

155 Dry Creek will further fair housing principles by expanding the choice of affordable and accessible
rental housing serving low-income households in Healdsburg and the surrounding region.

This enhancement of accessibility and affordability is especially pronounced for the 5 dedicated units
for Reach for Home in serving individuals with severe and persistent housing insecurity.

LI It provides mixed income housing designed to infegrate racially and ethnically concentrated areas of poverty.
Explain:

Ot inCreaées access for”iyhydiv'id'ﬁéls with protédéd ‘ckﬁ‘a;écteristics“ "idexisting affordable housing in higher opportunity
areas.

Explain:

Page 12 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021

126 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Homelessness-Related Questions

If project is a permanent supportive
housing project, identify service
provider:

Describe approach to lowering barriers to potential tenants to entering permanent housing (i.e., accepting referrals from
Coordinated Intake:

Page 13 of 21 127 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Additional Attachments Required

In addition to the attachments required in Part 6 of the funding application, housing-related project sponsors must submit
the following as attachments to their applications:

N0 ENEN ONN

Page 14 of 21

Housing project description: Provide a written narrative to describe your project. At a minimum, the narrative
should include the following:

¢ Description of the type of housing proposed
e Target population(s)
e Planned services for residents

e Proposed use(s) of the requested funding and anticipated environmental issues (i.e., vernal pools,
heritage trees, riparian corridor, contamination, flood plain, endangered species, historical and
archeological impacts)

e Authorized entity that will execute the funding agreement and loan documents if applicable for the funds
requested in this application

o If the project will use a tax credit limited partnership to finance the project, please describe the
organizational structure of the partnership and the roles of various partners or other related organizations

Current preliminary title report
Evidence of site control

Current appraisal, if available. Appraised value of property must fully secure the Commission’s loan(s). In
addition, the total purchase price may not exceed the “reasonable cost” for the property

Environmental clearances/reports

Site plan and elevations or schematic drawing

Project Location Map: Attach an 8 1/2"x 11" map showing the project location, clearly showing the project area in
relation to surrounding communities

Contractor’s cost breakdown

Using the Sonoma County Community Development Commission Utility Allowance Schedule,
hitp//sonomacounty.ca.goviCDC/Housing-Authority/Property-Owners/Utilitv-Allowances/, list the tenant-paid
utilities and utility allowance for your project

Itemized development budget, including a sources and uses table, identifying distributions to the owner,
developer, partners or other entities during the development phase

Narrative description of the development'’s financial plan, indicating expected dates for obtaining approvals for any
uncommitted financing

Rental projects: A 30-year operating budget and cash flow projection that shows estimated project income,
operating expenses, reserves, debt service, and distributions. Please include a “totals” column after year 30

Article 34 Authority: Attach allocation letter or legal opinion that allocation is not required.

128 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021


http://sonomacounty.ca.gov/CDC/Housin

Scnoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Appilication

Part 7: Certifications
m Grant Certification Form — 1 (Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority)
m Grant Certification Form — 2 (Federal Regulations)
® Grant Certification Form — 3 (Conflict of Interest)

= Grant Certification Form — 4 (Policies and Procedures)

Page 15 of 21 129 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form -1
Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority

Burbank Housing Development Corporation
| hereby certify that (insert name of organization requesting funds) has
complied with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to the application and is an eligible applicant for the
requested funding.

The organization proposes to provide the program services or complete the project identified in this application. If
this application is approved and this organization receives the requested funding this organization agrees to adhere
to all relevant Federal, State, and local regulations and other assurances as required by the Commission.

In addition, the content of the application shall be incorporated as part of the written agreement and, as such, will be
used to monitor performance. Activities, commitments, and representations described in the written agreement that
are not subsequently made a part of the program/project as funded shall be considered a material contract failure
and may result in a repayment of all awarded funds and/or suspension from participation in future funding rounds.

| hereby certify that the organization is fully capable of fulfilling its obligation under this application, as stated herein.

| further certify that the information provided in this Funding Application is correct, accurate, and complete.

Efren Carrillo

Printed Name:

,Ie_Vice President of Residential Development

Tit
1/19/2022

Da

Page 16 of 21 130 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 2
Federal Regulations - CDBG

Requirements Federal Regulations
Federal Labor Standards 24 CFR 92.354
- Davis-Bacon 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5

- Copeland Act (Anti-kickback)
- Contract Work Hours and Safety

Other References
40 U.S.C. 3141; 40 U.S.C. 3701

Section 104(b) and 109 of
Title | of the Housing and
Community Development Act
of 1974

Standards
Section 3 24 CFR 135 Section 3 of the HUD Act of
1968, as amended (12 U.S.C.
1701u); 2 CFR 200.321
Minority and Women Business Small Business Act, 12 U.8.C. 1701
Enterprise Participation Section 3(a)
(MBE/WBE) 15 U.S.C. 632
Civil Rights and Non- Title VI of Civil Rights Act Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Discrimination of 1964 Act of 1973
Title VIII of the Civil Rights Americans w/Disabilities Act of
Act of 1968 1990

Age Discrimination Act of
1975

Executive Orders 11063,
11246, 11375, 11478, 12107,
12086, and 13279

24 CFR 570.601-602;
Equal Employment Opportunity 570.607

41 CFR 60

Executive Orders 11246;
12086
12 USC 1701u

Fair Housing Fair Housing Act (42

U.S.C. 3601-3620)

Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, as amended
(42 U.S.C. 2000d)

Equal Opportunity in
Housing

Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Americans w/Disabilities Act

24 CFR Parts 8, 107, and 146
42 U.S.C. 200(d)

Executive Orders 11063, as
amended by Executive Order
12259

Age Discrimination Act of 1975,
as amended (42 U.S.C.

6101)

24 CFR 570.601-
602

of 1990
Debarred or Ineligible 24 CFR 570.609; 24 CFR Executive Orders 12549 and
Contractors 24 12689
Reasonable Accommodation 24 CFR Part 8; Section 504 of Rehabilitation

Act of 1973

Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990

Page 17 of 21 131 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Fire Safety Codes

Local ordinances

Building, Housing, and Zoning
Codes
Housing Quality Standards

24 CFR 570.208(b)(1)(iv);
208(b)(2)

Local ordinances

Lead-Based Paint

24 CFR 570.608; 24 CFR
Part 35

42 U.S.C 4821 et seq.

Anti-Lobbying

Appendix Il to Part 200 J;
31 U.8.C. 1352

Environmental, Historic
Preservation, National

24 CFR 570.503(b)(5)(i);
570.604; 570.605;

Section 104(g), HCDA
42 U.S.C 4001 et seq.

Environmental Policy Act, Flood 570.202;

Insurance Requirements 24 CFR 58

- Sitting near airports and References at:

coastal barrier 24 CFR 58.6:

- Fish and wildlife protection 58.5570.605

- Flood plain/flood insurance

- National Historic Preservation

- Noise abatement and controi

- Wetlands/Coastal zones

- Air quality

- Endangered species

- Thermal/Explosive hazards

Relocation, Real Property 24 CFR 570.201(i); Sections 104(d); 105(a)(11),
Acquisitions, and One-for-One 570.606(b), (c), (d) HCDA

Housing Replacement 49 CFR 24 www.hud.gov/relocation

- Uniform Relocation Act
- Residential anti-displacement
and relocation assistance

42 USC 4601 et seq

Competitive Procurement 2 CFR 200.319
Insurance and Bonding 2 CFR 200.310 and
200.325

Administrative and Accounting
Standards

2 CFR Part 200

Cost Considerations

2 CFR 200.402, 403, 404,
405, 406 and 407

Documentation and
Recordkeeping

24 CFR 570.506
24 CFR 570.502

Conflict of Interest

2 CFR 200.112 and
24 CFR 570.611

Section 108 Loan Guarantees

24 CFR 570.700-570.709

Section 108, HCDA

Page 18 of 21

132 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021


www.hud.gov/relocation

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that all data contained in this application and all supportive
documentation is true, correct and will incorporate the above requirements. This submission has been duly
authorized by the governing body of BUiWaiin rnuusiily USvEIVPl i g

Representative of Organization

Efren Carrillo

Print Name:

Title:Vice President of Residential Development

_1/19/2022

Page 19 of 21 133 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 3
Conflict of Interest - CDBG

The standards in 2 CFR 200.318 provide that no employee, officer, or agent shall participate in the selection, award,
or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved.
Such a conflict would arise when an employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or
her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a
financial or other interest in the firm selected for an award.

The CDBG regulations at 24 CFR 570.611 provide that no person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or
elected official or appointed official of the recipient or subrecipient that are receiving CDBG funds and (1) who
exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted with CDBG funds; or (2)
who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to these
activities, may obtain a financial interest from a CDBG-assisted activity, or have any interest in any contract,
subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with
whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one (1) year thereafter.

A Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to participate in the decision making process for approval
of this application?

[lYes ENo

B. Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to gain inside information with regard to approval of this
application?
OYes W No

C. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds obtain a financial interest or substantial benefit fronfithis activity? ]
Yes EMNo

D. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the

organization requesting funds have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect to funding this application, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or

business ties during the program year and one year thereafter? [1Yes EMNo

If you answered YES to any of the above questions, a letter must be submitted with the application that
includes the following information:

1) A disclosure of the nature and extent of the conflict
2) A description of how public disclosure will be made
3) A qualified attorney's opinion that the conflict of interest does not violate federal, state, or local law

Note: If you are approved for funding, the Commission must issue a public notice of the disclosure with a 15-day
public comment period, and then submit to HUD for approval prior to execution of a grant agreement or release

of funds.

uthorized Representative of Organization

Efren Carrillo

Printed Name:

Vice President of Residential Development 1 /1 9/2022
te:

Title: Da

Page 20 of 21 134 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 4

Policies & Procedures

The undersigned does hereby certify that the applicant organization has the following policies and/or procedures
and can produce them if requested by the Commission:

Accounting policy/procedure

Procurement policy/procedure

Conflict of Interest policy/procedure

Record Retention policy/procedure

Language Access Plan & Limited English Proficiency Policy

O ON =

thorized Representative of Organization

Efren Carrillo

Printed Name:

Title:Vice President of Residential Development

_1/19/2022

Da

Page 21 of 21 135 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The applicant, BHDC, requests Major Design Review approval, a state density bonus, state
density bonus parking reduction, covered parking waiver, height waiver, sign permit and
environmental review in order to construct a 58-unit affordable family rental housing project on
a 3.52 acre City owned property located at 155 Dry Creek Road, Healdsburg. The project
consists of two, four story apartment buildings of approximately 26,090 gross square feet and
47,486 gross square feet connected by an above ground pedestrian bridge.

The buildings include a mix of one-, two-, and three-bedroom units as follows:

Building 1 Building 2 Total
One Bedroom 13 15 28
Two Bedroom 4 11 15
Three Bedroom 3 12 15
Total Units 20 38 58

Total Square Feet 26,090 47,486 73,576

The units will range in size from approximately 500 to 1,050 square feet. The affordable housing
will be designed to meet the needs of families and will include approximately 5,000 square feet
for amenities including multi-purpose activity common rooms, health and wellness room ,
laundry rooms, bike rooms, reception areas and a meeting room, as well as space for Property
Management, Resident Services and Reach for Home (RFH) staff to provide vital on-site
resident services aimed at helping households retain housing, improving their health outcomes
and maximizing their ability to live and work in Healdsburg. 87 off-street parking spaces will be
provided and bicycle spaces will be provided in secure in-door bicycle rooms. Additional bicycle
parking will be provided at the entries to the buildings to encourage visitors to arrive by
alternative modes.

All of the units will be offered to extremely low, very low and low income households earning
between 30-60% area median income. To further meet the City’s housing needs, RFH will have
first priority to approximately 5 of these units, to help address the City’s very low income
supportive housing needs. BHDC will partner with RFH to provide supportive services to these
residents.

Site Design — The project design seeks to emphasize the unique qualities of the project site,
maximizing its location on the Dry Creek Road Entry Corridor while integrating its natural
features, through preservation and restoration of the Foss Creek riparian corridor and creation of
wetlands on site. The buildings have been located, close to Dry Creek Road to create a semi-
urban feel, seeking to activate and enhance the pedestrian streetscape. The L-shape formed by
the two buildings orients toward Foss Creek, respecting and protecting this important watershed
and riparian corridor. In doing so, the buildings have also been located as far west of the railroad
tracks as possible and separated by the project driveway and parking, reducing the potential for
noise and vibration impacts.

The site design concept embraces Foss Creek by expanding the wetland and riparian
environment and providing a small viewing platform proximate to it that provides children and

136 of 395



families with strong visual and educational connections to the wetlands and creek. The path
offers opportunities for casual strolling, bike riding, and interpretive signage that teaches
residents and visitors about the creek’s role in the riparian corridor. A series of stormwater
management elements and newly created wetlands planned along the path will filter and cleanse
stormwater runoff, offer flood protection, and preserve and enhance important wetland habitat
and riparian corridor. The preliminary design concept also contemplates an enhanced landscape
treatment at Dry Creek Road that seeks to increase the visual prominence of Foss Creek by
incorporating a small interpretive area and information for pedestrians about flora and fauna
within the riparian corridor.

Access - Primary access to the project site is provided by a private driveway that takes access off
of Dry Creek Road and runs the entire length of the eastern side of the site, connecting to the
Sauers property to the north. This connection has been aligned to provide emergency vehicle
access to the site as well as to the adjacent property ensuring the City’s requirements for fire
apparatus access as well as emergency ingress and egress are met for the property. The site
frontage improvements also correct an existing deficiency in the public improvements and public
sidewalk along Dry Creek Road filling an existing gap in the circulation system between Plank
Coffee and Big John’s Market. A viewing platform where Foss Creek intersects Dry Creek Road
is also proposed adjacent to the Foss Creek riparian corridor offering the public visual access to
the riparian corridor as well as educational opportunities.

Parking - The project meets and exceeds the parking requirement of the State Density Bonus
Law (DBL), as follows:

DBL DBL
Parking | No. Spaces
Unit Type Unit Count Ratio Required
1-Bedroom 28 1 28
2-Bedroom+ 30 1.5 45
Total 58 - 73
Total Number Spaces Provided 87

Given the existence of an easement associated with the Geyser’s water pipeline that runs the
entire length of the eastern property line, only 29 of the 87 parking spaces located on the west
side of the private driveway can be covered by carports. Given the project’s status as a 100%
affordable housing project requesting a State Density Bonus, as well as the existence of the
pipeline easement along the eastern property line which precludes the construction of a
permanent structure, as provided for by State Density Bonus Law and Section 20.16.150.B.1 of
the City’s Land Use Code, the project requests a waiver of the covered parking requirements, so
that we don't impact the residences with carports directly out their front door. Strict adherence to
the covered parking requirements would physically preclude the provision of 58 affordable
housing units and would result in a reduction in the number of affordable housing units.

137 of 395 4



Architectural Design - The architectural character of the project strikes a balance between the
more urban character of Dry Creek Road, the immediate surroundings that are more
commercial/industrial in nature and the residential nature of the greater community. The
preliminary building placement seeks to activate and enhance the Dry Creek Road Entry
Corridor by placing the buildings near the Dry Creek Road frontage. The buildings will be
predominately four stories in height with single story elements incorporated at the Dry Creek
frontage, building corners and entries to reduce the perceived scale and highlight the building
entries. Two buildings will break up the massing, and along with the buildings’ articulation,
entries and relationship to the tree-lined street, will create a more attractive pedestrian
environment. Pedestrian scale lighting will provide a pedestrian oriented streetscape and create a
welcoming, pedestrian friendly environment.

The building’s large singular volume offers a hybrid form between local agricultural and
industrial buildings. The materials reflect this as a combination of metal siding and roofing and a
collection of paneled bays with vertical board and batten facade elements. The building serves as
the site’s landmark structure with a main stair tower, and possibly elevator tower, located near
the front entrance to the site and the building. The building’s covered arcade seeks to address
Dry Creek Road, bringing the building scale down to a more pedestrian-friendly level and
providing large ground-floor windows that yield well-lit interior community spaces. Ground-
floor uses are envisioned to include management offices and resident services that will help
activate the street frontage.

The second building has more rural and residential characteristics with ground-floor residential
units marked by stoops and porches. The pronounced shared stair entries have been accented by
similar metal siding applied on the main building to help visually tie the buildings together. A
pedestrian bridge connects the two buildings providing elevator access for the above ground
stories.

Open Space - The orientation of the building placement creates a common outdoor open space
focused on the wetland and creek, totaling approximately 15,150 sf, for residents and visitors to
enjoy. These areas include a 2,100 sf central plaza, 11,750 sf communal green space and
boardwalks and 1,300 sf play area. These outdoor features will provide gathering and seating
spaces, as an extension of the community rooms, and will also have resident gathering and play
areas encouraging communal activities.

Grading & Utilities — The project design includes filling portions of the site to elevate buildings
out of the floodplain, connecting to a downstream 36” storm drain in Dry Creek Road,
undergrounding the existing utilities along the Dry Creek Road project frontage, connecting to
the existing waterline and sewer line in Dry Creek Road, installing a joint trench and lighting as
well as constructing a private fire main on site.

Signage — Per Section 20.16.230 of the City’s Land Use Code, the project may propose to
construct a two-faced, illuminated individual sign approximately 4’ in height with a maximum
aggregate area of all sign faces of approximately 80 square feet.

138 of 395



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)
CDBG FAIR HOUSING SERVICES AND HOUSING JUSTICE PROGRAMS

FY 2022-23 Estimated CDBG FundingAvailable: $278,526 (CDBG: Fair Housing)

. Public Services cnes CDC Staff
Applicant ! Amount :
Project Name Recommendation
; Requested
. . Fair Housing
Fair Housing Advocates of .
Northern California Education & 585,000 $84,526*
Enforcement
Legal Aid of Sonoma HOME — Housing
County Justice (legal services) »195,000 $194,000*
Total Requested $280,000
Total Estimated
Available 5278,526 $278,526

*Full funding is recommended if the actual funds are more than estimated. If the actual funds
are equal to or less than the estimated amount, staff recommends a minor reduction to each
request.

139 of 395



APPLICANT NAME: Fair Housing Advocates of Northern California
PROJECT NAME: Fair Housing Education and Enforcement
CDBG AMOUNT REQUESTED: $85,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

“FHANC will provide full-service fair housing education and enforcement services in Sonoma
County, offeringadvocacy to people protected by federal, state, and local fair housing laws and
providingfair housing education to tenants, publicand private housing providers, and the
larger community. FHANC focuses on the most vulnerable populations—e.g. people with
disabilities, people of color, and families with children. FHANC addresses systemic
discrimination through testingand other investigative efforts, filingagency complaints or
lawsuits when warranted, to change discriminatory housingpolicies. In addition, FHANC
advocates for legislative policies which will affirmatively further fair housing (AFFH), and offers
technical assistance to jurisdictional staff on AFFH matters. (If funded with CDBG-CV dollars)
FHANC will also provide Covid-related fair housing services”.

FAIR HOUSING PROJECT TYPE:

¢ Provideseducationabout fair housing laws;
¢ Advocates for tenants, who may be targets of discrimination;
e Enforcementof fair housinglaws;

e Providesinvestigative testingand auditing.

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS:

The applicant proposesto use the requested funds to provide fair housing services to tenants of
lowerincome (withincomesat or below 80% of the area medianincome), including non-English
speakers. The services encompass education of fair housinglaws to the public, government
groups, and elected officials. The applicant proposes to provide eviction prevention assistance,
enforcement of fair housing laws, address systemichousing discrimination by conducting
testingand investigative work of landlords, provides free legal advice to clients. Additionally,
the applicant collaborates with Legal Aid of Sonoma County and Disability Services and Legal
Centerin Santa Rosain all these efforts.

FUNDING POLICIES (Funding Goals and Objectives):

Does the project address one of the highest priorities of: 1) creating or preserving affordable
housing, 2) building infrastructure or public facilities that support creation or preservation of

140 of 395



affordable housing, or 3) building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income
communities?

The project supports the preservation of affordable housingin the Urban County by assisting
clientslivinginlowerincome households as described above in “Proposed Use of Funds”
section. With these types of publicservices, clients are able to remain in theirhomesor
dependingonthe circumstances, improve their housingsituation. Housing stabilization
prevents housingdisruption amongst household members and remainingintheir homescould
be the most affordable option to clients as opposed to locating a decent and affordable rental
someplace else. Additionally, by addressing systemichousing discrimination practices, landlords
become educated on the fair housinglaws and may be more likely to abide by them.

THRESHOLD CRITERIA

Does the project meet at least one National Objective as required under CDBG regulations (24
CFR 570.208)?

Yes, this project meetsthe Low/Moderate Income Limited Clientele National Objective. While
the applicant offers services to the public withoutincome qualifications, focusing on the most
vulnerable populations such as persons with disabilities, persons of color, and families with
children, the CDBG funds must be spent onlyon direct servicesto income-documented
households, at least 51% of which have incomes at our below 80% area medianincome (AMI).
The application estimates that 81% of householdsservedin Urban County would be at or below
50% AMI in Fiscal Year 2022-23.

Additionally, CDBGrecipients are required to comply with the requirements of the Fair Housing
Act (FHA) and to affirmatively furtherfair housing (AFFH). The proposed project supports HUD’s
AFFH rule by providing publicservices to reduce discrimination to protected classes, educating
landlords and tenants on fair housinglaws, and advocating for legislative policies.

Does the proposed project or activity meet the eligibility requirements of the CDBG and
HOME Funding Policies? (If not, provide the specific reason)

CDBG regulations allow the County to use up to 15% of its CDBG award allocation for public
services, includingfairhousingrelated services that support the AFFH rule. As described, the
proposed project includes activities that meetthe eligibility requirements of the County’s CDBG
and HOME FundingPolicies, because it would serve the residents of the Urban County and help
preserve affordable housingin this area. Additionally, the requested fundingamountis less
than the 15% CDBG publicservices allocation threshold.

Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

FHANC, a Qualified Fair Housing organization as defined by HUD, has an experienced track
record of conducting HUD’s Fair HousingInitiatives Program and administering other
government grants. FHANC offers clients complaint intake, referral, testing, advocacy,
intervention, and enforcement, and affirmatively furthers fairhousing by:
e Servingclientsallegingfairhousingconcerns, referringto staff attorneys or bilingual
housingcounselors for advice and/or representation; and assistingtenants with
disabilities who need reasonable accommodations so they can enjoy their housingin the

141 of 395



same way non-disabled people do. FHANCwould conduct testingas part of their
investigation into allegations of discrimination whenever possible;

e Referringlegitimate fairhousing complaintsto HUD or the U.S. Department of Fair
Employment and Housing (DFEH) and often representingthe clientthroughout the
complaint process. HUD and DFEH investigators are not necessarily attorneys; havingan
attorney represent clientsinthe administrative process means a level of advocacy that
will ultimately help clients betterunderstand the strengths/weaknesses of theircase
and reach better settlements;

e Addressingsystemicdiscrimination through testing and other investigative efforts, filing
complaints when it uncovers evidence of discrimination, resultingin positive policy
changes and alleviatingbarriers to housing opportunity;

e Servingprotected classes under federal, state, and local fair housinglaws, and
partnering with community organizations for an integrated referral system. FHANC's
attorneys and bilingual housing counselors work to keep people housed or helpthem in
transition, assistingthem with housing needs such as termination notices and
reasonable accommodation requests;

e Offeringservicesin English and Spanish and distributingliterature in both languages
through local service agencies such as Disability Services and Legal Center, Latino
ServicesProject, Catholic Charities, and many others, as well as through community
meetings and forums; and

e Providingfair housing and AFFH education to private and publichousingproviders,
tenants, social service organizations, government offices, and elected officials.

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectivelydeliver the proposed project?

The applicant has successfullyimplemented a comprehensive fairhousing counseling and
testingprogram in the North Bay for more than 30 years. FHANC proposesto continue
providingfair housingenforcement/education servicesin Sonoma County, and currently
contracts with Santa Rosa and Sonoma County. The agency also provides servicesto Marin and
Solano counties, and shares information and resources with the other full-service fair housing
agency in the North Bay (Fair Housing Napa Valley) as well as other legal services organizations
in order to provide a more coordinated approach to serving clients. The applicant has a history
of managing federal, state, local CDBG, and private grants to provide fair housing services
throughout its geographic service area. They provide in-depth fairhousingservices to people
across all federally- and state protected classes. All of the activities offered are aimed at
affirmatively furthering fairhousing, removingbarriers to fair housingchoice through assisting
individuals, educatingthe community about fair housing rights, and making systemic changes
through legal action as well as advocacy. FHANC is currently funded with County CDBG funds
and is an activity administering fair housing servicesto Urban County households.

SELECTION CRITERIA

Does the applicant describe strategies to provide outreach and education for residents most
vulnerable to housing discrimination?

142 of 395



The applicant states that they conduct outreach by contacting individual agencies, such as the
Latino Services Project (a network of Latino service providers), through literature distribution,
and social mediamarketing, and by attendingcommunity eventsto provide fair housing
education. They also conduct outreach and education to individual protected classes by phone,
letters, emails, brochures and literature, website, English and Spanish-language newspaper or
social mediacampaigns, poster distribution, and community presentations. Theirliterature is
publishedin English, Spanish, with some literature translated into Vietnamese and Tagalog.
They indicate that their website is updated regularly and contains pages in Spanish and
Vietnamese with relevant links to other fair housingresources.

As for educational seminars, FHANC states they conduct fair housing presentationsin English
and Spanish to grassroots and other community-based organizations; they offer presentations
to tenant groups and staff at service agenciesto provide education regarding fairhousing
protections for all protected classes; they hold an annual “Reasonable Accommodations
Conference”, whichis attended by housing providers, advocates, and people with disabilities;
and participate in clinics with other agenciesto educate publicinquirers.

Does the applicant describe methods it will use to raise awareness of Fair Housing issuesin
Sonoma County including technical training for housing industry representatives and
organizations, education and outreach activities geared to the public, and advocacy

campaigns?

FHANC states that its missionis to “ensure equal housing opportunity and to educate the
community on the value of diversityin our neighborhoods”. The applicantoffers technical
training on AFFH to housing providers, including publichousingauthorities, CDBG and

HOME recipients, and entitlementjurisdictions, and providestrainings upon request to other
governmentand non-government groups. The applicantis also involvedintenantadvocacy on
relevantfair housingissues at the local and state level. Forexample, FHANC assisted in the
approval of local fair housing ordinances for source of income protectionsto help people with
subsidized housing vouchers to access housing by meeting with elected officials and making
presentations at hearings, as well as writinglettersto the editor. The applicant also supported
tenant advocate effortsto pass AB 832 in California, which among other things, requires
landlords to first make an attempt to secure past due rental payments before a court can be
allowedto order the eviction of the tenant on the basis of nonpayment. The applicant states
that they will continue to provide related advocacy and support where needed on local and
statewide relevant fairhousingissues.

Does the applicant describe its efforts to collaborate with other organizations and project
jurisdictions to effectively deliver Fair Housing services?

The applicant states that they have received CDBG fundingfrom the City of Santa Rosa since
2016 and they work closely with the city’s housing authority office. They also collaborate with
Legal Aid of Sonoma County (LASC) to provide servicesto residents of the entire county by
referring cases to one another and/or working togetheron cases with fair housingand non-fair

143 of 395



housingissues. FHANC also meets with LASC staff regularly to discusshousingpolicy effortsand
to support one another’s policy campaigns on the local and state level.

Additionally, they partner with Disability Services & Legal Centerto assistresidents with
reasonable accommodation requests; and work with Petaluma People Services Center (PPSC) to
provide assistance to Petalumaresidents by referringclients to one another when appropriate
and attending regularfair housing advocate meetings with their staff.

Federal regulations require that 51% of participants be low income. Does the applicant
describe the method that will be used to verify CDBG income eligibility and track other
required demographic and guantitative data?

The applicant states that whenevera newclient(or returning client with a new issue) contacts
them, their intake coordinator conducts screeningand collects information, includingtheir
current address. This informationisadded to their “Salesforce” database. To ensure that CDBG
dollars are usedfor only personsin the Urban County, prior to invoicingthe county for CDBG
grant reimbursement, their staff runs quarterly reports from the database to determine which
cases to count toward the Sonoma County CDBG grant and clients are filtered viatheir address
in the Urban County. When a case is investigated they will collect documentation to support
the client’s case, includingleases, violation notices, and other documents, which will confirm
the client’s address.

As forincome verification, FHANC’s standard intake protocol isas follows:

e The intake counselor asks all clients to disclose theirhousehold’sincome (monthly or
annual), as well asthe income source (e.g. employment, retirement, social security,
disability benefits) when determiningthe client’s fairhousing needs;

o Theclient’sincomeis documentedin theirdatabase program. Approximately 90% or
more of theirclients are below 80% AMI. At the intake stage, FHANC currently asks
clientsto self-certify theirincome and demographicinformation, however, priorto this,
theirintake staff explainsthat services are available to all clients, regardless of income.
This removes any incentive for clientsto misstate theirincome;

e Followingintake, a FHANC attorney or housing counselor can require the clientto
provide adequate documentation (e.g. pay stub or receipt of benefits) if the client’s
income level is not otherwise ascertainable;

o Allclientsare requiredto sign a retainer agreement stating that their cooperation with
document requestsis requiredinorder to receive representation from FHANC's
attorneys. The database tracks demographic,income, and other information. The
demographic and income classifications are aligned with HUD’s classifications for race,
ethnicity, and income. The database tracks the source of the documentation verifying
income: self-certification, third party, or primary source.

Can the project be expected to have a significant impact on the identified problem and result
in one or more measurable indicator?

144 of 395



The problemsidentifiedinclude unlawful evictions, lack of access to legal representation, lack
of access to education of tenant rights, housing related discrimination to non-English speakers
and minorities. Based on the data providedinthe table below it appears that the number of
personsand households proposedto be servedinthe nextfiscal year (2022-23) are estimated
to be 20-25% lowerthan those servedin 2020-21. Therefore, the project may have an
important, but perhaps reduced, impact on the identified problems.

Proposed number to

Current number served

Number served by

estimated percentage
of the households
served in each of the
income categories

be served by project = as of the filing of this project last Fiscal

in upcoming Fiscal application Year

Year (if project is currently in

operation)

July1, 2022 ~June 30,2023 | July1, 2021 to January 21, 2022 July1, 2020 -June 30, 2021
Number of 175 96 202
households served
Number of persons 250 170 315
served
List the estimated percentage of the target population served in each of the income categories
Household Income List the total Considering only Urban County

residents, list the estimated
percentage of households
served in each of the income
categories below

below
_Extremely Low (Below 30% AMI) - 53% 59%
Very Low (Between 31% -50% AMI) 16% 22%
Low (Between 51% -80% AMI) 25% 11%
Moderate (Over 80% AMI) 6% 8%

If there are substantial changes to the past, current or proposed humber of households to be

served, does the applicant provide an explanation for the changes?

The Applicant does not provide an explanation as to why the estimated need for serviceswould

be lowerthan that of FY 2020-21 and possibly lowerthan the current year.

PROJECT BUDGET

Total Organization Budget $1,151,713

Total program budget $452,944

Percent of program to organization budget 39%

Percent of CDBG request of program budget $85,000 requested =approx. 19%

145 of 395




Unduplicated number proposed to be served with

program 175 households
Program cost per household $452,944/175 = 52,588
County cost per household $85,000/175 = 5486

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

This applicant is requesting CDBG-CV funds ($25,000) in additionto thisrequestfor “regular”
CDBG ($85,000) funds. The applicant proposesto renew theirexisting program of “Fair Housing
Education and Enforcement”, but would use the requested CDBG-CV funds for the tasks that
will specifically assisthouseholds who have encountered negative impacts from the coronavirus
pandemic.

CONSEQUENCES OF NO FUNDING:

The applicant states that if they do not receive full funding, they may need to reduce outreach
effortsand/or offerlimited services.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has received fundingin the past from the County and demonstrates that they
have the capacity to carry out theirproposed goals of the continuance of the project. They have
the systemsin place to ensure that the persons served are of lowerincome withinthe Urban
County and the project supports the AFFH rule mandated by HUD of all recipients. Provided the
County receivesthe full CDBG allocation, staff supports full fundingas requested.

PRELIMINARY CONDITION(S) OF APPROVAL
Allocated funding will be a grant [X] aloan[ ]

A NEPA environmental review must be completed before applicant can be offered
1. | a Funding Agreement. The Sonoma County Community Development Commission
staff will prepare the NEPA.

CDBG funds will be used only to reimburse costs to provide services to income-
2. | documented householdsresidinginthe Urban County, at least51% of which must
have incomes at our below 80% AMI.

CDBG fundingawarded must be used for eligible expenses during the fiscal year of
July 1, 2022 and no later than June 30, 2023. Specificterms will beincludedina
Funding Agreement, and no costs can be incurred prior to a fully executed funding
agreement

146 of 395



SONOMA COUNTY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION

CDBG and CDBG-CV FUNDING APPLICATION:
FAIR HOUSING SERVICES AND HOUSING

JUSTICE PROGRAMS

Please review the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), Application
Guidelines, and the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies This space reserved for CDC date and time stamp
before submitting your application. All applications must meet the eligibility
criteria found in the Funding Policies and the requirements set forth in the NOFA.

Part 1: Applicant Information

Legal name of organization: Fair Housing Advocates of Northern California
Organization’s DUNS number: 362281065
Contact Information
Authorized Representative (City/T own Name, title: Caroline Peattie, Executive Director
Manager, Executive Director, or other):

Phone: 415-483-7552

Email: peattie @fairhousingnorcal.org
Primary point of contact: Name, title: Caroline Peattie, Executive Director

s 415485 7553

-~ Email: peattie @fairhousingnorcal.org

Organization is a: 8 Non-profit organization Clocal government
Organization mailing address: 1314 Lincoln Avenue, Suite A, San Rafael, CA 94901
Organization website: www.fairhousingnorcal.org

Organizational Capacitywand Experience
Describe applicant’s record of administrative and programmatic capacity using federal, state, local, and/or private grant funds, explaining any past issues or

challenges administering grant funds.

For over 30 years, Fair Housing Advocates of Northern California (FHANC) has successfully implemented a comprehensive fair housing counseling
and testing program in the North Bay. FHANC proposes to continue to provide fair housing enforcement/education services in Sonoma County, and
currently contracts with Santa Rosa and Sonoma County. The agency also provides services to Marin and Solano counties, and shares information
and resources with the other full-service fair housing agency in the North Bay (Fair Housing Napa Valley) as well as other legal services organizations
in order to provide a more coordinated approach to serving clients. FHANC has a history of managing federal, state, local CDBG, and private
grants to provide fair housing services throughout its geographic service area.

Building on our expertise and community partnerships, FHANC will provide in-depth fair housing services to people across all federally- and state-
protected classes. FHANC partners with Disability Legal Services Center and works with local Public Housing Authorities, disseminating program
information through networks such as the Latino Services Project.

All of the activities offered are aimed at affirmatively furthering fair housing, removing barriers to fair housing choice through assisting individuals,
educating the community about fair housing rights, and making systemic changes through legal action as well as advocacy. FHANC' program
responds to Sonoma County's Analysis of Impediments, which identified stakeholders’ call for a 'full service' county-wide fair housing organization.

147 of 395




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Part 2: Project Description
Brief Description of Project or Program
The description provided here will be incorporated into the staff reports provided to the Community Development Committee, Cities and Towns Advisory

Committee, and/or the Board of Supervisors. Descriptions MUST BE 125 words or less. It will not be edited and will be truncated at 125 words. A longer
project description may be attached.

FHANC will provide full-service fair housing education and enforcement services in Sonoma County, offering advocacy to people protected by federal,
state, and local fair housing laws and providing fair housing education to tenants, public and private housing providers, and the larger community.

FHANC focuses on the most vulnerable populations — e.g. people with disabilities, people of color, and families with children. FHANC addresses systemic
discrimination through testing and other investigative efforts, filing agency complaints or lawsuits when warranted, to change discriminatory housing

. policies. In addition, FHANC advocates for legislative policies which will affirmatively further fair housing (AFFH), and offers technical assistance to
 Jurisdictional staff on AFFH matters. (If funded with CDBG-CV dollars) FHANC will also provide Covid-related fair housing services.

Part 3: Project Information _
Project Name Fair Housing Education and Enforcement

Fair Housing Project Type
Please check all types of activities or services your organization will provide with the funding requested:

@ Provideseducation aboutfairhousing laws @ Provides investigative testingand auditing® Advocatesfortenants who may be targets of
discrimination @ Enforcementoffairhousinglaws O Legal services for eviction prevention

Funding Request

Amount of CDBG funds requested: $85000

Amount of CDBG-CV funds requested: $ 25,000

CDBG-CV Requirements

If you are applying for CDBG-CV funds, please describe the how the proposed activity will prevent, prepare for or respond to Coronavirus (activities
must demonstrate they respond to one of more):

- Collect and track data related to clients impacted by Covid-19

- Analyze data tracked and demographics of clients to identify trends to guide FHANC's outreach efforts, client services, and need for adaptation to
address community needs as they evolve

- Conduct email marketing campaigns in English, Spanish, and Vietnamese, focusing on protected classes affected by Covid-19 (as identified through
evaluation for data), through Constant Contact e-blasts

- Distribute 200 fair housing posters in English, Spanish, and Vietnamese through postering service, targeting different protected classes affected by Covid-
19 (as identified through evaluation of data) ,

- Refer clients calling as a result of a Covid-related eviction or other Covid-related issue to other agencies and/or provide education on fair housing laws

- Provide fair housing services to clients in their primary language who are calling as a result of Covid-related issues, including referrals and fair housing
casework

-Respond to homeowners of protected classes at risk of foreclosure, providing counseling, information, and/or resources

-Update FHANC's foreclosure page and intake form on the website, keeping up to date with new programs, procedures, Covid-related resources, and
changing trends

- Conduct foreclosure clinic to evaluate clinic attendees for foreclosure counseling and further assistance; inform homeowners of rights and Covid-19 related
programs and options

-Maintain a Covid-19 resource page on FHANC's website to inform tenants and community members of resources and assistance programs available in the
County.

- Distribute FHANC-produced flyers with Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) in English and Spanish, and transiate flyer into Vietnamese, focusing on

protected classes affected by Covid-19; distribute flyers to clients and to service agencies

Primary Physical Location of Activities or Program (if applicable)

Address: 1314 Lincoln Avenue, Suite A, San Rafael, CA 94901

Fair Housing Program Information

Describe your organization’s experience bfb\}i’dih‘g‘F‘ai‘r Housing services. Include a general description of your organization’s strategies,
. program model, and past achievements:

FHANC has provided fair housing education and enforcement services since 1984, offering advocacy to people protected by federal, state, and local fair
housing laws. FHANC focuses on the most vulnerable populations — e.g. people with disabilities, people of color, and families with children. FHANC is one
of the few agencies that provides free legal services to clients without income qualifications — so long as there is an allegation of housing discrimination -
and addresses systemic discrimination through testing and other investigative efforts, filing agency complaints or lawsuits when warranted, to change to
discriminatory housing policies.

FY 2020-2021 achievements and highlights include:

.Served 862 clients (tenants, homeowners, and homebuyers); 370 fair housing complaints
-Advocated for 104 reasonable accommodations/modifications; over 80% of which were granted
Counseled 74 homeowners in distress

148 of 395
Page 2 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021




Soncma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Describe your understanding of the expectations related to the provision of Fair Housing services under HUD’s AFFH rule:

HUD's 2095 AFFH rule requires jurisdictions to affirmatively further fair housing: address significant disparities in access to community assets;
overcome segregated living patterns, promote integrated communities, end racially/ethnically concentrated areas of poverty; and foster and
maintain compliance with civil rights and fair housing laws. The rule required jurisdictions to provide an Assessment of Fair Housing with
community participation (in consultation with fair housing groups) and identification of their top fair housing priorities and goals, addressing fair
housing enforcement and outreach capacity. Though the rule was suspended under the previous administration, the current administration
reinstated the rule and will likely strengthen it; and jurisdictions must still provide an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (Al) within the
same timeline. The requirement that jurisdictions must affirmatively further fair housing is still firmly rooted in the Fair Housing Act. In addition, since
ABB86 went into effect January 1, 2019, jurisdictions must AFFH through the Housing Element process. Providing robust, full-service fair housing
services - education, advocacy, and enforcement - is the first step toward addressing barriers to fair housing choice.

Describe activities in your proposed program model that will raise awareness of Fair Housing issues in Sonoma County including technical training for
housing industry representatives and organizations, education and outreach activities geared to the public, and advocacy campaigns:

FHANC's mission is to “ensure equal housing opportunity and to educate the community on the value of diversity in our neighborhoods,” and has
traditionally offered outreach and education to the community — tenants, housing providers, and the broader community (see above under “organizational
experience,” above. In addition, FHANC has offered technical training on AFFH to housing providers (including public housing authorities), CDBG and
HOME recipients, and entitlement jurisdictions, and is available for similar training upon request. For example, in the past, FHANC Executive Director has
made AFFH presentations to the Sonoma County Community Development Committee and CD staff on the obligations of the CD Committee and Housing
Authorities to affirmatively further fair housing. FHANC staff has also provided a Fair Housing Law and Practice training to CD staff in Sonoma County,
ensuring that staff are aware of state and federal fair housing laws and know when and how to refer clients to FHANC. FHANC has had several
conversations regarding AFFH requirements with Sonoma County staff, discussing state and federal mandates, including the Assessment of Fair Housing.
FHANC staff continues to be available for this type of technical support, and has offered to provide presentations to Sonoma County Housing Authority and
Santa Rosa Housing Authority to cover fair housing laws, appropriate referrals, and recent fair housing trends.

FHANC has been involved in tenant advocacy on relevant fair housing issues on the local and state level. For example, FHANC was instrumental in the
passage of fair housing ordinances for source of income protections to help people with subsidized housing vouchers to access housing, meeting with
elected officials and making presentations at hearings, as well as writing letters to the editor. FHANC staff has also supported efforts to pass Just Cause
for Eviction and Ellis Act Implementation Ordinances in Sonoma County jurisdictions, including Petaluma. Additionally, in conjunction with partner
organizations, LASC and the Sonoma County Tenants Union, FHANC successfully advocated for the City of Healdsburg not to challenge their RHNA
allocations by sending a joint letter to the City Council, citing fair housing concerns, and meeting with the City Manager. FHANC has also supported tenant
advocate efforts to pass AB 832 and multiple extensions of the CDC moratorium. As another example, in the past, we have offered technical support by
discussing the fair housing implications of the Santa Rosa rent stabilization ordinance with city staff and other callers. FHANC will continue to provide
related advocacy and support where needed in Sonoma County. FHANC will continue to become involved as opportunities for tenant advocacy on
relevant fair housing issues present themselves on the local and state level.

Describe activities and the anticipated impact of components of your proposed program model that will address the requirements for fair housing testing, and |

enforcement under the AFFH rule:

i

FHANC, a Qualified Fair Housing organization as defined by HUD, has an experienced track record of conducting HUD's Fair Housing Initiatives Program and

other government grants. As stated above, FHANC will offer clients complaint intake, referral, testing, advocacy, intervention, and enforcement, and
affirmatively further fair housing through the foliowing:

-FHANC will serve clients alieging fair housing concerns, referring to our attorneys or bilingual housing counselor for advice and/or representation, and assist

tenants with disabilities who need reasonable accommodations so they can enjoy their housing in the same way non-disabled people do. We anticipate most
requests will be granted based on past advocacy and experience. We will conduct testing as part of our investigations into allegations of discrimination

whenever feasible (e.g. assuming there is a vacancy).

-FHANC will refer legitimate fair housing complaints to HUD or DFEH, often representing the client throughout the complaint process, which results in

better outcomes in most cases. HUD and DFEH investigators are not necessarily attorneys; having an attorney represent clients in the administrative

process means a level of advocacy that will ultimately help clients better understand the strengths/weaknesses of their case and reach better settlements

- which may mean monetary compensation, preservation of housing, improving housing conditions, the granting of a reasonable accommodation for a

client with a disability, or other tangible relief.

- FHANC will continue to address systemic discrimination through testing and other investigative efforts, filing complaints when it uncovers evidence of

discrimination, resulting in positive policy changes and alleviating barriers to housing opportunity.

- FHANC will serve protected classes under federal, state, and local fair housing laws, and will partner with community organizations for an integrated referral

system. FHANC's attorneys and bilingual housing counselor work to keep people housed or help them in transition, assisting them with housing needs such

as termination notices and reasonable accommodation requests.

-FHANC will offer its services in English and Spanish and distribute literature in both languages through local service agencies such as Disability Services

and Legal Center, Latino Services Project, Catholic Charities, and many others, as well as through community meetings and forums. FHANC will contact

staff at community-based agencies to provide education and to strengthen referral networks. In addition, FHANC wili publish newspaper ads or social

media campaigns, conduct email marketing and send public service announcements. These activities will inform clients of their fair housing rights so they

can access needed assistance and fair housing services.

-F#ANIC will provide fair housing and AFFH education to private and public housing providers, tenants, social service organizations, and county staff and
officials.

Describe your proposed project’s capacity for Intake of Complaints, and Investigation & Enforcement, including filing lawsuits.

InFY2020-21, FHANC responded to more than 2,000 inquiries related to housing, processing 490 fair housing complaints and filing 13
discrimination complaints with HUD or DFEH. Halfway through this fiscal year, FHANC has exceeded its annual projected goal for the County,
serving 89 households and 163 persons. Our intake coordinator screens callers and refers clients with allegations of discrimination to counselors
for a full intake and counseling; attorneys conduct legal analysis to assess the case for effective intervention, so if evidence leads to enforcement
action, the strongest possible case for legal action is developed. When testing is indicated, the case is referred to the investigations coordinators.
The ability to develop evidence is strongly enhanced by our testing program, and there is no delay with an in-house referral, crucial in tight rental
markets where discrimination is most likely to occur and most difficult to detect.

Attorneys and housing counselors intervene with housing providers on behalf of clients when necessary to share concerns of discrimination and
request relief. Staff also intervene to help clients with a disability request a reasonable accommodation or modification that is necessary.
Interventions often result in the end of discriminatory housing practices and more stability in housing for members of protected classes. When
these efforts are unsuccessful or there is egregious discrimination, attorneys represent clients in the administrative complaint process. This
includes drafting complaints, submitting investigation results as evidence, representing clients during ongoing conciliations or formal mediations,
assisting clients to calculate damages, think through injunctive and other relief, and prepare settlement demands, as well as draft settlement
agreements. An advocate knowledgeable about fair housing laws and the administrative process can ultimately help clients reach better
settlements -  which may mean preservation of housing, improving housing conditions, the granting of a reasonable accommodation for a client
with disabilities, or other tangible relief.

In cases where FHANC conducts testing, the agency has standing to file a complaint. When FHANC diverts resources during an investigation
where evidence of discrimination has been found, or where we see patterns of discrimination, the agency joins clients to strengthen their case
and ensure injunctive relief and systemic change. In cases where there is no bona fide complainant or where clients do not feel comfortable
bringing a case, FHANC can and does file agency complaints to ensure that discriminatory housing policies are changed. Occasionally, we
assist clients to find an appropriate fair housing attorney to file a lawsuit in state or federal court, and often the agency co-files to strengthen the
case and to ensure policy changes.

Describe the proposed project’s strategy to provide Fair Housing training for property owners and renters.

149 of 395
Page 3 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

FHANC offers a comprehensive 3-hour Fair Housing Law & Practice Seminar for a fee to housing providers that highlights federal and state federal law and
best practices to comply with these laws. FHANC also offers no-cost training opportunities for renters, staff and clients at grassroots and other community-
based organizations (including housing advocates), through presentations and informational meetings in English and Spanish. Historically this has
improved complaint solicitation and fostered better understanding of fair housing laws. In addition, FHANC offers annual conferences on Reasonable
Accommodations for people with disabilities for public and private housing providers, advocates, and agency staff to better prepare them to. work with
people with special needs. The conference offers an opportunity to participate in small group discussions tailored to the participant’s questions and
experiences. Since Covid, we have offered this conference via Zoom, with breakout sessions to carry out the small group discussions, let by experienced
and knowledgeable facilitators. FHANC has also developed fair housing webinars in English and Spanish focusing on protections for people with disabilities
as well as on discrimination based upon sex/gender, race/color, and national origin. The webinars are posted on our website, making it available to housing
providers and the general public. Finally, FHANC proposes to notify housing providers posting discriminatory Craigslist ads for housing, providing them
with information on fair housing laws and including a link to FHANC's discriminatory advertising webinar within its communication to the housing provider.
Describe your strategy for providing counseling for low-income/disabled residents to understand their rights.

FHANC helps low-income clients and people of protected classes achieve stable, affordable, and sustainable housing through a variety of
methods described above and below. We believe these services are vital for building strong, healthy communities. Although we provide

outreach and educational services to tenants through a variety of means — newspaper ads, social media, our website, flyers, etc. — we believe it is
important to counsel clients one-on-one about their fair housing rights, so that the information they receive from us goes beyond just their
immediate housing issue, and their knowledge can be applied to future situations. For people with disabilities, we assist them with reasonable
accommodation requests in particular, in addition to addressing allegations of other forms of disability discrimination, and partner with Disability
Services Legal Center to provide reasonable modifications.

We already have an established network in Sonoma County of service providers, facilitating distribution of our Tenant Booklets, with specific
resources for Sonoma County. We will continue to distribute these comprehensive booklets with housing resources, as well as our reasonable
accommodation brochures and FAQ's on reasonable accommodations, distributed through DSLC (to whom we provide modification funds for
people with disabilities in Sonoma County). These resources are also available electronically via our website.

Though residents who are low-income are not protected by fair housing laws by virtue of their income, low-income residents are nevertheless
disproportionately represented by people of color, families with children, individuals with disabilities, and other protected classes covered by fair
housing law. Historically, over 90% of FHANC's clients are low-income. FHANC's services help address a conundrum that low-income tenants
face when seeking eviction defense. Typically, tenants who receive a notice terminating their tenancy — or some other notice of a lease violation
jeopardizing their tenancy — seek assistance from a local legal aid organization; however, generally, these organizations can provide the tenant
with advice on the validity of the notice and suggest that the tenants return for more assistance when they are served with an eviction lawsuit.
FHANC provides services that address an unmet need, as FHANC can assist tenants who allege notices are discriminatory or who require the
rescission or extension of a notice as a reasonable accommodation based upon a disability-related need. FHANC's assistance often prevents the
matter escalating to an eviction lawsuit, which could jeopardize the tenant’s credit, housing subsidy (if applicable), and ability to obtain new
housing in the future given the tight market in the Bay Area. In sum, FHANC offers legal assistance designed to prevent evictions through legal
services focused on fair housing. FHANC has  worked with Legal Aid of Sonoma County for several years so as to provide the best possible
services for Sonoma County residents.

Describe your proposed strategy to provide educational seminars for residents most vuinerable to housing discrimination.

FHANC will conduct fair housing presentations in English and Spanish, to grassroots and other community-based organizations for better, more
streamlined complaint referral and to reach those most vulnerable to housing discrimination. We offer presentations to tenant groups and staff at
service agencies to provide education regarding fair housing protections for all protected classes. See also above description of our annual
Reasonable Accommodations Conference, which is attended by housing providers, advocates, and people with disabilities. In addition, we will
conduct networking meetings with organizations serving protected classes to refine an integrated referral system and to look for opportunities to
inform the community about the services FHANC provides. We currently have 3 staff members who can offer services and presentations in Spanish;
we also have staff fluent in Portuguese. The agency has offered fair housing presentations to voucher recipients in Marin and Solano counties, often
through clinics in partnership with either the local housing authority or legal aid organization, offering fair housing information to low-income residents.
FHANC is available to offer similar fair housing presentations to voucher recipients in Sonoma County.

How will your proposed Fair Housing program help to reduce discriminatory activities against protected classes?

“Through education of housing providers (with our seminars as well as contacting of housing providers who post discriminatory Craigslist ads), renters,
and social service providers, the community will gain an understanding of their fair housing rights and responsibilities, and consequences for housing
providers who fail to adhere to fair housing laws. Through our testing and enforcement program including complaint filings and settlements, we will
affirmatively change discriminatory policies affecting not only one tenant or family, but all units owned or managed by the housing provider. In addition,
publicizing our systemic testing as well as results of case settlements (through news releases via media outreach, Constant Contact, Facebook, Twitter,
and our website) results in a broader impact on other landlords and tenants who learn of case outcomes and the cost of discriminatory housing policies.

FHANC is the only full-service fair housing agency in recent years to offer fair housing counseling, combined with complaint-based and systemic testing,
in the county. FHANC's work is primarily supported by the HUD's Fair Housing Initiatives (FHIP) program. Congress established the FHIP program in 1987
to promote compliance with the Fair Housing Act, as well as state and local fair housing laws and ordinances. FHIP is a competitive grant program that
provides essential funding to fair housing organizations. FHIP-funded fair housing organizations play a vital role in combating segregation through
enforcing fair housing laws; increasing public awareness of discriminatory housing practices through education and public outreach campaigns; advising
consumers on how and where to file fair housing complaints and informing consumers of their fair housing rights; and conducting investigations to
substantiate claims of housing discrimination (U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, “Study of the Fair Housing Initiatives Program,” May
2011).

A unique feature of FHIP-funded fair housing organizations is their ability to conduct testing. Because most acts of housing discrimination are covert,
testing is often the only way to determine whether a housing applicant has experienced disparate treatment, or received different quality, content, or
quantity of information on account of his or her protected-class status. Testing is widely recognized as a crucial investigatory tool, affirmed by the U.S.
Supreme Court’'s 1982 ruling in Havens Realty Corp. v. Coleman.

As HUD's data demonstrates, 71 percent of cases that are referred to it by FHIP-funded organizations result in a cause finding or conciliation, compared to
37 percent for non-FHIP referred cases. Testing is often the key factor in determining whether a complaint will be successful; 69 percent of cases with
testing evidence lead to a cause finding or conciliation, compared to 38 percent of cases without testing.

FHANC addresses discrimination through representation on individual complaints as well as its and systemic investigation and advocacy efforts.

What marketing strategies (online or otherwise) will your organization will use to conduct public outreach to share information about fair housing?

FHANC will conduct outreach by contacting individual agencies, such as the Latino Services Project (a network of Latino service providers), through
literature distribution, and social media marketing (e.g. Constant Contact, Facebook, Twitter) and by attending community events to provide fair
housing education. FHANC conducts outreach and education to individua! protected classes by phone, letters, emails, brochures and literature,
website, English and Spanish-language newspaper or social media campaigns, poster distribution, and community presentations. We also provide
educational conferences to the general public and protected classes on Fair Housing and AFFH issues and on Reasonable Accommodations for
people with disabilities. Our literature is published in English, Spanish, with some literature translated into Vietnamese and Tagalog. Our website,
updated regularly and with pages in Spanish and Vietnamese, has extensive outreach information with links to a number of FHANC educational
materials, the agency'’s services, online complaint forms, and HUD ‘s office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity as well as the California
Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH).

S.

Please describe services provided to landlords such as consultation, training, or landlord/tenant mediation se

150 of 395
Page 4 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

FHANC's Fair Housing Law & Practice seminar is available to public and private housing providers for a reasonable fee, and we offer an annual
conference “Successfully Housing People with Disabilities” to bring together public and private housing providers, advocates, and people with
disabilities to learn about and discuss reasonable accommodations. (FHANC receives more calls related to reasonable accommodations  than any
other type of fair housing call.) For example, FHANC held such a conference in 2021 with housing providers, advocates, and people with disabilities
attending (including attendees from Sonoma County), to discuss reasonable accommodations during the application, occupancy, and eviction stages.
FHANC is holding another such conference January 20, 2022.

It is important to note, however, that FHANC does not provide counseling to landlords, as this presents a conflict of interest and would not allow us to serve
any tenant having a difficulty with a landlord whom we advised. With that said, the representation we provide to tenants/homeowners often includes informal -
interventions with housing providers, helping to resolve allegations of discrimination or a need for a reasonable accommodation / modification prior to the
administrative complaint stage or some other enforcement action. While we are representing the tenant, the outcome is often to the benefit of the housing

provider. As a result of our intervention, housing providers achieve a better understanding of fair housing laws and their responsibilities and can often avoid
expensive litigation.

Please describe how your organiiéﬁoﬁ collaborates with other entitlement jurisdictions within Sonon{a\County (Petaluma and Santa Rosa) and
other Fair Housing or Housing Justice programs to provide consistent and cost- effective service and assistance to citizens of the entire County.

FHANC has received CDBG funding from the City of Santa Rosa since 2016 to provide full services fair housing services. In addition, FHANC
works closely with Legal Aid of Sonoma County (LASC) to provide services to residents of the entire county by referring cases to one another
and/or working together on cases with fair housing and non-fair housing issues, such as eviction cases where a tenant needs additional time to move
as a reasonable accommodation. FHANC also meets with LASC staff regularly to discuss housing policy efforts and to support one another’s
policy campaigns on the local and state level. FHANC also works with Petaluma People Services Center (PPSC) to provide assistance to Petaluma
residents by referring clients to one another when appropriate and attending regular fair housing advocate meetings with their staff. FHANC's
educational events — such as the annual April Fair Housing Month Conference and the annual Reasonable Accommodations Conference on
successfully housing people with disabilities — is regularly attended by staff from PPSC as well as jurisdictional staff from Santa Rosa and Sonoma
County.

The County of Sonoma, as well as the seven municipalities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park, Sebastopol, Sonoma, and Windsor,
comprise the Urban County. At least 51% of beneficiaries served by the program or activity funded by the Sonoma County Community Development
Commission with CDBG or CDBG-CV funds must be Urban County residents. Please state how your organization will obtain, verify and document
program beneficiaries meet this requirement:

Fach timé a new client (or retirning client with a new issue) contacts FHANC, the Intake Coordinator conducts an intake and documents the
client’s contact information, including their current address, in our Salesforce database. We trust that the address provided to us is correct
because in order for us to advocate for a client regarding their housing (usually with their landlord) knowing where they live is the first and most
basic requirement. To ensure that CDBG dollars are used for only persons in the Urban County, prior to invoicing the county for CDBG grant
reimbursement, staff run quarterly reports from the Salesforce database to determine which cases to count toward our Sonoma County CDBG
grant, and clients are filtered via their address in the Urban county.

In addition, when we investigate a case, we often collect documentation to support our client’s case, including leases, violation notices, etc. that
confirm the client’s address.

Sonoma County uses CDBG funding for Fair Housing and Housing Justice services. Federal regulations require that 51% of participants be low income.
What method will your organization use to verify and track income eligibility?

FHANC's standard intake protocol is as follows: The intake counselor asks all clients to disclose their household’s income (monthly or annual}, as well as to
disclose the source of  that income (i.e., employment, retirement, social security, disability benefits) when determining the client’s fair housing needs.
However, FHANC provides service to clients regardiess of income as part of our requirement to affirmatively further fair housing, and provide clients that
assurance prior to asking for income information. The client’s income is documented in our Salesforce database program. As mentioned above, around
90% or more of our clients are below 80% AMI. At the intake stage, FHANC currently asks clients to self-certify their income and demographic information.
Prior to this, FHANC's intake counselor explains that services are available to all clients, regardless of income. This removes any incentive for clients to
misstate their income. Following intake, a FHANC attorney or housing counselor can require the client to provide adequate documentation (i.e., pay stub

or receipt of benefits), if the client’s income level is not otherwise ascertainable (for instance, often clients receive subsidies or other benefits they would
not be entitled to unless they were low income). All clients are required to sign a retainer agreement that states, among other things, that their cooperation
with document requests is required in order to receive representation from FHANC's attorneys. Our Salesforce database documents demographic,
income, and other information. The demographic and income classifications are aligned with HUD's classifications for race, ethnicity, and income. In its
database, FHANC also tracks the source of the documentation verifying income: self-certification, third party, or primary source.

Please fill out the table below by stating the numbers served per category according to the stated time frames.

Emgd'number to be Current number s Number served by project last
served by project in the filing of this application Fiscal Year
upcoming Fiscal Year (if project is currently in
operation)
"""" July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023 July 1, 2021 to Current Date July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021
Number of households served
175 96 202
Number of persons served
250 170 315
151 of 395

Page50f 15 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

 List the estimated percentage of the target population served in each of the income Categories below:

Household Income

List the total estimated percentage of the
households served in each of the income

categories below

below

g
list the estimated percentage of households
served in each of the income categories

Extremely Low (Below 30% AMI)

53%

59%

Very Low (Between 31% -50% AMI)

16%

22%

Low (Between 51% -80% AMI)

. Moderate (Over 80% AMI)

25%

6%

11%

8%

Part 4: Project Financing and Budget

Funding Status

Is this application for new or renewal funding?

[JNew 8 Renewal

Has this project been previously funded by the CDC?

@ Yes ONo

If this project received funding under a different name, please state the name of
the program (/f “No” = NA)

N/A

What percentage of your project budget does your request make up?

26.38%

Will funding requested supplant existing funding for the project?

[OYes @ No

Community Development Commission Funding History

FY 2019-20

FY 2020-21

FY 2021-22

Request for FY 2022-
2023

Funds Requested

$75,000

$75,000

$77,000

$110,000

Funds Awarded

$70,000

$77,000

$77,000

Application Budget Overview

Total Organization Budget:

$1,151,713

Total Project Budget:

$452,944

The request represents this percentage of the project budget:

24.29%

Please state funding sources leveraged to support your proposed project and approximate percentage of the total project budget that these represent.

* City of Santa Rosa: Fair Housing Public Service Provider Program Grant - $36,000 (7.9%)

* FHIP PEI: Fair Housing Enforcement and COVID Project Grant - $77,778 (17.2%)

* FHIP EOI: Marin/Sonoma/Solano County Fair Housing Education and Outreach Project - $41,667 (9.2%)
* FHIP PEl: Marin/Sonoma/Solano County Fair Housing Enforcement and Systemic Testing Project - $125,000 (27.6%)
* FHO!: Discrimination in Appraisal and Lending - Enforcement and Systemic Testing Project - $62,500 (13.8%)

requested.

Describe the aspects of the project design that are scalable. Indicate how many fewer participants will receive services if the award is less than the amount

Should less than the $25,000 requested for CDBG-CV funding be awarded, FHANC will reduce the number of tasks conducted (17 tasks were outlined

above, and the # of tasks eliminated would depend on how much the funding was reduced). As for the regular CDBG funds requested, reduced funding
will mean that 1) there will be reduced outreach, which may cause a natural reduction in the number of clients contact the agency; and/or 2) we will offer
more limited services to the clients who contact our agency.

Page 6 of 15

152 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

What is your organization’s plan for the long-term financial sustainability of this project?

The agency has been applying for and receiving HUD'S Fair Housing Inftiatives Program (FHIP) funding since the 7990s, which allows for FHANC to
operate a robust fair housing education and enforcement program. In fact, FHANC has been able to expand the amount awarded through FHIP (see
leveraged amounts, above). In addition, Santa Rosa CDBG funds have supplemented FHANC's work in Sonoma County. And finally, FHANC applies for
and receives multiple types of funding, from government, foundation, and corporate grants to sponsorships and individual donations, which all contribute
toward program costs and overhead, Sonoma County CDBG dollars fund direct one-on-one fair housing counseling services to Sonoma County
residents.

153 of 395
Page 7 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Appilication

Part 5: Attachments Required

Project sponsors must submit the following documents, as applicable, with their funding application:

c

oo o o4

Project Description: Provide a description of the project that includes specific location information and geographic boundaries. It
should identify the maximum anticipated scope of the entire project, and delineate the specific activities for which the applicant
is requesting funding at this time.
Authorizing Resolution: For non-profit organizations, attach a resolution from the Board of Directors authorizing the submittal
of the application.
IRS Letter of Determination: Non-profit organizations only must submit an IRS Letter of Determination. Non-profit organizations
are not eligible for consideration unless non-profit status has been verified.
Letters of Commitment: Submit letters of commitment from all other funding sources.
Financial Documentation:
[0 Non-profit organizations must attach the following:
= Current operating budget
® Most recent completed final audit report
® |RS Form 990 for the most current tax year
= If organization is not audited, attach a copy of the most recent internal financial statement that has been
approved by Board of Directors.
*Additional financial information may be requested by CDC staff as deemed appropriate.
00 Sonoma County departments or agencies, the cities of Cotati, Cloverdale, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park, Sebastopol,
Sonoma, and the Town of Windsor are exempt from this requirement.
Organizations are required to have written policies and procedures. The applicant must submit certification that they have the
following policies and procedures. (Please complete the forms found in Part 7 —Certifications)
= Accounting
= Conflict of Interest
®*  Procurement
=  Record Retention

154 of 395

Page 8 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/MHOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Part 6: Certifications
7 Grant Certification Form — 1 (Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority)
1 Grant Certification Form — 2 (Federal Regulations)
] Grant Certification Form — 3 (Conflict of Interest)
1 Grant Certification Form — 4 (Policies and Procedures)

155 of 395
Page 9of 15 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 1
Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority

| hereby certify that (insert name of organization requesting funds) has
complied with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to the application and is an eligible applicant for the requested
funding.

The organization proposes to provide the program services or complete the project identified in this application. If this
application is approved and this organization receives the requested funding this organization agrees to adhere to all relevant
Federal, State, and local regulations and other assurances as required by the Commission.

In addition, the content of the application shall be incorporated as part of the written agreement and, as such, will be used to
monitor performance. Activities, commitments, and representations described in the written agreement that are not subsequently
made a part of the program/project as funded shall be considered a material contract failure and may result in a repayment of all
awarded funds and/or suspension from participation in future funding rounds.

I hereby certify that the organization is fully capable of fulfilling its obligation under this application, as stated herein. | further
certify that the information provided in this Funding Application is correct, accurate, and complete.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

156 of 395
Page 10 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 2
Federal Regulations — CDBG

Requirements

Federal Labor Standards

- Davis-Bacon

- Copeland Act (Anti-kickback)

- Contract Work Hours and Safety
Standards

Federal Regulations

24 CFR 92.354
29 CFRParts 1,3,and 5

Other References

40 U.S.C. 3141; 40 U.S.C. 3701

Section 3

24 CFR 135

Section 3 of the HUD Act of
1968, as amended (12 U.S.C.
1701u); 2 CFR 200.321

Minority and Women Business
Enterprise Participation
(MBE/WBE)

Small Business Act, Section
3(a)
15 U.S.C. 632

12 U.S.C. 1701

Civil Rights and Non-
Discrimination

Title VI of Civil Rights Act of
1964

Title VIII of the Civil Rights

Act of 1968

Section 104(b) and 109 of Title |
of the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1974

Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Act of 1973

Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990

Age Discrimination Act of

1975

Executive Orders 11063,
11246, 11375, 11478, 12107,
12086, and 13279

24 CFR 570.601-602;

Executive Orders 11246;

U.S.C. 3601-3620)

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964, as amended (42
U.S.C. 2000d)

Equal Opportunity in

Housing

Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990

Equal Employment Opportunity 570.607 12086
41 CFR 60 12 USC 1701u
Fair Housing Fair Housing Act (42 24 CFR Parts 8, 107, and 146

42 U.S.C. 200(d)

Executive Orders 11063, as
amended by Executive Order
12259

Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as
amended (42 U.S.C.

6101)

Debarred or Ineligible
Contractors

24 CFR 570.609; 24 CFR
24

Executive Orders 12549 and
12689

Reasonable Accommodation

24 CFR Part 8,
24 CFR 570.601-
602

Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Act of 1973

Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990

Page 11 0of 15

157 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021



Senoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Fire Safety Codes

Local ordinances

Building, Housing, and Zoning
Codes
Housing Quality Standards

24 CFR 570.208(b)(1)(iv);
208(b)(2)

Local ordinances

Lead-Based Paint

24 CFR 570.608; 24 CFR
Part 35

42 U.S.C 4821 et seq.

Anti-Lobbying

Appendix Il to Part 200 J;

31 U.S.C. 1352
Environmental, Historic 24 CFR 570.503(b)(5)(i); Section 104(g), HCDA
Preservation, National 570.604; 570.605; 42 U.S.C 4001 et seq.
Environmental Policy Act, Flood 570.202;
Insurance Requirements 24 CFR 58
- Sitting near airports and References at:
coastal barrier 24 CFR 58.6;
- Fish and wildlife protection 58.5570.605
- Flood plainffloodinsurance
- National Historic Preservation
- Noise abatement and control
- Wetlands/Coastal zones
- Air quality
- Endangered species
- Thermal/Explosive hazards
Relocation, Real Property 24 CFR 570.201(i); Sections 104(d); 105(a)(11),
Acquisitions, and One-for-One 570.606(b), (c), (d) HCDA
Housing Replacement 49 CFR 24 www.hud.gov/relocation

- Uniform Relocation Act

- Residential anti-displacement
and relocation assistance

42 USC 4601 et seq

Competitive Procurement 2 CFR 200.319

Insurance and Bonding 2 CFR 200.310 and
200.325

Administrative and Accounting 2 CFR Part 200

Standards

Cost Considerations

2 CFR 200.402, 403, 404,
405, 406 and 407

Documentation and
Recordkeeping

24 CFR 570.506
24 CFR 570.502

Conflict of Interest

2 CFR 200.112 and
24 CFR 570.611

Section 108 Loan Guarantees

24 CFR 570.700-570.709

Section 108, HCDA

Page 12 of 15

158 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021


www.hud.gov/relocation

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that all data contained in this application and all supportive
documentation is true, correct and will incorporate the above requirements. This submission has been duly authorized
by the governing body of

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

159 of 395
Page 13 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021



Senoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 3
Conflict of Interest — CDBG

The standards in 2 CFR 200.318 provide that no employee, officer, or agent shall participate in the selection, award, or
administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved. Such a conflict
would arise when an employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an
organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in the firm
selected for an award.
The CDBG regulations at 24 CFR 570.611 provide that no person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected
official or appointed official of the recipient or subrecipient that are receiving CDBG funds and (1) who exercises or has exercised
any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted with CDBG funds; or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to these activities, may obtain a financial interest from a CDBG-
assisted activity, or have any interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder,
either for themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one (1) year thereafter.

A Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the organization

requesting funds in a position to participate in the decision making process for approval of this application?

JYes OONo

B. Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the organization
requesting funds in a position to gain inside information with regard to approval of this application?
O Yes ONo
C. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds obtain a financial interest or substantial benefit from this activity?
OYes ONo
D. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the organization

requesting funds have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect to funding this
application, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties during the program

year and one year thereafter? YesCINo

If you answered YES to any of the above questions, a letter must be submitted with the application that includes the
following information:

1) A disclosure of the nature and extent of theconflict
2) A description of how public disclosure will bemade
3) A qualified attorney's opinion that the conflict of interest does not violate federal, state, or locallaw

Note: If you are approved for funding, the Commission must issue a public notice of the disclosure with a 15-day public
comment period, and then submit to HUD for approval prior to execution of a grant agreement or release of funds.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name:

Title: Date:

Page 14 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021
160 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 4
Policies & Procedures

The undersigned does hereby certify that the applicant organization has the following policies and/or procedures and can
produce them if requested by the Commission:

Accounting policy/procedure

Procurement policy/procedure

Conflict of Interest policy/procedure

Record Retention policy/procedure

Language Access Plan & Limited English Proficiency Policy

o wN=

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

15 of 1
Page 150f 15 161 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)

FAIR HOUSING SERVICES AND HOUSING JUSTICE PROGRAMS

FY 2022-23 Estimated CDBG FundingAvailable: $278,526
. Fair Housing CDBG Amount CDC Staff
Applicant . .
Project Name Requested Recommendation
Fair Housing Advocates of | Fair Housing Education
Northern California & Enforcement >85,000 $84,526*
Legal Aid of Sonoma HOME — HousingJustice
& . & 5195,000 $194 000*
County (legal services) ’
Total Requested $280,000
Total Estimated
Available 5278,526 $278,526

*Full funding is recommended if the actual funds are more than estimated. If the actual funds
are equal to or less than the estimated amount, staff recommends a minor reduction to each

request.

162 of 395




APPLICANT NAME: Legal Aid of Sonoma County
PROJECT NAME: HOME - HousinglJustice Project
CDBG AMOUNT REQUESTED: $195,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

“HOME provideslegal representation to low-income and Spanish-speaking tenants. We help
tenants at our office, as well as at sites throughout the County, including providinghome visits.
HOME provideslegal education, negotiations with landlords, preparation of pleadings,and in
court representation. HOME assists with eviction defense, COVID-19protections for tenants,
fair housingissues, Section 8 terminations, habitability, retaliation, relocation, and
discriminationissues.

Without legal assistance, tenants risk becominghomeless because they are evicted without
time to find alternate housing, and without resources to relocate. HOME negotiates extratime
for tenants and saves tenantsfeesand costs they can instead use toward relocation. HOME
stops unlawful evictions. By helpingSection 8 tenants preserve theirbenefits, HOME helps the
most vulnerable tenantsretain theirhousing.”

FAIR HOUSING PROJECT TYPE:

e Provideseducationabout fair housing laws;
¢ Advocates for tenants, who may be targets of discrimination;

e Provideslegal servicesfor eviction prevention.

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS:

The applicant proposesto use the requested funds to provide fair housing services to tenants of
lowerincome (withincomes at or below 80% of the area medianincome), includingnon-English
speakers. The services encompass education of fair housing laws, legal representation, eviction
prevention assistance, Covid-19 tenant protection services, assistance to tenants with landlord
disputes, and assistance to prevent Section 8 voucher terminations.

FUNDING POLICIES (Funding Goals and Objectives)

Does the project address one of the highest priorities of: 1) creating or preserving affordable
housing, 2) building infrastructure or public facilities that support creation or preservation of
affordable housing, or 3) building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income
communities?

163 of 395



The project supports the preservation of affordable housingin the Urban County by assisting
lowerincome households as described above in “Proposed Use of Funds” section. With these
types of public services, clients are able to remain intheirhomes or dependingonthe
circumstances, improve their housing situation. Housing stabilization prevents housing
disruption amongst household members and could be the most affordable optionto clients as
opposed to securinga decentand affordable rental someplace else.

THRESHOLD CRITERIA

Does the project meet at least one National Objective as required under CDBG regulations (24
CFR 570.208)?

The application states that 100% of the personsbeing served are low-income and therefore,
this projectmeets the Low/Moderate Income Limited Clientele National Objective. HUD
recipients are required to comply with the requirements of the Fair Housing Act (FHA) and to
adhere to the affirmatively furtherfairhousing (AFFH) rule. The proposed project supports
HUD’s AFFH rule by providing publicservices to reduce discrimination to protected classes:
families with children, people with disabilities, and persons of differentraces, color, and
national origins.

Does the proposed project or activity meet the eligibility requirements of the CDBG and
HOME Funding Policies? (If not, provide the specific reason)

CDBG regulations allow the County to use up to 15% of its CDBG allocation for publicservices,
including fairhousing related services that support the AFFH rule. The proposed project, as
described, meetsthe eligibility requirements of the County’s CDBG and HOME FundingPolicies.

Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

The project’sfocus is to serve vulnerable populations, many of which are protected classes.
They include minorities, seniors, and the disabled. These clientslearn about theirhousing
rights and have access to full legal representation, empoweringthem to understand and
enforce their fair housingrights. The project also works on cases against property ownerswho
violate fairhousing laws, thereby helpingto reduce discrimination. Additionally, many of Legal
Aid’s eviction defense casesinvolve requests forreasonable accommodations under the
Americans with Disabilities Act. As described, the project supports the AFFH rule.

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliverthe proposed project?

Legal Aid has been administeringfairhousingrelated programs funded by federal, state, and
private grant funds for over 15 years. They have successfully administered over $3 million
annually in such funds. They have the capacity to execute the program immediately. The HOME
- Housing Justice Project has beenin service for over 15 years. The applicant has both
supervisory staff and direct service staff with more than a decade of housinglaw experience

164 of 395



and are fully staffed. Legal Aidis also currently funded with County CDBG and is an activity
administeringfairhousingservicesto Urban County households.

SELECTION CRITERIA

Does the applicant describe strategies to provide outreach and education for residents most
vulnerable to housing discrimination?

The applicant states that during Fiscal Year 2018-19, before the pandemic, the proposed
program provided educational outreach to over 1,300 tenants at 64 events. Legal Aid started
theiroutreach program in 2015 and they have increased the percentage of rural and isolated
tenants they serve by over 100%. Populations most vulnerable to eviction and discrimination
include elders, disabled individuals, Spanish speakers, and those who are geographically
isolated. The applicant works with other agencies that serve these populationsto ensure they
have access to services. Additionally, the applicant provides onsite trainings for their staff and
meetswith clientsat their offices. Theyalso offer presentationsto theirclient groups. During
the pandemicmost outreach and services are beingprovided remotely. The applicant states
that duringthe last two years theirtelephone hotline services have significantly increased and
that lastfiscal year they answered more than 5,000 telephone calls.

Does the applicant describe methods it will use to raise awareness of Fair Housing issues in
Sonoma County including technical training for housing industry representatives and
organizations, education and outreach activities geared to the public, and advocacy
campaigns?

Legal Aid uses advertisingto raise awareness of Fair Housingissues. All complaints filed against
tenants inthe court contain Legal Aid’s contact information. The County, district offices, and
other publicentities, regularly referclients to them. Additionally, they distribute housing flyers
and brochures at organizations throughout the County, includingthe Family Justice Center
(FJC), Kaiser, county offices, and at other non-profits. They also participate in numerous
coalitions and collaboratives, including the FIC, the Santa Rosa tenants union, the Elder Justice
Coalition, and others. They market theirservicesthrough all these partnerships. The
application does not indicate the source of funds from Petalumaand Santa Rosa for marketing
and collaborative efforts. Lastly, their website advertises services and has a page devoted
exclusively totenants.

Legal Aiddoes not strive to provide trainings to the housingindustry or others on the topic of
“fair housing”. However, they do provide trainings about housingrights to the public, including
tenant groups, non-profit groups, and legislative and government staff. This trainingcovers a
large range of topics includingtenant rights in the eviction process, rights to repairs, relocation,
rights in Section 8 cases, and fair housing law.

165 of 395



Does the applicant describe its efforts to collaborate with other organizations and project
jurisdictions to effectively deliver Fair Housing services?

They partner with various community organizations such as PetalumaPeople’s Servicesand
Catholic Charities: Additionally, Fair Housing Advocates of Northern Californiaand Legal Aid are
partners on a regional housing project. This project is designed to coordinate tenant protection
effortsthroughout all jurisdictionsin the county and includes collaborative policy work,
collaborative trainings, and sharing best practices.

Federal regulations require that 51% of participants be low income. Does the applicant
describe the method that will be used to verify CDBG income eligibility and track other
required demographic and quantitative data?

Legal Aid of Sonoma County only serves Sonoma County residents. The applicant statesthat in
2021 over 55% of clientscame from the Urban County. Due to COVID-19, they currently
perform initial intake screening overthe phone. Intake caseworkers collect the informationon
their “Eligibility-Client Intake” form and “Housing Intake Form” to verify whetherthe clientis
eligible forservices. As part of the intake, their staff asks the prospective clientto attest under
penalty of perjury to theircurrent address (to verify theyreside in County) and to theirtotal
householdincome. If they are accepted as a client, Legal Aid creates a case for them and enters
theirdemographicinformation, including City of residence and income level, in their database.
When a clientwho was screened overthe phone later comes into the office to sign court
paperwork, they require that clientto bring with them verification of residency and income and
Legal Aid staff retains a copy of that informationintheir files. Acceptable proofs ofincome
include copies of an EBT card, recent paystubs, a letter describing benefits, asigned statement
by the individual attestingto spousal and/or child support for the potential client, three (3)
months of bank statements, or a copy of a recent tax return.

Can the project be expected to have a significant impact on the identified problem and result
in one or more measurable indicator?

The problemsidentifiedinclude unlawful evictions, lack of access to legal representation for
tenants of lowerincome households, lack of access to education of tenant rights, and housing
related discrimination to non-English speakers and minorities. Based on the data providedin
the table below, it appears likely that there will be a substantial increase in persons and
households currently beingserved by the applicant compared to last fiscal year. The number of
persons and households proposedto be servedinthe nextfiscal year (2022-23) are expected to
be higherthan what thisfiscal year will provide. The project can be expectedto have a
significantimpact on the identified problems.

166 of 395



Proposed number to
be served by project
in upcoming Fiscal
Year

Current number served
as of the filing of this
application

(if project is currently in

Number served by
project last Fiscal
Year

e _operation)

July1, 2022 -June 30, 2023 July1, 2021 to January 21, 2022 July1, 2020 - June 30,2021
Number of 600 277 366
households served
Number of persons 1000 507 720
served

below:

List the estimated percentage of the target population served in each of the income categories

Household Income

List the total
estimated percentage
of the households
served in each of the
income categories

Considering only Urban County

residents, list the estimated
percentage of households
served in each of the income
categories below

below
Extremely Low (Below 30% AMI) 53% 55%
Very Low (Between 31% -50% AMI) 26% 25%
Low (Between 51% -80% AMI) 21% 20%
Moderate (Over 80% AMI) 0% 0%

If there are substantial changes to the past, current or proposed number of households to be

served, does the applicant provide an explanation for the changes?

The applicant does not provide an explanation of the increase in number of persons and
householdto be served, however, itcan be reasonably assumed that the pandemic outbreak
increasedthe needfor their services.

PROJECT BUDGET

Total Organization Budget 54,129,685
Total program budget $990,000
Percent of program to organization budget 23.97%

Percent of CDBG request of program budget

$195,000 requested = approx. 20%

Unduplicated number proposed to be served with

program

600 households

Program cost per household

$990,000/600 = S$1,650
(CDC cost per household would be $325)

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: N/A

167 of 395




CONSEQUENCES OF NO FUNDING:

The applicant states that if they do not receive full funding, they may have to reduce program
services.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has received fundingin the past from the County and demonstrates they have
the capacity to carry out their proposed goals to continue the HOME Housing Justice Project.
Provided that CDBG funds are used onlyto reimburse costs that provide direct services to
householdsresidinginthe Urban County jurisdictions and that at least 51% of households
servedin the Urban County are at or below 80% of the average AMI; and the project continues
to support the AFFH rule mandated by HUD of all recipients, staff recommends full funding
requestedifthe County receivesthe estimated allocated.

PRELIMINARY CONDITION(S) OF APPROVAL

Allocated fundingwill be a grant [X] aloan[]

A NEPA environmental review must be completed before applicant can be offered
1. | a FundingAgreement. The Sonoma County Community Development Commission
staff will prepare the NEPA.

CDBG fundingawarded must be used for eligible expenses duringthe fiscal year of
July 1, 2022 and no later than June 30, 2023. Specificterms will be includedina
Funding Agreement, and no costs can be incurred prior to a fully executed funding
agreement

CDBG funds may be used only to reimburse costs to provide direct servicesto
3. | householdsresidinginthe Urban County jurisdictions. Atleast51% of households
served must have incomesat or below 80% AMI.

168 of 395



SONOMA COUNTY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION

CDBG and CDBG-CV FUNDING APPLICATION:
FAIR HOUSING SERVICES AND HOUSING
JUSTICE PROGRAMS

Please review the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), Application This space reserved for CDC date and time stamp

Guidelines, and the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies
before submitting your application. All applications must meet the eligibility
criteria found in the Funding Policies and the requirements set forth in the NOFA.

Part 1: Applicant Information

Legal name of organization: Legal Aid of Sonoma County

Organization’s DUNS number: 615381766
Contact Information

Authorized Representative Name, title: Ronit Rubinoff, Executive Director
‘(Dci:rigg() o "é';’;?ger, Executive  ppone: 707-688-4034 or 707-542-6664

Email: rrubinoff@legalaidsc.com
Primary point of contact: Name, title: Rbnit Rubinoff, Executive Director

Phone: 707-688-4034 or 707-542-6664

- Email: rrubinoff@legalaidsc.com -

Organization is a: = Non-profit organization ~ [JLocal government
Organization mailing address: 144 South E Street, Ste 100, Santa Rosa, CA 95404
Organization website: | www.legalaidsc.org ”

Organizational Capacity and Experience

Describe applicant’s record of administrative and programmatic capacity using federal, state, local, and/or private grant
funds, explaining any past issues or challenges administering grant funds.

Legal Aid of Sonoma County (LASC) has been administering programs funded by federal, state, and private grant funds
for over 15 years. We successfully administer over $3 million annually in such funds. We have the capacity to execute
the program immediately. LASC has been providing the HOME - Housing Justice Project services described in this
application for over 15 years. We have both supervisory staff and direct service staff with more than a decade of
housing law experience. We are fully staffed.

In April 2021, the board of supervisors deliberately expanded our housing program because they recognize HOME s
impact on housing stability, and because of their commitment to rental housing justice for all tenants. If we do not
receive full funding under this contract, we would have to reduce the program which would undermine the board s
intent.

169 of 395


https://alaidsc.com
mailto:rrubinoff@legalaidsc.com

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Part 2: Project Description

Brief Description of Project or Program

The description provided here will be incorporated into the staff reports provided to the Community Development
Committee, Cities and Towns Advisory Committee, and/or the Board of Supervisors. Descriptions MUST BE 125 words
or less. It will not be edited and will be truncated at 125 words. A longer project description may be attached

HOME provides legal representation to low-income and Spanish-speaking tenants. We help tenants at our office, as
well as at sites throughout the County, including providing home visits. HOME provides legal education, negotiations
with landlords, preparation of pleadings, and in court representation. HOME assists with eviction defense,

COVID-19 protections for tenants, fair housing issues, Section 8 terminations, habitability, retaliation, relocation, and

discrimination issues.

Without legal assistance, tenants risk becoming homeless because they are evicted without time to find alternate
housing, and without resources to relocate. HOME negotiates extra time for tenants and saves tenants fees and
costs they can instead use toward relocation. HOME stops unlawful evictions. By helping Section 8 tenants
preserve their benefits, HOME helps the most vulnerable tenants retain their housing.

Part 3: Project Information
Project Name - HOME - Housing Justice Project

Fair Housing Project Type
Please check all types of activities or services your organization will provide with the funding requested:

= Provides education about fair housing laws IZl Prov1des investigative testing and auditing = Advocates for tenants
who may be targets of discrlmlnatlon O Enforcement of fair housing laws = Legal services for eviction prevention

Funding Request
Amount of CDBG funds requested $195,000.00
Amount of CDBG-CV funds requested: $0

. CDBG-CV Requirements
If you are applying for CDBG-CV funds, please describe the how the proposed activity will prevent, prepare for or

respond to Coronavirus (activities must demonstrate they respond to one of more):

n/a

Primary Physical Location of Activities or Program (if applicable)
Address 144 South E Street, Ste 100, Santa Rosa, CA 95404

Falr Housing Program Information
Describe your organization’s experience providing Fair Housing services. Include a general description of your
Qrganization’s strategies, program mdde‘i,_”and past achievements:

LASC has provided housing related legal services for over 15 years. Our housing team has over 40 years of combined legal experience and is
bilingual/bicuitural. HOME provides a full scope legal services related to eviction defense, habitability, and preservation of housing benefits. Fair Housing
issues may arise in any of those contexts. Please see attached Project Description for detailed strategies, program model and past achievements.

P 20f15 U 10/
age 20 170 of 395 ndated 12/10/2021


https://195,000.00

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Describe your understéﬁding of the expectations related to the provision of Fair Housing services under HUD’s
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing (AFFH) ryle: -~ B

HOME assists individual clients with Fair Housing claims when they arise. Our policy work also may
impact systemic barriers to Fair Housing. The County’s report on impediments to Fair Housing cited
lack of affordable rentals and poor rental housing conditions, as likely barriers to Fair Housing because
these factors contribute to racial segregation. LASC is engaged in policy work designed to create
more tenant protections, including rent stabilization. In addition, our individual advocacy assists the
County in maintaining the quality of its housing stock. We help tenants bring habitability complaints
against property owners and help enforce health and safety codes relative to rental housing. Thus,
both our policy work, and individual advocacy, help address identified impediments to Fair Housing.

Describe activities in your proposed program model that will raise awareness of Fair Housing issues in Sonoma County
including technical training for housing industry representatives and organizations, education and outreach activities

geared to the public, and advocacy campaigns:
In an effort not to duplicate efforts with those of Fair Housing Northern California, we do not target
providing trainings to the housing industry or others on the topic of Fair Housing specifically. We
DO provide broad-spectrum trainings about housing rights to members of the public, tenant groups,
other non-profits, and even legislative and BOS staff so that they may better assist their
constituents. This training covers a range of topics including tenant rights in the eviction process,
rights to repairs and relocation benefits, rights in Section 8 cases, and Fair Housing rights.

- Describe activities and the anticipated impact of components of your proposed program model that will address the
requirements for fair housing testing, and enforcement under the AFFH rule:

HOME does not perform testing or specific enforcement practices under the AFFH. Again, these

functions have always been provided by a provider exclusively devoted to Fair Housing

enforcement and training, thus LASC did not feel it prudent to duplicate this service. HOME assists

individual tenants with Fair Housing claims; this advocacy assists the County in meeting its

enforcement objectives.

Describe your proposed brbj‘é‘t:t’s capacity for intake of Complaints, and Investigation & Enforcement, including filing
lawsuits.

HOME conducts intake both on the phone and in person, subject to pandemic related restrictions. Potential

clients who cannot come to our main office may call a designated housing hotline to be screened and receive
information. We also offer client intake throughout the County, including home visits, through our partnerships
with the County and other CBO’s. Intake staff are bilingual/bicultural. We are not a Fair Housing Investigator
or Enforcer. However, we do file complaints on behalf of individual clients, where appropriate, around a range
of housing issues. We also represent these clients at both court hearings and administrative proceedings.

Describe the proposed project’s strategy to provide Fair Housing training for property owners and renters.

HOME provides housing rights trainings to property owners and renters. Our training is not focused on Fair Housing in particular, but covers a range of housing issues including habitability, Section 8, mobile home park rights, eviction notice requirements, and basic Fair Housing rights.

Page 3 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021
171 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Describe your strategy for providing counseling for low-income/disabled residents to understand their rights.

HOME provides full scope legal services, including counsel and advice, negotiations and in court representation. HOME's target
population is low-income tenants; 100% of HOME clients are low-income. In 2021 40% of HOME clients were disabled. HOME
collaborates with dozens of agencies, including NBOP, Catholic Charities, APS, La Luz, Corazon Healdsburg, and others, who
work with low-income and disabled tenants. Our services are mobile, so that we can meet with disabled tenants wherever they
are. Our outreach program also meets with seniors at senior centers throughout the County. Low-income and disabled seniors
are one of the most vulnerable tenant populations in the County, particularly during the pandemic. We also regularly get referrals
from the County Board of Supervisors, Department of Human Services, and the Department of Health.

Describe your proposed strategy to proVide educational seminars for residehts most vulnerabnle to housir‘\'g
q‘iscrimination.

In FY 2018-2019, before the pandemic, HOME provided educational outreach to over 1,300 tenants at 64 events. This is an integral part of
our program. When we started our outreach program in 2015, we increased the percentage of rural and isolated tenants we served by over
100%. Populations most vulnerable to eviction and discrimination include elders, disabled individuals, Spanish-speakers and those who are
geographically isolated. HOME leverages our relationships with dozens of other agencies who serve these populations to ensure they have
access to our services. We provide onsite trainings for their staff and meet with clients at their offices. We offer presentations to their client
groups.

LASC provides direct client services to over 3,000 low-income people each year and pre-pandemic over 4,000 people a year walked into our
lobby. Therefore, a significant number of clients may also come from our other legal departments, as many clients have overlapping legal
issues.

How will your proposed Fair Housing program help to reduce discriminatory activities against protected classes?

HOME’s focus is serving vulnerable populations, many of which are protected classes. These
include minorities, seniors, and the disabled. Educating these tenants about all their housing rights,
and giving them access to full legal representation, empowers them to both understand and enforce
their Fair Housing rights. HOME will also takes cases against property owners who violate fair
housing laws—thereby helping to reduce discrimination. Many of our eviction defense cases involve
requests for reasonable accommodations under the ADA.

What marketing strategies (online or otherwise) will your organization will use to conduct public outreach to share
information about fair housing?

Our services are well advertised. All complaints filed against tenants in the court, contain our contact
information. The County, district offices, and other public entities, regularly refer clients. We have housing flyers
and LASC brochures at organizations throughout the County, including the FJC, Kaiser, county offices, and at
other non-profits. LASC participates in numerous coalitions and collaboratives, including the FJC, the Santa
Rosa tenants union (of which we are a foundational partner), the Eider Justice Coalition, and the ROC. We
market our services through all these partnerships. In addition, our website advertises our services and has a
page devoted exclusively to tenants.

Please describe services provided to landlords such as consultation, training, or landlord/tenant mediation services.

HOME principally advocates for tenants, not property owners. We will provide services to low-income landiords when
a problem tenant is threatening their shelter or safety. Mediation can only be done by a third-party neutral in a legal
matter (it has a different legal significance than negotiation). LASC attorneys are advocates and represent their clients.
We therefore cannot mediate. We do however attempt to negotiate in all our cases and are successful in negotiating
settlements in over 70% of those matters.

Page 4 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021
g 172 of 395 paate




Scnoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Please describe how your organization collaborates with other”entit!ementjurisdictions within Sonoma CoLjnty
(Petaluma and Santa Rosa) and other Fair Housing or Housing Justice programs to provide consistent and cost-
effective service and ass_istance to citizens of the entire County.

LASC provides services countywide, including Petaluma and Santa Rosa. We partner with many
community organizations in Petaluma and Santa Rosa in addition to those that serve the entire
county, such as Petaluma People’s Services and Catholic Charities. Fair Housing Advocates of
Northern California and LASC are partners on a regional housing project which we lead. This project
is designed to coordinate tenant protection efforts throughout the jurisdiction and includes
collaborative policy work, collaborative trainings, and sharing best practices.

The County of Sonoma, as well as the seven municipalities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park,
Sebastopol, Sonoma, and Windsor, comprise the Urban County. At least 51% of beneficiaries served by the program
or activity funded by the Sonoma County Community Development Commission with CDBG or CDBG-CV funds must
be Urban County residents. Please state how your organization will obtain, verify and document program beneficiaries
meet this requirement:

Clients must be County of Sonoma residents in order to receive services from LASC. In 2021, over 55% of our clients came from
the Urban County zones. Due to COVID-19, we are performing initial intake screening over the phone. Intake caseworkers collect |
the information on our Eligibility-Client Intake Form and Housing Intake Form to verify whether the client is eligible for services.
As part of the intake, we ask the potential client to attest under penalty of perjury to their current address (to verify they reside in
County) and to their total household income. If we accept them as a client we create a case for them and enter their demographic
information, including City of residence and income level, in our client database. When a client who was screened over the phone
later comes into the office to sign court paperwork, we have them bring verification of residency and income at that time, and
retain documentation in the client’s file.

Sonoma County uses CDBG funding for Fair H“ousing and Housing Justice services. Federal regulations require that
51% of participants be low income. What method will your organization use to verify and track income eligibility?

100% of HOME project clients are low income. LASC uses low-income guidelines issued by HUD and the State Bar of California to determine
eligibility for services. Clients are screened for income eligibility during the initial intake process. Due to COVID-19, we are performing initial intake
screening over the phone. If the potential client's stated household income is within our guidelines, we request that they provide proof of income
via email or fax. Acceptable proofs of income include copies of an EBT card, recent paystubs, a letter describing benefits, a signed statement by
the individual attesting to spousal and/or child support for the potential client, three (3) months of bank statements, or recent tax return. Some of
our clients do not have email or access to a fax machine, if the client has no way to transmit the proof of income documents to us, the Intake Case
workers will have them attest under penalty of perjury to a self-declaration of income form. When a client who was screened over the phone later
comes into the office to sign court paperwork, we have them bring copies of proof of income at that time, or we have them sign a hard copy of the
self-declaration of income form they previously attested to, and this documentation is retained in the client’s file.

Please fill out the table below by stating the numbers served per category according to the stated time frames.

. Proposed number to be
served by project in
upcoming Fiscal Year

Current number served
as of the filing of this
application

(if project is currently in
operation)

Number served by project
last Fiscal Year

July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

July 1, 2021 to Current Date

July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021

Number of households

600

277

366

served
Number of persons
served 1 OOO 507 720
Page 5 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021

173 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

List the estimated percentage of the target population served in each of the income categories below:
‘Household Income List the total estimated percentage = Considering only Urban County
of the households served in each residents, list the estimated
of the income categories below percentage of households served
in each of the income categories
below
_ Extremely Low (Below 30% AMI) “ ' 53 55
Very Low (Between 31% -50% AMI) 26 o5
Low (Between 51% -80% AMI) 21 20
‘Moderate (Over 80% AMI) 0 0

Part 4: Project Financing and Budget
Funding Status

Is this application for new or renewal funding? ONew mERenewal
Has this project been previously funded by the CDC? mYes [INo
If this project received funding under a different name, please
state the name of the program (If “No” = NA) n/ a
mf; p:;r?centage of your project budget does your request 2 O %
Will funding requested supplant existing funding for the OYes =No
project?
Community Development Commission Funding History
FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 et
Funds Requested 185,100.00 185,000.00 185,000.00 195,000.00
Funds Awarded 185,000.00 185,000.00 185,000.00
Application Budget Overview
Total Organization Budget: 4,129,685.00
Total Project Budget: 990,000.00
The request represents this percentage of the project budget: |29y

Please state funding sources leveraged to support your proposed project and approximate percentage of the total
project budget that these represent.

Prior year CDC Funding history is for CDBG funds only. CDBG funds one full time attorney and one full time caseworker dedicated to providing services to residents in the Urban County zone. LASC's salary
scales and project operating costs have increased by 5%, so we are requesting an additional 5% in CDBG funds. The HOME Project also received additional CDC/County Funding in 2020-21 and 2021-22.
2022-2023 Funding Sources:

County of Sonoma / Board of Supervisors (ERAP) funds Year 2 $712,000: 72%

CDBG funds $195,000: 20%

State Bar of California IOLTA Fund 53,000: 6%

Community Foundation Sonoma County/Healdsburg Forever Fund $30,000:2%

The number of households and persons served reported above is the total for the HOME project. CDBG funding represents 20% of the project funding, so the anticipated numbers to be served with CDBG

funds are 20% of the total served or 200 persons.

Describe the aspects of the project design that are scalable. Indicate how many fewer participants will receive services
if the award is less than the amount requested.

Without CDBG funding we will have to fay off one attorney and one caseworker. This would reduce the number of people we can assist by at least 20% or 200 people.

Page 6 of 15 174 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/MHOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

What is your organization’s plan for the long-term financial sustainability of this project?

LASC has been obtaining funding from CDC for over 10 years. The geographic housing equity / rural
outreach component of the Housing Justice Project was first implemented with a contract from the CDC.
Our partnership with CDC is a core part of the HOME project and CDC/County of Sonoma continues to be a
primary funder for the project. In addition, LASC leverages funding for HOME from the State Bar of
California, private foundations, and individual donors, including the Community Foundation of Sonoma

County.

Page 7 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021
175 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Part 5: Attachments Required

Project sponsors must submit the following documents, as applicable, with their funding application:

B Project Description: Provide a description of the project that includes specific location information and geographic
boundaries. It should identify the maximum anticipated scope of the entire project, and delineate the specific
activities for which the applicant is requesting funding at this time.

B Authorizing Resolution: For non-profit organizations, attach a resolution from the Board of Directors authorizing
the submittal of the application.

B [RS Letter of Determination: Non-profit organizations only must submit an IRS Letter of Determination. Non-profit
organizations are not eligible for consideration unless non-profit status has been verified.

O

Letters of Commitment: Submit letters of commitment from all other funding sources.

Financial Documentation:
B Non-profit organizations must attach the following:
» Current operating budget
= Most recent completed final audit report
= |RS Form 990 for the most current tax year

= [f organization is not audited, attach a copy of the most recent internal financial statement that
has been approved by Board of Directors.

*Additional financial information may be requested by CDC staff as deemed appropriate.

O Sonoma County departments or agencies, the cities of Cotati, Cloverdale, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park,
Sebastopol, Sonoma, and the Town of Windsor are exempt from this requirement.

B Organizations are required to have written policies and procedures. The applicant must submit certification that
they have the following policies and procedures. (Please complete the forms found in Part 7 — Certifications)

= Accounting

= Conflict of Interest
= Procurement

= Record Retention

Page 8 of 15 176 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Part 6: Certifications
= Grant Certification Form — 1 (Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority)
= Grant Certification Form — 2 (Federal Regulations)
= Grant Certification Form — 3 (Conflict of Interest)

= Grant Certification Form — 4 (Policies and Procedures)

Page 9 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021
177 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/MOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 1
Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority

Legal Aid of Sonoma County

| hereby certify that (insert name of organization requesting funds) has
complied with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to the application and is an eligible applicant for the
requested funding.

The organization proposes to provide the program services or complete the project identified in this application. If
this application is approved and this organization receives the requested funding this organization agrees to adhere
to all relevant Federal, State, and local regulations and other assurances as required by the Commission.

In addition, the content of the application shall be incorporated as part of the written agreement and, as such, will be
used to monitor performance. Activities, commitments, and representations described in the written agreement that
are not subsequently made a part of the program/project as funded shall be considered a material contract failure
and may result in a repayment of all awarded funds and/or suspension from participation in future funding rounds.

| hereby certify that the organization is fully capable of fulfilling its obligation under this application, as stated herein.
I further certify that the information provided in this Funding Application is correct, accurate, and complete.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Ronit Rubinoff

Printed Name:

o Executive Director

Tit

e January 20, 2022

Page 10 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021

178 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 2
Federal Regulations - CDBG

Requirements

Federal Labor Standards
- Davis-Bacon

Standards

- Copeland Act (Anti-kickback)
- Contract Work Hours and Safety

Federal Regulations

24 CFR 92.354
29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5

Other References

40 U.S.C. 3141; 40 U.S.C. 3701

Section 3

24 CFR 135

Section 3 of the HUD Act of
1968, as amended (12 U.S.C.
1701u); 2 CFR 200.321

Enterprise Participation
(MBE/WBE)

Minority and Women Business

Small Business Act,
Section 3(a)
15 U.S.C. 632

12 U.S.C. 1701

Civil Rights and Non-
Discrimination

Title VI of Civil Rights Act

of 1964

Title VIII of the Civil Rights
Act of 1968

Section 104(b) and 109 of
Title | of the Housing and
Community Development Act
of 1974

Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Act of 1973

Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990

Age Discrimination Act of

1975

Executive Orders 11063,
11246, 11375, 11478, 12107,
12086, and 13279

24 CFR 570.601-602;

Executive Orders 11246;

U.S.C. 3601-3620)

Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, as amended
(42 U.S.C. 2000d)

Equal Opportunity in
Housing

Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Americans w/Disabilities Act
of 1990

Equal Employment Opportunity 570.607 12086
41 CFR 60 12 USC 1701u
Fair Housing Fair Housing Act (42 24 CFR Parts 8, 107, and 146

42 U.S.C. 200(d)

Executive Orders 11063, as
amended by Executive Order
12259

Age Discrimination Act of 1975,
as amended (42 U.S.C.

6101)

Debarred or Ineligible
Contractors

24 CFR 570.609; 24 CFR
24

Executive Orders 12549 and
12689

Reasonable Accommodation

24 CFR Part 8;
24 CFR 570.601-
602

Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Act of 1973

Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990

Page 11 0of 15

179 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Fire Safety Codes

Local ordinances

Building, Housing, and Zoning
Codes
Housing Quality Standards

24 CFR 570.208(b)(1)(iv);
208(b)(2)

Local ordinances

Lead-Based Paint

24 CFR 570.608; 24 CFR
Part 35

42 U.S.C 4821 et seq.

Anti-Lobbying

Appendix Il to Part 200 J;
31 U.8.C. 1352

Environmental, Historic
Preservation, National
Environmental Policy Act, Flood
Insurance Requirements

- Sitting near airports and
coastal barrier

- Fish and wildlife protection

- Flood plain/flood insurance

- National Historic Preservation
- Noise abatement and control
- Wetlands/Coastal zones

- Air quality

- Endangered species

- Thermal/Explosive hazards

24 CFR 570.503(b)(5)(i);
570.604; 570.605;
570.202;

24 CFR 58

References at:

24 CFR 58.6;
58.5570.605

Section 104(g), HCDA
42 U.S.C 4001 et seq.

Relocation, Real Property

Acquisitions, and One-for-One
Housing Replacement

- Uniform Relocation Act

- Residential anti-displacement
and relocation assistance

24 CFR 570.201(i);

570.606(b), (c), (d)
49 CFR 24
42 USC 4601 et seq

Sections 104(d); 105(a)(11),

HCDA
www.hud.gov/relocation

Competitive Procurement 2 CFR 200.319
Insurance and Bonding 2 CFR 200.310 and
200.325

Administrative and Accounting
Standards

2 CFR Part 200

Cost Considerations

2 CFR 200.402, 403, 404,
405, 406 and 407

Documentation and
Recordkeeping

24 CFR 570.506
24 CFR 570.502

Conflict of interest

2 CFR 200.112 and
24 CFR 570.611

Section 108 Loan Guarantees

24 CFR 570.700-570.709

Section 108, HCDA

Page 12 of 15

180 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021


www.hud.gov/relocation

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that all data contained in this application and all supportive
documentation is true, correct and will incorporate the above requirements. This submission has been duly

authorized by the governing body Of_L_e_g_a_LAj_d_Qf__S_Q_ﬂQ_m_a_Cﬂ_[m_tL

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Ronit Rubinoff

Printed Name:

. Executive Director
January 20, 2022

Tit

Da

Page 13 0of 15 Updated 12/10/2021
181 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 3
Conflict of Interest - CDBG

The standards in 2 CFR 200.318 provide that no employee, officer, or agent shall participate in the selection, award,
or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved.
Such a conflict would arise when an employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or
her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a
financial or other interest in the firm selected for an award.

The CDBG regulations at 24 CFR 570.611 provide that no person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or
elected official or appointed official of the recipient or subrecipient that are receiving CDBG funds and (1) who
exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted with CDBG funds; or (2)
who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to these
activities, may obtain a financial interest from a CDBG-assisted activity, or have any interest in any contract,
subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with
whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one (1) year thereafter.

A Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to participate in the decision making process for approval
of this application?

[JYes ENo

B. Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to gain inside information with regard to approval of this
application?
OYes mINo

C. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds obtain a financial interest or substantial benefit from this activity?
OYes EINo

D. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the

organization requesting funds have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect to funding this application, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or
business ties during the program year and one year thereafter? OYes [@No

if you answered YES to any of the above questions, a letter must be submitted with the application that
includes the following information:

1) A disclosure of the nature and extent of the conflict
2) A description of how public disclosure will be made
3) A qualified attorney's opinion that the conflict of interest does not violate federal, state, or local law

Note: If you are approved for funding, the Commission must issue a public notice of the disclosure with a 15-day
public comment period, and then submit to HUD for approval prior to execution of a grant agreement or release
of funds.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Ronit Rubinoff
Printed Name:

Executive Director 01/20/2022

Title: Date:

Page 14 of 15 182 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 4

Policies & Procedures

The undersigned does hereby certify that the applicant organization has the following policies and/or procedures
and can produce them if requested by the Commission:

Accounting policy/procedure

Procurement policy/procedure

Conflict of Interest policy/procedure

Record Retention policy/procedure

Language Access Plan & Limited English Proficiency Policy

oObhwN -

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Ronit Rubinoff

Printed Name:

. Executive Director
.. January 20, 2022

Tit

Da

Page 15of 15 Updated 12/10/2021
9 183 of 395 P



N\

"

Legalz%%{%

OF SONOMA COUNTY

2022-2023 CDBG Funding Application: Project Description

The HOME - Housing Justice Project (HOME) provides full scope legal services
related to eviction defense, habitability, and preservation of housing benefits.
HOME services are provided to residents throughout Sonoma County. Fair
Housing issues may arise in any of those contexts. If a tenant presents with a Fair
Housing issue, we assert that Fair Housing claim. Our trainings inform tenants
about all their rental housing rights, including Fair Housing rights.

HOME helps tenants at our office, and pre-pandemic, at outreach sites
throughout the County, including providing home visits. Please note: The
pandemic has impacted our ability to do outreach and to serve clients in
person, thus the number of new cases we open has been temporarily impacted.
However, case numbers reported in this grant have been replaced by phone
services. Our housing hotline has exploded over the past two years. Last fiscal
year we responded to over 5,000 housing calls, and are on track to respond to
even more calls this fiscal year.

HOME provides legal representation to low-income and Spanish-speaking
tenants. HOME provides legal education, negotiations with landlords,
preparation of pleadings, and in court representation. HOME assists with eviction
defense, Section 8 terminations, habitability, retaliation, relocation, reasonable
accommodation requests, and discrimination issues.

We also provide community education workshops on housing rights at
apartment complexes, mobile home parks, and community events for tenants,
and for landlords and property managers upon request. For example, this
month we are presenting at an SRJC property management class per the
request of the instructor who is a property manager. Our training covers a range
of housing issues including habitability, Section 8, mobile home park rights,
eviction notice requirements, and Fair Housing rights.

Without legal assistance, tenants risk becoming homeless because they are
evicted without time to find alternate housing, and without resources to
relocate. HOME negotiates extra time for tenants and saves tenants fees and
costs they can instead use toward relocation. We leverage over $1,500,000.00 in
housing cost savings for our clients annually, as well as over 1,900 weeks of
additional time for clients in their housing. By helping Section 8 tenants preserve
their benefits, HOME helps the most vulnerable tenants retain their housing.
HOME stops unlawful evictions. Over the past two years we prevented over 350
tenant clients from losing their housing amid the pandemic. Clients like Ron and
Sandra.

1fPage
184 of 395


https://1,500,000.00

OF SONOMA COUNTY

Ron is 79-years old. He is a military veteran and suffers from severe depression,
chronic migraines, and cognitive decline resulting from a head injury. Ron resides
in low-income senior housing. He received warning notices due to his unit being
messy; Ron was hoarding. Adult Protective Services got help for Ron in cleaning
the unit. However, the property manager still issued an eviction notice. APS
referred Ron to Legal Aid. HOME advocated for Ron based on his disabilities.
Because of our help, Ron passed his unit inspection and was able to stay in his
apartment! Ron is happy and relieved and is now more secure in his housing.

Sandra was impacted by the Covid-19 shutdowns and lost her job hApril of
2020. Due to the backlog of unemployment cases, her EED paperwork was
not processed until June. Sandra was unable to pay herrent. Unfortunately,
she also did not understand that to protect herself from being evicted she
was supposed to give herlandlord a financial distress declaration. Sandra
was being evicted when she came to Legal Aid.

HOME represented Sandra at her hearingand successfully argued that
Sandra'’s original failure to providethe declaration was due to a reasonable
mistake and that the complexity of the new law demands more leniency
for laypeople. The case was dismissed, and Sandra was able to remain in
her homel!

Our habitability work preserves limited housing stock for our most vulnerable
residents. Tenants like Octavia. Octavia is 4 years old. She lived in an apartment
without heat. Worse still, Octavia tested at 10 times the allowable rate for lead in
her blood; she got the lead poisoning from her apartment. The family felt they
had no rights because they are undocumented. The landlord knew this and
took advantage of their fear. We went out to Octavia’s home to document the
problem. We inspected the property and forced the landlord to relocate the
family to a safe place at his expense while he made repairs. We then ensured
that the apartment was safe and had heat, before they returned. Because of
HOME's intervention, Olivia's blood/lead levels returned to normal, and she and
her family maintained their housing.

HOME engages in policy work around tenant protections and rent stabilization.
This systemic work assists the County in removing barriers to Fair Housing related
to the affordability and conditions of its housing stock.

2|Page
185 of 395



HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM (HOME)

Estimated HOME Funding Available:FY 2022 — 23: $782,642
FY 2021 - 22: $660,4161

CHDO Set-Aside? $254,252
Non-CHDO Projects $1,188,806

Non-CHDO Applications

. L Amount CDC Staff
Applicant Project Name Requested Recommendation
Burbank Housing Development
Corporation Dry Creek Commons $400,000 $400,000
Sonoma County Housing
. Tenant Based Rental
Authorlty (fund request, not an Assistance $500,000 $500,000
applicant)
Total Requested $900,000
Total Estimated
Available »1,188,806 $900,000

Note: No CHDO applications were received.

' FY 2021-22 HOME funds were not fully committed and are carried over for award to projects

in FY 2022-23.
2 CHDO Set-Aside equals 15% of each fiscal year’'s HOME allocation, as required by HOME

regulations. Unallocated CHDO funds will roll over into next year’s CHDO set-aside.

186 of 395



DEVELOPER NAME: Burbank Housing Development Corporation (BHDC)
PROJECT NAME: Dry Creek Commons
AMOUNT REQUESTED: $400,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

“A 100% affordable 58-unit affordable family rental housing project on a 3.52 acre City owned
property located at 155 Dry Creek Road, Healdsburg. The project consists of two, four story
apartment buildings of approximately 26,090 gross square feet and 47,486 gross square feet
connected by an above ground pedestrian bridge.

All of the units will be offered to extremely low, very low- and low-income households earning
between 30-60% area median income. To further meet the City’s housing needs, Reach for
HOME (RFH) will have first priority to approximately 5 of these units, to help address the City’s
very low-income supportive housing needs. BHDC will partner with RFH to provide supportive
services to these residents. There will be ground floor accessible units.”

PROJECT TYPE, NUMBER AND SIZE OF UNITS, INCOME LEVELS TO BE SERVED:

Multifamily Rental, 58 1-3-bedroom units with one 2-bedroom manager’s unit. 57 units will
serve income levels between 30%-60%:

6 units —30% AMI

7 units - 40% AMI

29 units — 50% AMI

15 units — 60% AMI

The application states that five (5) of the units will be designated as “HOME-assisted”.

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS:

Use of funds will be for predevelopment through start of construction.

FUNDING POLICIES (Housing Goals and Objectives)

Does the project address one of the highest priorities of: 1) creating or preserving affordable
housing, 2) building infrastructure or public facilities that support creation or preservation of
affordable housing, or 3) building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income
communities?

Yes, the project will create new affordable housing.

187 of 395



If the application is for acquisition and/or preservation, are the units at risk of becoming
market rate housing?

N/A

Does the project set aside homes for persons or households experiencing homelessness or
who are at imminent risk of becoming homeless?

Yes, five of the units will be set aside for homeless households/individuals.

Will the project provide units for special needs populations?

Yes, the project is a 100% affordable, it will provide a number of the housing units for homeless
households, additionally the ground floor will have ADA compliant housing units.

THRESHOLD CRITERIA:

Is the project consistent with the General Plan of the jurisdiction in which it is located?

Yes, per the City’s adopted Land Use Plan, the property is designated Mixed Use with an
allowed density of 10-16 units per acre, accommodating the 58 units with State Density Bonus.

Does the project Afflrmatlvelv Further Fair Housing?

Yes, the project’s Iocatuon provides easy access to services, work opportunities and amenltles
Additionally, there will be bicycle parking to encourage alternative modes of transportation.

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliver the proposed project?

Yes, Burbank Housing Development Corporation is a local non-profit developer who has the
capacity and experience in creating, preserving and managing affordable housing
developments.

SELECTION CRITERIA

Will the requested funds for the project be leveraged against total development costs at least
7:1?

Yes, based on the financial structure showing on the application, if the applicant obtains
financing as planned the requested funds will leverage at least 7 to 1, however none of the
financing is committed.

188 of 395



If applicant receives all of the requested local funding, each $1 of HOME funds would leverage
$68.00 from other sources. The full amount of HOME funds requested would be $80,000 for
each of the five (5) HOME-assisted units. As noted on the table below, the applicant is also
requesting $900,000 in CDBG funds from the SCCDC.

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status

9% LIHTC $1,610,763 Not committed, applying
March/Jull 2022

City of Healdsburg Land $4,000,000 ENRA

Loan

SCCDC HOME $400,000 This request

SCCDC CDBG $900,000 Requested

Deferred Developer Fee $2,190,000 Pending

Construction Loan $17,994,709 Pending

Deferred Costs $372,160

TOTAL $27,467,632

ESTIMATED PERMANENT FINANCING

Funding Source Amount Commitment Status

9% LIHTC $16,107,632 Not committed, applying
March/July 2022

Perm Loan $5,560,000 Pending

City of Healdsburg Land $4,000,000 Pending

Loan

CDBG/HOME $1,300,000 Pending

Deferred Developer Fee $500,000 Pending

TOTAL $27,467,632

Does the developer demonstrate consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and / or
other federal and state funding to develop housing within the last seven years?

Yes, with over 40 years of experience Burbank Housing has successfully applied and obtained
local, state and federal funds to finance affordable housing developments.

Does the project demonstrate existing support from the jurisdiction in which it is located via
letters of support, funding commitments, etc.?

Yes, the applicant has entered into an Exclusive Negotiating Rights Agreement with the City of
Healdsburg for property acquisition, contingent upon obtaining required entitlements,
environmental clearances and financing to successfully complete the construction of the

189 of 395



project. The City Council of City of Healdsburg also provided a resolution supporting BHDC's
application for FY 2022-23 CDBG and HOME funding for this project.

Does the project demonstrate advanced readiness via (a) entitlements; (b) financing
commitments; (c) building permits, (d) environmental review?

The project is in the initial phase of the development, there are no financial commitments at
this time, and most of the permanent financing is primarily dependent on a successful and
highly competitive Low-Income Housing Tax Credit application. The project is currently in
pending Design Review and not ready to obtain building permits, and the CEQA environmental
review is in process. Additionally, a portion of the property is on wetlands, which could
potentially be problematic or require mitigation work.

Does the applicant have adequate provisions for long-range maintenance and operations?

Yes, Burbank Housing is a highly qualified affordable housing developer with a long history of
developing and managing affordable housing projects, adequately staffed with dedicated
departments for development services, compliance, accounting, and management services.

Does project’s proposed number of units exceed the minimum HOME requirements?

Yes, the application states that five (5) units will be designated as HOME-assisted, which
exceeds the minimum number of HOME units, which is 4 units.

Are the proposed rents below the maximum rents allowed by the HOME requirements?

Yes, the application provides a table showing the expected rent amounts, in compliance with
the HOME program guidelines.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

The applicant states they intend to apply for 9% LIHTC no later than the July round of 2022.
Awards are generally announced three months later and construction must proceed within 180
days of an award. If successful, the start of construction is estimated to occur no later than
March / April of 2023. The City of Healdsburg will move from an ENRA to a Disposition and
Development Agreement (DDA) upon the successful completion of entitlements and CEQA.

CONSEQUENCES OF NO FUNDING:

The applicant states “Funding less than $1,000,000 would not be feasible because associated
construction costs resulting from this funding source would not offset and the competitiveness
with TCAC would erode further.” They applied for $400,000 in HOME funds and $900,000 of
HOME funds, for a total request of $1,300,000.

190 of 395



STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The project is in the initial phase of development with funding commitments yet to be
obtained, and is pending environmental clearance and complete site acquisition negotiations.
There are a number of processes still to be done in order for the project to be shovel ready.
Therefore, staff recommends funding this project with the conditions included in the table

below.

PRELIMINARY CONDITION(S) OF APPROVAL

Allocated funding will be a grant ]:1 aloan ]Z[

All loans for Affordable Predevelopment costs are subject to the provisions of the
Sonoma County Community Development Commission (CDC) Loan Policies, the FY
2022-2023 Funding Policies, and the HOME Final Rule.

Developer must demonstrate site control at the time HOME funding is made available
to the County by HUD.

HOME funds will be used to reimburse allowable Predevelopment costs only.

A NEPA environmental review must be completed before Developer can be offered a
Development Agreement. Evidence that sufficient funds for this purpose are available
from another source to pay for this work must be provided.

In compliance with Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973, developer
must design and construct 5 percent of the dwelling units, or at least one unit,
whichever is greater, to be accessible for persons with mobility disabilities. An
additional 2 percent of the dwelling units, or at least one unit, whichever is greater,
must be accessible for persons with hearing or visual disabilities.

The CDC will make the HOME loan to Burbank Housing as the Developer. A
subsequent assignment to a limited partnership must comply with federal regulations.
Notwithstanding this requirement, Developer may assign the loan to a limited
partnership prior to project completion and occupancy of the development.

Developer will be required to submit evidence that all required construction and
permanent financing has been committed prior to being offered a Developer
Agreement.

Developer will be required to submit an acceptable site appraisal that demonstrates
that the “as is” value of the property will fully secure the loan prior to receiving a
funding commitment. The CDC will require the HOME loan to record in a sufficiently
senior lien position to ensure that the value of the completed development will fully
secure the loan.

191 of 395




The level of HOME funding allocated to the development cannot exceed the amount
that a federal subsidy layering analysis would permit. The CDC must complete a
federal subsidy layering analysis prior to final loan approval. Developer will be
required to submit an updated Sources and Uses Table that breaks out the estimated
cost of any community building or other non-housing components, as well as other
required data to enable the CDC to complete this analysis.

10.

Approval of the requested HOME funds will require a match obligation equal to 25% of
any HOME award. Any property tax waiver will qualify as sources to satisfy the match
obligation. When the sources are known, the CDC can calculate their match value and
confirm whether the project will comply with this HOME Program requirement.

11.

Developer must satisfy all regulatory requirements and all conditions of approval that
are set forth in the SCCDC Loan Policies as prerequisite to the CDC offering the
Developer Agreement for execution within 12 months of the start of the fiscal year
associated with the award. Disbursement of funds must be initiated within 24 months
of the date on which the Developer Agreement is offered for execution. All funds must
be disbursed within 36 months of the date on which the Developer Agreement is
offered for execution. Funding awards that do not meet these deadlines will be
reprogrammed.

12.

The project must be completed within four years of the date on which the Developer
Agreement is offered for execution. Project completion will be documented by the
submission of a temporary or permanent certificate of occupancy for HOME funded
units. HOME assisted rental units must be occupied by income-eligible households
within 12 months of project completion.

192 of 395




SONOMA COUNTY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
FUNDING APPLICATION: AFFORDABLE
HOUSING AND CAPITAL PROJECTS

Please review the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), Application
Guidelines, and the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies
before submitting your application. All applications must meet the eligibility This space reserved for CDC date and time stamp

criteria found in the Funding Policies and the requirements set forth in the
NOFA.

Part 1: Applicant Information

Legal name of organization: Burbank Housing Development Corporation

Organization’s DUNS number: 103427225
Contact Information

Authorized Representative Name, title: Efren Carrillo, Vice President of Residential Development
(Qlty/Town Manager, Executive Phone: (707) 200-2349
Director, or other): —
B Email: ecarrillo@burbankhousing.org

Primary point of contact: Name, title: Karen Massey, Senior Project Mananger

Phone: (707) 490-8467

3 Email: kmassey@burbankhousing.org

Organization is a: = Non-profit organization ~ IFor-profit organization =~ [Local government

LJCommunity Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
LICommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

Organization mailing address: 1425 Corporate Center Parkway, Santa Rosa, CA 95407

Organization website: www.burbankhousing.org

Organizational Capacity and Experience

Describe applicant’s record of administrative and programmatic capacity using federal, state, local, and/or private grant
funds, explaining any past issues or challenges administering grant funds.

Burbank Housing is a 41 year-old non-profit affordable housing development corporation headquartered
_in Santa Rosa and working in the North Bay. Burbank has completed more affordable housing projects
than any other developer, more than 70 affordable rental housing projects totaling more than 3,000 units,
predominantly in Sonoma County, and approximately 1,000 units of affordable ownership housing
completed or currently under construction. Burbank has successfully applied for local, state and federal
affordable housing funding hundreds of times in order to populate this portfolio. Seeking and
implementing private and public sector funding awards is Burbank's core business and we are staffed
accordingly with dedicated departments for development services, compliance, accounting, and resident
services. Burbank also self-manages through Burbank Housing Management Corporation. |

193 of 395



www.burbankhousing.org
mailto:kmassey@burbankhousing.org

Sonoma County Community Development Commission

CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Appilication

Part 2: Project Descriptionw

Brief Description of Project or Program N

The description provided here will be incorporated into the staff reports provided to the Community Development
Committee, Cities and Towns Advisory Committee, and/or the Board of Supervisors. Descriptions MUST BE 125 words
or less. It will not be edited and will be truncated at 125 words. For housing related applications, please include
information on the number of affordable units in the project, accessible units (types, number of units, and accessibility

they respond to one or more).

type). A longer project description may be attached (see Part 6, Attachments). If you are requesting CDBG-CV funds,
please include how the proposed activity will prevent, prepare for or respond to Coronavirus (activities must demonstrate

A 100% affordable 58-unit affordable family rental housing project on a 3.52 acre City owned property located at 155
Dry Creek Road, Healdsburg. The project consists of two, four story apartment buildings of approximately 26,090 gross
square feet and 47,486 gross square feet connected by an above ground pedestrian bridge.

All of the units will be offered to extremely low, very low and low income households earning between 30-60% area
median income. To further meet the City s housing needs, Reach for HOME (RFH) will have first priority to

approximately 5 of these units, to help address the City s very low income supportive housing needs. BHDC will
partner with RFH to provide supportive services to these residents. There will be ground floor accessible units.

Part 3: Project Information

Project Name

Dry Creek Commons

Project Type

Using Appendix A of the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies, fill in the field below.

CDBG or HOME eligible activity:

CDBG (Pre-development) / HOME (New Construction)

Funding Request

Estimated project budget:

~ $$27,500,000

Amount of funding request:

$1,300,000 ($900k CDBG / $400k HOME)

Funding source:

ECDBG ®WHOME CJHOME-CHDO [ICDBG-CV

Property Information (as applicable)

Project location (physical address or cross st;eé{é):

156 Dry Creek Road, Healdsburg

of any city/town?

Assessor’s Parcel Number(s): - 089-071-002

Census tract(s): 1539.05

Total acreage: 3.52

Current use of site: Vacant

Is project located in a 100-year flood plain? mYes =

FEMA FIRM panel number: 06097C0363E, 06097C0344E
Is the project, or any part of it, located within the limits = m=Yes DNo

Healdsburg

If yes, which city/town?

~Which jurisdictibn(s) must approve the project?

~ City of Healdsburg

What local approvals and entitlements will be required
to develop the proposed project?

Major Design Review

Date entitlements and permits expected to be
approved:

July / August 2022

Page 2 of 21

Updated 12/10/ 1
194 of 395 paate 202




Sonoma County Community Development Commission

CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Status of Site Control

lde‘nt\if‘y the form of site control:

'w[jOwnership (é&ach copy of grant deed 6r deed of trust) |
[OLease (attach copy of lease)
[1Option agreement (attach copy of agreement)

UPurchase agreement (attach copy of agreement)
= Other; explain: Exclusive Negotiating Rights Agreement

Note: If funding application is for acquisition, also attach copy
of current appraisal if avgilable.

Status of Environmental or Other Approvals

representative of the jurisdiction in which the project is

Applicant must obtain certification of project's consistency with the applicable general plan, signed by an authorized

located (hou§ing rehabilitation projects excluded).

Status of environmental review:

'CEQA Underway

Status of land use, buil“‘ding permits, or other
approvals:

Pending Entitle’mé‘nts (Design Review)

Explain any land use (zoning, lot split, set back, or
environmental) constraints that must be resolved prior
to proceeding with the project:

Wetlands & Riparian Setback — The project site contains a total of 0.57 acres of seasonal wetlands and 0.14 acres of waters of the U.S. and state,
i known as Foss Creek. The seasonal wetlands occur as two features: a 0.53 acre wetland that occurs in the south-central portion of the project site
¢ that drains from the northeast to southwest towards Foss Creek and a 0,04 acre wetiand in the northeast portion of the project site that is fed by a
slorm drain culvert under the railroad tracks that flows onto the property and towards Foss Creek in an east-west direction. Foss Creek and its
associated 35’ riparian comidar setback forms the western boundary of the project site; however, only a portion of Foss Creek falls within the
property baundary so that only 0.14 acres of waters of the U.S. and state occur within the project site.

Status of Relocation Activities

Relocation Assistance Plan.

In order to receive funding, projects must comply with the Sonoma County Residential Anti-Displacement and

Will the project involve demolition of any structure or
relocation of any persons or businesses?

[OYes mNo

Explain the status of any demoilition or relocation
activities:

NA

Existing Improvements

EXISTING COMMERCIAL IMPROVEMENTS
Number of structures

NA

Year built

Number of vacant structures

Number of occupied structureé

Estimated cost of relocation

EXISTING RESIDENTIAL IMPROVEMENTS

SRO  Studio 1-BR | 2-BR  3BR  4BR

Number of existing units

A

Number of occupied units

Number of vacant units

Number of substandard units

Number of units to be demolished

Estimated cost of relocation

Page 3 of 21

Updated 12/10/2021
195 of 395




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/MOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Phasing
Can project proceed if phased or if given partial funding? Explain the effect of phasing or partial funding on the project’s

ability to move forward. -
The project is not programmed to be phased because of the limited developable land area and
construction calls for just two connected buildings.

Funding less than $1,000,000 would not be feasible because associated construction costs resulting
from this funding source would not offset and the competitiveness with TCAC would erode further.

Demonstration of Need
Describe the need for the project or program and include evidence of need (e.g., cite waiting lists for services, census
data, documentation of deteriorated conditions, or other evidence).

The project would provide 58 rental units including 1 managers unit) at rents ranging from 30% AMI
to 60% AMI. The waiting lists for nearby projects (e.g. 1201 Grove Street) are over 2 years with

enormous demand.

Outcomes
wpescribe the outcomes expected to result from the project or program.

Housing will be provided to families at an early date.

Part 4: Timeline

Target Dates

List anticipated target date for each of the major milestones below. (Housing projects use timeline in supplemental
application instead.)

Major Milestone ) Target Completion Date Funds Expended

Environmental Review |
Site Control o
Design Completion

Bid Period Closes
Construction Begins
Construction Complete
Notice of Completion

Page 4 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021
9 196 of 395 P



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 5: Sources and Uses
Housing projects use budget in supplemental application instead.

Sources
Source of Funds Donations Loans . Grants In Kind‘ Total
 Total
Uses
~ Projected Uses Donations Loans Grants In Kind Total

_Land Acquisition

Environmental Review

Architect

Engineering

Project Fees

Site Improvements

,_ Other:

Other:

Total

Page 5 of 21

197 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 6: Attachments Required

Project sponsors must submit the following documents, as applicable, with their funding application:

Project Description: Provide a description of the project that includes specific location information and geographic
boundaries. It should identify the maximum anticipated scope of the entire project, and delineate the specific
activities for which the applicant is requesting funding at this time. Applications for housing-related projects should
instead include a Housing Project Description, described in Supplemental Application below.

Project Location Map: Attach an 8 1/2"x 11” map showing the project location, clearly showing the project area in
relation to surrounding communities.

Authorizing Resolution: For non-profit organizations, attach a resolution from the Board of Directors authorizing
the submittal of the application.

City/Town Authorizing Resolution: Attach a city/town council resolution endorsing the project for those located
within the seven incorporated jurisdictions or for those sponsored by one of the seven incorporated jurisdictions.

General Plan Consistency: Attach a certification of consistency with the applicable jurisdiction’s General Plan.

IRS Letter of Determination: Non-profit organizations only must submit an IRS Letter of Determination. Non-profit
organizations are not eligible for consideration unless non-profit status has been verified.

Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) verification: For CHDO’s applying for HOME CHDO
funds, submit a Sonoma County CHDO letter or plan to become an independent, fully functioning CHDO entity.

Letters of Commitment: Submit letters of commitment from all other funding sources.
Financial Documentation:
B Non-profit organizations must attach the following:
= Current operating budget
= Most recent completed final audit report
= |RS Form 990 for the most current tax year

= |f organization is not audited, attach a copy of the most recent internal financial statement that
has been approved by Board of Directors.

*Additional financial information may be requested by CDC staff as deemed appropriate.

B Sonoma County departments or agencies, the cities of Cotati, Cloverdale, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park,
Sebastopol, Sonoma, and the Town of Windsor are exempt from this requirement.

B Organizations are required to have written policies and procedures. The applicant must submit certification that

they have the following policies and procedures. (Please complete the forms found in Part 7 — Certifications)
= Accounting
= Conflict of Interest
= Procurement
= Record Retention

Page 6 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021

198 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commissicn
CDBG/MHOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Supplemental Application:
Public Facilities or Other Infrastructure Projects

Define project service area

List all census block groups in service
area:

For sidewalk / curb cut projects

Location of sidewalks (cross streets):

Define the service area; list all Census
block groups in service area:

Number of curb cuts (anticipated):

Page 7 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021
199 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Supplemental Application:
Housing-Related Projects

Fill out this supplemental application if the project will result in the construction of new housing units, preservation of
existing housing units, or the acquisition of land for new housing units.

Project Information

Project typeﬁ = New construction [JRehabilitation  [IAcquisition
Total number of units to be constructed 5 8
or rehabilitated:
Total number of affordable units (new 57
construction or acquisition):
For HOME funding requests, total 5
number of HOME-assisted units:
Total development costs: $27.500,000
Contact Information of All Parties
APPLICANT INFORMATION Name: Burbank Housing Development Corporation

Address:

1425 Corpprate Center Parkway

1 City, State, Zip:

Santa Rosa, CA 95407

Contact person:

Efren Carillo

Telephone:

(707) 200-2349

Email:

ecarrillo@burbankhousing.com

Organization is a:

= Non-profit organization
UlLocal government ‘
O Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) '
LICommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

UFor-profit organization

PARTNER OR RELATED ENTITIES

Name:

Reach for Home

Address:

443 Hudson Street

City, State, Zip:

Healdsburg, CA 95448

Contact person:

Margaret Sluyk

Telephone:

(951) 550-9359

Email:

margaret@reachforhome.org

Organization is a:

® Non-profit organization
Local government
CCommunity Housing Development Organization (CHDO)
LICommunity Based Development Organization (CBDO)

CIFor-profit organization

ARCHITECT

Name:

Van Meter Williams Pollack LLP
Address: 333 Bryant Street, Suite 300
City, State, Zip: San Francisco, CA 94107
Contact person: Rick Williams, Partner
Telephone: (415) 974-5352 x203
Email: rick@vmp.com
Page 8 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021

200 of 395


mailto:rick@vmp.com
mailto:margaret@reachforhome.org

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Name: TBD

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

Address:

City, State, Zip:

Contact person:

Telephone:

Email:

License no.:

PROPERTY MANAGER

Name: Burbank Housing Management Corporation

Address: 1425 Corporate Center Parkway

City, State, Zip: Santa Rosa, CA 95407

Contact person: Annie McNearny

- Telephone:

(707) 303-1026

Email: amcneany@burbankhousing.org

~ Status of Entitlements and/or Services

k ‘Ifw‘s"ite is located in an unincorporated

submit an application to Sonoma
County Planning & Resource
Management Department for:

- OState Density Bonus Program
area of the County, have you or will you

U County of Sonoma Supplemental Density Bonus Program
UHousing Element Type A Rental Housing Opportunity Program
[UIHousing Element Type C Ownership Housing Opportunity Program

Date of application:

If answering yes to any of the above, contact Commission staff to discuss
schedule for preparation and Board approval of Affordable Housing Agreement.

Status of planned water and sewer
service:

If not yet provided, explain how water
and sewer service will be provided.

City of Healdsburg is the provider of both water and sewer. There
is adequate capacity.

Does the project have Article 34
authority from the jurisdiction in which it
is located?

U Yes. If yeé, attach a copy bf the allocation letter.

s No. If no, attach written legal opinion describing why Article 34 referendum
authority is not required.

Proposed Tenancy

Household types:

SRO

| Studio

1BR

2BR

3BR

4BR

Number of éach type of unit

28

15

15

Average square feet per unit

453

705

952

Total nq(njber of units:

28

15

15

How mahy of the total units will be
reserved for the following:

Homeless persons

Elderly persons

D{iks‘abled persons (see note)

‘Special needs populations

Resident manager

o Supportive Housing - Reach for Home

Unrestricted -

Page 9 of 21

201 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021



mailto:amcneany@burbankhousing.org

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Note: In new construction and substantial rehabilitation rental projects assisted with HOME or CDBG funds, at least five percent of units
(not less than one unit) must be accessible to persons with mobility impairments, and an additional two percent of units (not less than 1
unit) must be accessible to persons with sensory impairments. Projects assisted with other funds must satisfy applicable federal, state,
and local regulations regarding the provision of accessible housing. Ownership housing projects assisted with funds from these
programs must comply with applicable federal, state, and local laws regarding the provision of accessible units.

Estimated Monthly Rent Levels (before deduction of utility aliowances)

Household types: = SRO  Studio 1BR 2BR 3BR 4BR
Units | Rent | Units = Rent : Units | Rent | Units Rent Units A Rent @ Units ’Rent
Extremely Low-Income (30% of AMI) 2 654 2 784 2 907
‘Very Low-Income (50% of AMI) 15 1091 7 1308 7 1512
60% of AMI 7 1309 5 1569 3 1815
B e oz 1 o] 2 T

 Market Rate (>80% of AMI)

Resident Manager’'s Unit

Estimated Utility Allowance*

*Please prdvide list of tenant-paid utilities, the utility profile for all appliances, and the Utility Allowance for each unit .type.

Estimated Affordable Sales Prices (ASP)

Household types:

' SRO Studio

3BR 4BR

Units : ASP . Units | ASP

ASP

Units

ASP

Units ASP  Units ASP

Extremely Low-Income (30% of AMI)

Very Low-Income (50% of AMI)

60% of AMI

Low-Income (80% of AMI)

100% of AMI

120% of AMI

LENGTH OF AFFORDABILITY PERIOD

What is the proposed length of
affordability for the affordable units?

M'Syepe Funﬂding Policies

55 Years

Project Schedule

Include all major milestones such as land acquisition, general plan amendment and rezoning, density bonus / housing
element housing opportunity area approval, design review approval, schematic design, design development, construction
documents, construction phase, initial occupancy, and, if applicable, assignment of the project to a limited partnership or
other entity. Specify tentative dates for closing the proposed loan and first request for funds, as well as when construction
financing and permanent financing will close. Please provide realistic dates for completion of activities and
expenditure of funds. These dates will be included in the applicable funding agreement.

Perm Loan Conversion

Major Milestone Target Completion Date Funds Expended
‘Completon of Etements (Design Reviow) & Consiuion Documents 3/15/2023 $900,000
Start of Construction 4/1/2023 $400,000
Initial Occupancy 6/1/2024
9/1/2024

Page 10 of 21

202 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission

CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Development Budget

ESTIMATED PREDEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION FINANCING

Lender Amount Interest Rate / Use(s) Commitment HOME match
Term Status qualifying?
9% LIHTC $1,610763 Construction  Applyin March/duly
C|ty of Healdsburg Land Loan $4,000,000 3% Residual Constructio‘n» N HWENRA
County HOME /CDBG | $1,300,000 Residual  Predev/Construcon  Pending
Deferred Developer Fee $2,190,000 - Construction Pending
Construction Loan $17,994,709 5% Construction Pending
Deferred Costs $372,16Q ) Constructioin Pending
Total $27,467,632
ESTIMATED PERMANENT FINANCING -

. Lender - Amount Interest Rate / Use(s) Cbmmitment HOME match
 Term Status qualifying?
9‘?(9 LIHTC ‘16,107,632 Hard / Soft Apply in March / July.

Permanant Loan ' $5,560,000 4.4% Hard / Soft Pending
City of Healdsburg Land Loan  $4,000,000 3% Residual Hard / Soft Pending
County HOME / CDBG $1,300,000 ~ Residual Hard / Soft Pending
Deferred Developer Fee $500,000 Residual Hard / Soft Pen’d‘ip’g
Total $27,467,632
Summary of First-Year Operating Budget
Rental projects only
Total Per unit
Gross potential rental income 781,680 13,477
Plus other iﬁncome (e.g., laundry) 8,700 150
Less 5% vacancy / rent loss (39,519) (681)
Effective Gross Income 750,861 12,945
Less total operating expenseé; 377,000 6,500
Ir_:Ssesn?:Symet\t‘ to replacement 250 OO |
Less payfﬁénf to other reserves B
Net operéting income 373861 . 6,446
Less debt service péyments 311,551 5,371
Net cash flow 63,310 1,091
Debt service coverage ratio 1.20

*Include $75 per unit, per year monitoring fee in the operating budget

Page 11 of 21

203 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commissicn
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing

In planning for the use of CDBG and HOME, the County of Sonoma must adhere to the mandate in the Fair Housing Act to
Affirmatively Further Fair Housing. This means that not only must all HUD funded programs and activities combat
discrimination, but they must also overcome patterns of segregation and the denial of access to opportunity that are part of
national and local history. The ways in which a project or program can do this meaningfully are listed below, and to be
considered for funding, all applicant projects must overcome patterns of segregation in one or more of the ways listed.

In which of the following ways does the proposed project overcome patterns of segregation and the denial of
access to opportunity (check all that apply)? Please provide an explanation of how the project accomplishes the

item (s) checked.
O It makes an investment in a segregated and high poverty neighborhood to improve conditions and eliminate disparities in
access to opportunity between residents of this neighborhood and the rest of the jurisdiction and region. ’

Explain:

3 It maintains and preserves existing affordable rental housing stock to reduce disproportionate housing needs.

Explain:

E ft ”p/)fc;/ides affordable housing in an area(s) of opportunity to combat segregation and promote integratioh‘.m

Explain:

155 Dry Creek will further fair housing principles by expanding the choice of affordable and accessible
rental housing serving low-income households in Healdsburg and the surrounding region.

This enhancement of accessibility and affordability is especially pronounced for the 5 dedicated units
for Reach for Home in serving individuals with severe and persistent housing insecurity.

O It provides mixed income housing designed to integrate racially and ethnically concentrated areas of poverty.

Explain:

[ It increases access for individuals with protected characteristics to existing affordable housing in higher opportunity
areas.
Explain:

Page 12 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021
204 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Homelessness-Related Questions

if project is a permanent supportive
housing project, identify service
provider:

Describe approach to lowering barriers to potential tenants to entering permanent housing (i.e., accepting referrals from
Coordinated Intake:

Page 13 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021
205 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Additional Attachments Required

In addition to the attachments required in Part 6 of the funding application, housing-related project sponsors must submit
the following as attachments to their applications:

B Housing project description: Provide a written narrative to describe your project. At a minimum, the narrative
should include the following:
e Description of the type of housing proposed
e Target population(s)
e Planned services for residents
* Proposed use(s) of the requested funding and anticipated environmental issues (i.e., vernal pools,
heritage trees, riparian corridor, contamination, flood plain, endangered species, historical and
archeological impacts)
e Authorized entity that will execute the funding agreement and loan documents if applicable for the funds
requested in this application
e If the project will use a tax credit limited partnership to finance the project, please describe the
organizational structure of the partnership and the roles of various partners or other related organizations
B Current preliminary title report
B Evidence of site control
O Current appraisal, if available. Appraised value of property must fully secure the Commission’s loan(s). In
addition, the total purchase price may not exceed the “reasonable cost” for the property
B Environmental clearances/reports
® Site plan and elevations or schematic drawing
B Project Location Map: Attach an 8 1/2"x 11" map showing the project location, clearly showing the project area in
relation to surrounding communities
O Contractor’s cost breakdown
= Using the Sonoma County Community Development Commission Utility Allowance Schedule,
hitp:/fsonomacounty.ca.gov/CDC/Housing-Authority/Property-Owners/Utility-Allowancas/, list the tenant-paid
utilities and utility allowance for your project
B [temized development budget, including a sources and uses table, identifying distributions to the owner,
developer, partners or other entities during the development phase
Narrative description of the development’s financial plan, indicating expected dates for obtaining approvals for any
uncommitted financing
B Rental projects: A 30-year operating budget and cash flow projection that shows estimated project income,
operating expenses, reserves, debt service, and distributions. Please include a “totals” column after year 30
B Article 34 Authority: Attach allocation lefter or legal opinion that allocation is not required.
Page 14 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021

206 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Part 7: Certifications
= Grant Certification Form — 1 (Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority)
= Grant Certification Form — 2 (Federal Regulations)
= Grant Certification Form — 3 (Conflict of Interest)

= Grant Certification Form — 4 (Policies and Procedures)

Page 15 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021
207 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 1
Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority

Burbank Housing Development Corporation
I hereby certify that (insert name of organization requesting funds) has
complied with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to the application and is an eligible applicant for the
requested funding.

The organization proposes to provide the program services or complete the project identified in this application. If
this application is approved and this organization receives the requested funding this organization agrees to adhere
to all relevant Federal, State, and local regulations and other assurances as required by the Commission.

In addition, the content of the application shall be incorporated as part of the written agreement and, as such, will be
used to monitor performance. Activities, commitments, and representations described in the written agreement that
are not subsequently made a part of the program/project as funded shall be considered a material contract failure
and may result in a repayment of all awarded funds and/or suspension from participation in future funding rounds.

| hereby certify that the organization is fully capable of fulfilling its obligation under this application, as stated herein.
| further certify that the information provided in this Funding Application is correct, accurate, and complete.

SignatyrefAuthorized Representative of Organization

Efren Carrillo

Printed Name:

Vice President of Residential Development

Title:

1/19/2022

Da

Page 16 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021
208 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 2
Federal Regulations - CDBG

Requirements Federal Regulations Other References
Federal Labor Standards 24 CFR 92.354 40 U.S.C. 3141, 40 U.S.C. 3701
- Davis-Bacon 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5
- Copeland Act (Anti-kickback)
- Contract Work Hours and Safety
Standards
Section 3 24 CFR 135 Section 3 of the HUD Act of
1968, as amended (12 U.S.C.
1701u); 2 CFR 200.321
Minority and Women Business Small Business Act, 12 U.S.C. 1701
Enterprise Participation Section 3(a)
(MBE/WBE) 15U.8.C. 632
Civil Rights and Non- Title VI of Civil Rights Act Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Discrimination of 1964 Act of 1973
Title VIII of the Civil Rights Americans w/Disabilities Act of
Act of 1968 1990
Section 104(b) and 109 of Age Discrimination Act of
Title 1 of the Housing and 1975
Community Development Act | Executive Orders 11063,
of 1974 11246, 11375, 11478, 12107,
12086, and 13279
24 CFR 570.601-602; Executive Orders 11246;
Equal Employment Opportunity 570.607 12086
41 CFR 60 12 USC 1701u
Fair Housing Fair Housing Act (42 24 CFR Parts 8, 107, and 146
U.S.C. 3601-3620) 42 U.S.C. 200(d)
Title VI of the Civil Rights | Executive Orders 11063, as
Act of 1964, as amended | amended by Executive Order
(42 U.S.C. 2000d) 12259
Equal Opportunity in Age Discrimination Act of 1975,
Housing as amended (42 U.S.C.
Section 504 of the 6101)
Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Americans w/Disabilities Act
of 1990
Debarred or Ineligible 24 CFR 570.609; 24 CFR Executive Orders 12549 and
Contractors 24 12689
Reasonable Accommodation 24 CFR Part 8; Section 504 of Rehabilitation
24 CFR 570.601- Act of 1973
602 Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990
Page 17 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021

209 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/MHOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Fire Safety Codes

Local ordinances

Building, Housing, and Zoning
Codes
Housing Quality Standards

24 CFR 570.208(b)(1)(iv);
208(b)(2)

Local ordinances

Lead-Based Paint

24 CFR 570.608; 24 CFR
Part 35

42 U.S.C 4821 et seq.

Anti-Lobbying

Appendix Il to Part 200 J;

31 U.S.C. 1352
Environmental, Historic 24 CFR 570.503(b)(5)(i); Section 104(g), HCDA
Preservation, National 570.604; 570.605; 42 U.S.C 4001 et seq.
Environmental Policy Act, Flood 570.202:
Insurance Requirements 24 CFR 58
- Sitting near airports and References at:
coastal barrier 24 CFR 58.6
- Fish and wildlife protection 58.5570.605’

- Flood plain/flood insurance

- National Historic Preservation
- Noise abatement and control
- Wetlands/Coastal zones

- Air quality

- Endangered species

- Thermal/Explosive hazards

Relocation, Real Property

Acquisitions, and One-for-One
Housing Replacement

- Uniform Relocation Act

- Residential anti-displacement
and relocation assistance

24 CFR 570.201(i);

570.606(b), (c), (d)
49 CFR 24
42 USC 4601 et seq

Sections 104(d); 105(a)(11),

HCDA
www.hud.gov/relocation

Competitive Procurement 2 CFR 200.319
Insurance and Bonding 2 CFR200.310 and
200.325

Administrative and Accounting
Standards

2 CFR Part 200

Cost Considerations

2 CFR 200.402, 403, 404,
405, 406 and 407

Documentation and
Recordkeeping

24 CFR 570.506
24 CFR 570.502

Conflict of Interest

2 CFR 200.112 and
24 CFR 570.611

Section 108 Loan Guarantees

24 CFR 570.700-570.709

Section 108, HCDA

Page 18 of 21

210 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021


www.hud.gov/relocation

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that all data contained in this application and all supportive
documentation is true, correct and will incorporate the above requirements. This submission has been duly
authorized by the governing body of _Dutvalin rivuaiily UEveIVYIig

Horized Representative of Organization

Efren Carrillo

Print Name:

,Ie.Vice President of Residential Development

Tit

_1/19/2022

Page 19 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021
211 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 3
Conflict of interest - CDBG

The standards in 2 CFR 200.318 provide that no employee, officer, or agent shall participate in the selection, award,
or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved.
Such a conflict would arise when an employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or
her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a
financial or other interest in the firm selected for an award.

The CDBG regulations at 24 CFR 570.611 provide that no person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or
elected official or appointed official of the recipient or subrecipient that are receiving CDBG funds and (1) who
exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted with CDBG funds; or (2)
who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to these
activities, may obtain a financial interest from a CDBG-assisted activity, or have any interest in any contract,
subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with
whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one (1) year thereafter.

A Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to participate in the decision making process for approval
of this application?

ClYes ENo

B. Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to gain inside information with regard to approval of this
application?
OYes WNo

C. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds obtain a financial interest or substantial benefit fronhis activity? [l
Yes ENo

D. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the

organization requesting funds have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect to funding this application, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or

business ties during the program year and one year thereafter? OYes BINo

If you answered YES to any of the above questions, a letter must be submitted with the application that
includes the following information:

1) A disclosure of the nature and extent of the conflict
2) A description of how public disclosure will be made
3) A qualified attorney's opinion that the conflict of interest does not violate federal, state, or locallaw

Note: If you are approved for funding, the Commission must issue a public notice of the disclosure with a 15-day
public comment period, and then submit to HUD for approval prior to execution of a grant agreement or release
of funds. ,

thorized Representative of Organization

Efren Carrillo

Printed Name:

Vice President of Residential Development 1 /1 9/2 022

Title: Date:

Page 20 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021

212 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Affordable Housing and Capital Projects Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 4
Policies & Procedures

The undersigned does hereby certify that the applicant organization has the following policies and/or procedures
and can produce them if requested by the Commission:

Accounting policy/procedure

Procurement policy/procedure

Conflict of Interest policy/procedure

Record Retention policy/procedure

Language Access Plan & Limited English Proficiency Policy

kLN =

thorized Representative of Organization

Efren Carrillo

Printed Name:

,Ie'Vice President of Residential Development

Tit
1/19/2022

Da

Page 21 of 21 Updated 12/10/2021
213 of 395



PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The applicant, BHDC, requests Major Design Review approval, a state density bonus, state
density bonus parking reduction, covered parking waiver, height waiver, sign permit and
environmental review in order to construct a 58-unit affordable family rental housing project on
a 3.52 acre City owned property located at 155 Dry Creek Road, Healdsburg. The project
consists of two, four story apartment buildings of approximately 26,090 gross square feet and
47,486 gross square feet connected by an above ground pedestrian bridge.

The buildings include a mix of one-, two-, and three-bedroom units as follows:

Building 1 Building 2 Total
One Bedroom 13 15 28
Two Bedroom 4 11 15
Three Bedroom 3 12 15
Total Units 20 38 58

Total Square Feet 26,090 47,486 73,576

The units will range in size from approximately 500 to 1,050 square feet. The affordable housing
will be designed to meet the needs of families and will include approximately 5,000 square feet
for amenities including multi-purpose activity common rooms, health and wellness room ,
laundry rooms, bike rooms, reception areas and a meeting room, as well as space for Property
Management, Resident Services and Reach for Home (RFH) staff to provide vital on-site
resident services aimed at helping households retain housing, improving their health outcomes
and maximizing their ability to live and work in Healdsburg. 87 off-street parking spaces will be
provided and bicycle spaces will be provided in secure in-door bicycle rooms. Additional bicycle
parking will be provided at the entries to the buildings to encourage visitors to arrive by
alternative modes.

All of the units will be offered to extremely low, very low and low income households earning
between 30-60% area median income. To further meet the City’s housing needs, RFH will have
first priority to approximately 5 of these units, to help address the City’s very low income
supportive housing needs. BHDC will partner with RFH to provide supportive services to these
residents.

Site Design — The project design seeks to emphasize the unique qualities of the project site,
maximizing its location on the Dry Creek Road Entry Corridor while integrating its natural
features, through preservation and restoration of the Foss Creek riparian corridor and creation of
wetlands on site. The buildings have been located, close to Dry Creek Road to create a semi-
urban feel, seeking to activate and enhance the pedestrian streetscape. The L-shape formed by
the two buildings orients toward Foss Creek, respecting and protecting this important watershed
and riparian corridor. In doing so, the buildings have also been located as far west of the railroad
tracks as possible and separated by the project driveway and parking, reducing the potential for
noise and vibration impacts.

The site design concept embraces Foss Creek by expanding the wetland and riparian
environment and providing a small viewing platform proximate to it that provides children and

214 of 395



families with strong visual and educational connections to the wetlands and creek. The path
offers opportunities for casual strolling, bike riding, and interpretive signage that teaches
residents and visitors about the creek’s role in the riparian corridor. A series of stormwater
management elements and newly created wetlands planned along the path will filter and cleanse
stormwater runoff, offer flood protection, and preserve and enhance important wetland habitat
and riparian corridor. The preliminary design concept also contemplates an enhanced landscape
treatment at Dry Creek Road that seeks to increase the visual prominence of Foss Creek by
incorporating a small interpretive area and information for pedestrians about flora and fauna
within the riparian corridor.

Access - Primary access to the project site is provided by a private driveway that takes access off
of Dry Creek Road and runs the entire length of the eastern side of the site, connecting to the
Sauers property to the north. This connection has been aligned to provide emergency vehicle
access to the site as well as to the adjacent property ensuring the City’s requirements for fire
apparatus access as well as emergency ingress and egress are met for the property. The site
frontage improvements also correct an existing deficiency in the public improvements and public
sidewalk along Dry Creek Road filling an existing gap in the circulation system between Plank
Coffee and Big John’s Market. A viewing platform where Foss Creek intersects Dry Creek Road
is also proposed adjacent to the Foss Creek riparian corridor offering the public visual access to
the riparian corridor as well as educational opportunities.

Parking - The project meets and exceeds the parking requirement of the State Density Bonus
Law (DBL), as follows:

DBL DBL
Parking | No. Spaces
Unit Type Unit Count Ratio Required
1-Bedroom 28 1 28
2-Bedroom+ 30 1.5 45
Total 58 - 73
Total Number Spaces Provided 87

Given the existence of an easement associated with the Geyser’s water pipeline that runs the
entire length of the eastern property line, only 29 of the 87 parking spaces located on the west
side of the private driveway can be covered by carports. Given the project’s status as a 100%
affordable housing project requesting a State Density Bonus, as well as the existence of the
pipeline easement along the eastern property line which precludes the construction of a
permanent structure, as provided for by State Density Bonus Law and Section 20.16.150.B.1 of
the City’s Land Use Code, the project requests a waiver of the covered parking requirements, so
that we don't impact the residences with carports directly out their front door. Strict adherence to
the covered parking requirements would physically preclude the provision of 58 affordable
housing units and would result in a reduction in the number of affordable housing units.

215 of 395



Architectural Design - The architectural character of the project strikes a balance between the
more urban character of Dry Creek Road, the immediate surroundings that are more
commercial/industrial in nature and the residential nature of the greater community. The
preliminary building placement seeks to activate and enhance the Dry Creek Road Entry
Corridor by placing the buildings near the Dry Creek Road frontage. The buildings will be
predominately four stories in height with single story elements incorporated at the Dry Creek
frontage, building corners and entries to reduce the perceived scale and highlight the building
entries. Two buildings will break up the massing, and along with the buildings’ articulation,
entries and relationship to the tree-lined street, will create a more attractive pedestrian
environment. Pedestrian scale lighting will provide a pedestrian oriented streetscape and create a
welcoming, pedestrian friendly environment.

The building’s large singular volume offers a hybrid form between local agricultural and
industrial buildings. The materials reflect this as a combination of metal siding and roofing and a
collection of paneled bays with vertical board and batten facade elements. The building serves as
the site’s landmark structure with a main stair tower, and possibly elevator tower, located near
the front entrance to the site and the building. The building’s covered arcade seeks to address
Dry Creek Road, bringing the building scale down to a more pedestrian-friendly level and
providing large ground-floor windows that yield well-lit interior community spaces. Ground-
floor uses are envisioned to include management offices and resident services that will help
activate the street frontage.

The second building has more rural and residential characteristics with ground-floor residential
units marked by stoops and porches. The pronounced shared stair entries have been accented by
similar metal siding applied on the main building to help visually tie the buildings together. A
pedestrian bridge connects the two buildings providing elevator access for the above ground
stories.

Open Space - The orientation of the building placement creates a common outdoor open space
focused on the wetland and creek, totaling approximately 15,150 sf, for residents and visitors to
enjoy. These areas include a 2,100 sf central plaza, 11,750 sf communal green space and
boardwalks and 1,300 sf play area. These outdoor features will provide gathering and seating
spaces, as an extension of the community rooms, and will also have resident gathering and play
areas encouraging communal activities.

Grading & Utilities — The project design includes filling portions of the site to elevate buildings
out of the floodplain, connecting to a downstream 36” storm drain in Dry Creek Road,
undergrounding the existing utilities along the Dry Creek Road project frontage, connecting to
the existing waterline and sewer line in Dry Creek Road, installing a joint trench and lighting as
well as constructing a private fire main on site.

Signage — Per Section 20.16.230 of the City’s Land Use Code, the project may propose to
construct a two-faced, illuminated individual sign approximately 4’ in height with a maximum
aggregate area of all sign faces of approximately 80 square feet.

216 of 395



HOME INVESTMENT PARTNERSHIPS PROGRAM (HOME)

Estimated HOME Funding Available:FY 2022 — 23: $782,642
FY 2021 -22: $660,416

CHDO Set-Aside? $254,252
Non-CHDO Projects $1,188,806

Non-CHDO Applications

o Amount CDC Staff

] orch - :
Applicant roject Name Requested | Recommendation

Burbank Housing Development
Corporation
Sonoma County Housing

Dry Creek Commons $400,000 $400,000

Tenant Based Rental

Authpnty (fund request, not an Assistance $500,000 $500,000
applicant)
Total Requested $900,000 $900,000
Esti
Total Estimated $1,188,806

Available

Note: No CHDO applications were received.

' FY 2021-22 HOME funds were not fully committed and are carried over for award to projects

in FY 2022-23.
2 CHDO Set-Aside equals 15% of each fiscal year’s HOME allocation, as required by HOME
regulations. Unallocated CHDO funds will roll over into next year’s CHDO set-aside.

217 of 395




SONOMA COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY
TENANT-BASED RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
HOME AMOUNT REQUESTED: $500,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Sonoma County Housing Authority Provided Summary Description:

The Housing Authority provides rental assistance through a variety of Tenant Based Rental
Assistance (TBRA) programs which serve low-income populations. A major barrier to clients
achieving permanent housing utilizing a rental assistance voucher is access to deposit funds
which are frequently equivelant to two months rent. Given the rental prices in Sonoma County,
it is not unusual for deposits to be $4,000.

In order to assist in eliminating this barrier, the Housing Authority is seeking funding to provide
deposit assistance for 100 - 140 households. Assistance will be provided in the form of a one-
time grant. The requested funds may also be used to pay monthly rental subsidies if not
required for deposit assistance.

PROJECT TYPE, NUMBER AND SIZE OF UNITS, INCOME LEVELS TO BE SERVED:

TBRA in the form of deposit assistance grants for up to 140 clients seeking to occupy all sizes of
units. Income level of clients to be served will be less than 50% of the area median income
(AMI).

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS:

Funds will be used to supply low-income Housing Authority clients with deposit assistance
grants up to two times the first month’s rent. Rental deposits are often a barrier to permanent
housing for low-income clients. Providing deposit assistance will help low-income vulnerable
populations overcome this barrier.

FUNDING POLICIES (Housing Goals and Objectives)

Does the project address one of the highest priorities of: 1) creating or preserving affordable
housing, 2) building infrastructure or public facilities that support creation or preservation of
affordable housing, or 3) building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income
communities?

The proposed use of HOME funds for TBRA security deposit assistance makes existing market-
rate housing units affordable and accessible to very low-income households who would not
otherwise be able to pay these up-front costs.

218 of 395



If the application is for acquisition and/or preservation, are the units at risk of becoming
market rate housing?

N/A

Does the project set aside homes for persons or households experiencing homelessness or
who are at imminent risk of becoming homeless?

Many of the Housing Authority’s rental assistance programs are dedicated to serving clients
who are experiencing homelessness or at imminent risk of homelessness.

Will the project provide units for special needs populations?

The TBRA program does not limit assistance to special needs populations; however, many of
the Housing Authority program participants are people with special needs, including people
with disabilities and seniors.

THRESHOLD CRITERIA

Is the project consistent with the General Plan of the jurisdiction in which it is located?

Yes.

Does the project Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

Yes. The TBRA program enables very low-income households to rent homes that are located
throughout all areas of the Urban County.

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliver the proposed project?

The applicant successfully administered a rental deposit grant program in 2020 and 2021 which
assisted approximately 100 formerly homeless clients in achieving permanent housing.

SELECTION CRITERIA

Will the requested funds for the project be leveraged against total development costs at least
7:1?

N/A

Does the developer demonstrate consistent success in obtaining federal tax credits and / or
other federal and state funding to develop housing within the last seven years?

219 of 395



N/A

Does the project demonstrate existing support from the jurisdiction in which it is located via
letters of support, funding commitments, etc.?

N/A

Does the project demonstrate advanced readiness via (a) entitlements; (b) financing
commitments; (c) building permits, (d) environmental review?
N/A

Does the applicant have adequate provisions for long-range maintenance and operations?

N/A

Does project’s proposed number of units exceed the minimum HOME requirements?

N/A

Are the proposed rents below the maximum rents allowed by the HOME requirements?

N/A

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

CONSEQUENCES OF NO FUNDING:

If the requested HOME funds are not provided for the Housing Authority’s TBRA program,
approximately 100-140 very low-income households will not be able to pay the up-front costs
required to access rental homes on the private market. These households would therefore lose
the ability to use their Housing Choice Voucher and other rental subsidy program funds and
would remain homeless or housed in potentially substandard or cost-burdened conditions.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends full funding for this request.

220 of 395



Allocated funding will be a grant [X] aloan[ ]

All grants for Tenant-based Rental Assistance are subject to the provisions of the
Sonoma County Community Development Commission (CDC) FY 2022-23 Funding
Policies and the HOME Final Rule.

HOME funds will only be used to provide tenant-based rental subsidies and/or deposit
assistance to make market rate housing units affordable to extremely low-income

households, some with special needs.

The required NEPA environmental review must be completed before the Housing
Authority can be offered a Subrecipient Agreement.

Approval of the requested HOME funds will require a match obligation equal to 25% of
any HOME award. This match may be met through use of excess match provided to

HOME-funded capital projects.

Funds for Tenant-based Rental Assistance must be expended within the 48 months of
the fiscal year for which funding is allocated.

221 of 395




COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) CV
AFFORDABLE HOUSING, CAPITAL PROJECTS, PUBLIC SERVICES AND ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS

FY 2022-23 CDBG-CV Funding Available:
FY 2020 Reprogrammed CDBG-CV Funds:

CDBG-CV APPLICATIONS

$1,483,473
$53,398

Available/Recommended

Applicant Public Services CDBG-CV CDC Staff
PP Project Name Amount Recommendation
‘ Requested
Community Action
Partnership of Sonoma HCA Family Fund $33,000 $33,000
County
Commum?y Action Sloan House Women'’s
Partnership of Sonoma $57,367.87 $57,367
Shelter 207 ‘
County
Fair Housing Advocates of | Fair Housing Education &
Northern California Enforcement $25,000 $25,000
Case Management
Homes 4 the Homeless Services $682,000 $25,000
Homes 4 the Homeless Vocational Training $994,000 No staff rec.
Housing and Economic Financial Stability Legal
Rights Advocates Services $25,650 $25,650
Total Requested | ¢1 817,017.87
Total
$1,536,871 $166,017

222 of 395




APPLICANT NAME: Housing and Economic Rights Advocates (HERA)
PROJECT NAME: Financial Stability Legal Services
CDBG-CV AMOUNT REQUESTED: $25,650

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

HERA's Financial Stability Legal Services directly benefits lower income Sonoma County
residents by assisting both homeowners and tenants alike to maintain a suitable living
environment through our debt/credit, home preservation, and tenant’s rights work, reducing
the discriminatory barriers in order to access affordable housing through our one-on-one
debt/credit counseling and legal support services, and expanding the empowerment of lower-
income residents through our educational workshops and legal advocacy.

CDBG-CV PROJECT FOCUS:

¢ Homeless Prevention;

e Other: Public Services - Financial and Legal Services.

PROPOSED USE OF FUNDS:

To provide financial counseling and debt management assistance to persons and/or households
of lower income who were negatively impacted by the pandemic causing them an economic
hardship to pay bills, rent, mortgage, and to provide credit damage support. All services are
provided with an end goal to retain their housing.

The project would target the following subpopulations:

e Homeless Day Laborers e Chronically Homeless

e Veterans e Persons with a Developmental Disability
e Seniors/Elderly e Persons with a Substance Abuse Disability
e Victims of Domestic Violence ¢ Persons with a Mental Health Disability

The supplemental services provided would be Tenancy Education and Financial Literacy.

FUNDING POLICIES (Funding Goals and Objectives)

Does the project address one of the highest priorities of: 1) creating or preserving affordable
housing, 2) building infrastructure or public facilities that support creation or preservation of
affordable housing, or 3) building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income
communities?

223 of 395



The project indirectly addresses the preservation of affordable housing by providing counseling
and debt management assistance to financially fragile households to help make their debt more
manageable, which could allow the household to stay in their home.

THRESHOLD CRITERIA

Does the project meet at least one National Objective as required under CDBG regulations (24
CFR 570.208)?

The project meets the Low/Mod Income Limited Clientele National Objective, and could meet
the “Urgent Need” National Objective by supporting housing retention, thereby preventing
homelessness, and therefore preventing the spread of the coronavirus.

Does the proposed project or activity meet the eligibility requirements of the CDBG and
HOME Funding Policies? (If not, provide the specific reason)

CDBG regulations allow the County to use up to 15% of its CDBG award allocation for public
services, however, the CARES ACT waived this cap. All other CDBG regulations remain in effect
for the use of CDBG-CV funds, which are intended to prevent, prepare for, or respond to the
coronavirus.

In this application, the goal of the project is to help prevent homelessness and increase housing
retention by improving the stability of Sonoma County households. HERA proposes to increase
the supply of supportive housing services for special needs populations and expand existing
homelessness prevention services by providing free legal assistance for residents who are
facing economic or housing issues, with particular focus on vulnerable populations like the
elderly, people of color, people with disabilities, homeless, or those marginally housed. These
services would directly assist in alleviating debt and financial burdens, help homeowners and
tenants remain housed, and promote fair housing through advocacy and education on people's
rights. As proposed, the project meets the eligibility requirements of funding policies.

Does the project propose fair housing services and Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

While the project would provide some fair housing assistance to clients through tenancy
education as a supplemental service, fair housing work is not the primary focus of the project.
Therefore, the project’s support to HUD's rule to affirmatively further fair housing would be
limited.

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliver the proposed project?

HERA is experienced with federally funded programs. Currently, HERA is a subrecipient of the
City of Oakland funded with CDBG-CV to operate a foreclosure prevention program. They were
previously a subrecipient of Oakland for foreclosure prevention from 2012-2016 and were
Oakland's Cares Act 2020 subrecipient for foreclosure prevention, which included administering
grant funds for homeowners. HERA has been an Alameda County anti-displacement program

224 of 395



subrecipient for 3 % years for foreclosure prevention. They have been a subrecipient of the San
Francisco Mayor's Office of Housing for over 5 years and a grantee of the State Bar of California
for 4 years and were awarded 2021-2022 CDBG funds from the city of Turlock to provide a
similar program.

Additionally, HERA holds experience in providing multilingual outreach and developing
community education materials. In their Financial Wellness-Central Valley Project they
provided 21 multilingual workshops. These workshops included topics on issues of concern for
residents, broad dissemination of multilingual materials, and materials development. They also
provided individual financial coaching to 206 vulnerable, low-income residents, including
people of color, women, immigrants, veterans, service members, people with disabilities,
seniors, LGBTQ, and youth living in Sacramento, Solano, San Joaquin, Merced, Stanislaus,
Madera and Fresno counties.

HERA has demonstrated the capacity to deliver the proposed project in other state locations,
however, they are currently not working in Sonoma County and their services would be new to
the county.

SELECTION CRITERIA

Does the applicant describe strategies and/or methods on how they will reach out to or
create awareness of services to the targeted populations?

The applicant states in the detailed project description that they will reach out extensively to
lower income households in the County and current service providers to make their services be
known, however, a detailed explanation of strategies or methods is not provided.

Does the applicant describe its efforts to collaborate with other organizations and project
iurisdictions to effectively deliver services?

While not provided in detail, the applicant does state that they will seek and establish
relationships with other agencies/service providers in the County to attract referrals and/or
make referrals.

Federal regulations require that 51% of participants be low income. Does the applicant
describe the method that will be used to verify CDBG income eligibility and track other
required demographic and quantitative data?

HERA will verify where residents live by requesting address information. The application states
that if the county prefers, they can require provision of utility bills or other documentary
evidence of residence. They will maintain information on file in their database. HERA screens
clients during the initial intake process conducted by administrative assistant staff under
attorney supervision to ensure they are providing services to people who need it most and live
within the program’s service area for purposes of this grant. HERA uses a database system,
called AbacusLaw, which allows staff to run conflict checks on clients as they are screened.

225 of 395



Can the project be expected to have a significant impact on the identified problem and result
in one or more measurable indicator?

The problems identified by the applicant include economic hardship on lower income
households causing housing destabilization caused by the pandemic; unlawful rent increases by
landlords; unsuitable housing conditions; and housing discrimination to seniors, persons of
color, and persons with a disability. The proposed project could have a significant impact on the
proposed 90 households to be served, however, it is uncertain if the applicant could reach the
90 households since they are proposing to implement the project remotely from their Oakland
office and they would be brand new to the County.

Does the applicant describe how data and other information obtained will be used as a self-
evaluation tool to ensure the project is on track to achieve proposed outcomes?

HERA will collect client demographic and income information at intake, which is the initial client
screening process. Once this is collected, their staff tracks this information in their database.
The staff evaluates success by the outcome of the service provided to each client, such as
making client debt more financially manageable and whether the client is able to stay in their
home or improve their housing situation.

Does the applicant describe how the data collected will help their organization improve
service offerings?

The applicant indicates that they will review demographic data to locate areas with eligible low-
income households and target services to those who need it most in those areas and will track
success in reaching vulnerable populations by database tracking. They will also look at intake
data to determine who is inquiring for their services.

Proposed number Current number of - Number of
of Households Households Served as = Households

~ Served Project in

the Upcoming Fiscal
Year.

of the filing of this
application (if project
is currently in
operation)

Served by Project
Last Fiscal Year.

~ served

2023
Number of households

July 1, 2022 — June 30,

July 1, 2021 to January 21,
2022

July 1, 2020 - June 30,
2021

190

None

None

~ Considering only Urban County residents to be assistéa, list the estimated percentage of
the target population served in each of the income categories below.

Extremely Low (Below 30% AMI) 10%

Very Low (Between 31% -50% AMI) 40%

Low (Between 51% -80% AMI) 50%
Moderate (Over 80% AMI) -

226 of 395




If there are substantial changes to the past, current or proposed number of households to be
served, does the applicant provide an explanation for the changes?

Given that HERA would be brand new to the County of Sonoma, there is no data on past
performance in the county, including households served.

PROJECT BUDGET

Total Organization Budget $2,444,150
Total program budget $58,168
Percent of program to organization budget approx. 2.5%
Percent of CDBG request of program budget 44%
Program cost per household approx. 5646
Program Cost to the County based on CDBG- $285

CV Request

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

HERA is not currently operating this program in Sonoma County. However, they have been
operating a similar program in Alameda County and San Joaquin County since 2016. The
pandemic has been the most major material change, which has increased the need for the
proposed services. HERA plans to implement the project in Sonoma County remotely from their
office in Oakland.

The public service does not propose homeless services and therefore would not be involved in
the Coordinated Entry system.

CONSEQUENCES OF NO FUNDING OR REDUCED FUNDING:

The applicant plans to provide legal financial counseling to at least 30 households; in-depth
legal services to 30 additional households; and to reach another 30 households with workshops
whether in-person or online for a total of 90 households. If they do not receive full funding,
they will re-evaluate the number of households to target and scale back accordingly.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Given that the applicant would be brand new to the County, including the proposed project,
and plans to implement the project remotely, the applicant is recommended for funding
subject to the conditional of approval stated below, in addition to meeting all other CDBG
related requirements.

227 of 395



PRELIMINARY CONDITION(S) OF APPROVAL

Allocated funding will be a grant [X] aloan[ ]

A NEPA environmental review must be completed before applicant can be offered
1. | a Funding Agreement. The Sonoma County Community Development Commission
staff will prepare the NEPA.

CDBG-CV will be used only to reimburse costs to provide services to income-
2. | documented households residing in the Urban County, at least 51% of which must
have incomes at our below 80% AMI.

CDBG-CV funding awarded must be used for eligible expenses during the fiscal
year of July 1, 2022 and no later than June 30, 2023. Specific terms will be
included in a Funding Agreement, and no costs can be incurred prior to a fully
executed funding agreement

228 of 395



SONOMA COUNTY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION

CDBG-CV FUNDING APPLICATION: PUBLIC
SERVICES

(See separate application for Fair Housing and Housing
Justice programs)

. . . S N Thi d for CDC date and i {
Please review the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), Application 19 space reservedfor T Gate ana ime Samp

Guidelines, and the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies
before submitting your application. All applications must meet the eligibility criteria found in the Funding Policies and the
requirements set forth in the NOFA.

Part 1: Applicant Information

» Legal name of organization: Housing and Ecohuomic Rights Advocates
Organization’s DUNS number:  1997-21940 -
Contact Information
Autyhyorized Representative Name, title: ‘Maeve Elise Brown, E“xé‘éﬁtivebivrector
(City/Town Manager, Executive  ppgne. 510-271-8443 ext. 307
Director, or other): :
Email: melisebrown@heraca.rog
anarypomtof contact: Name, title: Maeve Elise Brown, Executive Director
Phone: 510-271-8443 ext. 307
Email: ‘melisebrown@heraca.org
Organization is a: = Non-profit organization  OLocal government
Organization mailing address: P.O. Box 29435 Oakland, CA 94604-0091
” Organization website: T www.heraca.org

Organizational Capacity and Experience

Describe applicant’s record of administrative and programmatic capacity using federal, state, local, and/or private grant
funds, explaining any past issues or challenges administering grant funds.

HERA is quite experienced at working with federally funded programs. We are a current grantee of the City of Oakland for foreclosure prevention utilizing CDBG-CV funds. We were previously grantees
of Oakland for foreclosure prevention from 2012-2016 and were Oakland's Cares Act 2020 grantee for foreclosure prevention, which included administering grant funds for homeowners. HERA has
been an Alameda County anti-displacement program sub-grantee for 3 ¥ years for foreclosure prevention, and a direct grantee of Alameda County-Oakland Community Action Partnership CSBG funds
for over 7 years (for household debt and credit concems), currently reconstituting their Bank-On program. HERA was a HUD grantee for 4 years for Fair Lending work in Solano County, and a grantee
of HUD for fair lending work in the Central Valley for the past two years. We have been a grantee of the San Francisco Mayor's Office of Housing for over 5 years and of the State Bar of California for 4
years. We were aiso awarded 2021-2022 CDBG funds from the city of Turlock to provide a similar program.

In addition to our experience and expertise in working under Federal grant programs, HERA brings strong experience providing multilingual outreach and developing community education materials.
For example, for ourMy Financial Weliness-Central Valley Project,we provided 21 multilingual workshops, and an ethnic media briefing to publicize our project. This included topics such as issues of
concern for residents, broad dissemination of multilingual materials, and materials development. In addition, we provided individual financial coaching to 206 vulnerable, low income residents, including
people of color, women, immigrants, veterans, servicemembers, people with disabilities, seniors, LGBTQ, and youth living in Sacramento, Solano, San Joaquin, Merced, Stanislaus, Madera and Fresno
counties. Our teaching and one-on-one work focused on helping our target residents (1) avoid high cost short-term credit, bank overdraft and other fees, (2) build credit, avoid overextended credit and
address debt collection, (3) understand the impact of debt and credit on cost/access to financial services, and (4) address student loan debt, shop for college/other post-secondary education. HERA
created new materials on paying for college, credit tips and rights for tenants, and how to understand how much loans cost (of any kind), which offer in 5 languages besides English: Spanish, Tagalog,
Chinese, Korean, and Vietnamese. These materials have been extremely well received and sought after by the public and other service providers.

229 of 395


https://Project.we
www.heraca.org
mailto:melisebrown@heraca.org

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Public Services Funding Application

Part 2: Project Description

- Brief Description of Project or Program

The description provided here will be incorporated into the staff reports provided to the Community Development
. Committee, Cities and Towns Advisory Committee, and/or the Board of Supervisors. Descriptions MUST BE 125 words
. or less. It will not be edited and will be truncated at 125 words. A longer project description may be attached (see Part

6, Attachments).

HERA's Financial Stability Legal Services directly benefits lower income Sonoma County residents
by assisting both homeowners and tenants alike to maintain a suitable living environment through
our debt/credit, home preservation, and tenants rights work, reducing the discriminatory barriers in
order to access affordable housing through our one-on-one debt/credit counseling and legal support
services, and expanding the empowerment of lower-income residents through our educational
workshops and legal advocacy.

Part 3: Project Information
Project Name Financial Stability Legal Services

Amountof Funding Request:25 650

Primary Physical Location of Activitiéé or Program (if applicable):

‘Address:3950 Broadway, Ste. 200 Oakland, CA 94611 -- Services will be preformed remotely -

Project Focus (check one) B
CJEmergency Shelter CIRapid Re-Housing []Street Outreach and Day Centers ®Homeless Prevention CJPermanent
Supportive Housing mOther Public Service: legal services

CDBG-CV Requirements

Please describe the how the proposed activity will prevent, prepare for or respond to Coronavirus (activities must
demonstrate they respond to one of more):

The proposed activities will address the ways in which the Covid-19 pandemic has impacted
residents' financial well-being, making it difficult or impossible to keep up with bills, including rent
and mortgage, and creating damage to credit that will take time to recover from.

Please fill out the table below by stating the numbers served per category according to the stated time frames. '

Proposed number of Current number of Number of Households
Households Served Households Served as of = Served by project last
project in upcoming the filing of this Fiscal Year
Fiscal Year application

(if project is currently in

operation)
July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023 | July 1, 2021 to Current Date July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021

Page 2 of 15 230 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonorna County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Public Services Funding Application

 Number of households
served 90

Number of households wn
with children

Number of Households wn
comprised of

unaccompanied youth
under 25 years old

Number of adults in ws
households served

Number of children in “n
households served

Project Subpopulation
Check subpopulations that the proposed project will d/rectly serve:

EHomeIess Day Laborers EChromcaIly Homeless EVeterans UJRunaway & Homeless Youth (12- 17)

= Developmental Disability = Seniors/Elderly ® Substance Abuse Disabilities ™ Victims of Domestic Violence /
Sexual Assault mMental Health Disabilities CTOther Subpopulatlon

Supplemental Project Services Provnded
Check secondary services provided directly by your staff to participant:

Ulndividual or Family Counseling [JHousing Location mFinancial Literacy [1Domestic Violence Intervention

[IStreet Outreach mTenancy Education []Short- to Medium-Term Rental Assistance [JHousing Focused Case
Management [IDrug/Alcohol Treatment Services [1Mental Health Services & Treatment [JCase Management

[Other Services Not Listed:

Urban County Beneficiaries

The County of Sonoma, as well as the seven municipalities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park,
Sebastopol, Sonoma, and Windsor, comprise the Urban County. At least 51% of beneficiaries served by the program
or activity funded by the Sonoma County Community Development Commission with CDBG-CV funds must be Urban
County residents. Please state how your organization will obtain, verify and document program beneficiaries meet this
requirement:

HERA will verify where residents live through requesting address information. If the county prefers that we require
provision of utility bills or other documentary evidence of residence, we'll gladly require that and maintain information on
file in our database. We screen our clients during the initial intake process conducted by Administrative Assistants under
attorney supervision to make sure that we are providing our services to people who need it most and live within the
program municipalities we plan to serve with this grant. HERA has a robust database system, AbacusLaw, tailored to
our practice, that permits us to run a conflicts check on clients as they are screened.

Considering only Urban County residents to be assisted, list the estimated percentage of the target population
served in each of the income categones below

Extremely Low (Below 30% AMI) 10%
Very Low (Between 31% -50% AMI) 40%
Low (Between 51% -80% AMI) - 50%
Page 3 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021

231 of 395




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Public Services Funding Application

‘Moderate (Over 80% AMI)

Project Outcomes

In the table below, choose an Outcome Identifier and describe two measurable changes in participants’ lives from their
participation in the program. Please discuss the change in a participant’s status. knowledge, or behavior resulting from
receiving this service.

g"tcgme Outcome Identifier Project Goal
UMDBEr ' Select one Outcome Indicator that you will use to | Briefly describe how your project will work towards
measure your Success. achievement the specified Outcome Indicator
1 System Performance Measures Themmain goal of our proposed program is to help reduce

. homelessness and increase housing retention by improving
O Outreach, day centers or coordinated entry — e stability of Sonoma County households. HERA will

placement in temporary or permanent housing increase the supply of appropriate and supportive housing
. services for special needs populations and expand existing
0 Coordinated entry — decrease length of homelessness prevention services by providing free legal
homeless episodes assistance for residents who are facing economic or housing
. . . issues, with particular focus on vulnerable populations like the
U Shelter or transitional housing — exits to eldery, people of color, and people with disabilities, homeless,
permanent housing or marginally housing folks. Our services will directly assist in

. . . alleviating debt and financial burdens, help homeowners and
O Permanent supportive housing — retention of  tenants remain housed, and promote fair housing through
permanent housing advocacy and education on people's rights.

= Homeless prevention and housing retention —
improvement in housing stability

2 Other Measures

O Increased income from benefits and/or
employment

O Increased access to health benefits

Outcomes

Describe the experience your agency has in providing services associated with Outcome #1 as identified in the
previous section.

Since 2005, HERA has served over 25,000 California residents individually, tens of thousands more via workshops and media (social, t.v., print,
radio), and hundreds of thousands more through our main website, and our companion, 6 language money-happy.org website. In 2017, we added
estate planning services on a sliding scale to address intergenerational wealth transfer problems affecting vulnerable communities. We have a strong
track record of providing similar services to those proposed in this program and are confident our work will help Sonoma County residents thrive. Our
program will improve the lives of those who receive services in terms of homeless prevention and housing retention, and overall improvement of
household stability. Through our work, participants will have a greater understanding of their legal rights as tenants, or as homeowners, or as to debt
and credit concerns that affect their financial stability through our legal support services and workshops from HERA attorneys. Our work will educate
residents on their legal rights, advocate for tenants and homeowners facing housing issues, reduce the amount of debt load, and improve individual
credit.

Describe the experience your agency has in providing services associated with Outcome #2 as identified in the
previous section.

Project Evaluation Framework
Please provide responses to the following questions.

Describe how your organization will use data and other information as a self-evaluation tool to ensure you are on track
to achieve proposed outcomes:

Page 4 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021

232 of 395



https://money-happy.org

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Public Services Funding Application

| Explain how the use of data will help to improve service offerings:

HERA gathers client demographic and income information at intake, which is our initial client screening, and we track it in AbacusLaw, our database
which contains client data, case notes from our services and conversations and outcomes. We also evaluate success in terms of whether we can
make debt more affordable, and whether we are meeting our client's overall goals to stabilize their ability to maintain their financial lives.

HERA will use demographic data to target our services to those most in need in the funding service area, and we will track our success in reaching
particularly vulnerable households (people of color, seniors, people with disabilities, homeless) by tracking through our database and intake data who
is reaching out to our office for services from the target geographic area.

Please describe the involvement of participants in the evaluation of the project:

HERA engages actively with our clients to determine whether we have answered their questions
fully, whether they seek other services, and whether they are satisfied with our services. We track
their response in notes in our database system (AbacusLaw). For residents whom we serve, we will
‘mail out surveys as well to be returned anonymously (with an SASE) to increase client input.

Project History and Readiness
(Please answer only one of the following two questions)

If this project has been operating one year or less, please discuss its ‘é‘tége of project growth or preparation.
(If more than one year = NA)

HERA has not been opera‘t'ih‘g this program in Sonoma County. We have, however, been operating |
the program in Alameda County and San Joaquin County since 2016. The pandemic has been the
most major material change which has increased the need for the proposed services.

If this project has been operating longer than one year, describe any material changes that have affected the project
along with associated impact(s) that have taken place over the past two years due to any of the following conditions. (/f
] under one year = NA)

NA

Part 4: Alignment with Sonoma County Initiatives
' Do services offered in this project directly utilize evidence-based  OYes ®No
 practices (EBPs) represented in the Upstream Portfolio?

- Does the proposed project directly utilize any EBPs included in = [1Yes W No
- the Upstream Investment portfolio?

If yes, please answer the next question.

Page 50f 15 Updated 12/10/2021
233 of 395




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Public Services Funding Application

- Which Tier does the EBP utilized directly in the proposed pr'ojyeét " O Tier 1 - Evidence Based Practice

fall.
I Tier 2 — Promising Practice

I Tier 3 — Emerging Practice

NA
Are you participating in the Housing First / Housing First Fidelity COYes mNo
process?
Describe your strategy to ensure that staff are trained and are using the EBP to fidelity:
NA

Part 5: Coordinated Entry (this part only applicable to Homeless Services)

Coordinated Entry Capacity

If funded for homeless services, your project will be required to participate in Coordinated Entry, either as an access
point or accepting referrals (or both). In the space below, provide an overview of your organization's ability, knowledge,
and potential barriers to overcome to take part in Coordinated Entry._Please limit your response to no more than 125

words.

NA

Program Standards Workgroup

Does your agency participate in the program standards workgroup for your project type? OYes (1 No

If Yes, please state in which standards group your organization engages and the name of the staff responsible for
attending. Compliance with the local program standards for your project component, and participation in program
standards working groups will be a requirement of all funding agreements.

NA

Part 6: Part 6: Project Financing and Budget
Funding Status

Is this application for new or renewal funding? mNew [1Renewal

Page 6 of 15 234 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commissicn
CDBG/HOME Public Services Funding Application

Has this project been previously funded by the CDC? COYes @mNo

If this project received funding under a different name,
please state the name of the program (/f “No” = NA) NA

What percentage of your project budget does your request

make up? Approximately 44.1%

Will funding requested supplant existing funding for the mYes [INo

project?
Community Development Commission Funding History
Request for FY
FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 2022-2023
Funds Requested - - - 25,650
Funds Awarded - - -
Application Budget Overview
Total Organization Budget: $2.,444,150
Total Project Budget: $58,168
The request represents this percentage of the project
budget: 441 %

Please state funding sources leveraged to support your proposed project and approximate percentage of the total
project budget that these represent.

State Bar of California funds and earned income funds will make up 55.9% of the total project
budget (project budget included as attachment).

Describe the aspects of the project design that are scalable. Indicate how many fewer participants will receive services
if the award is less than the amount requested.

We will provide legal financial counseling to 30 residents one-on-one, and in-depth legal services one-on-one to another 30 to resolve
debt/credit issues that make it difficult to obtain or retain rental housing, or to hang onto the family home as low-income homeowners.
HERA will also advise and advocate for low-income tenants who face habitability problems but may not yet face eviction. We will
reach another 30 residents with our workshops (online and/or in-person as health orders permit), for a total of 90 residents served.
We assume that each client takes around $645 of the project budget, so depending on the awarded amount for this project, we will
reevaluate the number of clients served with the given client cost estimates.

What is your organization’s plan for the long-term financial sustainability of this project?

HERA sees the Sonoma County CDBG funds as a way to expand our presence and services in the
county, ensuring that once funds are expended, residents are still aware and able to seek
assistance through our organization. HERA will seek other funding to maintain the same level of
services in the years to come.

Page 7 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021
235 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Public Services Funding Application

Part 7: Attachments Required

Project sponsors must submit the following documents, as applicable, with their funding application:

B Project Description: Provide a description of the project that includes specific location information and geographic
boundaries. It should identify the maximum anticipated scope of the entire project, and delineate the specific
activities for which the applicant is requesting funding at this time.

B Authorizing Resolution: For non-profit organizations, attach a resolution from the Board of Directors authorizing
the submittal of the application.

B IRS Letter of Determination: Non-profit organizations only must submit an IRS Letter of Determination. Non-profit
organizations are not eligible for consideration unless non-profit status has been verified.

Letters of Commitment: Submit letters of commitment from all other funding sources.
B Financial Documentation:
B Non-profit organizations must attach the following:

= Current operating budget

= Most recent completed final audit report

= IRS Form 990 for the most current tax year

» If organization is not audited, attach a copy of the most recent internal financial statement that
has been approved by Board of Directors.

*Additional financial information may be requested by CDC staff as deemed appropriate.

[0 Sonoma County departments or agencies, the cities of Cotati, Cloverdale, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park,
Sebastopol, Sonoma, and the Town of Windsor are exempt from this requirement.

B Organizations are required to have written policies and procedures. The applicant must submit certification that
they have the following policies and procedures. (Please complete the forms found in Part 7 — Certifications)

= Accounting

=  Conflict of Interest
= Procurement

= Record Retention

Page 8 of 15 236 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Public Services Funding Application

Part 8: Certifications
= Grant Certification Form — 1 (Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority)
m Grant Certification Form — 2 (Federal Regulations)
= Grant Certification Form — 3 (Conflict of Interest)

= Grant Certification Form — 4 (Policies and Procedures)

Page 9of 15 Updated 12/10/2021

237 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/MHOME Public Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 1

Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority

HERA

| hereby certify that (insert name of organization requesting funds) has
complied with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to the application and is an eligible applicant for the
requested funding.

The organization proposes to provide the program services or complete the project identified in this application. If
this application is approved and this organization receives the requested funding this organization agrees to adhere
to all relevant Federal, State, and local regulations and other assurances as required by the Commission.

In addition, the content of the application shall be incorporated as part of the written agreement and, as such, will be
used to monitor performance. Activities, commitments, and representations described in the written agreement that
are not subsequently made a part of the program/project as funded shall be considered a material contract failure
and may result in a repayment of all awarded funds and/or suspension from participation in future funding rounds.

| hereby certify that the organization is fully capable of fulfilling its obligation under this application, as stated herein.

| further certify that the information provided in this Funding Application is correct, accurate, and complete.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Maeve Elise Brown

Printed Name:

- Executive Director
. 1/21/2022

Da




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Public Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 2
Federal Regulations — CDBG

Requirements Federal Regulations
Federal Labor Standards 24 CFR 92.354
- Davis-Bacon 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5

- Copeland Act (Anti-kickback)
- Contract Work Hours and Safety

Other References
40 U.S.C. 3141; 40 U.S.C. 3701

Section 104(b) and 109 of
Title | of the Housing and
Community Development Act
of 1974

Standards
Section 3 24 CFR 135 Section 3 of the HUD Act of
1968, as amended (12 U.S.C.
1701u); 2 CFR 200.321
Minority and Women Business Small Business Act, 12 U.S.C. 1701
Enterprise Participation Section 3(a)
(MBE/WBE) 15 U.S.C. 632
Civil Rights and Non- Title VI of Civil Rights Act Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Discrimination of 1964 Act of 1973
Title Vill of the Civil Rights Americans w/Disabilities Act of
Act of 1968 1990

Age Discrimination Act of
1975

Executive Orders 11063,
11246, 11375, 11478, 12107,
12086, and 13279

24 CFR 570.601-602;
Equal Employment Opportunity 570.607

41 CFR 60

Executive Orders 11246;
12086
12 USC 1701u

Fair Housing Fair Housing Act (42

U.S.C. 3601-3620)

Title VI of the Civil Rights
Act of 1964, as amended
(42 U.S.C. 2000d)

Equal Opportunity in
Housing

Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Americans w/Disabilities Act

24 CFR Parts 8, 107, and 146
42 U.S.C. 200(d)

Executive Orders 11063, as
amended by Executive Order
12259

Age Discrimination Act of 1975,
as amended (42 U.S.C.

6101)

of 1990
Debarred or Ineligible 24 CFR 570.609; 24 CFR Executive Orders 12549 and
Contractors 24 12689
Reasonable Accommodation 24 CFR Part 8; Section 504 of Rehabilitation
24 CFR 570.601- Act of 1973
602 Americans w/Disabilities Act of

1990

P i
age 11013 239 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Public Services Funding Application

Fire Safety Codes

Local ordinances

Building, Housing, and Zoning
Codes
Housing Quality Standards

24 CFR 570.208(b)(1)(iv);
208(b)(2)

Local ordinances

Lead-Based Paint

24 CFR 570.608; 24 CFR
Part 35

42 U.S.C 4821 et seq.

Anti-Lobbying

Appendix Il to Part 200 J;
31U.S.C. 1352

Environmental, Historic
Preservation, National
Environmental Policy Act, Flood
Insurance Requirements

- Sitting near airports and
coastal barrier

- Fish and wildlife protection

- Flood plain/flood insurance

- National Historic Preservation
- Noise abatement and control
- Wetlands/Coastal zones

- Air quality

- Endangered species

- Thermal/Explosive hazards

24 CFR 570.503(b)(5)(i);
570.604; 570.605;
570.202;

24 CFR 58

References at:

24 CFR 58.6;
58.5570.605

Section 104(g), HCDA
42 U.S.C 4001 et seq.

Relocation, Real Property

Acquisitions, and One-for-One
Housing Replacement

- Uniform Relocation Act

- Residential anti-displacement
and relocation assistance

24 CFR 570.201(i);

570.606(b), (c), (d)
49 CFR 24
42 USC 4601 et seq

Sections 104(d); 105(a)(11),

HCDA
www.hud.gov/relocation

Competitive Procurement

2 CFR 200.319

Insurance and Bonding

2 CFR 200.310 and
200.325

Administrative and Accounting
Standards

2 CFR Part 200

Cost Considerations

2 CFR 200.402, 403, 404,
405, 406 and 407

Documentation and 24 CFR 570.506

Recordkeeping 24 CFR 570.502

Conflict of Interest 2 CFR 200.112 and
24 CFR 570.611

Section 108 Loan Guarantees

24 CFR 570.700-570.709

Section 108, HCDA

Page 12 of 15

240 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021


www.hud.gov/relocation

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBGMHCME Public Services Funding Application

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that all data contained in this application and all supportive
documentation is true, correct and will incorporate the above requirements. This submission has been duly

authorized by the governing body of HERA

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Maeve Elise Brown

Printed Name:

e Executive Director

_1/21/2022

Da

Page 13 of 15

241 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Public Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 3
Conflict of Interest - CDBG

The standards in 2 CFR 200.318 provide that no employee, officer, or agent shall participate in the selection, award,
or administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved.
Such a conflict would arise when an employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or
her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a
financial or other interest in the firm selected for an award.

The CDBG regulations at 24 CFR 570.611 provide that no person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or
elected official or appointed official of the recipient or subrecipient that are receiving CDBG funds and (1) who
exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted with CDBG funds; or (2)
who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to these
activities, may obtain a financial interest from a CDBG-assisted activity, or have any interest in any contract,
subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder, either for themselves or those with
whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one (1) year thereafter.

A. Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to participate in the decision making process for approval
of this application?

UYes ONo

B. Are any employees, agents, consuitants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds in a position to gain inside information with regard to approval of this
application?
OYes LINo

C. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds obtain a financial interest or substantial benefit from this activity?
OYes ONo

D. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the

organization requesting funds have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with
respect to funding this application, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or
business ties during the program year and one year thereafter? ClYes [INo

If you answered YES to any of the above questions, a letter must be submitted with the application that
includes the following information:

1) A disclosure of the nature and extent of the conflict
2) A description of how public disclosure will be made
3) A qualified attorney's opinion that the confiict of interest does not violate federal, state, or local law

Note: If you are approved for funding, the Commission must issue a public notice of the disclosure with a 15-day
public comment period, and then submit to HUD for approval prior to execution of a grant agreement or release
of funds.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Maeve Elise Brown

Printed Name:

Executive Director 1/21/2022

Title: Date:

Page 14 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021

242 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Pubilic Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form — 4

Policies & Procedures

The undersigned does hereby certify that the applicant organization has the following policies and/or procedures
and can produce them if requested by the Commission:

Accounting policy/procedure

Procurement policy/procedure

Conflict of Interest policy/procedure

Record Retention policy/procedure

Language Access Plan & Limited English Proficiency Policy

ohownN =

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Maeve Elise Brown

Printed Name:

e Executive Director
. 1/21/2022

Da

Page 15 0f 15 Updated 12/10/2021
243 of 395



Project Description: Financial Stability Legal Services

HERA will positively impact low-moderate income Sonoma County residents through our
Financial Stability Legal Services Project. With more generations having returned to parents and
grandparents’ homes due to the pandemic, HERA's home preservation work frequently helps
stabilize more than one person in the household. It is also a way to help maintain
multigenerational economic stability, thus mitigating economic hardships for family members in
the future. For low-income renters, HERA's legal services will help them address debt collection
problem that can make it hard to keep up with rent, as well as help them address unlawful rent
increases, habitability problems, disability discrimination, and other concerns that can force
vulnerable residents out of their housing. Our work with homeless residents on debt, credit and
fair housing will help them access housing.

If awarded the grant, HERA will help to stabilize vulnerable low-income households in the target
geographic area, particularly households of color and seniors, and will help homeless residents
access housing by providing: (1) briefer (1-3 hours), one-on-one legal advice to qualifying
Sonoma County residents to address credit and debt, as well as pre-eviction tenancy problems,
or homeownership preservation problems, (2) in-depth legal services, one-on-one for eligible
Sonoma County residents to address these problems, and (3) workshops to educate residents
about their legal rights on these issues. HERA will outreach extensively to low-income residents
and service providers to publicize these services and establish relationships whereby agencies
are aware of our services and comfortable making direct referrals of residents who are in need.

HERA We will provide legal services and legal/financial coaching to address debt collection
problems (including collections abuses), credit reporting and access to credit issues, achieve
affordable repayment plans, reduce or eliminate debt through advocacy, correct credit reporting
errors, counsel residents on affordable/reputable borrowing options, and how to escape
high-cost borrowing traps, and we will also help vulnerable homeowners hang onto the family
home through loss mitigation work and/or work on household debts that endanger residents’
ability to keep up with their mortgage.

There is a clear need for our services in Sonoma County. Many residents have lost income that
was often already insufficient to meet needs, and are struggling to recover financially. Tenants
face challenges in trying to hang onto their home. Low-income homeowners, seniors in
particular, are struggling to keep up with mortgage payments, or are exiting forbearances,
uncertain about how to hang onto the family home. Based on the data provided in the 2020
Consolidated Plan, cost-burden is the most common problem for residents in Urban Sonoma
County. In addition to struggling low-income homeowners, a 2020 study, the California Housing
Partnership Corporation found that 77% of Sonoma County’s lowest-income renters are
severely rent burdened.

Certain demographics are especially vulnerable to economic and housing issues during these

unprecedented times, like seniors, immigrants and communities of color. Sonoma County
residents aged 65 and older account for 20.7% of the county’s total population according to the

244 of 395



July 2021 US Census estimate. A significant portion of this vulnerable population is facing
housing cost burden, especially because seniors are often on fixed incomes. Based on ACS
estimates for 2013-2017, 56.7% of renters aged 65 years and over pay 30% or more of their
gross income to rent. For senior homeowners, 32.5% experience a housing cost burden defined
as spending over 30% of their gross income on housing.

The Sonoma County Consolidated Plan notes also that ethnic minorities tend to experience
more housing problems than white residents, especially in extremely low, very low and
moderate income categories. Latinos at 27.3% of the total population in the County and
African-American households at 2.1% of the population, experience a disproportionately high
rate of housing cost burden, especially residents with lower income. For example, in the
very-low income category, while making up 0.66% of households overall, Black/African
Americans are 1.15% of very low-income households with a housing cost burden; while making
up 14.74% of all very low income households, 17.37% of very low income Latino households
have a high housing cost burden. That burden puts them at higher risk of displacement through
eviction. In addition, according to the Department of Health Services Summary Measures of
Health in January 2018, the rate of asset poverty among Hispanic and African American
households is 42.6% and 40.3% respectively, which is disproportionate when compared to that
of Asian (18.3%) and White (18.9%) households. With fewer resources to fall back on, the
income instability of the pandemic has exacerbated the financial instability of residents with
fewer resources.

While Sonoma County still has an eviction moratorium in place, if the moratorium is to be lifted
as expected in June 2022, thousands of low-income residents are at risk of housing and
economic devastation. Before the pandemic, there were 1,185 average annual eviction filings.
Now, an estimated 9,345 of Sonoma County households are behind on their rent, with 6,375 of
those households considered to be low income. The average rental debt is around $3,228 per
household, with an estimated total of $30.2 million rent debt in the county, according to a March
2021 report by Bay Area Equity Atlas. Though emergency rental assistance is available through
the State of California, it is not clear that everyone in need even knows about the program, or
can successfully navigate accessing the funds. Not only are renters threatened by housing
instability, but homeowners as well. Mortgage issues and foreclosures are an ongoing issue we
see at HERA, with lower-income households facing more serious financial burdens caused by
the pandemic. Currently in Sonoma County, there are 173 properties listed on RealtyTrac as
pre-foreclosure, bank owned or auction homes as of January 18th, 2022.

Debt is another serious issue that threatens both renters and homeowners in Sonoma County,
as income instability exacerbated by the pandemic has made it difficult or sometimes impossible
for households to keep up with bills. In addition to the burden of mounting debt and eviction,
some low-income residents, and especially seniors and people of color, continue to face
wrongful debt collection abuses--the topic about which the Consumer Financial Protection
Bureau and Federal Trade Commission receive the most consumer complaints annually.
Wrongful credit reporting is also very common and affects access to housing and to well-priced
financial services. Financial scams, like home improvement scams, frequently target low-income

245 of 395



seniors and people of color, draining resources and endangering the family home. These are
financial abuses that existed well before the pandemic.

HERA has almost 17 years of experience working with communities, and especially elderly
populations, people of color, immigrants, people with disabilities, domestic violence survivors
and other especially vulnerable residents, facing all of the problems mentioned previously. Our
program will address some of the main priorities of the 2022-2023 Fiscal Year, such as
promoting Fair Housing and alleviating homelessness by increasing the supply of appropriate
and supportive housing services for at-risk populations to help homeowners and tenants remain
housed, directly assisting in alleviating debt and financial burdens, and providing education on
resident’s legal rights.

246 of 395



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) - CV

AFFORDABLE HOUSING, CAPITAL PROJECTS, PUBLIC SERVICES AND ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS
FY 2022-23 CDBG-CV Funding Available: $1,483,473
FY 2020 Reprogrammed CDBG-CV Funds: $53,398
CDBG-CV APPLICATIONS
Applicant Public Services CDBG-CV CDC Staff
pp! Project Name Amount Recommendation
Requested
Community Action
Partnership of Sonoma HCA Family Fund $33,000 $33,000
County
Commum"cy Action Sloan House Women'’s
Partnership of Sonoma $57,367.87 $57,367
Shelter 1297 ’
County
Fair Housing Advocates of | Fair Housing Education &
Northern California Enforcement $25,000 $25,000
Case Management
Homes 4 the Homeless Services $682,000 $25,000
Homes 4 the Homeless Vocational Training $994,000 No staff rec.
Housing and Economic Financial Stability Legal
Rights Advocates Services $25,650 $25,650
Total Requested | ¢1 817,017.87
Total
Available/Recommended $1,536,871 $166,017

247 of 395




APPLICANT NAME: Fair Housing Advocates of Northern California

PROJECT NAME: Fair Housing Education and Enforcement
CDBG-CV AMOUNT REQUESTED: $25,000

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Applicant-Provided Summary Description from Submitted Application:

“FHANC will provide full-service fair housing education and enforcement services in Sonoma
County, offering advocacy to people protected by federal, state, and local fair housing laws and
providing fair housing education to tenants, public and private housing providers, and the
larger community. FHANC focuses on the most vulnerable populations — e.g. people with
disabilities, people of color, and families with children. FHANC addresses systemic
discrimination through testing and other investigative efforts, filing agency complaints or
lawsuits when warranted, to change discriminatory housing policies. In addition, FHANC
advocates for legislative policies which will affirmatively further fair housing (AFFH), and offers
technical assistance to jurisdictional staff on AFFH matters. (If funded with CDBG-CV dollars)
FHANC will also provide Covid-related fair housing services”.

PROJECT FOCUS:

e Provides education about fair housing laws;
e Advocates for tenants, who may be targets of discrimination;
e Enforcement of fair housing laws;

e Provides investigative testing and auditing.

PROPOSED USE OF CDBG-CV FUNDS:

The application lists the following proposed uses of the requested CDBG-CV funds. Urban
County CDBG-CV funds may be used to reimburse costs incurred for these activities only to the
extent that they are used to provide direct services to Urban County residents, at least 51% of
whom have incomes at or below 80% AMI.

e Collect and track data related to clients impacted by Covid-19;

* Analyze data tracked and demographics of clients to identify trends to guide FHANC's
outreach efforts, client services, and need for adaptation to address community needs
as they evolve;

¢ Conduct email marketing campaigns in English, Spanish, and Vietnamese, focusing on
protected classes affected by Covid-19 (as identified through evaluation of data),
through Constant Contact e-blasts;

248 of 395



e Distribute 200 fair housing posters in English, Spanish, and Vietnamese through
postering service, targeting different protected classes affected by Covid-19 (as
identified through evaluation of data);

e Refer clients calling as a result of a Covid-related eviction or other Covid-related issue to
other agencies and/or provide education on fair housing laws;

* Provide fair housing services to clients in their primary language who are calling as a
result of Covid-related issues, including referrals and fair housing casework;

* Respond to homeowners of protected classes at risk of foreclosure, providing
counseling, information, and/or resources;

e Update FHANC's foreclosure page and intake form on the website, keeping up to date
with new programs, procedures, Covid-related resources, and changing trends;

e Conduct foreclosure clinic to evaluate clinic attendees for foreclosure counseling and
further assistance; inform homeowners of rights and Covid-19 related programs and
options;

e Maintain a Covid-19 resource page on FHANC’s website to inform tenants and
community members of resources and assistance programs available in the County; and

e Distribute FHANC-produced flyers with Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) in English
and Spanish.

FUNDING POLICIES (Funding Goals and Objectives)

Does the project address one of the highest priorities of: 1) creating or preserving affordable
housing, 2) building infrastructure or public facilities that support creation or preservation of
affordable housing, or 3) building infrastructure or public facilities that support low-income
communities?

The project supports the preservation of affordable housing in the Urban County by assisting
clients of lower income households as described above in “Proposed Use of Funds” section.
With these types of public services, clients are able to remain in their homes or, depending on
the circumstances, improve their housing situation. Housing stabilization prevents housing
disruption amongst household members and remaining in their homes could be the most
affordable option to clients as opposed to finding a decent and affordable rental some place
else.. Additionally, by addressing systemic housing discrimination practices, landlords become
educated on the fair housing laws and are may be likely to abide by them.

THRESHOLD CRITERIA

Does the project meet at least one National Objective as required under CDBG regulations (24

CFR 570.208)?

The project meets the Low/Moderate Income Clientele National Objective, and could meet the
“Urgent Need” National Objective by supporting housing retention, preventing homelessness,
and therefore preventing the spread of the coronavirus. While the applicant states that it offers

249 of 395



services to the public without income qualifications, focusing on the most vulnerable
populations such as persons with disabilities, persons of color, and families with children, the
CDBG-CV funds must be spent only on direct services to income-documented households, at
least 51% of which have incomes at our below 80% AMI. Page six of the application estimates
that 81% of households served in Urban County would be at or below 50% of the average
median income in Fiscal Year 2022-23.

Additionally, CDBG-CV recipients are required to comply with the requirements of the Fair
Housing Act (FHA) and to affirmatively further fair housing (AFFH). The proposed project
supports HUD’s AFFH rule by providing public services to reduce discrimination to protected
classes, educating landlords and tenants on fair housing laws, and advocating for legislative
policies.

Does the proposed project or activity meet the eligibility requirements of the CDBG and
HOME Funding Policies? (If not, provide the specific reason)

CDBG regulations allow the County to use up to 15% of its CDBG award allocation for public
services, however, the CARES ACT waived this cap for CDBG-CV funds. All other CDBG
regulations remain in effect for the use of these funds, which are intended to prevent, prepare
for, or respond to the coronavirus. As described, the proposed project includes activities that
meet the eligibility requirements of the funding policies, because it would serve the residents of
the Urban County and help preserve affordable housing in this area.

The section above, “Proposed Use of CDBG-CV Funds”, lists in detail how the requested amount
of corona virus funds would be spent in conjunction with the services the applicant normally
provides as stated under “Project Description”.

Does the project propose fair housing services and Affirmatively Further Fair Housing?

FHANC, a Qualified Fair Housing organization as defined by HUD, has an experienced track
record of conducting HUD’s Fair Housing Initiatives Program and administering other
government grants. FHANC offers clients complaint intake, referral, testing, advocacy,
intervention, and enforcement, and affirmatively furthers fair housing by:

e Serving clients alleging fair housing concerns, referring to staff attorneys or bilingual
housing counselors for advice and/or representation; and assisting tenants with
disabilities who need reasonable accommodations so they can enjoy their housing in the
same way non-disabled people do. FHANC would conduct testing as part of their
investigation into allegations of discrimination whenever possible;

e Referring legitimate fair housing complaints to HUD or the U.S. Department of Fair
Employment and Housing (DFEH) and often representing the client throughout the
complaint process. HUD and DFEH investigators are not necessarily attorneys; having an
attorney represent clients in the administrative process means a level of advocacy that
will ultimately help clients better understand the strengths/weaknesses of their case
and reach better settlements;

e Addressing systemic discrimination through testing and other investigative efforts, filing
complaints when it uncovers evidence of discrimination, resulting in positive policy
changes and alleviating barriers to housing opportunity;

250 of 395



e Serving protected classes under federal, state, and local fair housing laws, and
partnering with community organizations for an integrated referral system. FHANC's
attorneys and bilingual housing counselors work to keep people housed or help them in
transition, assisting them with housing needs such as termination notices and
reasonable accommodation requests;

e Offering services in English and Spanish and distributing literature in both languages
through local service agencies such as Disability Services and Legal Center, Latino
Services Project, Catholic Charities, and many others, as well as through community
meetings and forums; and

e Providing fair housing and AFFH education to private and public housing providers,
tenants, social service organizations, government offices, and elected officials.

Does the applicant demonstrate capacity to effectively deliver the proposed project?

The applicant has successfully implemented a comprehensive fair housing counseling and
testing program in the North Bay for more than 30 years. FHANC proposes to continue
providing fair housing enforcement/education services in Sonoma County, and currently
contracts with Santa Rosa and Sonoma County. The agency also provides services to Marin and
Solano counties, and shares information and resources with the other full-service fair housing
agency in the North Bay (Fair Housing Napa Valley), as well as other legal services organizations
in order to provide a more coordinated approach to serving clients. The applicant has a history
of managing federal, state, local CDBG, and private grants to provide fair housing services
throughout its geographic service area. They provide in-depth fair housing services to people
across all federally- and state protected classes. All of the activities offered are aimed at
affirmatively furthering fair housing, removing barriers to fair housing choice through assisting
individuals, educating the community about fair housing rights, and making systemic changes
through legal action as well as advocacy. FHANC is also currently funded with County CDBG
funds and is an activity administering fair housing services to Urban County households.

SELECTION CRITERIA

Does the applicant describe strategies and/or methods on how they will reach out to or
create awareness of services to the targeted populations?

The applicant states that they conduct outreach by contacting individual agencies, such as the
Latino Services Project (a network of Latino service providers), through literature distribution,
and social media marketing, and by attending community events to provide fair housing
education. They also conduct outreach and education to individuals in protected classes by
phone, letters, emails, brochures and literature, website, English and Spanish-language
newspaper or social media campaigns, poster distribution, and community presentations. Their
literature is published in English, Spanish, with some literature translated into Vietnamese and
Tagalog. They indicate that their website is updated regularly and contains pages in Spanish and
Vietnamese with relevant links to other fair housing resources.

251 of 395



FHANC also holds educational seminars and conducts fair housing presentations in English and
Spanish to grassroots and other community-based organizations; they offer presentations to
tenant groups and staff at service agencies to provide education regarding fair housing
protections for all protected classes; they hold an annual “Reasonable Accommodations
Conference”, which is attended by housing providers, advocates, and people with disabilities;
and participate in clinics with other agencies to educate the public.

Does the applicant describe its efforts to collaborate with other organizations and project
jurisdictions to effectively deliver services?

The applicant states that they have received CDBG funding from the City of Santa Rosa since
2016 and they work closely with the city’s housing authority office. They also collaborate with
Legal Aid of Sonoma County (LASC) to provide services to residents of the entire county by
referring cases to one another and/or working together on cases with fair housing and non-fair
housing issues. FHANC also meets with LASC staff regularly to discuss housing policy efforts and
to support one another’s policy campaigns on the local and state level.

Additionally, they partner with Disability Services & Legal Center to assist residents with
reasonable accommodation requests, and work with Petaluma People Services Center (PPSC) to
provide assistance to Petaluma residents by referring clients to one another when appropriate
and attending regular fair housing advocate meetings with their staff.

Federal regulations require that 51% of participants be low income. Does the applicant
describe the method that will be used to verify CDBG income eligibility and track other
required demographic and quantitative data?

The applicant states that whenever a new client (or returning client with a new issue) contacts
them, their intake coordinator conducts screening and collects information, including their
current address. This information is added to their “Salesforce” database. To ensure that CDBG
dollars are used for only persons in the Urban County, prior to invoicing the county for CDBG
grant reimbursement, their staff runs quarterly reports from the database to determine which
cases to count toward the Sonoma County CDBG grant and clients are filtered via their address
in the Urban County. When a case is investigated they will collect documentation to support
the client’s case, including leases, violation notices, and other documents, which will confirm
the client’s address.

As for income verification, FHANC's standard intake protocol is as follows:

e The intake counselor asks all clients to disclose their household’s income (monthly or
annual), as well as the income source (e.g. employment, retirement, social security,
disability benefits) when determining the client’s fair housing needs;

e Theclient’sincome is documented in their database program. Approximately 90% or
more of their clients are below 80% AMI. At the intake stage, FHANC currently asks
clients to self-certify their income and demographic information; however, prior to this,

252 of 395



their intake staff explains that services are available to all clients, regardless of income.
This removes any incentive for clients to misstate their income;
e Following intake, a FHANC attorney or housing counselor can require the client to
provide adequate documentation (e.g. pay stub or receipt of benefits) if the client’s
income level is not otherwise ascertainable;
e All clients are required to sign a retainer agreement stating that their cooperation with
document requests is required in order to receive representation from FHANC's
attorneys. The database tracks demographic, income, and other information. The
demographic and income classifications are aligned with HUD’s classifications for race,
ethnicity, and income. The database tracks the source of the documentation verifying
income: self-certification, third party, or primary source.

Can the project be expected to have a significant impact on the identified problem and result

in one or more measurable indicator?

The problems identified include unlawful evictions, lack of access to legal representation, lack
of access to education of tenant rights, and housing related discrimination to non-English
speakers and minorities. Based on the data provided in the table below, it appears that the
number of persons and households proposed to be served in the next fiscal year (2022-23) are
estimated to be 25% lower than those served in 2020-21. Therefore, the project may have an
important, but perhaps reduced, impact on the identified problems.

Proposed number
of Households
Served Project in
the Upcoming
Fiscal Year.

Current number of
Households Served
as of the filing of this
application (if
project is currently
in operation)

Number of
Households Served
by Project Last
Fiscal Year.

July 1, 2022 - June 30,
2023

July 1, 2021 to January 21,
2022

July 1, 2020 - June 30,
2021

served

Number of households

175

96

TR

Considering only Urban County residents to be assisted, list the estimatedwbercentage of
‘the target population served in each of the income categories below.

Extremely Low (Below 30% AMI) 59%
Very Low (Between 31% -50% AMI) 2%
Low (Between 51% -80% AMI) 11%
Moderate (Over 80% AMI) 8%

If there are substantial changes to the past, current or proposed number of households to be

served, does the applicant provide an explanation for the changes?

253 of 395




The Applicant does not provide an explanation as to why the estimated need for services would
be lower than that of FY 2020-21 and possibly lower than the current year.

PROJECT BUDGET

Total Organization Budget $1,151,713

Total program budget $452,944

Percent of program to organization budget 39%

Percent of CDBG request of program budget $25,000 requested = 6%
Program cost per household $452,944/175 = $2,588
County cost per household $85,000/175 = $486

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:

This applicant is requesting CDBG funds ($85,000) in addition to CDBG-CV ($25,000) funds. The
applicant proposes to renew their existing program of “Fair Housing Education and
Enforcement”, but would use the requested CDBG-CV funds for the tasks listed in the
“Proposed Use of CDBG-CV Funds section, above.

CONSEQUENCES OF NO FUNDING OR REDUCED FUNDING:

Should less than the $25,000 requested for CDBG-CV funding be awarded, FHANC may reduce
the number of tasks listed in the “Proposed Use of CDBG-CV Funds”, depending on how much
funding is reduced.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

The applicant has received funding in the past from the County and demonstrates that they
have the capacity to carry out their proposed goals of the continuance of the project. They have
the systems in place to ensure that the persons served are of lower income within the Urban
County and the project supports the AFFH rule mandated by HUD of all recipients. Provided the
County receives the full CDBG allocation, staff supports full funding as requested.

PRELIMINARY CONDITION(S) OF APPROVAL
Allocated funding will be a grant [X] aloan| ]

A NEPA environmental review must be completed before applicant can be offered
1. | a Funding Agreement. The Sonoma County Community Development Commission
staff will prepare the NEPA.

CDBG-CV will be used only to reimburse costs to provide services to income-
2. | documented households residing in the Urban County, at least 51% of which must
have incomes at our below 80% AMI.

254 of 395



CDBG-CV funding awarded must be used for eligible expenses during the fiscal
year of July 1, 2022 and no later than June 30, 2023. Specific terms will be
included in a Funding Agreement, and no costs can be incurred prior to a fully
executed funding agreement

255 of 395




SONOMA COUNTY COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION

CDBG and CDBG-CV FUNDING APPLICATION:
FAIR HOUSING SERVICES AND HOUSING

JUSTICE PROGRAMS

Please review the Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA), Application
Guidelines, and the FY 2022-2023 CDBG and HOME Funding Policies . This space reserved for CDC date and time stamp
before submitting your application. All applications must meet the eligibility
criteria found in the Funding Policies and the requirements set forth in the NOFA.

Part 1: Applicant Information

Legal name of organization: Fair Housing Advocates of Northern California
Orqanization's DUNS namber 69981065 e
Contact Information
Authorized Representative (City/T own Name, title: Caroline Peattie, Executive Direcior
Manager, Executive Director, or other):
Phone: 415-483-7552
Email: peattie @fairhousingnorcal.org -
Primary point of contact: ‘Name, title: Caroline Peattie, Executive Director
Phone: 415:483-7552
Email: peattie @fairhousingnorcal.org
‘ Organization is a: @ Non-profit organization OLocal government
 Organization maiiing address: 1314 Lincoin Avenue, Suite A, San Rafael, CA 94901
Organization website: www.fairhousingnorcal.org

Organizational Capacity and Experience
Describe applicant’s record of administrative and programmatic capacity using federal, state, local, and/or private grant funds, explaining any past issues or
challenges administering grant funds.

For over 30 years, Fair Housing Advocates of Northern California (FHANC) has successfully implemented a comprehensive fair housing counseling
and testing program in the North Bay. FHANC proposes to continue to provide fair housing enforcement/education services in Sonoma County, and
currently contracts with Santa Rosa and Sonoma County. The agency also provides services to Marin and Solano counties, and shares information
and resources with the other full-service fair housing agency in the North Bay (Fair Housing Napa Valley) as well as other legal services organizations
in order to provide a more coordinated approach to serving clients. FHANC has a history of managing federal, state, local CDBG, and private
grants to provide fair housing services throughout its geographic service area.

Building on our expertise and community partnerships, FHANC will provide in-depth fair housing services to people across all federally- and state-
protected classes. FHANC partners with Disability Legal Services Center and works with local Public Housing Authorities, disseminating program
information through networks such as the Latino Services Project.

All of the activities offered are aimed at affirmatively furthering fair housing, removing barriers to fair housing choice through assisting individuals,
educating the community about fair housing rights, and making systemic changes through legal action as well as advocacy. FHANC' program
responds to Sonoma County’s Analysis of Impediments, which identified stakeholders’ call for a 'full service' county-wide fair housing organization.

256 of 395



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Part 2: Project Description

Brief Description of Project or Program

The description provided here will be incorporated into the staff reports provided to the Community Development Committee, Cities and Towns Advisory
Committee, and/or the Board of Supervisors. Descriptions MUST BE 125 words or less. It will not be edited and will be truncated at 125 words. A longer
project description may be attached.

FHANC will provide full-service fair housing education and enforcement services in Sonoma County, offering advocacy to people protected by federal,
state, and local fair housing laws and providing fair housing education to tenants, public and private housing providers, and the larger community.

FHANC focuses on the most vulnerable populations — e.g. people with disabilities, people of color, and families with children. FHANC addresses systemic
discrimination through testing and other investigative efforts, filing agency complaints or lawsuits when warranted, to change discriminatory housing
policies. In addition, FHANC advocates for legislative policies which will affirmatively further fair housing (AFFH), and offers technical assistance to
jurisdictional staff on AFFH matters. (If funded with CDBG-CV dollars) FHANC will also provide Covid-related fair housing services.

Part 3: Project Information

Project Name Fair Housing Education and Enforcement

Fair Housing Project Type
Please check all types of activities or services your organization will provide with the funding requested:

@ Provideseducationaboutfairhousinglaws @ Provides in\)'é"étigative testingand auditing® Advocatesfortenants who may be targets of
discrimination @ Enforcementoffairhousinglaws O Legalservices for eviction prevention

Funding Request

Amount of CDBG funds requested: $ 85;000

Amount of CDBG-CV funds requested: $ 25,000

CDBG-CV Requirements
If you are applying for CDBG-CV funds, please describe the how the proposed activity will prevent, prepare for or respond to Coronavirus (activities
must demonstrate they respond to one of more):

-Analyze data tracked and demographics of clients to identify trends to guide FHANC's outreach efforts, client services, and need for adaptation to
address community needs as they evolve

- Conduct email marketing campaigns in English, Spanish, and Vietnamese, focusing on protected classes affected by Covid-19 (as identified through
evaluation for data), through Constant Contact e-blasts

- Distribute 200 fair housing posters in English, Spanish, and Vietnamese through postering service, targeting different protected classes affected by Covid-
19 (as identified through evaluation of data)

- Refer clients calling as a result of a Covid-related eviction or other Covid-related issue to other agencies and/or provide education on fair housing laws

- Provide fair housing services to clients in their primary language who are calling as a result of Covid-related issues, including referrals and fair housing
casework

-Respond to homeowners of protected classes at risk of foreclosure, providing counseling, information, and/or resources

-Ur?date FHAN(dJ’s foreclosure page and intake form on the website, keeping up to date with new programs, procedures, Covid-related resources, and
changing trends

- Conduct foreclosure clinic to evaluate clinic attendees for foreclosure counseling and further assistance; inform homeowners of rights and Covid-19 related
programs and options

-Maintain a Covid-19 resource page on FHANC's website to inform tenants and community members of resources and assistance programs available in the
County.

- Distribute FHANC-produced flyers with Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) in English and Spanish, and translate flyer into Vietnamese, focusing on

protected classes affected by Covid-19; distribute flyers to clients and to service agencies

Primary Physical Location of Activities or Program (if applicable)

Address: 1314 Lincoln Avenue, Suite A, San Rafael, CA 94901

Fair Housing Program Information

Describe your organization’s experience providing Fair Housing services. Include a general description of your organization’s strategies,
program model, and past achievements:

FHANC has provided fair housing education and enforcement services since 1984, offering advocacy to people protected by federal, state, and local fair
housing laws. FHANC focuses on the most vulnerable populations — e.g. people with disabilities, people of color, and families with children. FHANC is one
of the few agencies that provides free legal services to clients without income qualifications — so fong as there is an allegation of housing discrimination -
and addresses systemic discrimination through testing and other investigative efforts, filing agency complaints or lawsuits when warranted, to change to
discriminatory housing policies.

FY 2020-2021 achievements and highlights include:

-Served 862 clients (tenants, homeowners, and homebuyers); 370 fair housing complaints
-Advocated for 104 reasonable accommodations/modifications; over 80% of which were granted
Counseled 74 homeowners in distress

257 of 395
Page 2 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Describe your understanding of the expectations related to the provision of Fair Housing services under HUD’s AFFH rule:

HUD's 2015 AFFH rule requires jurisdictions to affirmatively further fair housing: address significant disparities in access to community assets;
overcome segregated living patterns, promote integrated communities, end racially/ethnically concentrated areas of poverty; and foster and
maintain compliance with civil rights and fair housing laws. The rule required jurisdictions to provide an Assessment of Fair Housing with
community participation (in consultation with fair housing groups) and identification of their top fair housing priorities and goals, addressing fair
housing enforcement and outreach capacity. Though the rule was suspended under the previous administration, the current administration
reinstated the rule and will likely strengthen it; and jurisdictions must still provide an Analysis of Impediments to Fair Housing Choice (Al) within the
same timeline. The requirement that jurisdictions must affirmatively further fair housing is still firmly rooted in the Fair Housing Act. In addition, since
AB686 went into effect January 1, 2019, jurisdictions must AFFH through the Housing Element process. Providing robust, full-service fair housing
services - education, advocacy, and enforcement - is the first step toward addressing barriers to fair housing choice.

Describe activities in your proposed program model that will raise awareness of Fair Housing issues in Sonoma County including technical training for
housing industry representatives and organizations, education and outreach activities geared to the public, and advocacy campaigns:

- FHANC's mission is to “ensure equal housing opportunity and to educate the community on the value of diversity in our neighborhoods,” and has

* traditionally offered outreach and education to the community — tenants, housing providers, and the broader community (see above under “organizational

: experience,” above. In addition, FHANC has offered technical training on AFFH to housing providers (including public housing authorities), CDBG and
HOME recipients, and entitlement jurisdictions, and is available for similar training upon request. For example, in the past, FHANC Executive Director has
made AFFH presentations to the Sonoma County Community Development Committee and CD staff on the obligations of the CD Committee and Housing
Authorities to affirmatively further fair housing. FHANC staff has also provided a Fair Housing Law and Practice training to CD staff in Sonoma County,
ensuring that staff are aware of state and federal fair housing laws and know when and how to refer clients to FHANC. FHANC has had several
conversations regarding AFFH requirements with Sonoma County staff, discussing state and federal mandates, including the Assessment of Fair Housing.
- FHANC staff continues to be available for this type of technical support, and has offered to provide presentations to Sonoma County Housing Authority and
Santa Rosa Housing Authority to cover fair housing laws, appropriate referrals, and recent fair housing trends.

FHANC has been involved in tenant advocacy on relevant fair housing issues on the local and state level. For example, FHANC was instrumental in the
passage of fair housing ordinances for source of income protections to help people with subsidized housing vouchers to access housing, meeting with
elected officials and making presentations at hearings, as well as writing letters to the editor. FHANC staff has also supported efforis to pass Just Cause
for Eviction and Ellis Act Implementation Ordinances in Sonoma County jurisdictions, including Petaluma. Additionally, in conjunction with partner
organizations, LASC and the Sonoma County Tenants Union, FHANC successfully advocated for the City of Healdsburg not to challenge their RHNA
allocations by sending a joint letter to the City Council, citing fair housing concerns, and meeting with the City Manager. FHANC has also supported tenant
advocate efforts to pass AB 832 and multiple extensions of the CDC moratorium. As another example, in the past, we have offered technical support by
discussing the fair housing implications of the Santa Rosa rent stabilization ordinance with city staff and other callers. FHANC will continue to provide
related advocacy and support where needed in Sonoma County. FHANC will continue to become involved as opportunities for tenant advocacy on
relevant fair housing issues present themselves on the local and state level.

Describe activities and the anticipated *impéét‘uéf ’66'r/ribonents of your proposed program modet that will address the requirements for fair housing testing, and
enforcement under the AFFH rule:

' FHANC, a Qualified Fair Housing organization as defined by HUD, has an experienced track record of conducting HUD's Fair Housing Initiatives Program and

. other government grants. As stated above, FHANC will offer clients complaint intake, referral, testing, advocacy, intervention, and enforcement, and

affirmatively further fair housing through the following:

-FHANC will serve clients alleging fair housing concerns, referring to our attorneys or bilingual housing counselor for advice and/or representation, and assist

tenants with disabilities who need reasonable accommodations so they can enjoy their housing in the same way non-disabled people do. We anticipate most

requests will be granted based on past advocacy and experience. We will conduct testing as part of our investigations into allegations of discrimination

whenever feasible (e.g. assuming there is a vacancy).

-FHANC will refer legitimate fair housing complaints to HUD or DFEH, often representing the client throughout the complaint process, which results in

better outcomes in most cases. HUD and DFEH investigators are not necessarily attorneys; having an attorney represent clients in the administrative

process means a level of advocacy that will ultimately help clients better understand the strengths/weaknesses of their case and reach better settlements

- which may mean monetary compensation, preservation of housing, improving housing conditions, the granting of a reasonable accommodation for a

client with a disability, or other tangible relief.

-FHANC will continue to address systemic discrimination through testing and other investigative efforts, filing complaints when it uncovers evidence of

discrimination, resulting in positive policy changes and alleviating barriers to housing opportunity.

-FHANC will serve protected classes under federal, state, and local fair housing laws, and will partner with community organizations for an integrated referral

system. FHANC's attorneys and bilingual housing counselor work to keep people housed or help them in transition, assisting them with housing needs such

as termination notices and reasonable accommodation requests.

-FHANC will offer its services in English and Spanish and distribute literature in both languages through local service agencies such as Disability Services

and Legal Center, Latino Services Project, Catholic Charities, and many others, as well as through community meetings and forums. FHANC will contact

staff at community-based agencies to provide education and to strengthen referral networks. in addition, FHANC will publish newspaper ads or social

media campaigns, conduct email marketing and send public service announcements. These activities will inform clients of their fair housing rights so they

can access needed assistance and fair housing services.

- FHANC will provide fair housing and AFFH education to private and public housing providers, tenants, social service organizations, and county staff and
officials.

Describe your proposed project’s capacity for Intake of Complaints, and Investigation & Enforcement, including filing lawsuits.

in FY2020-21, FHANC responded to more than 2,000 inquiries related to housing, processing 490 fair housing complaints and filing 13
discrimination complaints with HUD or DFEH. Halfway through this fiscal year, FHANC has exceeded its annual projected goal for the County,
serving 89 households and 163 persons. Our intake coordinator screens callers and refers clients with allegations of discrimination to counselors
for a full intake and counseling; attorneys conduct legal analysis to assess the case for effective intervention, so if evidence leads to enforcement
action, the strongest possible case for legal action is developed. When testing is indicated, the case is referred to the investigations coordinators.
The ability to develop evidence is strongly enhanced by our testing program, and there is no delay with an in-house referral, crucial in tight rental
markets where discrimination is most likely to occur and most difficult to detect.

Attorneys and housing counselors intervene with housing providers on behalf of clients when necessary to share concerns of discrimination and
request relief. Staff also intervene to help clients with a disability request a reasonable accommodation or modification that is necessary.

. Interventions often result in the end of discriminatory housing practices and more stability in housing for members of protected classes. When
these efforts are unsuccessful or there is egregious discrimination, attorneys represent clients in the administrative complaint process. This
includes drafting complaints, submitting investigation results as evidence, representing clients during ongoing conciliations or formal mediations,
assisting clients to calculate damages, think through injunctive and other relief, and prepare settlement demands, as well as draft settlement
agreements. An advocate knowledgeable about fair housing laws and the administrative process can ultimately help clients reach better
settlements - which may mean preservation of housing, improving housing conditions, the granting of a reasonable accommodation for a client
with disabilities, or other tangible relief.

In cases where FHANC conducts testing, the agency has standing to file a complaint. When FHANC diverts resources during an investigation
where evidence of discrimination has been found, or where we see patterns of discrimination, the agency joins clients to strengthen their case
and ensure injunctive relief and systemic change. In cases where there is no bona fide complainant or where clients do not feel comfortable
bringing a case, FHANC can and does file agency complaints to ensure that discriminatory housing policies are changed. Occasionally, we
assist clients to find an appropriate fair housing attorney to file a lawsuit in state or federal court, and often the agency co-files to strengthen the
- case and to ensure policy changes.

i Describe the proposed project’s strategy to provide Fair H(lﬁkuging trainin,g rfg{ property owners and renters.

£-2.0

25801395
Page 3of 15 Updated 12/10/2021




Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

FHANC offers a comprehensive 3-hour Fair Housing Law & Practice Seminar for a fee to housing providers that highlights federal and state federal law and
best practices to comply with these laws. FHANC also offers no-cost training opportunities for renters, staff and clients at grassroots and other community-
based organizations (including housing advocates), through presentations and informational meetings in English and Spanish. Historically this has
improved complaint solicitation and fostered better understanding of fair housing laws.  In addition, FHANC offers annual conferences on Reasonable
Accommodations for people with disabilities for public and private housing providers, advocates, and agency staff to better prepare them to. work with
people with special needs. The conference offers an opportunity to participate in small group discussions tailored to the participant’s questions and
experiences. Since Covid, we have offered this conference via Zoom, with breakout sessions to carry out the small group discussions, let by experienced ¢
and knowledgeable facilitators. FHANC has also developed fair housing webinars in English and Spanish focusing on protections for peopie with disabilities
as well as on discrimination based upon sex/gender, race/color, and national origin. The webinars are posted on our website, making it available to housing
providers and the general public. Finally, FHANC proposes to notify housing providers posting discriminatory Craigslist ads for housing, providing them
with information on fair housing laws and including a link to FHANC's discriminatory advertising webinar within its communication to the housing provider.

Describe your strategy for providing counseling for low-income/disabled residents to understand their rights.

FHANC helps low-income clients and people of protected classes achieve stable, affordable, and sustainable housing through a variety of
methods described above and below. We believe these services are vital for building strong, healthy communities. Although we provide
outreach and educational services to tenants through a variety of means — newspaper ads, social media, our website, flyers, etc. — we believe it is
important to counsel clients one-on-one about their fair housing rights, so that the information they receive from us goes beyond just  their
immediate housing issue, and their knowledge can be applied to future situations. For people with disabilities, we assist them with reasonable
accommodation requests in particular, in addition to addressing allegations of other forms of disability discrimination, and partner with Disability
Services Legal Center to provide reasonable modifications.

We already have an established network in Sonoma County of service providers, facilitating distribution of our Tenant Booklets, with specific
resources for Sonoma County. We will continue to distribute these comprehensive booklets with housing resources, as well as our reasonable
accommodation brochures and FAQ's on reasonable accommodations, distributed through DSLC (to whom we provide modification funds for
people with disabilities in Sonoma County). These resources are also available electronically via our website.

Though residents who are low-income are not protected by fair housing laws by virtue of their income, low-income residents are nevertheless
disproportionately represented by people of color, families with children, individuals with disabilities, and other protected classes covered by fair
housing law. Historically, over 90% of FHANC's clients are low-income. FHANC's services help address a conundrum that low-income tenants
face when seeking eviction defense. Typically, tenants who receive a notice terminating their tenancy — or some other notice of a lease violation
jeopardizing their tenancy — seek assistance from a local legal aid organization; however, generally, these organizations can provide the tenant
with advice on the validity of the notice and suggest that the tenants return for more assistance when they are served with an eviction lawsuit.
FHANC provides services that address an unmet need, as FHANC can assist tenants who allege notices are discriminatory or who require the
rescission or extension of a notice as a reasonable accommodation based upon a disability-related need. FHANC's assistance often prevents the
matter escalating to an eviction lawsuit, which could jeopardize the tenant’s credit, housing subsidy (if applicable), and ability to obtain new
housing in the future given the tight market in the Bay Area. In sum, FHANC offers legal assistance designed to prevent evictions through legal
services focused on fair housing. FHANC has  worked with Legal Aid of Sonoma County for several years so as to provide the best possible
_services for Sonoma County residents.

Describe your proposed strategy to provide educational seminars for residents most vulnerable to housing discrimination.

FHANC will conduct fair housing presentations in English and Spanish, to grassroots and other community-based organizations for better, more
streamlined complaint referral and to reach those most vulnerable to housing discrimination. We offer presentations to tenant groups and staff at
service agencies to provide education regarding fair housing protections for all protected classes. See also above description of our annual
Reasonable Accommodations Conference, which is attended by housing providers, advocates, and people with disabilities. In addition, we will
conduct networking meetings with organizations serving protected classes to refine an integrated referral system and to look for opportunities to
inform the community about the services FHANC provides. We currently have 3 staff members who can offer services and presentations in Spanish;
we also have staff fluent in Portuguese. The agency has offered fair housing presentations to voucher recipients in Marin and Solano counties, often
through clinics in partnership with either the local housing authority or tegal aid organization, offering fair housing information to low-income residents.
FHANC is available to offer similar fair housing presentations to voucher recipients in Sonoma County.

How will your proposed Fair Housing program help to reduce discriminatory activities against protected classes?

Through education of housing providers (with our seminars as well as contacting of housing providers who post discriminatory Craigslist ads), renters,
and social service providers, the community will gain an understanding of their fair housing rights and responsibilities, and consequences for housing
providers who fail to adhere to fair housing laws. Through our testing and enforcement program including complaint filings and settlements, we will
affirmatively change discriminatory policies affecting not only one tenant or family, but all units owned or managed by the housing provider. In addition,
publicizing our systemic testing as well as results of case settlements (through news releases via media outreach, Constant Contact, Facebook, Twitter,
and our website) results in a broader impact on other landiords and tenants who learn of case outcomes and the cost of discriminatory housing policies.

FHANC is the only full-service fair housing agency in recent years to offer fair housing counseling, combined with complaint-based and systemic testing,
in the county. FHANC’s work is primarily supported by the HUD's Fair Housing Initiatives (FHIP) program. Congress established the FHIP program in 1987
to promote compliance with the Fair Housing Act, as well as state and local fair housing laws and ordinances. FHIP is a competitive grant program that
provides essential funding to fair housing organizations. FHIP-funded fair housing organizations play a vital role in combating segregation through
enforcing fair housing laws; increasing public awareness of discriminatory housing practices through education and public outreach campaigns; advising
consumers on how and where to file fair housing complaints and informing consumers of their fair housing rights; and conducting investigations to
subs‘;antiate claims of housing discrimination (U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, “Study of the Fair Housing Initiatives Program,” May
2011).

A unique feature of FHIP-funded fair housing organizations is their ability to conduct testing. Because most acts of housing discrimination are covert,
testing is often the only way to determine whether a housing applicant has experienced disparate treatment, or received different quality, content, or
quantity of information on account of his or her protected-class status. Testing is widely recognized as a crucial investigatory tool, affirmed by the U.S.
Supreme Court’s 1982 ruling in Havens Realty Corp. v. Coleman.

As HUD’s data demonstrates, 71 percent of cases that are referred to it by FHIP-funded organizations result in a cause finding or conciliation, compared to
37 percent for non-FHIP referred cases. Testing is often the key factor in determining whether a complaint will be successful; 69 percent of cases with
testing evidence lead to a cause finding or conciliation, compared to 38 percent of cases without testing.

'FHANC addresses discrimination through representation on individual complaints as well as its and systemic investigation and advocacy efforts.
What marketing strategies (online or otherwise) will your organization will use to conduct public outreach to share information about fair housing?

FHANC will conduct outreach by contacting individual agencies, such as the Latino Services Project (a network of Latino service providers), through
literature distribution, and social media marketing (e.g. Constant Contact, Facebook, Twitter) and by attending community events to provide fair
housing education. FHANC conducts outreach and education to individual protected classes by phone, letters, emails, brochures and literature,
website, English and Spanish-language newspaper or social media campaigns, poster distribution, and community presentations. We also provide
educational conferences to the general public and protected classes on Fair Housing and AFFH issues and on Reasonable Accommodations for
people with disabilities. Our literature is published in English, Spanish, with some literature translated into Vietnamese and Tagalog. Our website,
updated regularly and with pages in Spanish and Vietnamese, has extensive outreach information with links to a number of FHANC educational
materials, the agency’s services, online compilaint forms, and HUD 's office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity as well as the California
Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH).

Please describe services provided to landlords such as consultation, training, or landlord/tenant mediation services.

259 of 395

Pana 4 nf 15 Findatad 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBGHOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

FHANC's Fair Housing Law & Practice seminar is available to public and private housing providers for a reasonable fee, and we offer an annual
conference “Successfully Housing People with Disabilities” to bring together public and private housing providers, advocates, and people with
disabilities to learn about and discuss reasonable accommodations. (FHANC receives more calls related to reasonable accommodations than any
other type of fair housing call.) For example, FHANC held such a conference in 2021 with housing providers, advocates, and people with disabilities
attending (including attendees from Sonoma County), to discuss reasonable accommodations during the application, occupancy, and eviction stages.
FHANC is holding another such conference January 20, 2022.

It is important to note, however, that FHANC does not provide counseling to landlords, as this presents a conflict of interest and would not allow us to serve
any tenant having a difficulty with a landlord whom we advised. With that said, the representation we provide to tenants/fhomeowners often includes informal
interventions with housing providers, helping to resolve allegations of discrimination or a need for a reasonable accommodation / modification prior to the
administrative complaint stage or some other enforcement action. While we are representing the tenant, the outcome is often to the benefit of the housing
provider. As a result of our intervention, housing providers achieve a better understanding of fair housing faws and their responsibilities and can often avoid
expensive litigation.

. Please describe how your organization collaborates with other entitlement jurisdictions within Sonoma County (Petaluma and Santa Rosa) and
other Fair Housing or Housing Justice programs to provide consistent and cost- effective service and assistance to citizens of the entire County.

FHANC has received CDBG funding from the City of Santa Rosa since 2016 to provide full services fair housing services. In addition, FHANC
works closely with Legal Aid of Sonoma County (LASC) to provide services to residents of the entire county by referring cases to one another
and/or working together on cases with fair housing and non-fair housing issues, such as eviction cases where a tenant needs additional time to move
as a reasonable accommodation. FHANC also meets with LASC staff regularly to discuss housing policy efforts and to support one another'’s
policy campaigns on the local and state level. FHANC also works with Petaluma People Services Center (PPSC) to provide assistance to Petaluma
residents by referring clients to one another when appropriate and attending regular fair housing advocate meetings with their staff. FHANC’s
educational events — such as the annual April Fair Housing Month Conference and the annual Reasonable Accommodations Conference on
successfully housing people with disabilities — is regularly attended by staff from PPSC as well as jurisdictional staff from Santa Rosa and Sonoma
County.

The County of Sonoma, as well as the seven municipalities of Cloverdale, Cotati, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park, Sebastopol, Sonoma, and Windsor,
comprise the Urban County. At least 51% of beneficiaries served by the program or activity funded by the Sonoma County Community Development
Commission with CDBG or CDBG-CV funds must be Urban County residents. Please state how your organization will obtain, verify and document
program beneficiaries meet this requirement:

Each time a new client (or returning client with a new issue) contacts FHANC, the Intake Coordinator conducts an intake and documents the
client’s contact information, including their current address, in our Salesforce database. We trust that the address provided to us is correct

| because in order for us to advocate for a client regarding their housing (usually with their landlord) knowing where they live is the first and most
| basic requirement. To ensure that CDBG dollars are used for only persons in the Urban County, prior to invoicing the county for CDBG grant
reimbursement, staff run quarterly reports from the Salesforce database to determine which cases to count toward our Sonoma County CDBG
grant, and clients are filtered via their address in the Urban county.

In addition, when we investigate a case, we often collect documentation to support our client's case, including leases, violation notices, etc. that
confirm the client's address.

‘Sonoma County uses CDBG fundingwfc‘)r‘ Fair Housing and Housing Justice services. Federal regulations require that 51% of participants be low income. o
What method will your organization use to verify and track income eligibility?

- FHANC's standard intake protocol is as follows: The intake counselor asks all clients to disclose their household’s income (monthly or annual), as well as to
disclose the source of  that income (i.e., employment, retirement, social security, disability benefits) when determining the client’s fair housing needs.
However, FHANC provides service to clients regardless of income as part of our requirement to affirmatively further fair housing, and provide clients that
assurance prior to asking for income information. The client’s income is documented in our Salesforce database program. As mentioned above, around
90% or more of our clients are below 80% AMI. At the intake stage, FHANC currently asks clients to self-certify their income and demographic information.
Prior to this, FHANC's intake counselor explains that services are available to all clients, regardless of income. This removes any incentive for clients to
misstate their income. Following intake, a FHANC attorney or housing counselor can require the client to provide adequate documentation (i.e., pay stub
or receipt of benefits), if the client's income level is not otherwise ascertainable (for instance, often clients receive subsidies or other benefits they would
not be entitled to unless they were low income). All clients are required to sign a retainer agreement that states, among other things, that their cooperation
with document requests is required in order to receive representation from FHANC's attorneys. Our Salesforce database documents demographic,
income, and other information. The demographic and income classifications are aligned with HUD's classifications for race, ethnicity, and income. In its
database, FHANC also tracks the source of the documentation verifying income: self-certification, third party, or primary source.

" Please fill out the table below by stating the numbers served per category according to the stated time frames.

Broposed number to be Current number served as of Number served by project last
served by project in the filing of this application Fiscal Year
upcoming Fiscal Year (if project is currently in
operation)
July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023 July 1, 2021 to Current Date July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021
Number of hoyseholds served =
175 96 202
Number of persons served
250 170 315
260 of 395

Page 5of 15 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

List the estimated percentage of the target population served in each of the income categories below:

Household Income List the total estimated percentage of the s
households served in each of the income list the estimated percentage of households
categories below served in each of the income categories

below

Extremely Low (Below 30% AMI) 53% 59%

Very Low (Between 31% -50% AMI) 16% 209

Low (Between 51% -80% AMI) 259, 11%

Moderats (Gver 60 AW - . -

Part 4: Project Financing and Budget

Funding Status

Is this application for new or renewal funding? I New @ Renewal

Has this project been previously funded by the CDC?

@ Yes ONo

If this project received funding under a different name, please state the name of

the program (/f “No” = NA) N/A

What percentage of your project budget does your request make up?

26.38%
Will funding requested supplant existing funding for the project? ClYes @ No
Community Development Commission Funding History
FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 Request for FY 2022-
2023

Funds Requested $75,000 $75,000 $77,000 $110,000

Funds Awarded $70,000 $77,000 $77,000

Application Budget Overview

Total Organization Budget: $1 151.713

Total Project Budget: $452.944

The request represents this percentage of the project budget: 24.29%

Please state funding sources leveraged to support your proposed project and approximate percentage of the total project budget that these represent.

* City of Santa Rosa: Fair Housing Public Service Provider Program Grant - $36,000 (7.9%)

* FHIP PEI: Fair Housing Enforcement and COVID Project Grant - $77,778 (17.2%)

* FHIP EOI: Marin/Sonoma/Solano County Fair Housing Education and Outreach Project - $41,667 (9.2%)

* FHIP PEI: Marin/Sonoma/Solano County Fair Housing Enforcement and Systemic Testing Project - $125,000 (27.6%)
* FHOI: Discrimination in Appraisal and Lending - Enforcement and Systemic Testing Project - $62,500 (13.8%)

Describe the aspects of the project design that are scalable. Indicate how many fewer participants will receive services if the award is less than the amount
requested.

Should less than the $25,000 requested for CDBG-CV funding be awarded, FHANC will reduce the number of tasks conducted (11 tasks were outlined
above, and the # of tasks eliminated would depend on how much the funding was reduced). As for the regular CDBG funds requested, reduced funding
will mean that 1) there will be reduced outreach, which may cause a natural reduction in the number of clients contact the agency; and/or 2) we will offer

more limited services to the clients who contact our agency.

261 of 395

Paoe 6 of 15 Hindated 12/10/2024



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

What is your organization’s plan for the long-term financial sustainability of this project?

The agency has been applying for and receiving HUD's Fair Housing Initiatives Program (FHIP) funding since the 1990s, which allows for FHANC to
operate a robust fair housing education and enforcement program. in fact, FHANC has been able to expand the amount awarded through FHIP (see
leveraged amounts, above). in addition, Santa Rosa CDBG funds have supplemented FHANC's work in Sonoma County. And finally, FHANC applies for
and receives multiple types of funding, from government, foundation, and corporate grants to sponsorships and individual donations, which all contribute

toward program costs and overhead. Sonoma County CDBG dollars fund direct one-on-one fair housing counseling services to Sonoma County
residents.

262 of 395

Page 7 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Part 5: Attachments Required
Project sponsors must submit the following documents, as applicable, with their funding application:

[0 Project Description: Provide a description of the project that includes specific location information and geographic boundaries. It
should identify the maximum anticipated scope of the entire project, and delineate the specific activities for which the applicant
is requesting funding at this time.

Authorizing Resolution: For non-profit organizations, attach a resolution from the Board of Directors authorizing the submittal
of the application.
IRS Letter of Determination: Non-profit organizations only must submit an IRS Letter of Determination. Non-profit organizations
are not eligible for consideration unless non-profit status has been verified.
Letters of Commitment: Submit letters of commitment from all other funding sources.
Financial Documentation:
O Non-profit organizations must attach the following:
= Current operating budget
= Most recent completed final audit report
= |IRS Form 990 for the most current tax year
= |f organization is not audited, attach a copy of the most recent internal financial statement that has been
approved by Board of Directors.
*Additional financial information may be requested by CDC staff as deemed appropriate.
O Sonoma County departments or agencies, the cities of Cotati, Cloverdale, Healdsburg, Rohnert Park, Sebastopol,
Sonoma, and the Town of Windsor are exempt from this requirement.
[0 Organizations are required to have written policies and procedures. The applicant must submit certification that they have the
following policies and procedures. (Please complete the forms found in Part 7 —Certifications)
= Accounting
= Conflict of Interest
®  Procurement
=  Record Retention

oo o o

263 of 395
Paae 8 of 15 Updated 12/16/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Part 6: Certifications
3 Grant Certification Form — 1 (Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority)
[ Grant Certification Form — 2 (Federal Regulations)
3 Grant Certification Form — 3 (Conflict of Interest)
[ Grant Certification Form — 4 (Policies and Procedures)

264 of 395
Page 9 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 1
Application Completeness & Accuracy & Signatory Authority

| hereby certify that (insert name of organization requesting funds) has

complied with all applicable laws and regulations pertaining to the application and is an eligible applicant for the requested
funding.

The organization proposes to provide the program services or complete the project identified in this application. If this
application is approved and this organization receives the requested funding this organization agrees to adhere to all relevant
Federal, State, and local regulations and other assurances as required by the Commission.

In addition, the content of the application shall be incorporated as part of the written agreement and, as such, will be used to
monitor performance. Activities, commitments, and representations described in the written agreement that are not subsequently
made a part of the program/project as funded shall be considered a material contract failure and may result in a repayment of all
awarded funds and/or suspension from participation in future funding rounds.

I hereby certify that the organization is fully capable of fulfilling its obligation under this application, as stated herein. | further
certify that the information provided in this Funding Application is correct, accurate, and complete.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

265 of 395
Page 10 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 2
Federal Regulations — CDBG

Requirements

Federal Labor Standards

- Davis-Bacon

- Copeland Act (Anti-kickback)

- Contract Work Hours and Safety
Standards

Federal Regulations

24 CFR 92.354
29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5

Other References

40 U.S.C. 3141;40 U.S.C. 3701

Section 3

24 CFR 135

Section 3 of the HUD Act of
1968, as amended (12 U.S.C.
1701u); 2 CFR 200.321

Minority and Women Business
Enterprise Participation
{MBE/WBE)

Small Business Act, Section
3(a)
15 U.S.C. 632

12U.8.C. 1701

Civil Rights and Non-
Discrimination

Title VI of Civil Rights Act of
1964

Title VIl of the Civil Rights

Act of 1968

Section 104(b) and 109 of Title |
of the Housing and Community
Development Act of 1974

Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Act of 1973

Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990

Age Discrimination Act of

1975

Executive Orders 11063,
11246, 11375, 11478, 12107,
12086, and 13279

24 CFR 570.601-602;

Executive Orders 11246;

U.S.C. 3601-3620)

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act
of 1964, as amended (42
U.S.C. 2000d)

Equal Opportunity in

Housing

Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973
Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990

Equal Employment Opportunity 570.607 12086
41 CFR 60 12 USC 1701u
Fair Housing Fair Housing Act (42 24 CFR Parts 8, 107, and 146

42 U.S.C. 200(d)

Executive Orders 11063, as
amended by Executive Order
12259

Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as
amended (42 U.S.C.

6101)

Debarred or ineligible
Contractors

24 CFR 570.609; 24 CFR
24

Executive Orders 12549 and
12689

Reasonable Accommodation

24 CFR Part 8;
24 CFR 570.601-
602

Section 504 of Rehabilitation
Act of 1973

Americans w/Disabilities Act of
1990

Page 11 of 15

266 of 395

Updated 12/16/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
COBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Fire Safety Codes

Local ordinances

Building, Housing, and Zoning
Codes
Housing Quality Standards

24 CFR 570.208(b)(1)(iv);
208(b)(2)

Local ordinances

Lead-Based Paint

24 CFR 570.608; 24 CFR
Part 35

42 U.S.C 4821 et seq.

Anti-Lobbying

Appendix Il to Part 200 J;
31 U.8.C. 1352

Environmental, Historic
Preservation, National
Environmental Policy Act, Flood
Insurance Requirements

- Sitting near airportsand
coastal barrier

- Fish and wildlife protection

- Flood plain/floodinsurance

- National Historic Preservation
- Noise abatement and control
- Wetlands/Coastal zones

- Air quality

- Endangered species

- Thermal/Explosive hazards

24 CFR 570.503(b)(5)(i);
570.604; 570.605;
570.202;

24 CFR 58

References at;

24 CFR 58.6;
58.5570.605

Section 104(g), HCDA
42 U.S.C 4001 et seq.

Relocation, Real Property
Acquisitions, and One-for-One
Housing Replacement

- Uniform Relocation Act

- Residential anti-displacement
and relocation assistance

24 CFR 570.201(i);
570.606(b), (c), (d)
49 CFR 24

42 USC 4601 et seq

Sections 104(d); 105(a)(11),
HCDA
www.hud.gov/relocation

Competitive Procurement

2 CFR 200.319

Insurance and Bonding

2 CFR 200.310 and
200.325

Administrative and Accounting
Standards

2 CFR Part 200

Cost Considerations

2 CFR 200.402, 403, 404,
405, 406 and 407

Documentation and
Recordkeeping

24 CFR 570.506
24 CFR 570.502

Conflict of Interest

2 CFR 200.112 and
24 CFR 570.611

Section 108 Loan Guarantees

24 CFR 570.700-570.709

Section 108, HCDA

Page 12of 15

267 of 395

Updated 12/10/2021


www.hud.gov/relocation

Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

To the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that all data contained in this application and all supportive
documentation is true, correct and will incorporate the above requirements. This submission has been duly authorized
by the governing body of

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

268 of 395
Page 13 of 15 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form - 3
Conflict of Interest - CDBG

The standards in 2 CFR 200.318 provide that no employee, officer, or agent shall participate in the selection, award, or
administration of a contract supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be involved. Such a conflict
would arise when an employee, officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an
organization which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in the firm
selected for an award.
The CDBG regulations at 24 CFR 570.611 provide that no person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected
official or appointed official of the recipient or subrecipient that are receiving CDBG funds and (1) who exercises or has exercised
any functions or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted with CDBG funds; or (2) who is in a position to participate in a
decision-making process or gain inside information with regard to these activities, may obtain a financial interest from a CDBG-
assisted activity, or have any interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds thereunder,
either for themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties, during their tenure or for one (1) year thereafter.

A. Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the organization

requesting funds in a position to participate in the decision making process for approval of this application?

[ Yes ONo

B. Are any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the organization
requesting funds in a position to gain inside information with regard to approval of this application?
] Yes ONo

C. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the
organization requesting funds obtain a financial interest or substantial benefit from this activity?
OYes ONo

D. Will any employees, agents, consultants, officers, family members, or elected officials of the organization
requesting funds have an interest in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect to funding this
application, either for themselves or those with whom they have family or business ties during the program
year and one year thereafter? OYesONo

If you answered YES to any of the above questions, a letter must be submitted with the application that includes the
following information:

1) A disclosure of the nature and extent of theconflict
2) A description of how public disclosure will bemade
3) A qualified attorney's opinion that the conflict of interest does not violate federal, state, or locallaw

Note: If you are approved for funding, the Commission must issue a public notice of the disclosure with a 15-day public
comment period, and then submit to HUD for approval prior to execution of a grant agreement or release of funds.

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name:

Title: Date:

Page 14 of 15 269 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



Sonoma County Community Development Commission
CDBG/HOME Fair Housing Services Funding Application

Grant Certification Form -4
Policies & Procedures

The undersigned does hereby certify that the applicant organization has the following policies and/or procedures and can
produce them if requested by the Commission:

Accounting policy/procedure

Procurement policy/procedure

Conflict of Interest policy/procedure

Record Retention policy/procedure

Language Access Plan & Limited English Proficiency Policy

agrLON=

Signature/Authorized Representative of Organization

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

Page 150f 15 270 of 395 Updated 12/10/2021



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) - CV

AFFORDABLE HOUSING, CAPITAL PROJECTS, PUBLIC SERVICES AND ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS

FY 2022-23 CDBG-CV Funding Available: $1,483,473
FY 2020 Reprogrammed CDBG-CV Funds: $53,398
CDBG-CV APPLICATIONS
Applicant Public Services CDBG-CV CDC Staff
PP Project Name Amount Recommendation
Requested
Community Action
Par